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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

109. Please provide the following information:

Response:

a.

Provide all studies and analyses that KAWC has performed or
commissioned since the prior 2007 rate case that quantify the benefits that
the Company’s incentive compensation programs provide to its ratepayers.
Provide all studies and analyses that KAWC has performed or
commissioned that address how the cost of KAWC’s incentive
compensation programs should be allocated between KAWC’s
shareholders and ratepayers.

Provide all studies and analyses that KAWC has performed or
commissioned that address how other utilities allocate the cost of their
incentive compensation programs between utility shareholders and
ratepayers.

No such studies or analyses have been performed by the Company.
However, an internet search performed by the Company located numerous
studies performed by others that provide support for the utilization of an
annual incentive plan as part of a total compensation plan which motivates
better employees’ performance. While the studies available to the
Company indicate a positive effect on performance of incentive payments,
there is disagreement on the precise effects and meaningfulness of the
metrics. Please see attached study reports. The Company has not obtained
reprint rights for several of the studies reviewed, and thus they are not
attached to this response.

As noted in the response to this question in prior cases, the Annual
Incentive Plan (“AIP”) plan for employees of Kentucky American and
American Water Works Service Company, Inc. is part of a total
compensation package aimed at providing competitive market based
compensation for employees. The portion of total compensation
represented by the AIP is an at-risk portion intended to improve
performance based on the parameters measured in the plan. The annual
payout under the provisions of the plan are considered to be earned and a
portion of total compensation.

In a prior rate case (Case No. 2004-00103) the majority of plan potential
payout was based on the financial performance of the company. However,
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since that time the plan metrics have been changed significantly and the
Company financial performance parameters make up only 30% (a few
employees will have a 40% ratio based on financial performance) of the
total potential plan payout for most of the employees included in the
requested cost of service in this case. The balance of the employee
incentive awards is based on metrics related to customer satisfaction,
customer service quality, environmental, health and safety, efficiency
metrics, or other measures of the quality of performance of the employee
Please see the plan booklets provided in AG 1-105 and its attachments.

Therefore since the issuance of the Commission’s order in Case No. 2004-
00103, the Company’s AIP has been changed to reflect a greater focus on
customer service quality and efficiency. The company therefore believes
that the balance thus achieved between plan customer service objectives,
efficiency objectives and financial objectives in motivating improved
performance from employees makes it appropriate to recover the costs of
the AIP from ratepayers.

The Company also continues to maintain that the financial element of the
incentive plan is beneficial to ratepayers in that a financially healthy
company is in a better position to meet its public service obligations. A
financially healthy company will be able to raise capital at lower cost,
better respond to changes in business conditions, meet additional water
quality regulations, and will be in a better position to meet the challenges
of emergencies that occur from time to time. Employees’ efforts directed
at improving financial performance actually reduce waste and increase
efficiency, both of which in the long term will provide a customer benefit.
Therefore, it is in the customers’ interest to have a compensation plan that
motivates employees to keep the Company’s financial performance in
mind as they go about their duties. It is difficult to conceive of an action
motivated by the financial component of the AIP plan that would improve
financial performance and not also provide a benefit to customers.

. No such studies or analyses have been performed by the Company. The
Company performed a search for any such studies performed by other
utilities, utility industry associations or regulatory associations, and was
unable to locate any such studies by others.

As has been shown in prior cases employee incentive plans are a widely
utilized component of most utility company compensation plans, and are
widely utilized in industry in general. Given the Company’s position that
the AIP plan expense is a normal part of the cost of providing service, it
would not expect to “allocate” any of the cost to shareholders. Indeed,
should any portion of the cost of the Company’s employee compensation
plan be removed from the proposed cost of service or disallowed for
recovery from ratepayers, it would result in a further dilution of the
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allowed return awarded by the Commission, since these are costs the
Company has paid and continues to pay to motivate improvements in
employee performance. It is the Company’s sincere belief that all
components of the AIP do motivate improved employee performance
which has a benefit to ratepayers.

The company’s compensation plan targets base salaries at the 50th
percentile of market based compensation, based on salary surveys it
performs and which have been provided previously in AG 1-242 and AG
1-248 in the prior case (Case No. 2007-00143). The AIP is intended to
provide the possibility of compensation at the 65th percentile if all targets
are met. It is widely recognized that such plans do have a positive impact
on the performance of employees. The Company’s AIP contributes to a
reasonable compensation level and provides employees the opportunity to
obtain compensation above the market 50th percentile, based on plan
metrics. This approach gives the Company an additional means by which
to retain high performing employees for whom market based 50th
percentile salaries may be inadequate, but only on the basis of exceptional
performance.

The wide and growing acceptance in other utilities and business in general
of total compensation plans that place a portion of an employee’s
compensation at risk to improve business performance demonstrates that
such a plan is not speculative or improvised, but is a necessary component
of a program designed to retain and motivate employees who are qualified
and capable of performing the functions necessary to operate a complex
business.

No such studies or analyses have been performed by the Company. The
Company performed a search for any such studies by other utilities, utility
industry associations or regulatory associations, and was unable to locate
any such study. However, please see the attached memo from Towers
Perrin regarding the prevalence of such plans in the utility industry, as
well as general business enterprises.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#109_122308.pdf.
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TOWERS
PERRIN

HR SERVICES
Memorandum
DATE. July 10, 2007
TO: Debbie Krauss-Kelleher — American Water

FROM. Larry Parks — Towers Perrin
Jim Dickinson — Towers Perrin

RE. ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN PREVALENCE

As requested, this memorandum provides information on the prevalence of annual
incentive plans in the utility and broader general industry.

Market References and Data Sources
Energy/Utility Industry

Data are based on the fotal sample of companies that provided data to our energy
industry compensation databases and were collected from the following sources:

@ Towers Perrin's 2006 Energy Services Industry Executive Compensation Database
B Towers Perrin's 2006 Energy Services Industry Middle Management and
Professional (MMAPS) Database

General Industry

Data are based on the fotal sample of our general indusiry databases excluding a
number of market segments viewed by American Water as less relevant from a
competitive perspective (e g. banking, financial services, insurance, media/
entertainment, pharmaceuticals). Data were collected from the following sources:.

m Towers Perrin's 2006 General Industry Executive Compensation Database
B Towers Perrin's 2006 General industry Middle Management and Professional
(MMAPS) Database

A list of the companies included in each sample is provided in the attached Exhibits.

The data presented in our analysis are collected and reported by dedicated staff within
Towers Perrin’s Databases Unit Data are collected each year through a survey of
participating companies. Towers Perrin makes the data generated from our surveys
available exclusively to participants in the surveys and does not sell, license or
otherwise make the data available to any third-party sources or authorize any third
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parties to use the data in any way. Data are only available for the use of participants for
purposes of their individual compensation planning, and by Towers Perrin for purposes
of training, quality assurance, research and development, compensation consulting
services for survey participants and general promotional activities. These databases
are the primary source of competitive compensation information used in our work with
clients.

Results

Annual incentive plans are very prevalent in both the energy/utility industry as well as
the broader general industry. The following charts summarize the results of our analysis
and provide data on the percent of companies that maintain a forma!l annual incentive

plan.

Energy/Utility Industry

Executive Positions Exempt Positions
4%

General Industry

Executive Positions Exempt Positions

s 3%

4 Maintain an annual incentive plan = Do not maintain an annual incentive plan

SA00270\0NECRANNIZAL INCENTIVE PLAN PREVALENCE 7_10_07 DOC
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June 6, 2003

¢ Watson Wyatt

Worldwide
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President’s Commission on the United States Postal Service
Compensation and Incentive System Design Study

b) Executive Summary of Recommendations

Watson Wyatt Worldwide is pleased to report the results of the Compensation and
Incentive System Design Study we have conducted for the President’s Commission on
the United States Postal Service.

We believe it is possible to design an incentive compensation plan that will provide
strategic direction and engage all employees in the goal of improving Postal Service
productivity, reducing costs, enhancing customer service, and supporting the mission of
the Postal Service. From our analysis, we believe that the current National Performance
Assessment program (launched for fiscal year 2003 for USPS management), can be
cascaded with some modification to the balance of the career employee workforce. The
envisioned non-management program would be self-funded by operational financial
improvement, calibrated by productivity and balanced against mission achieve ment.

The primary focus of a non-management program would be to reinforce and reward
employees for:
¢ improvements in productivity
e teamwork, flexibility and responsiveness to meeting customer service levels, and
e implementing and supporting new management systems.

Our findings and recommendations are distilled from an analysis of broad USPS financial
data, discussions with Postal Service associates at various levels along the spectrum, and
Watson Wyatt’s expertise in effective incentive plan design. At this stage of
development, many of our positions are conceptual and provisional, requiring more
specific Postal Service information, further modeling and testing. Significant work
undoubtedly needs to be accomplished in the labor relations area. From our contact
during this assignment with rank and file USPS employees, and with their bargaining unit
representatives, we believe that employees appear to be more receptive to the idea of
variable pay than are their union representatives.

The United States Postal Service is a complex business organization. Although change
can be difficult to create within such an institution, the scale is so large that small
individual improvements quickly aggregate to massive system benefits. We believe that
a variable compensation program as we have described in this report can improve
efficiencies in the system, and help accomplish the USPS mission on a more cost
effective basis with a lower human capital content. Success will depend on proper
implementation, communication, and the support of effective human resources processes
such as training and performance management.

Page 11 of 43
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President’s Commission on the United States Postal Service
Compensation and Incentive System Design Study

¢) Assignment Objectives and Project Background

Assignment Objectives

Watson Wyatt was retained to assess the viability of an incentive compensation plan to
engage all levels of the Postal Service workforce. The key issues addressed in our
research and analysis included:

o Can an all-employee incentive compensation plan work at the USPS?

o If an incentive plan is viable at the USPS, what are the fundamental drivers for
engaging the workforce?

e What are the organizational and operational considerations for a successful incentive
compensation plan?

This report provides answers to the above questions as well as a recommended incentive
design framework. It also includes criteria for cascading performance goals to motivate
and engage USPS employees in operational improvement objectives (productivity,
efficiency, quality, use of resources and customer satisfaction). The report discusses
important design considerations and criteria for success. To support our
recommendations and criteria, we have used published USPS performance data to
illustrate various elements of our recommendations.

This report is intended as a high-level feasibility assessment and a theoretical
examination of fundamental improvements that could be achieved by using an incentive
compensation plan. Watson Wyatt was not contracted to provide financial modeling,
assessiment and analysis of current cash compensation, development of plan documents,
and plan implementation and employee communication.

Background

Executive Order No. 13278 established the President’s Commission on the United States
Postal Service (the Commission) for the purpose of examining the state of the United
States Postal Service (USPS), and to prepate and submit a report articulating a proposed
vision for the future of the USPS and recommending the legislative and administrative
reforms needed to ensure the viability of the USPS. The Commission sought specialized
assistance from Unisys/Watson Wyatt in designing a compensation incentive system that
will engage all levels of the Postal Service workforce in the goals of improving Postal
Service productivity, reducing costs, enhancing customer service, and supporting the
mission of the Postal Service.

Page 12 of 43
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President’s Commission on the United States Postal Service
Compensation and Incentive System Design Study

d) Research Methodology, History of Incentives at the USPS, and
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Research Methodology

Because of a compressed timeline, our research was limited to interviews at USPS
headquarters, postal worker union representatives and randomly selected employee
groups from Northern Virginia processing and distribution centers. We initially met with
finance, human resources and labor relations executives at the Postal Service
headquarters in Washington, D.C. to gather information on past and current incentive
plans, operational data and labor union contacts. Next, we met individually with six
fabor union and management association presidents (or their designees) to discuss their
viewpoints on operational improvement opportunities, the motivational effect of an
incentive plan, and the overall viability of an incentive plan. '

To gauge employee perceptions, we visited the Merrifield, Virginia processing plant to
conduct focus group meetings. In total we conducted four focus groups involving
approximately 40 employees. The purpose of these meetings was to gather employee
perceptions and advice on opportunities for improvements within their areas of activity
and their reactions to incentive opportunities.” We spoke with small (approximately 8-10
employees), yet diverse, volunteer groups of clerks, mail handlers, letter carriers and
supervisors. Focus group participants were forthcoming on issues such as productivity,
customer service, employee engagement and incentive compensation.

Finally, we returned to Postal Service headquarters to meet again with finance, human
resources and labor relations executives to gather more refined viewpoints and data on
improving productivity, reducing costs and enhancing customer service.

History of Incentives at the UUSPS

The Postal Service has been a pioneer in incentive pay programs within the federal
government. These programs, which were designed to link incentive compensation to
employee and organizational performance, have successfully improved customer service
levels and productivity. Postal Service incentive plans include:

Striving for Excellence Together (“SET”) — Fiscal years 1991 — 1994

Initially, this incentive plan was implemented within the mail handlers and rural carrier
union represented employees and later extended to all nonrbargaining employees. SET
utilized two customer service measures and one organizational financial performance
measure. Although the plan created organizational and employee alignment as evidenced
by some employee and management collaboration, it was cancelled at its intended sunset.
The payouts in the 1994 fiscal year proved to be less than meaningful to employees.

! See Exhibk 1in Appendix for Union leader contacls
* See Exhibil 2 in Appendix for focus group questions
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Economic Value Added (EVA) Variable Pay Program and Individual Merit Pay
Program — Fiscal pears 1996 ~ 2001

The EVA plan was developed and implemented to reinforce the organizational directive
that the Postal Service should be managed similar to a business with the goals of
improved customer satisfaction, reduced costs, and improved productivity. The plan was
available to approximately 83.000 Executive and Administrative Schedule (EAS) and
800 Postal Career Executive Service (PCES) employees. According to USPS reports and
studies, extraordinary accomplishments were realized while EVA was in place, including
significant improvements in:

Net income

On-time delivery

Labor intensity (total personnel costs as a percentage of operating expense), and
Workday injuries per 200,000 work hours.

The EVA incentive compensation plan was a team-based, gain-sharing plan that was
funded by audited financial performance, and had pre-established, objective goals and
targets. Despite the EVA incentive compensation plan’s success, according to USPS it
was cancelled after the 2001 fiscal year due to outside criticism and political pressure.

National Performance Assessment (NPA) — Effective fiscal year 2003

Similar to the previous EVA plan, the newly implemented NPA plan is based on a
balanced scorecard approach of organizational measures. Objective measures, including
customer service, employee productivity, and business productivity, are pre-established
and results are measured for each Performance Cluster, each Area, and nationwide. The
plan will be funded through improved business performance. Plan rewards (including
fump sum incentive payments and base salary increases) will be allocated based on
individual performance assessment. An individual’s performance will be assessed such
that 70% of the evaluation will be based on contribution to corporate/individual success
and 30% of the evaluation will be based on contribution to core requirements of the
position.

Based on individual performance and the employee’s salary level relative to the salary
range maximum, salary increases can range from 0% to 14%. In addition, lump sum
incentive payments (as a percentage of base salary) can range from 1% to 6% for those
rated as contributors to as much as 15% for those rated as exceptional contributors.
According to USPS representatives, incentive payments earned above the current
statutory salary cap are deferred (determination of deferral payout timing to be
determined by the USPS Boaid of Governors).

This plan is currently available to all PCES employees and may possibly be available to
both EAS and PCES employees in fiscal year 2004. It should be noted that according to
USPS executives, senior management has been willing to extend these programs to
collectively bargained employee groups, but has met resistance by union leadership.
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Considerations

Prevalence of Incentive Programs

Variable incentive designs have increased in popularity and prevalence nationally
because they provide a means of controlling costs, supporting long-term cultural change
efforts, and directing performance toward the accomplishment of business objectives.
According to the 2002-2003 Industry Report on Technician and Skilled Trades Personnel
Compensation report published by Watson Wyatt Data Services, 68% of survey
respondents (or 996 organizations covering 405,302 employees) indicated they currently
have a bonus or variable pay program in which technician and skilled trades personnel
participate. Of the 405,302 incumbents for whom data were reported, 34.6% received
variable pay awards in 2001 averaging 5% of base pay.

Although employers with collectively bargained workforces are not specifically
segregated in the study, not-for-profit organizations (whose not- for-profit status may be
likened to that of the USPS) are well represented. The report indicates that
approximately 48% of not-for-profit organizations currently have a bonus or variable pay
program. Additionally, in this same survey, another 14% of survey respondents (or 593
organizations} indicated that they will install new variable pay programs for technician
and skilled trades personnel in the next two years. Not-for-profits reported an even
higher rate of 18%.

The National Compensation Survey: Occupational Wages in the United States, January
2001 (released in January 2003) prepared by the U.S. Department of Labor Statistics
indicates that among the blue collar occupational group, employees with wages that are at
least partially based on productivity payments such as piece rates, commissions, and
productions bonuses earn approximately 12% more per hour than those workers whose
wages are based solely on an hourly rate or salary. Although no conclusions are drawn
by the Department of Labor on this differential, it might be indicative of higher overall
pay for higher personal performance. In other words, those employees that are focused
on performance objectives tend to achieve those objectives and are rewarded.

Incentive Plans in Collectively Bargained Environments

The 2002 Employer Bargaining Objectives survey of establishments with collective
bargaining agreements was conducted by the Bureau of National Affairs. Among other
things, the survey examined the prevalence of incentive and variable pay plars in current
contracts. According to their research (all employers, both manufacturing and norr
manufacturing), 16% of employers utilize group incentive plans, 10% utilize gain-sharing
plans, 9% utilize individual incentive plans, and 7% utilize profit-sharing plans. These
percentages are approximately 50% higher for manufacturing (processing) concerns.
Also, according to the research report 10% of the surveyed employers hope to establish at
least one new incentive in their next agreement, and 7% will bargain to expand one or
more current variable pay systems,
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Role of Incentive Plans

Rewards are fundamentally communication vehicles, sending messages that are
consistent with, and that reinforce, other messages employees are receiving about
business goals, desired behaviors and culture. Organizations that use incentive plans
effectively recognize that an incentive plan is but one component of the total reward
philosophy of the organization. Other essential components to engage and reward the
workforce include wages, benefits and recognition programs, as well as opportunities for
skill training, communications, performance management, employee involvement and
safe working environments.

As organizations are pressured to achieve higher levels of performance and productivity,
they are searching for ways to leverage limited resources. Variable incentive pay is the
number one design used to influence short- to mid-term business results. Coupled with
astute strategy, solid leadership and good working conditions, variable pay incentive
designs can:

s Communicate priorities to indicate the relative importance of certain objectives and
goals of the organization

o Engage employees in business success by sharing the gains realized from changed
behaviors

e Reward valued skills and behaviors

o Create business literacy by educating employees on how and why their contributions
will benefit them and their organizations

o Create esprit and solidarity through a common cause and renewed energy, and

o Contribute to a compelling place to work.

In highlighting the qualities of an effective incentive plan, it is also important to consider
what an incentive plan cannot do. An incentive plan cannot:

e Replace trusted, quality leadership

o Create results where barriers exist that inhibit performance (for example, technology
deficiencies or process inefficiencies)

e Fix an outdated or ill-conceived business strategy. or

¢ Meet all of an organization’s human resources objectives.

Because the purpose of variable incentive plans is to energize and focus employee efforts,
the design must “fit” the culture and specifically address the needs of the organization.
To this end, the design process is often iterative and complex. An effective plan design
must be based on a philosophical underpinning, clearly defined objectives, line of sight
metrics, appropriate performance periods, reasonable investment returns and, most
importantly, communication, coaching and performance management. More information
about these and other factors is presented below.
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Factors Influencing the Effectiveness of Incentives

An effective incentive program motivates employees toward desired performance
behaviors that translate into results for the organization and rewards for the employees
participating in the program. An effective Postal Service incentive plan should cause
employees to do something that they would not otherwise do if the plan did not exist.

Although a variety of issues can impact the effectiveness of an incentive plan, the items
below constitute key elements that should be considered when assessing the Postal
Service's ability to translate an incentive plan idea into a viable, robust reward tool. The
greater the degree to which these elements exist in the USPS, the more likely it is that an
incentive plan will produce the desired performance and a reward that is considered
worthwhile by participants.

Plan Design
o The plan design effectively aligns strategic operating priorities with desired
employee behavior
o Performance metrics appropriately balance competing priorities, including
productivity and quality
¢ Stakeholders concur that targeted performance levels are realistic and potential
incentive payments are fair, thereby creating a “win-win™ work environment

Simplicity
o The plan design (including measures, relevance to employee behaviors, and
payout potential) must be easy to understand by all employee levels
o The plan should be simple enough that it easily engages employees to work
toward USPS objectives (simplicity must relate to complexity of jobs
participating)

Implementation and Conmmunication
¢ The design and related implementation communications are pre-tested for clarity
and understanding
o Communication of performance results and progress toward goal attainment is
comprehensive and clear
o The measurement, tracking and reporting process is regarded by all as credible
and reliable

Line-of-Sight
s Lmployees must believe they are able to make an impact on the objective being
measured through their performance
» An action causes a reaction (positive or negative) — individual performance or
impact is recognized by the immediate supervisor
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¢ Employees understand and embrace the performance measures

¢ Performance measures shouid cascade down through the USPS (i.e., narrower in
scope with each descending responsibility level, but still aligned with the
strategies supported by the NPA plan)

Integration of Plan with other Organizational Processes and Systems

o The incentive plan performance measures are integrated within a rigorous
performance management process that sets expectations, measures performance,
and provides feedback to employees about how well they are meeting
expectations

e The performance management process translates, encourages and reinforces
behaviors that lead to positive results

e A process exists for employees to provide feedback regarding barriers to
performance improvement and to participate in problem solving aimed at
eliminating barriers and improving business performance

Return on Investment
e To be successful, the plan must generate more return for the USPS than is paid to
employees
o Positive financial returns must be carefully balanced against other norfinancial
measures

Culture and Organizational Context
e A level of open communication and trust exists among peer employees and
between levels within the USPS
e Units, divisions and departments embrace teamwork, especially where work
processes cross such boundaries
e Consistent messages are sent about what’s important and required from
employees in terms of results and behaviors

A well designed and implemented incentive plan can actually facilitate a change of
culture over time. For example, an incentive plan that focuses on measures that span
work groups, encourages employees to think about work beyond their own team and to
focus on the “hand-offs” that occur from one group to another.

The Design Process
As indicated earlier, the design process is iterative. While there is a logical, sequential
design process to follow, individual design decisions often overlap and should not be

considered final until all design features have been finalized. Following is an outline of
the primary design steps:

10
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Design Step Key and Design Issues
Develop Philosophical Underpinning o  Where does variable incentive pay fit
into USPS total reward philosophy?
= When do we use it and what is the
vaiue proposition to employees? To
the organization?

Establish Plan Objectives and Purpose e Overall purpose and expected
outcomes of the design
Select Plan Participants o Eligibility, including collectively-

bargained employees
» Impact on cross-organizational
processes
Develop Performance Measures/Metrics o Desired results / wotk behaviors
Business success factors
e Line-of-sight; simplicity
Perfect Targets, Leverage and Administrative » Formulas (based on stretch
Mechanisms performance)
Modifiers / triggers
Performance period and payout
frequency
s Performance tracking and reporting
capability
Budget
Evaluation of effectiveness
Communications
Coaching and feedback
Integration with other operating and
performance management initiatives

Assess Plan Funding and Return on
Investments

Prepare for Plan Implementation and
Ongoing Performance Management

8 80

It is critical to include in the design process ample time to adequately identify, evaluate
and balance performance metrics. The performance metrics must be properly matched to
employee level for engagement purposes. It would not be prudent to establish
performance metrics for craft employees that bear no relation to their everyday
responsibilities (i.e., no line-of-sight).

Il
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Can an all-employee incentive compensation plan work at the USPS?

From Watson Wyatt’s point of view, an organization-wide incentive program with set
targets and cascading performance goals designed to motivate individuals and engage all
USPS employees in specific behaviors related to improving productivity, reducing costs
and enhancing customer service makes very good sense. We believe, if designed
correctly, it could result in improved financial performance and help illuminate
improvement opportunities between operating units engaged in collection, processing and
delivery. We are of the opinion that an organization-wide incentive design would also
enhance solidarity among the ranks and serve to create line-of-sight for employees
between their contributions and attainment of USPS’s operating objectives.

Obviously, there are important considerations in evaluating the viability of an all
employee incentive plan, such as union and employee support. Further, the plan must be
designed to be self funded.

If an incentive plan is viable at the USPS, what are the fundamental drivers
for engaging the workforce?

Inasmuch as the National Performance Assessment Program has recently been put in
place for USPS management, we have focused our recommendations on the creation of a
complimentary, cascaded design for the 754,000 USPS field career employees. Our
preliminary incentive design criteria for these employees are that the plan would be:

Self- funded
Calibrated by productivity and mail volumes
Triggered by mission achievement.

L b

Following are recommended design criteria:

1. Self Funded: The new plan should be seli-funded, which means that USPS
shares a portion of improved economic gains with employees.

2. Calibration: We believe that metrics that correlate with improved financial
results should be used to set targets, track progress and determine award values
for employees. From the USPS 2002 Annual Report we calculate that fully 79%
of USPS’s 2002 operating costs are related to the provision of compensation and
benefits for employees. Therefore, we believe that good measures for tracking
improved financial results are those associated with improved productivity and
efficiency. For this reason, we believe that a target set around ‘Pieces per
Employee™ that move through the postal service system will appropriately track
and report operating efficiencies for employees engaged in mail collection,
processing and delivery. As a safeguard for service quality, it is anticipated that

12
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a second measure, such as percentage of ontime delivery, would serve as a
“trigger” or threshold under which productivity improvements would be
penalized.

Total Factor Productivity (TFP) which the Postal Service has used to track
productivity for several years, is an alternative metric to Pieces per Employee.
However, as it incorporates labor and capital productivity, it is further removed
from the labor component of the productivity equation. Further, even when
process improvements are achieved via, for example, new technology or other
capital investments, eventual cost reductions (a key goal) are primarily realized by
lower labor content.

We believe that the Pieces per Employee measure has several very functional
attributes:

e It is simple to understand by all employees

o lIts line of sight is short, relating to the work of nearly every Postal Service field
employee

e The numerator of the formula, i.e., pieces of mail processed through the system,
and the denominator, employees, are currently tracked and publicly reported by
the Postal Service

» Employees are likely to trust the reported numbers

o The measure is the essence of productivity; performance can be enhanced by
processing more with static resources and/or reducing resources, and

» The measure could be the foundation of a communication program to educate
employees on the interrelationships between employees and departments/units on
getting the mail collected, processed and delivered.

One of the few shortcomings of this measure is that its relation to cost reduction or
revenue generation is indirect. That is, individual and group productivity can
improve in an environment of escalating costs for compensation, benefits, equipment,
etc., and the improvements are obscured.

3. Mission: According to USPS officials, failure to achieve on-time delivery service
levels over a period of time is predictive of decreased mail volume and
heightened customer dissatisfaction Inasmuch as achievement of the USPS’s
universal distribution mission is financially bolstered by first class mail and
package services, customer loyalty is an important component of the USPS
business model. As such, our recommendation is to use achievement of customer

13
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service guarantees at current national levels as a “proxy™ for customer loyalty and
satisfaction and to set a performance threshold below which the plan does not pay,
regardless of improvements in productivity.

Measurement of Pieces Per Employee

We recommend that the ‘Pieces per Employee” (PPE) performance be measured at the
district or “cluster” level and be conducted on a quarterly basis. The performance bonus
pool would be generated on a quarterly basis for PPE over a threshold and paid to
employees within 30 days of quarter’s end. [t is also our recommendation that the
measurement of pieces of mail be done as it is currently. To convey the message that
performance is in the control of front-line employees, it is recommended that the
numerator of “employees” be defined as field career employees assigned to a
Performance Cluster or appropriate district. Removed from this group are all employees
participating in the National Performance Assessment, other headquarters personneland
all norrcareer employees.

Iustration of Past Pieces Per Employee Results

The following table, from data disclosed in the USPS 2002 Annual Report, shows the
PPE for the last five years:

Pieces Per Employee Results 1998-2002
Year Field Career | Pieces of Mail PPE % Change from
Employees’ (millions) Prior Year

2002 743,000 202,822 273,000 +0.55%
2001 764,000 207,463 271,500 +1.23%
2000 775,000 207,882 268,200 + 4.56%
1999 786,000 201,644 256,500 +1.75%
1998 781,000 196,905 252,100

From our calculations, over a five year period, a compounded annual rate of
improvement of 1.6% was accomplished with only the existing recognition and reward
programs. From remarks of Postmaster General Potter in the 2002 Annual Report, the
2002 results contributed to Postal Service cost avoidance of $2.8 billion. For illustrative
purposes, the USPS might consider an annual PPE productivity improvement of 1.6% as
a threshold level of improvement, at or below which no additional rewards should be
made. The portion of financial gain above the threshold to share between employees and
the USPS must be modeled.

¥ Exclusive of headquariers and noncareer employees
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Plan Cost and Return on Investment Hlustrations

To assess whether the underlying plan design concept is viable, it is necessary to
ilustratively model plan costs and return on investment. The modeling is based on
information found in the USPS 2002 Annual Report.

Total direct compensation, i.e., salaries and wages, in 2002 were disclosed to be $36.9
billion for all USPS employees. Based on our assumption that, on average Headquarters
compensation is 120% of field career compensation, and non-career employee
compensation is 20% of field career, we arrive at an average annual total pay for field
career at $47,800. This would include overtime pay. It is estimated that benefits would
add an additional 30%, or $14,400 to the average total annual cost per field career
employee, for a totalof $62,200. A more detailed analysis can be conducted as the bonus
plan design is refined.

Watson Wyatt surveys show that many organizations pay bonuses to employees below
the management levels, as presented earlier. The average bonus as a percentage of salary
or wages is shown to be very modest in some sectors, such as not-for-profit
organizations. It is our belief that bonuses as little as 2.5% to 3% of wages can draw
employees’ attention and begin to encourage work-related behavior changes. At the
other end of the reward spectrum, we do not believe it is necessary to award more than
7% to 8.5% of wages to achieve full employee involvement in the program. It is also
essential that incentive payouts have noticeable volatility, including zero to avoid
establishing an entitlement attitude among participants. With the population we have
defined as eligible for the broad-based employee bonus plan, 3% of compensation is
about $1.07 billion and 7% is nearly $2.5 billion.”

What level of productivity improvement or revenue generation is necessary to fund these
payouts? Revenues achieved through postal rate increases must be removed from the
bonus calculations. Further, revenues are a suboptimal measure since it is not clear how
employees in the group we are addressing can drive demand, other thanthe practice of
effective customer relations by those who have public contact.

The true leverage in the plan concept is to process the same or greater level of production
with fewer resources. If mail volume declines, the human capital content must decrease
more rapidly. All this must be accomplished either through improved individual
productivity or advances in technology. Many employees we spoke with in the focus
sroups believe individual productivity can be improved.

* However, since the payoll includes overime, these figures are fikely oversialed for a bonus plan that would be calculated based
on straight-time salary or wages
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Static examples of productivity improvements recessary to fund bonus pools are
calculated in the following table. Although we recommend that the unit of measurement
be at a Performance Cluster or district level, until those figures are analyzed, we present
calculations on a systenrwide basis.

A. Expected improvement in PPL at annualized 1.6%
(2002: 273,000 PPE x 1.016 = 2003 Minimum PPLE) 277,400

B. Human capital reduction to achieve 2003 Minimum
PPE 12,000 employees
[2002 Employees minus (2002 Pieces + Minimum PPE))

C. 2003 Pieces to achieve Minimum PPE 206.4 billion
(2002 Employees x 2003 Minimum PPE)

D. Cost to fund 3% bonus pool (i.e., Threshold Bonus) $1.07 billion
E. Total human capital reductions to fund 3% pool

[($1.07 B + 862,200 cost per field employee) + 12,000] 29,200 employees
F. Threshold quarterly bonus for $40,000 employee @ 3% $300

G. Cost to fund 7% bonus pool (i.e., Superior Bonus) $2.5 billion
H. Total human capital reductions to fund 7% pool

[(32.5 B+ $62,200) + 12,000] 52,200 employees
1. Superior guarterly bonus for $40,000 employee @ 7% §700

In the above example, presented for illustrative purposes only, a dynamic model would
include a combination of mail volume volatility as well as human capital efficiencies.
With static mail volume assumed in the illustration, the number of employees becomes
dynamic. Clearly, headcount reductions cannot continue indefinitely at the USPS.
Therefore, at some future point efficiency gains based on this incentive plan will stagnate
and the incentive plan may need to be recalibrated. We would advise the Postal Service
to carefully evaluate these issues annually.

In Line B above, the cost avoidance of $62,200 for each of 12,000 employees is about
$750 million, approximately three-quarters of our estimate of the total increase in

compensation and benefits for 2003. In Line C, an increase of 3.6 billion pieces, at an
average rate of $0.33 per piece (based on 2002 volume and revenues) would generate
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about $1.2 billion of additional revenue. It is the cost avoidance or cost reductions above
these levels that are expected to fund the employee incentive pool. In addition,
depending on USPS’s human resources strategies regarding increases in wages, it may be
possible to divert these wage costs from fixed to variable expenses and assist in incentive
pool funding.

It is expected that declines in service quality will severely affect the funding of the
incentive pool. From an achievement of mission point of view, we believe it is prudent to
set Performance Cluster/district on-time delivery levels as the threshold for plan payment.
To the extent current levels cannot be maintained, the plan would not make incentive
payments. This incentive plan design element will clearly communicate to employees the
critical organizational objective of customer service and satisfaction.

What are the organizational and operational considerations for a
successful incentive compensation plan?

Setting performance targets is a crucial exercise in the operation of any incentive plan. If
the probability of achieving some payment from the plan is seen as too low, it will not
motivate participants to change behaviors. Indeed, it could have a damaging effect on
employee morale and their attitudes toward Postal Service management. On the other
hand, goals that are set too low provide inadequate returns to the organization and an
entitlement expectation among employees, which may not be reversible without damage
to morale. The definition of precise performance targets, triggers, performance periods
and other administrative design elements requires data analysis and modeling with actual
performance information

Performance measurement periods need to be tied closely to process periods and the
nature of the jobs covered by the plan(s). As a broad generalization, craft employees’
individual and group performance should be measured and communicated frequently
(daily, weekly, and monthly), whereas executive and management performance should be
measured and communicated on a somewhat longer time horizon (monthly, quarterly,
and annually). While the performance cycle for the employee group we are addressing
should have a short time horizon, it must be long enough to gauge productivity properly.
Until we know more about the measurement process and other ingredients of productivity
in the Postal Service, we believe quarterly cycles balance these issues.
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Exhibit 1- Union Leaders Participating in Study
Mr. William Burrus, President American Postal Workers Union, AFL-CIO
Mr. Gus BafTa, President National Rural Letter Carriers’ Association
Mr. William Young, President National Association of Letter Carriers,
AFL-CIO
Mr. Steve LeNoir, President National League of Postmasters of the
United States
Mr. Vincent Palladino, President National Association of Postal Supervisors
Mr. Bruce Lerner, General Counsel National Postal Mail Handlers Union

Exhibit 2 - Employee Focus Group Questions

1. If you were to tell me that the USPS had a great year last year, what measures
would you point to as proof?

Are employees as productive as they can be? If not, what are the obstacles?
Please provide your thoughts and ideas on measuring your work.

Why is customer service important? How do you know when you have met
customer service expectations?

5. Would you like an incentive compensation plan? Why?

SRS
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Annual Cash Ince
for Managerial an
rofessional Employees

ince the early 80, there has been a substantial increase in the use of

variable pay as a percentage of total pay that managers and
professionals receive In recent years, management’s mantra has been
lD“‘l" 3.[.[){;[11%:3 to increase the “leverage” of variable pay to better align managers and
R professionals with the business, to encourage outstanding performance, to
share the risk of business success and to more fairly reward those
employees who male the largest contributions. With the exception of

executive compensation, few research studies have attempted to link annual
Themas D MchMullen

Hay Craap

cash incentive pay programs o organizational effectiveness. Lack of

empirical evidence, however, has not prevented compensation managers,
academicians and consultants from suggesting that organizations can gain a
competitive advantage by using variable pay to increase performance

Since annual cash incentives are widely used with managerial and

{i?g::‘::a”m professional employees, it would be in management's best interests to
learn which designs of annual cash variable pay programs are most
effective. Consequently, this study attempts to identify the most common
design features of annual cash variable pay programs and determine if

Dennis terajda, MSIR certain design features are more effective then others in driving

organizational performance.




Research Methods
Identifying the Research Population
The first phase of the study focused on identifying the
common features of annual variable pay programs in
use today by reviewing the literature and discussing this
issue informally with academics, consuliants and
practitioners. Differences in terminology and program
definitions used in the compensation field created a
significant challenge to the research To meet this
challenge, the team tried to find the most common or
universally used terminology and definitions for policies
or programs to minimize confusion for respondents
The research team also recognized that there are
variations in variable pay programs across different
organizational levels and occupations within the same
organization For example, outside sales incentive
programs are designed very differently than incentive
programs for managers in a manufacturing operation
Consequently, research focused on managerial and
professional employees {or four reasons. First, most
organizations tend to have a uniform set of policies and
practices for this group. Incentive plans associated with
the senior executive team or sales professionals were
excluded from the study because incentive programs
are often customized for these groups and even for
individuals within these groups Second, compensation
managers will likely have substantial knowledge of the
variable pay policies and programs for professional and
managerial employees since they are typically
accouritable for program administration and are
probably incduded in this group for pay purposes. Third,
this employee group tends to have a significant impact
on total organizational performance, making this a
critical group to understand in terms of pay policies and
programs and organizational effectiveness Finally, the
focus of the study provided continuity since managers
and professionals were the focus of our previous study
that examined the linkages between base-pay policies

and praciices and organizational effectiveness.
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The focus of the
study provided
continuity since
managers and
professionals were
the focus of our
previous study that
examined the
linkages between
base-pay policies
and practices and
organizational
effectiveness.

Developing the Survey Instrument
In phase two, the team constructed a data collection
instrument with statements and response categories
that generated a set of standardized responses for use in
quantitative analysis of the data To enhance the
richness of the findings, open-ended questions were
also included to ensure that nonstandardized
responses were captured There were three cycles of
pilot tests with compensation managers, consultants
and academics before the suivey instrument was
finalized.

The final version of the survey instrument asked
participants to describe and evaluate the annual
variable pay program for which their managerial and

professional emplayees were eligible as it related 1o:




During a two-week
period, a total of 958
members responded,

This represents
vartable pay
pDrograms covering
approximately 2.8
million management
and professional
plan participants
from a cross section
of industries.

= Design features of the annual cash incentive pay
program
= ldentification of those involved in program design
=  Administration and implementation
I»  Evaluation of program effectiveness

The study did not examine equity pay programs
because a long-drawn-out survey might have discouraged

compensation managers from responding.

Defining “Successful”

We used three meastures to determine the effectiveness
of the annual variable compensation program . First, the
team compared the pay policies and programs between
companies included in Fortune magazine's 2003
"America's Most Admired Companies” list for their
industry sector and those that did not receive the

[

designation Fortune’s “Most Admired Companies” is a
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highly regarded annual survey of corporate reputations,
conducted by Hay Group, of more than 10,000
executives, directors and analysts The survey invites
them 1o rate companies overall and within industry
groupings on eight criteria ranging from financial
soundness and use of corporate assets to quality of
management, products and services

Second, the team collected 2003 total shareholder
return (TSR) information for the publicly traded
companies that responded to this survey TSR is defined
as the monthly percentage growth in stock price and
dividends paid over a five-year period The team
divided the TSR data into quartiles and compared
survey responses for the highest TSR quartile {i e, the
top 25 percent of companies} with data from
companies in the lowest or bottom guartile of TSR
(ie, the lowest 25 percent of the companies)

Finally, survey respondents were asked 1o make
a personal assessment of the effectiveness of their
compensation policies and practices. Although this
measure may be subjective, we believe that the education
and experience of most compensation managers provides

a refatively valid indicator of program success

Response Rate

A representative sample of more than 9,000
WorldatWork members was sent a Web link to the
electronic survey instrument in late November 2003
The membership sample targeted the highest-level
compensation manager for each company. Virtually all
responses were from compensation professionals or HR
managers who had significant responsibility for
compensation decisions During a two-week period, a
total of 958 members responded. This represents
variable pay programs covering approximately 2.8
million management and professional plan
participants from a cross section of industries including
manufacturing (26 percent), financial and insurance

{22 percent), information (seven percent}, health care



and social assistance {seven percent), utilities {(seven
percent) and professional, scientific and technical
services {five percent)

Key descriptive findings are highlighted in the
following section. Additional relevant descriptive
statistics are provided in this report’s appendix All
percentages are rounded up from 5 and therefore may
not equal 100 percent

More than 99 percent of respondents completed
the entire survey and were included in the analysis
Figures 1, 2 and 3 show how the sample represented
virtually all industries and organization sizes The
analyses reported here are descriptive statistics and t-tests
comparing responses between “Most Admired” and
other companies, and comparing companies with the
highest TSR {i.e, top quartile} and the lowest TSR

{i.e, bottom quartile)

Research Findings

Program Features

Over the past two decades, the prevalence of variable
pay programs has increased substantially and today a

significant majority of organizations offer these

KAW_R_AGDR1#109_122308

Page 30 of 43

Annuat {or short-term} Variable Pay Y% Used
Individual measures only 25%
Group measures 75%

5

Individual measures only

25%

Corporate measures enly

31%

Business unit. tearn, department
measures only

16%

Combination of corporate, business unit
and individual measures

15%

Other combinations

13%

programs Seventy percent of respondents believed that Primary Objectives of Variable Pay Program Percentage
{(Respondents asked to seiect three most important)
variable pay was “"important to very impontant” to the
) N , .. . Improve organization or team financial performance 65%
success of their organizations’ competitive strategies
Create a more competitive total compensation
market position 58%
e - improve individual performance or productivity 47%
% Responded
Strongly to Improve overalt productivity 32%
Type of Variable % of Managers and Moderately
Pay Program Professionals Eligible Effective Better recognize employee contributions 32%
Individual-based Promote s sense of ownership 22%
Performance Programs 79% 8996
Team-based Use variable pay to better manage
Perfermance Programs 48% 83% compensation costs 17%
Gain-sharing Programs 19% 72%
Profit or Revenue Improve empioyee involvement 12%
Sharing Programs 46% 69%
]
Equity Programs 55% 58% Suppert culture change 8%
Spot/Other Cash-based
Reduce employee turnover 7%
Recognition Programs 75% 70% pioy




Furthermore, 36 percent believed that it is “moderately
important” for “most” employee groups and 44 percent
believed that variable pay is “important” for “all”
employee groups

Data shown in Figure 1 excludes organizations that
do not offer variable pay eligibility to both managers
and professionals. However, 14 percent of this sample
gramts eligibility to “managers only” {not including the
senior executive team}, while less than one percent
grants “only to professional” employees Specifically,
Figure 1 details the types of variable pay programs for
which managers and professionals are eligible and rates
the effectiveness of those programs

Figure 2 indicates the types of measures used to
determine performance A majority of organizations in
the survey {75 percent) utilize some form of group
measure in variable pay plan design and 25 percent of
organizations rely on individual performance measures
alone to determine payouts. Of the organizations using
group measures, a significant subset uses corporate
performance measures only {31 percent)

When asked their view regarding leverage
{i.e, variable pay as percentage of base pay),
73 percent of compensation managers
believed that their managerial and
professional employees were “moderately to
aggressively leveraged” as compared to other
companies in the labor market As might be
expecied, higher-paid professionals and
managesial employees are more highly
leveraged than those who are paid less
The range of reported variable pay (as a
percentage of base) is provided below:
= Paid less than $50,000 are leveraged zero
Lo nine percent
B 550,000 10 $99,000 are leveraged 10 to
24 percent
= $100,000 to $149,000 are leveraged 10 to

39 percent
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= $150,000 to $199,000 are leveraged 10 to
59 percent
= $200,000 to $299,000 are leveraged 40 to
79 percent,

Survey participants reported diverse reasons for
providing variable pay programs 1o manageriai and
professional employees Figure 3 indicates the number
of respondents who said a particular objective was one
of their top three objectives for the variable pay
programs "Improve organization or team financial

#on

performance,” "create a more competitive compensation

market position” and "improve individual performance”
are the most frequently mentioned variable pay
objectives. Improved overall productivity and employee
recognition are in the second tier of objectives

Three primary funding sources for the managerial
and professional annual or short-term variable plans
were identified, as shown in Figure 4, (i e, discretionary,
percentage of payroll and self-funded ) Discretionary is

defined as a means of funding in which, near the end

Other

Percentage
of Payroli

For Managerial and Professional Employees

Discretionary
Funding

Self-funded via
Reduced Costs or
Increased Revenues




of the performance period, the senior managers simply
determine what the bonus pool will be and establish
some method for dividing up the pool (i e the amount
paid out is at the management’s discretion). 1t was
interesting that almost half (45 percent) of the
managerial and professional annual incentives were
simply budgeted as labor costs as opposed to self-funded
plans {31percent)

Organizations tend to provide corporate safeguards
in the design of variable pay programs. The survey
indicated that 82 percent of variable pay programs have
a hurdle or trigger that can cancel a payout and 87
percent of programs have pre-established performance
levels Likewise, most organizations have a maximum
cap on earning opportunities in the variable pay
program. Approximately 80 percent of those surveyed
utilize a performance cap on potential variable pay
earnings. Figure 5 shows that most caps are between 1 5
and 2 times the target

1t shouid be noted that nearly one quarter of plans
have a maximum that is between 100 and 124 percent of
the target Our experience tells us that these are likely 1o
be plans based on a hurdle In other words, there is a
specific objective (o achieve and once the objective is
achieved, there is a payout Conversely, there is no payout
if the objective is not achieved and there is no increased

payout if results beyond the objective were achjeved

if Plan Contains a Cap,
the Maximum % of the Target Percentage
100 - 124% 24%
125 - 149% 12%
150~ 199% 27%
200 - 249% 25%
250 - 300% %
Over 300% 1%
Not appticable B%
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Figure 6 shows that the vast majority of variable
pay programs for managertal and professional

employees are paid annually

Program Communications and Implementation
The survey indicates that 81 percent of the variable pay
programs have been revised in the "last five years” with
47 percent revised during the “last two years " The
primary designer of the variable pay plan for 66 percent
of the respondents was “Human Resources,” ofien with
input from senior management It is interesting to note
that 23 percent of responding organizations “seldom
involved eligible employees” in the design of the
program

Sixty-seven percent of compensation managers
believe that “most to all eligible employees” understand
the variable pay program

Ninety-three percent of respondents indicated that
they provided some variable pay communication.
The findings repost in Figure 7 on page 12 indicates
that variable pay plans are communicated in diverse
ways. “One-on-one discussions with supervisors” and
“written materials outlining the plan” were listed as the
primary means to communicate changes in the plan to
employees. This indicated to us that executives use

traditional, reliable and perhaps the most effective

forms of communication.

Primary Variable Pay Program Percentage
Designed to Pay Out: Responses
Annually 81%
Semi-annually 5%
Quarterly 7%
Monthly 1%
Achievement of
objectives/milestones 2%

11
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Details and Updates are Percentage Variable Pay Parcent Responded
Communicated Through: Responses Program Dimension Effective to Very Effective
One-on-one discussions Frequency of payouts 79%
with supervisar 55% .
Funding mechanism 77%
Written materials outlining plan 52%
Relationship between variable pay
Information posted in a public program payouts to crganizational 72%
piace or on the intranet 31% performance
Employee meetings 345 Appropriateness of the variable
payplan measures 68%
Variabie pay information in
NOT communicated 7% Overali effectiveness 64%
Administrative ease 64%
Appropriate retusn on investment 62%
Variable Pay Program Effectiveness Employee understanding the program 61%
Compensation managers were asked (o rate the Motivational value of the program 55%
effectiveness of their variable pay program for managers Relationship between variable pay
and professional employees on several dimensions. program payouts to individual 53%
. . performance
Figure 8 shows the percentage of managers that said
that the variable pay plan was effective or very effective Responsiveness to change S0%
for the stated dimension. Figure 8 indicates that Relationship between variable pay
. .\ . program payouts to group or team 43%
approximately two thirds of compensation managers performance
are satisfied with the overall effectiveness of their

variable pay programs. However, this still indicates that
a significant minority (one in three) is not satisfied
The items that scored higher on perceived effectiveness
tend to be design-related atributes such as frequency of
payouts, funding mechanism and appropriateness of
measures The relationship between payouts and
organization performance also scored high, but the
relationship of payouts to individual performance and
teamn/group performance scored lower The motivational
value of the program also scored relatively low We
could imply that since a high percentage of plans are
based on corporate measures only, the motivational
impact at the individual leve] is diluted.

The criteria used 1o judge the effectiveness of
managerial and professional annual or shori-term

variable pay programs are shown in Figure 9.

12

Criteria Management Uses to Judge

Effectiveness of Their Programs Percent
{Respandents asked to select all that apply) Response
Business operating results 73%
Informal opinion gathering from senior leadership 35%
Employee satisfaction survey measures 30%
Employee productivity metrics 28%
Employee turnover or relention 27%
Informal opinion gathering from employee”s 23%

Management does not evaluate variable pay
plan success

Labor costs are controlled or lowered




Respondents indicated that “business operating resuits”
are the primary criteria, with "informal opinion
gathering from senior leadership” a distant second
choice This same question was asked in last year's
survey regarding base pay practices For base pay,
respondents overwhelmingly chose employee retention
as the primary effectiveness criterion. This shows that
HR professionals are taking a balanced approach to
compensation and using different compensation
vehicles 1o meet different objectives. Base pay tends to
be used to attract and retain talent and variable pay is
typically used to reward performance

Interviews with compensation managers supported
these trends Companies that were successful with
variable pay atiributed it to line of sight and
communication. Mark Premock, general director of
compensation at Burlington Northern Santa Fe,
said during a personal interview on April 29, 2004,
“We take extra time to get performance communication
approved by the entire senior Jeadership team.
That way, no matter how empioyees receive their
information, it is always a consistent message ”

Compensation managers indicate that improving
the "line-of-sight"and the linkage between payout and
performance are the most important ways to improve
the variable pay programs (See Figure 10). Despite
these findings, a majority of organizations do not
involve employees in the design of the variable pay
program . This seems to be an obvious area for
improvement In focusing on line-of-sight issues,
organizations are suggesting that they must do a better
job of ensuring that their employees understand what
they are being asked to do 1o earn their rewards, and
that their individual goals are based on a realistic view
of the future and connected to what the organization
needs to succeed in the future

Employees are typically motivated to provide
additional discretionary effort in their jobs when they

feel connected to the bigger picture and understand
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In focusing on line-of-
sight issues, organizations
are suggesting that they
must do a better job of
ensuring that their
employees understand
what they are being asked
to do to earn their
rewards, and that
their individual goals are
based on a realistic view
of the future and
connected to what the
organization needs to
succeed in the future.

How Variable Pay Programs Can Be Improved Percent
{Respondents asked to select three most important) | Response
Improve plan “line of sight” 1o individuat or
team efforts 60%
Improve linkage between payout and performance 57%
Improve commiunication of plan objectives 48%
Increase understanding of the variable pay plan 33%
Improve ease of administration 23%
Increase payout opportunities 23%
Ensure goals are viewed as more attainable 22%
Reduce conflicting goals 9%




There were not many
differentiating features
in terms of plan design,
but programs differ
widely in terms of how
they are executed —
especially in the areas
of communication,
building line of
sight and providing
management with an
imporitant role in
the design and
implementation of
these programs.

how their actions contribute This is both a variable pay
issue as well as a communication issue. Goals and
measures will have little value if employees are unaware
of how they are progressing toward the goal until they

have either met or missed it

Conclusions

In this research, we have seen that the prevalence and
eligibility levels of variable pay programs are substantial
and that compensation professionals view variable pay
programs as instrumental in their reward strategy The
primary objectives of these programs tend to be

squarely focused on improving organizational and
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individual performance and improving the overall
market competitiveness of pay. The majority of plans
consist of group measures, but there is renewed focus
on individual measures

This study indicates that variable compensation for
most managerial and professional employees is still
administered under fairly traditional, time-tested
methods such as individual bonuses, profit sharing,
gain sharing and equity programs Compensation
professionals believe that these methads are generally
effective, as is evideni by their widespread use and
positive responses regarding the perceived effectiveness
of these programs. Designs for short-term or annual
cash variable pay programs are generally given high
ratings for effectiveness by the survey respondents, but
program implementation is not viewed as favorably
Relatively low marks are given for the effectiveness of
the compensation programs’ motivational value and
commuaication to employees Although individual
variable pay plans are rated highly, most plans have a
group variable pay component We have found in this
research that there were not many differentiating
features in terms of plan design, but that programs
differ widely in terms of how they are executed —
especially in the areas of communication, building line
of sight and providing management with an important
role in the design and implementation of these
programs

Compared (o our previous study that examined
base-pay issues, we found fewer connections between
program design features and two measures of
organizational effectiveness, i e, TSR and designation
as a Most Admired Company (according 1o Fortune
magazine) We did find that the most admired
companies were more likely to involve program eligible
emplovyees in the design of the variable pay program.
[nvolvement not only builds commitment to the
program, it may also improve program design and help

employees better understand how the program works



Compensation managers from most admired
companies perceived their annual cash variable pay
program as being more effective, especially as it related
to the motivational value of the program and the
relationship of variable compensation payouts to
individual employee performance Respondents from
most admired companies also had more confidence
that employees understood the program, which is
consistent with their willingness to involve employees
in the design of the program The authors did not find
any significant differences between variable pay
program design features and TSR

Thus, we conclude that annual bonuses for
managerial and professional employees will continue
to be an important component of their pay. However,
program effectiveness is less an issue of having the
“right” program features and more dependent on
program implementation and communication
Therefore, companies that want 1o improve the
effectives of their annual incentive programs should
focus on helping employees understand the program
and how their actions contribute to business results,

and on building commitment for the program. W)

otirces Pl
For more information related to this article:
Go to www.worldatwork.org/advancedsearch and:
= Type in this key word string on the search fine:
cash incentive OR variable pay and cash
Go to www.worldatwark.org/bookstore for:
« Designing Management Incentive Plans — An Approath to
Developing o Short-Term Incentive Plan for Managers
+ Incentive Compensotion Strategies for the New Milleanium
Go to www.worldatwork.erg/cestification for:
= (12:Variable Pay: Incentives, Recognition and Bonuses
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Evaluating Pay Program Effectiveness:
A National Survey of Compensation
Professionals

Zhis paper is the second in a two-part examination of pay program

evaluation. The first paper, “Evaluating Pay Program Effectiveness”

{published last quarter in the WorldatWorl Journal), suggested that

Baw Scolt, O B using return on investment {ROI) to determine the value of pay programs

Loyt Usluersy. Clicago has significant limitations The authors proposed that comprehensive pay

program evaluation should not only assess RO!I but should also:

b Provide necessary feedback for improving pay program effectiveness,
given the constant changes in the work and business environment

» Identify problems early in the pay program’s rollout

Thomas D Mehullen

o G # Build employee and management commitment to the pay program

by engaging them in the evaluation and improvement process

P Hold management responsible for implementing the program as
designed, and

> Communicate pay values, policies and programs to employees

fichast . Sporling and managers
Hay Group

To accomplish these goals, a comprehensive two-dimensional
framework for evaluating pay programs was proposed {adapted from
the work of Donaid Kirkpatrick 1998). The first dimension focuses

on four evaluation perspectives that should be considered in the

evaluation process:

[giquartenzo00; S



b employee perception of the pay program
b their understanding of the pay program
B employee behaviors driven by the program and
P the impact the pay program has on results
Researchers widely use the second dimension in
the process to collect and analyze data:
1 Setting goals or objectives
2 ldentifying evaluation criteria
3 Selecting an evaluation methodology
4 Collecting and analyzing data
5 Interpreting findings and
6 Developing and implementing program
improvement strategies
This process ensures the information collected
is of sufficient rigor to provide accurate insights on
pay program value This framework is explained in
considerable detail in Part 1 of this series, published
in the Second Quarter 2006 edition of the
WorldatWork Journal
This paper, Part 2 of the series, presents the
findings from a national survey of compensation,
human resources and finance professionals who
identify current practices of how pay programs are
evaluated within their organizations To understand
if a systematic and comprehensive evaluation process
is used within organizations, the authars structured
the survey to address the following questions:
> To what extent do organizations evaluate pay
program effectiveness?
B How is pay program effectiveness evaluated?
b Does pay program evaluation tend to be
quantitative or qualitative, formal or informal?
b To what degree does pay program evaluation focus
on financial versus human resources measures
(e g. turnover, absenteeism, attracting talent or
motivation}?
b What impact, if any, does pay program evaluation

have on organizational effectiveness?

48 [T ToUrTaT R
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Data Collection Methods and Respondent
Characteristics
WorldatWork, Chicago Compensation Association
members and registered Hay Group (a management
consulting firm) Web site users were invited 1o
participate in the research initiative in January 2006
The survey was open for a 30-day period, and the
database was closed in February 2006 The survey
required approximately 15 to 20 minutes to complete
Of the more than 600 respondents participating in
the study, 55 percent were compensation professionals,
27 percent were human resources managers and 18
percent held other managerial positions (e g, primarily
business-unit executives and finance professionals)
Participating organizations were fairly evenly distzributed
by size Approximately one-third of organizatons had
fewer than 1,000 employees, one-third had between
1,000 and 5,000 employees and one-third had greater
than 5,000 employees (See Figure 1 on page 48).
Only 8 percent of the sample reported representing
organizations with fewer than 100 employees

Figure 2 on page 49 shows the sample incduded

respondents from a diverse range of industries The

Because of rounding. this figure totals 99 percent.



INDUSTRY SECTOR %
Manufacturing 16
Finance and Insurance 15
Health Care, Sociat Assistance k2|
Professional, Scientific, Technical Services 8
Pubfic Administration 6
Educational Services 6
Retall Trade 4
Utilities 3
Information (Publishing, Electronic, Print, iT) 3
Transport and Warehousing 3
Wholesale Trade 2
Cther Services {Except Public Administration) 2
Reat Estate and Construction 2
Cther 20

Due to rounding. this figure tatals mose than 100 percent

largest representation were from manufacturing (16
percent); finance and insurance {15 percent); health
care and social assistance (11 percent); and professional,

scientific and technical services {8 percemnt)

While the Most Admired
analysis uses a
balanced set of rating
attributes covering
both financial and
nonfinancial criteria,
it is important to note
that Most Admired
Companies outperform

the market as a whole.
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Respondents were excluded from the analysis if more
than one manager responded for a single organization
{the highest-ranking manager was retained) or if the
organization reported it had fewer than 10 employzes
To examine the impact pay program evaluation may
have on organizational effectiveness, companies
identified by Fortune magazine as a “Most Admired
Company” were compared 1o respondents with the
same range in employee size The Fortune “Most
Admired Companies” survey is a highly regarded
annual analysis of corporate reputations. The Hay
Group conducts the survey for Fortune. More than
10,000 executives, directors and industry analysts are
involved in developing these overall rankings The survey
invites these respondents to rate companies, overall and
within industry groupings, on nine criteria ranging [rom
financial soundness and use of corporate assets (0
quality of management and quality of products and
services While the Most Admired analysis uses a
balanced set of rating attributes covering both financial
and nonfinancial criteria, it is important to note that
Most Admired Companies outperform the market as a
whole In 2006, the top 10 Most Admired Companies
delivered a five-year average total shareholder retum of

11 1 percent, compared to -2 7 percent for the S&P 500

Research Findings

In response to the question "Does your company
evaluate the effectiveness of its pay program?” 66 percent
responded “yes” for base pay programs and 53 percent
responded “yes” for variable pay programs From the
total sample, 47 percent of the companies evaluate their
base and variable pay programs. However, there was a
sipnificant difference in evaluation prevalence for the
Most Admired Companies, with 81 percent of these
organizations evaluatng base and variable pay program
effectiveness as compared to 51 percent of comparably
sized companies {5,000 employees or more) that did

not receive this designation
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The information reponted in Figure 3 through
Figure 8 (pages 50-52) is only for those organizations that
reported they evaluated their pay programs Figure 3
shows the level at which pay programs are evaluated and
the importance associated with that information,
collected for evaluation purposes For base and variable
pay programs, overall company or organization level was
the most common point where pay program evaluation
occurred; 87 percent and 76 percent for base pay and
variable pay programs, respectively Evaluation at either
the department, work unit or team level was less prevalent
for both base and variable pay Although individual scores
were not significandy different, companies with the "Most
Admired” designation indicated that overall, they were
more likely to evaluate base and variable pay programs at
the organization and business-unit levels

For those organizations where pay programs are
evaluated, this paper's findings showed considerable
variations in the depth and rigor of the analysis
{See Figure 4} Few organizations repost that they
seldom, if ever, evaluate their pay programs after the
programs are implemented for base and variable pay
{10 percent and 7 percent, respectively) Whereas at the
other extreme, 27 percent of respondents indicated that

their organizations evaluate base pay and 38 percent

said they evaluate their variable pay programs by
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calculating both the cost and their bottom-line impacts

The most common practice for organizations is to

calculate the costs associated with the compensation

program and to informally discuss the impacts on

bottom-line performance

Companies were more likely to calculate the cost and

at least discuss the bottom-line impact on variable pay

programs than for base pay programs This finding is

consistent with the authors’ beliefs that variable pay

programs, by their very nature, are easier to evaluate

Figure 5 on page 51 summarizes the criteria used to

evaluate both base and variable pay programs The most

often used criteria for base pay programs are "attracting

new employees or time to fill open positions” and

“impact on employee retention or wrnover ” Whereas,

the most widely used criteria for vartable pay are

“impact on revenues, profits and net worth” and

“impact on productivity or cost savings " Given the

significantly different nature and objectives of the base

and variable pay programs, it is not surprising that

different criteria are used to evaluate these programs.

Fipure 6 reports the perspective used to evaluate base

and variable pay programs For all participants, informal

feedback from both employees and managers are

heavily used information sources Formal employee

feedback is relied upon for more than one-half of the

Prevalence Impontance
Base Pay Vaniabie Pay Base Pay Variable Pay
Company ar Orgarization Level 87% 76% 0% 56%
Business Uinit or Division Level 45% 50% 23% 31%
Depariment Level 33% 27% 11% 8%
Work Unit or Team Level 16% 14% 6% 4%

Base Pay Variabie Pay
Seldom, if ever, evaluate afler implementation 10% T
Calcuiate costs, but do not try o determine value/contribution 24% 12%
Calcuiate costs and discuss their Impact on bottes line 39% 43%
Calcuiate costs and bottom-line impacts 27% 38%
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respondents for both base and variable pay More than
two-thirds of the respondents indicated that results or
outcomes attributed to base pay, were used to evafuate
base pay and 88 percent said the same was used for
variable pay programs These data indicated that

80 percent caleulated the ROI for variable pay programs,
whereas a lower percentage of organizations {34 percent)
calculate the ROI for base pay programs Companies
designated as "Most Admired” were more likely to engage
in a comprehensive evaluation approach that included
employee understanding, behavior change and results

1o evaluate pay programs, especially for base pay programs

Figure 7 shows that the evaluation processes

KAW_R_AGDR1#109_122308
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(i e, research methodology) used by most organizations
are weak and largely informal The most-powerful
evaluation methods are seldom used Less then one-
third of the organizations even attempt 10 evaluate pay
programs, and less than one-sixth compare pay program
effectiveness with a nonparticipating employee group
However, as one might expect, “Most Admired”
companies are more iikely to use rigorous methods for
evaluating pay programs

Figure 8 on page 52 indicates that respondents
strongly agree that more needs to be done to develop
methods that accurately assess the contribution pay

makes to the bottom line and to calculate ROI Ninety

Base Pay Variable Pay
Impact on reverues, pofits, net worth 80% 90%
Impact on productivity or cost savings 12% B3%
Impact on quality waste or rework time 53% 61%
Impact on employee retenticn or furnover B4% 79%
Impact on employee satisfaction/engagement 78% B2%
Attracting new employees or time to {ill open positions 86% 66%
Impact on overtime or other labor expenses 54% 41%
Qualification of recnuits or applicant pool 74% 40%
Other qualitative measures {e g., capabilily, competency) 67% £8%

All Participants Most Admireds
Base Pay Variable Pay Base Pay Variable Pay
Informal feedback from participating employees 39% 55% 60% 53%
Informal feedback from supervisors or managers 64% 1% 70% 50%
Formal feedback from participating employees 55% 79% 73% 79%
Leve! of employee understanding of program 47% 79% 6% 80%
Behavior change of participating employees 55% N/A 84% N/A
Resuits or cutcomes attributed to pay program 67% 88% 93% 100%
RO1 33% 80% 70% 80%

e

All Participanis Maost Admireds
Base Pay Variabie Pay Base Pay Variabie Pay
Informally evaluate he pay program {na quantitative infarmation is used) 52% 49% 70% 70%
Compare pay program criteria before and after program imglementation 35% 47 % 45% 75%
Compare pay program effectiveness with a nenparticipating employee group 16% 14% 15% 15%
Examine pay effectiveness measures over time 29% 30% 40% 50%
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Base Pay Variable Pay
Nothing rneeds fo be done 20% 21%
Develop systems 1o provide capability to evaluate pay effectivesness 82% 93%
Develop better gualitative measures (e g, capability, competency) B0% 73%
More accurately assess the cost of pay 73% 7%
Develop methods to accurately assess contribution pay makes to bottom line B0% 93%
Develop methods 1o accurately assess cost and contribution of pay effectiveness 93% 9%
Calculate ROI of pay programs 88% 92%
Engage management {o realize importance of base pay evaluation 91% 90%

percent of respondents said that they need to
help management realize the impontance of pay

program evaluation

Conclusions and Recommendations
Most organizations evaluate their pay program using a
variety of methodologies, however, informal processes
are still the most common approach. "Most Admired”
companies are maore likely to evaluate pay programs and
to use more objective and formal methods for doing so
Much remains to be done if the reader accepts the thesis
that information from comprehensively designed pay
program evaluation can substantially improve the quality
and effectiveness of pay programs The majority of
organizations do not evaluate their base and variable
pay programs, and only abowt one-third of organizations
calculate the cost and bottom line impact of their
pay programs Less than one-half of the companies
attempt to evaluate their pay programs pre- and post-
implementation BEven fewer attempt more rigorous
comparative or time-series analysis

One important “qualitative” insight is the divide
in thinking of human resources and compensation
professionals about pay program evaluation. On one
side of the divide are those who tend to view pay
programs as a cost of doing business. I'rofessionals
holding this belief tend to have an orientation on
focusing their evaluation efforts on cost control and
benchmarking On the other side are compensation and

human resources professionals who view pay programs
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as an investment and are concerned about optimizing
the return on this investment As a result, they are more
likely to be proactive in determining how employees,
especially high performers, perceive their pay program.
Furthermore, those that see pay programs as an investment
want o ensure their employees understand the pay
program'’s purpose and design, and they are interested
in how the pay program shapes employee behavior

To obtain senior management legitimacy and
enhance the impact of the pay program, the authors
recommniend that an organization follow a systematic
and comprehensive process for evaluating pay
programs, as suggested in “Evaluating Pay Program
Effectiveness ” Given the substaniial investment made
in pay programs and the program’s impact on
organizational effectiveness, comprehensive pay program
evaluation only makes good business sense. When
management desires to know why the pay program did
not meet expectations, compensation professionals
must be prepared with answers and, more importantly,
must be able 1o make suggestions as to how these pay
programs can be improved More specifically, pay
program evaluation must use multiple perspectives and
rigorous analytical methods including the following:
¥ Use formal employee opinion surveys or focus groups to

determine how eligible employees and the managers to

whom they report feei about the pay program

{eg, fain, equitable and competently administered)
> Test eligible employees’ and manager understanding

of the pay program



b Monitor the influence of the pay program on
employee behavior since changes in behavior drive
expected performance and pay.

P Assess the results that the pay prograrm is expected to
impact {e g, retention and performance}.

b Calculate the ROI; program costs and value added

b Use rigorous research methods to analyze data from
each perspective
Although evaluation methods and use of multiple

perspectives may be new for many compensation

professionals, human resources development and
training professionals have considerable expertise in this
area Furthermore, most HR development professionals
routinely develop e-learning programs that can be used
to effectively communicate the intent and substance of
pay programs Thus, pay program evaluation provides
an excellent opportunity to begin working with human
resources development to educate employees about
compensation and evaluate the impact of these programs

The earlier paper in this series provides specific strategies

as to how to comprehensively evaluate pay programs (Wil
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For more information related to this paper:
Go fo www.woridatwork.ora/advancedsearch and fype in this key word
string on the search line:
* pay program or compensation programs
Go 1o www.worldatworl.org/bockstere for:
= Conduciing an Audit of Direct Compensalion Programs
* Siralegic Compensalion:
A Human Resocurce Management Approach
* How-lo Series for the HA Professional:
Communicating Compensation Plans
Go o www.worldatwork oro/certification for:
* (4: Base Pay Managemen!
» CF: Compensation Fundamentals
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Keith Cartier/Sheila Miller

110.  Exhibit 35 shows the actual dollar amounts charged to KAWC from American
Carbon Services (“ACS”)for each of the years 2004 through 2007 and as
projected for the forecasted test period. In this regard, please provide the
following information:

a. Inwhich expense accounts, filing schedule and workpaper are the KAWC-
allocated forecasted test period charges of $152,144 reflected?

b. What is the basis for the projected cost amount of $152,144.

c. Provide the actual KAWC-allocated ACS expenses for the 12-month
period ended 11/30/08.

d. Provide the KAWC-allocated ACS expenses included in the Company’s
Operating Budgets for 2004 through 2008 and in the annual business plans
for 2009 and 2010.

Response:

a. The Carbon Services are shown in account 641100 (JDE account 518001)
chemical expense. It is detailed on workpaper
KAW_R_PSCDR1#la WP3-3_111408.pdf page 8 of 10.

b. The amount for the forecasted test year is based on the 2009/2010 budget.
The basis of the budget is historical operations. There are 16 filters and
KAWC has a rotating plan of changing out the filter media in four of them
each year. The volume of the GAC is known as it is based on the size of
the filter. The price is determined by contract with American Carbon
Services Group.

c. The expenses are determined by contract, not “allocated.” The amount is
$126,496.24

d. See c. above. Also, the expenses are:

2004  $96,040
2005 $100,065
2006  $94,752
2007 $102,169
2008 $106,020
2009 $141,693
2010 $169,644

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#110_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Sheila Miller

111. Please provide the Miscellaneous expenses shown on W/P 3-13, page 3 by the
same account numbers as are shown on Exhibit 37D, pages 12 — 18 (NARUC
Uniform System of Accounts).

Response:

See attached schedule.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#111 122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

112. KAWC is proposing total Management Fees of $7,612,592 allocated to KAWC
from AWWSC. In this regard, please provide the following information:

a. Basis for the projected expense level of $7,612,592.

b. Actual AWWSC management fees allocated to KAWC in each of the
years 2003 through 2007 and for the 12-month period ended 11/30/08.

c. AWWSC management fees allocated to KAWC as included in the
Company’s Operating Budgets for 2003 through 2008 and as included in
the annual business plans for 2009 and 2010.

Response:

a. The projected expense level is based on the 2009 and 2010 management
fee budget. One time expenses related to SOX compliance were
eliminated, as well as an allocated portion to the sewer operations.

b. See attached.

c. See attached.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#112_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S INITIAL REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

113. Please identify what dollar amounts are included in the allocated Management
Fees expenses of $7,612,592 that are associated with the following type of
expenses:

a. Incentive compensation. In addition, explain what type of incentive
compensation program(s) these expenses relate to.
b. Charitable contributions.

c. Lobbying.
Response:
a. Incentive Plan-Off Annual $437,247
Incentive Plan-Off Long Term $131,159
Total Incentive $568,409
b. Charitable Contributions $9,106
c. Lobbying Expenses $0

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#113_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

114. Please identify the expense portion of the Management Fees of $7,612,592 that is
related to business development. If business development expenses are not
included in the Management Fees, explain why since such expenses were
identified as being included in the Company’s prior two rate cases. Please
provide the following additional information for the business development
expenses included in the Management Fees:

Response:

a.

a.

Provide a detailed breakout of these business development expenses and a
detailed description of the nature and purpose of such business
development expenses.

Provide job descriptions of the service company’s business development
employees

The expense portion of management fees for business development totals
$224,043. The purpose of these expenses is to develop an overall strategy
for growth by analyzing and evaluating potential acquisition targets and
other development opportunities for KAWC, which will ultimately benefit
the customers by permitting fixed costs to be spread over a larger
customer base and to generate revenue and earnings that will offset the
need for future rate increases. It is the customers who ultimately benefit
from growth in the utility, and they should bear the cost required to
generate that growth and associated benefits.

KAWC does not have employees on staff dedicated to business

development, but AWWSC provides that service because KAWC can

share the cost of that function with other sister companies. The following
functions are fulfilled by business development employees:

1. ldentify and direct development opportunities, initiate analyses,
develop and validate evaluation factors and pursue deal prospects.
Build and coordinate cross functional teams to support the analysis.

2. Contribute to the development of the company’s strategy formulation
process and develop major transactions based on the approved
strategy.

3. Negotiate and manage relationships with outside service providers and
other specialists engaged to support business development activity.

4. Coordinate the operational and financial requirements of an asset
divestiture. Support the integration of acquisitions.

Page 1 of 2
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5. Develop relationships with current and prospective customer base,
industry peers and technology firms that lead to new business
opportunities. Knows current industry trends and identifies potential or
emerging threats and opportunities for the company’s growth plans.

6. Monitor and coordinate monthly sales/business development metrics
analysis.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#114 122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

115. Please identify the expense portion of the Management Fees of $7,612,592 that is
related to (a) external affairs and/or (b) government affairs. Also, please provide
the following additional information for the allocated external affairs and/or
government affairs expenses included in the Management Fees:

Response:

a.

a.

Provide a detailed breakout of these external affairs expenses and/or
government affairs expenses and detailed description of the nature and
purpose of such expenses.

Provide job descriptions of the service company’s external affairs and/or
government affairs employees.

Explain whether any of the external affairs and/or government affairs
employees spend part of their time on legislative and regulatory advocacy
and any other lobbying related activities. If so, quantify the percentage of
time devoted to these activities.

Please see the following expense detail:

External affairs $219,832
Government affairs 22,693
Total $242,525

The purpose of these expenses is to implement programs and practices to
support the corporate social responsibility, communication, media
relations, community affairs and government relationship activities.

The following functions are fulfilled by external affairs employees:

1. Contribute to the development of company strategies and policies
associated with community affairs and government relations.

2. Promote the interests of the business.

3. Promote the understanding of activities for corporate citizenship,
community investment, corporate accountability, environmental
stewardship and sustainability within the business.

4. Embed corporate social responsibility into all business operations,
supply chain and decision making processes.

5. Effectively manage internal and external resources such as public
relations agencies and other communications consultants, and adhere
to all budget management requirements.

6. Develop comprehensive strategic communications plans and
supporting materials for public communications including media
relations, conference participation, community relations/events, local
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governmental relations, and sponsorship/memberships and execute in a
proactive  manner. Develop effective crisis plans, crisis
communications and serves as spokesperson in a crisis situation.

7. Predicts and anticipates the needs of the news media/reporters and is
cognizant of meeting those needs. Plans and manages large press and
community events.

c. Please see the response to 116b.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#115_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

CASE NO. 2008-00427

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Nick Rowe/Michael A. Miller

116. Exhibit MAM-6, page 1, footnote 6 indicates that KAWC has a Director of
Government Affairs. In this regard, please provide the following information:

a. Describe the employees working in KAWC’s Government Affairs
department and provide job descriptions for these Government Affairs
employees and a description of the nature and purpose of their activities.

b. Explain whether any of the KAWC government affairs employees spend
part of their time on legislative and regulatory advocacy and any other
lobbying related activities. If so, quantify the percentage of time
devoted to these activities.

c. Provide the portion of KAWC’s requested O&M payroll amount of
$7,062,548 associated with KAWC’s government affairs employees,
including base and incentive pay.

Response:

a. KAWC’s Director of Government Affairs serves to fulfill the following
functions:

Provide strategic leadership and representation in the area of local,
state and federal governmental official and agency relations.

Serve as a liaison with elected officials and their constituents to
facilitate the timeliest resolution possible of customer service issues
that are brought to the attention of elected officials.

Represent the company and its customers in public agency
meetings, including meetings of groups such as local governmental
committees, task forces, councils and fiscal courts; state legislative
meetings; and, state executive branch meetings of organizations
such as the Public Service Commission, Division of Water, the
Kentucky River Authority and the Kentucky Infrastructure
Authority.

Represent the company and our customers in public association
meetings, including organizations such as the Kentucky League of
Cities, the Kentucky Association of Counties, the Kentucky County
Judge Executives and Kentucky Magistrates Associations, and the
Kentucky Association for Economic Development.

Provide lobbying representation to advocate for specific legislation
and/or regulation as needed.
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In addition to the Director of Governmental Affairs, the department
includes an administrative support position. This position is shared with
the Vice-President of Operations. Approximately 75% of the position is
dedicated to operations, and approximately 25% of time to Governmental
Affairs. This position provides general administrative support services,
including:

e Managing internal administrative procedures, including payroll

processing and expense report processing

e Scheduling and maintaining contact database

e Special meeting support

¢ Office management, including general office supplies

Assisting in office external communications efforts

KAWC’s Director of Governmental Affairs (GA) focuses most efforts on
providing liaison services between the company and officials in state and
local governmental agencies to ensure that constituent and customer
concerns are addressed in a comprehensive and timely manner. Since his
appointment in June 2008 to date, the current GA Director has not devoted
any time or resources to lobbying activities as defined by KRS 6.611.
Occasionally in the future, the GA Director may represent the company’s
interests by engaging in lobbying activity as defined by KRS 6.611. It is
estimated that approximately 13% of the GA Director’s time may be spent
on lobbying activity in 20009.

A total of $127,322 is included in the O&M payroll amount for the Director
of Governmental Affairs which is made up of base pay in the amount of
$107,107 and incentive pay in the amount of $21,421 less $1,206 (allocated
to the sewer operations). The O&M payroll amount includes a total of
$48,592 for the administrative assistant which consists of base pay in the
amount of $46,385 and incentive pay of $2,207 less $358 allocated to the
sewer operations. Note: Only approximately 25% is used to assist the
Director of Governmental Affairs.

For electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#116_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Keith Cartier/Sheila Miller

117. Please provide KAWC’s average number of Full-Time-Equivalent (FTE)
employees for each of the years 2001 through 2008 and as budgeted for 2009

and 2010.
Response:
2001 145
2002 142
2003 135
2004 119*
2005 118
2006 125
2007 134
2008 136 (as of 11/30/08)
2009 145
2010 150

*Note: Reflects SE Reogranization including movement of employees to
AWWSC and movement to Customer Call Center (CCC) and Shared Services
Center (SSC).

For electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#117_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Sheila Miller

118. The AG has calculated that the average number of KAWC employees shown in
the response to PSC-1-18 are 135 for 2003, 119 for 2004, 118 for 2005, 125 for
2006, 134 for 2007 and 135 for the 12-month period ended 10/31/08. If the
average number of FTEs for 2003 through 2008 to be provided in response to
the prior AG data request do not reconcile with the above-referenced average
number of employees for these same years in the response to PSC-1-18, provide
a reconciliation of these numbers.

Response:

The average number of KAWC employees provided in response to AG DR 1,
Question 117 agree to the number provided in response to PSC-1-18.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#118 122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller
119. With regard to Exhibit MAM-6, please provide the following information:

a. Provide the total number of average employees (FTES) underlying the
KAWC labor cost amounts in columns (1) through (14). In addition,
explain whether the employees that were added in columns (2), (4), (7),
(9) and (11) are supposed to represent all of the FTE employees added
from the 11/30/01 base case through 2008 or only certain selected
employees. If the latter, provide the reasons why the added employees
were selected.

b. Explain why Mr. Miller’s addition of one sewer employee in 2004 to his
cost analysis on this exhibit should be considered appropriate in this water
rate case.

c. Please confirm that the $294,192 savings from the 2003 National
Procurement function establishment is already incorporated in the
forecasted test period AWWSC cost of $7,612,592, i.e., without this
$294,192 savings the forecasted test period AWWSC cost would be
$7,906,784. If you do not agree, explain your disagreement in detail.

d. Please confirm that the 2001 base case-escalated AWWSC cost of
$1,888,419 for the forecasted test period in column (13) does not include
the $294,192 savings from the 2003 National Procurement function
establishment and if this savings were to be reflected, this would make the
$1,888,419 cost number $294,192 lower, or $1,594,227. If you do not
agree, explain your disagreement in detail.

e. Is the $670,541 referenced in adjustment no. 3 included in the forecasted
test period AWWSC expense of $7,612,592, but should be added to the
2001 base case-escalated AWWSC cost of $1,888,419 for the forecasted
test period in column (13) ? If so, explain why this latter addition would
be appropriate.

Response:

a. The average actual employees at KAWC are shown on page 2 of Exhibit
MAM-6. The actual average employees were only used on Exhibit MAM-
6 to determine the employee benefit costs per customer and to develop the
inflation factor to move the employee labor costs forward based on the
employee level approved in the 2000-0120 rate case, (as adjusted for
acquisition, growth and new functions) to the level that would have been
present in the current forecasted test-year if no reorganizations and
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realignments had occurred. The 2000-0120 rate case filing was based on
employee levels of 157. The Order indicates that two employees were not
recognized for rate recovery, leaving 155 employees approved for rate
recovery. Based on that beginning point, the Company labor expense
shown on page 1 of 2 on Exhibit MAM-6 for the period 2001- 2009/2010
attrition year would be:

2000-120 rate case 155
2001 with acquisition 161
2002 with 1 add’l meter reader (Footnote 2) 162
2003 162
2004 162
2005 with acquisition (Footnote 3) 170
2006 with add’l employees (Footnote 4) 174
2007 with add’l employees (Footnote 5) 176
2008 with add’l employees (Footnote 6) 183
2009 183
Attrition Year in current rate case 183

. The additional employee does not handle the Company’s sewer
operations. The additional employee handles third party sewer billings for
the LFUCG and other municipal or public sector sewer authorities. The
Company is paid by the LFUCG and other sewer entities for providing
third party sewer billing and collection, and that revenue is shown as other
revenue in this case. Given the water customers receive the benefit of the
revenue generated from providing third party sewer billing and collection
services it is appropriate to include the cost of the additional employee
hired to meet that contract obligation.

The Company disagrees with the assumption placed in this question. The
procurement savings are embedded in the operation and maintenance costs
(non-labor/benefits cost) specific to KAWC for the forecasted test-year,
not the AWWSC costs. Therefore, they are not reflected in the attrition
year total of $18.013 million for KAWC labor/benefits cost and the
AWWSC shown on Exhibit MAM-6 page 1 of 2 at all. Since the
additional employees at AWWSC procurement are included in the attrition
year AWWSC costs, the procurement savings generated by the
procurement activity must be shown as a reconciling item on the Exhibit
MAM-6 to show the true impact to KAWC from the
reorganization/realignments, and the additional procurement employees
who generated those procurement savings.

. The Company disagrees with the assumption placed in this question.
Please see the response to part c. above. The calculation of the $1,888,419
assumes that there were no reorganization/realignments since 2000,
therefore it would be inappropriate to reduce the $1,888,419 as suggested
by the Attorney General.
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e. The $670,541 adjustment is included in the forecasted test-year AWWSC
costs of $7,612,592. It should not be added to the $1,888,419 since there
was no capitalized plant at AWWSC in the 2000 base. This adjustment
simply accounts for a change in accounting since 2000. If the costs of the
equipment and software had been purchased by KAWC directly it would
have resulted in additional capital cost and depreciation at KAWC. The
Company’s presentation of this adjustment on Exhibit MAM-6 correctly
identifies this change in accounting methods as a reconciling difference in
the shift of cost between KAWC and AWWSC.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#119_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

CASE NO. 2008-00427

ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Sheila Miller

120. To the extent that any changes or revisions should be made to the filing data
based on errors/omissions/revisions found after the Company filed its case, please
provide a listing and description of these required changes/revisions, as well as
the impact on the Company’s filed revenue requirement.

Response:

Description
Eliminated Owenton & Tri Village employees

from Defined Contribution Plan
Eliminated Boonesboro UPAA from Rate
Base — duplicate of deferred debits
Corrected ITC — Schedule B-6
Adjusted revenue lag days to 41.04
Adjusted chemical lag days to 30.49
Adjusted pension lead days (2.27)
Reduced forecast to maintenance expense
Account 675000
Reduced janitorial expense account 575000.14
for duplication of office building cost
Reduced janitorial expense account 575000.13
for overstatement of forecast
Added 3” meters to OPA Classification on bill
analysis for forecasted test year
Adjusted miscellaneous revenue category going
level revenues — utilized 3 year average
Adjusted forecasted private fire determinants
Using 13 month average
Adjusted forecasted public fire determinants
Using 13 month average
Adjusted OWU City of Nicholasville — added
Account 495378

Revenue Requirement Adj.

($14,943)
($1,338)
(454)
($64,680)
($21,086)
(591)
($73,267)
($36,006)
($5,887)
($1,434)
($14,715)
$7,966
$37,167

($20,605)

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#120_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Linda C. Bridwell

121.  For each of the years 1999 through 11/30/08, please provide the actual number of
investment Budget Projects completed, and how many of these completed Budget
Projects were completed ahead of schedule, on schedule and behind schedule
(provide this information in the same format and detail as per the Company’s

response to AG-1-85 in Case No. 2000-120).

Response:

Total No. of IPs Completed IPs Completed IPs Completed

Year IPs Ahead of On Schedule | Behind Schedule
Completed Schedule

1999 9 0 0 9

2000 7 3 1 3

2001 7 0 1 6

2002 7 0 2 5

2003 4 1 0 3

2004 4 1 0 3

2005 4 0 1 3

2006 4 1 1 2

2007 4 0 0 4

2008* 2 1 0 1

* Please note 2008 is based on as of 11/30/2008.

The same criteria were used for Investment Project Completion that were used in
previous cases.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#121 122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Linda C. Bridwell
122.  With regard to the response to PSC-1-9, please provide the following information:

a. Provide the construction variance analysis for the 12-month period ended
11/30//08.

b. Provide the average annual “slippage factor” separately for the “routine”
construction and the Budget (Investment) Projects for the 10-year period
1999 through 2008. In addition, provide a workpaper showing how these
2 averages were computed.

c. Is it the Company’s position that the appropriate “slippage factor” for the
routine construction should include or exclude the Item 80 Contributions
(after 2003) and Item A Deposit Agreements (1999 — 2003). Also, explain
why.

Response:

a. Kentucky American Water creates a construction budget in the third
quarter of each year, and reforecasts the construction expenditures each
quarter. Please see the attached 2008 year-to-day variance analysis
through 11/30/08 based on the 2008 third quarter reforecast.

b. Kentucky American Water has calculated the average annual “slippage
factor” separately for the “routine” construction and Investment Projects
excluding the source of supply project as 123.41% and 99.89 %
respectively. Please see the attached workpaper.

c. Kentucky American Water believes it is appropriate to exclude the
developer advances (Item DV, Item 80, and Item A in separate budget
years). Kentucky American Water has little control over the amount of
work that actually occurs in any given year as requested by developers.
Since these construction expenditures are based on deposits made by
developers, any variance in the amount has little impact on the
construction budget process.  Excluding these amounts would be
consistent with previously calculated amounts by the Public Service
Commission.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#122_122308.pdf.
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Brief Description of Proposed

Year to Date Actual

Board Approved

Project Code |Expenditures 4 Budget 2008 Q3 Budget
Projects Funded by Others
80 DV (Contrib/Adv/Refunds) 3,947,938.19 4,000,000 3,764,858
82 A Mains - New 54,986.91 535,000 255,000
81 B Mains - Replaced / Restored 997,623.90 1,886,000 1,200,000
81 C Mains - Unscheduled 200,510.32 221,937 221,937
81 D Mains - Relocated 197,650.13 0 300,000
84 E Hydrants, Valves, and Manholes - New 46,474.40 427,992 125,000
Hydrants, Valves, and Manholes -
83 F Replaced 114,818.48 125,000 125,000
86 G Services and Laterals - New 966,653.96 855,915 855,915
85 H Services and Laterals - Replaced 1,042,742.27 641,603 904,618
88 I Meters - New 573,922.21 1,149,930 1,349,930
87 J Meters - Replaced 1,625,285.71 1,473,399 1,573,399
89 K ITS Equipment and Systems 258,862.75 259,750 259,750
L SCADA Equipment and Systems 45,303.39 51,000 51,000
M Security Equipment and Systems 31,946.39 10,000 10,000
90 N Offices and Operations Centers 1,619,525.91 146,300 1,752,359
91 o] Vehicles 386,242.41 500,000 500,000
92 P Tools and Equipment 116,803.53 218,014 218,014
93 Q Process Plant Facilities and Equipment 706,273.15 820,600 820,600
96 R Capitalized Tank Rehabilitation / Painting 91,540.71 0 100,000
97 S Engineering Studies 92,063.89 81,000 261,000
TOTAL RECURRING (80-97) 13,117,168.61 13,403,440 14,648,380
TOTAL RECURRING (81-97) 9,169,230.42 9,403,440 10,883,522
1| 12020204 |Source of Supply Project Dev 319,228.10 64,200 230,990
2| 12020402 |Major Highway Relocations 286,052.05 2,935,000 268,377
3| 12020506 |Sludge Handling Improvement 172,653.36 50,000 169,884
4| 12020508 |Kentucky Reliability Improvemt 885,416.86 1,210,964 1,400,364
5/ 12020607 |[New WTP On Pool 3 of Kentucky 35,069,679.30 33,310,430 31,600,000
6| IP-1232-1 |Owenton Chemical Bulk Storage 80,740.08 824,836 767,402
7/ 1P-1202-5 |North Broadway Main Replacement 202,920.64 2,350,000 535,000
8| 12020613 |Highway Relocation-Clays Mill 0.00 850,000
9| 12020701 |Kentucky Incline Car 139,235.11 280,709 309,779
10| 12500503 |Rockwell Villege WW Pipe 0.00 399,750 399,750
11| 12020505 |Replace Trac-Vac System 96,036.50 0 137,648
12| 12020702 |Major Highway Relocations (103,800.20) 0 670,994
13| 12300403 |Owen County Main Extensions 316,584.40 0 336,000
14| IP-1202-6 |Carrick Pike Main Extension 57,742.52 0 1,000,000
15/ 12020602 |Yarnallton Main Extension 415,662.40 0 300,000

Total IP

37,938,151.12

42,275,889.00

38,126,187.09
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Keith Cartier

RE: Pre-filed Direct Testimony of Keith Cartier. In discussing service line installation
work (at page 5), Mr. Cartier indicates that KAW competitively bids the work to local
contractors. With regard to this statement:

123. Provide a definition for the phrase “local contractors.” (If “local” refers to
a defined geographic area, then please identify the geographic area.)

a. Provide a narrative explaining how KAW bids the work. (The narrative
should include a discussion regarding how KAW provides notice of the
opportunity to bid. For each method of notice, please provide an
illustrative sample of that type of notice. For example, if KAW provides
notice via a newspaper, then provide a photocopy of a newspaper notice.
If KAW utilizes requests for proposals, then please provide a sample
RFP.)

b. Does KAW maintain a pre-qualified bidders’ list? (If yes, then please
answer the following.)

a. Provide a narrative explaining how KAW compiles the list. (If KAW
requires a potential bidder to submit a form, then please supply a
sample copy of the form.)

b. Identify any criteria, both objective such as insurance, bonding, etc., as
well as subjective such reputation, friendliness, etc., used in compiling
the list. For any factor that KAW utilizes, please provide the
corresponding weight assigned to that factor.

c. Provide a narrative explaining how KAW maintains the list. (The
narrative should identify the intervals at which the list is reviewed to
determine if each pre-qualified bidder on the list continues to meet the
requirements for qualification, and the narrative should also explain
the actions that KAW takes when removing a bidder from the list.)

Response:

Kentucky American Water maintains a list of pre-qualified pipeline contractors.
“Local contractors” refers to this list of pre-qualified pipeline contractors.

a. Kentucky American Water sends an Invitation to Bid to each of the pre-
qualified pipeline contractors with an estimate of the number of services to
be installed. Please see the attached Invitation and Bid Package.
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b. Yes.

a. Inorder to qualify, a contractor must fill out a detailed application that
includes credit references, work references, lists experience,
equipment, personnel, insurance and licenses. If the application
demonstrates adequate work experience, and references vouch for
financial stability and adequate work performance, the contractor is
then interviewed individually. The contractor is given a set of pipeline
specifications prior to the meeting, and the meeting is utilized to
further discuss experiences and answer questions about Kentucky
American Water expectations. A contractor is then granted a
probationary status on the bid list for a period of six to twelve months
depending on the work history of that contractor. Probationary
contractors are generally limited in size of projects they may bid on
and are limited in the number of bids they are awarded at any one
time. If satisfactory work is performed, the contractor is granted
qualified status although they may still be limited in the size of
projects they may bid. Please see the attached Application for
Contractor Pre-Qualification sample form.

b. There is not a specific list of criteria for contractors to be qualified,
however, all contractors are required to meet the minimum insurance
requirement of $9 million of excess liability coverage. Each
application is reviewed individually. All contractors are required to
attend occasional meetings to review changes in work policies or
regulations. The list itself is not formally reviewed at specific
intervals, but reviewed on an annual basis.

For the new services contract, all pre-qualified pipeline contractors are
invited to bid. A pre-bid meeting is held prior to bid solicitation, and
bids are due late in the year. Probationary contractors are not invited
to bid on the new services contract. Kentucky American Water then
awards one contract for all new services for the year in the Central
Division. The contract is not exclusive, and Kentucky American
Water reserves the right to include new services in a pipeline contract
where cost feasible or install with company personnel. At the end of
the year, if performance has been good and prices are reasonable, the
contractor may be asked if they wish to extend the contract for an
additional year.
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c. Contractors may be removed from the bid list for poor performance,
safety violations, or for not bidding on projects for an extended period.
Construction inspectors may give a contractor a written notice of poor
performance or violation of safety issues. The contractor will be
called in to meet with the Project Manager in charge of New
Development, who maintains and oversees the pre-qualified list of
contractors. After review with the contractor, the Project Manager for
New Development may elect to put the contractor on a probationary
period or remove the contractor from the list. This is subjective
depending on the nature of the issue and if it is a repeated issue.
Occasionally a contractor will be asked to be removed from the list.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#123_122308.pdf.
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AN

November 9, 2005
Dear Contractor:

Bids are requested by Kentucky American Water for installation of new services and
settings as listed in the attached bid documents. The work is to be done in
accordance with the rules and regulations as stated in our pipeline specifications. A
mandatory pre-bid meeting will be held at 3:00 p.m. on Monday, November 21,
2005 in our office at 2300 Richmond Road, Lexington, Kentucky. (At the present
time, American Water is considering increasing its umbrella liability insurance
requirement; we will inform you of what the requirement will be at the pre-bid
meeting.)

Bids should be completed and submitted to my office no later than 3:00 p.m.
Thursday, December 1, 2005. Bids received after the stated time will not be
considered. The successful bidder will be required to execute a contract agreement
for the faithful performance of the work.

Information regarding work history and experience of your foreman and crews will be
required. Please furnish this information on the attached Exhibit 1 and submit with
your bid. An exhibit reflecting terms of construction is also attached.

The bid package includes:

Bid Document

Exhibit 1 — Experience Form

Exhibit 2 — Terms of Construction

Exhibit 3 — Procedure for Payment When Work is Not Complete
Agreement

If you have any questions or wish to discuss this information, you may contact me at
859/268-6362.

Sincerely,
Greg Tomko

Project Manager
New Development/Construction

GT/dm

Enclosures ¢

c: Linda Bridwell, P.E.
Elizabeth (Bambi) Floyd

R_AGDR1#123_122308
Page 4 of 32

Kentucky
American Watero

RWE "~ Group



KENTUCKY AMERICAN WATER
BLANKET - NEW SERVICES
1/1/06 - 12/31/06

REQUEST FOR BIDS WERE SENT TO THE FOLLOWING ON 11/9/05:

Dix & Associates Pipeline Contractors, Inc.
210 Industry Road
Nicholasville KY 40356

C J Hughes Construction Company, Inc.
PO Box 7305
Huntington WV 25776-7305

McCord Engineering & Contracting, Inc.
1041 Eastland Drive
Lexington KY 40505

TFH, LLC
917 Contract Street
Lexington, KY 40505

Edward Hall Trucking & Excavating Company
110 Northland Estates
Corbin, KY 40701

Yates Pipeline Contractors, Inc.
641 Bluesky Parkway
Lexington, KY 40509

KAW_R_AGDR1#123_122308
Page 5 of 32
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PIPELINE BID DOCUMENTS
AND SPECIFICATIONS

BASE BID UNIT COST BASIS

Prepared By:

AMERICAN WATER WORKS SERVICE COMPANY, INC.

SYSTEM ENGINEERING
1025 LAUREL OAK ROAD
VOORHEES, NEW JERSEY 08043

December, 1990

REVISED BY KENTUCKY AMERICAN WATER

August, 1991

August, 1994
October, 1994
October, 2002

RE: Blanket Service New

Page 6 of 32
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INVITATION TO BID
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

Blanket Service New

Sealed bids for furnishing all plant, labor, equipment and performing all work to construct the

installation of new services during 20086 will be opened at the office of Project Manager — New

Development/Construction, Kentucky American Water, 2300 Richmond Road, Lexington,

Kentucky 40502 at 3:00 p.m., local time on December 1, 2005.

One (1) set of Bidding Documents, including the Instructions to Bidders, Bid Form, Bid
Bond Forms and Contract documents, will be provided at no charge to the CONTRACTORS
who are invited to bid the project.

Subcontractors, manufacturers and material suppliers should obtain information and
review the Bidding Documents by contacting potential bidders.

Each proposal shall be accompanied by a Bid Bond in an amount not less than ten
percent (10%) of the bid total, payable to the OWNER, all in accordance with the provisions
contained in the Bidding Documents.Applicable Not Applicable

X

OWNER reserves its rights to waive any informality or deficiency in any BID, to accept
any Bid, to negotiate modifications of any Bid with any BIDDER and accept any modified Bid, to
reject any Bid, to reject all Bids, and to rebid the Project, all at the OWNER's sole discretion.
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INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS

1. Defined Terms

Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the General Conditions of the
Contract Documents have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions. The term
"Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to OWNER, as distinct from a subbidder, who
submits a Bid to a Bidder. The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified,
responsible and responsive Bidder to whom OWNER (on the basis of OWNER's evaluation as
hereinafter provided) makes an award. The term "Bidding Documents"” includes the Invitation to
Bid, Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents (including all
Addenda issued prior to receipt of Bids).

2. Copies of Bidding Documents

2.1 Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in preparing Bids; OWNER does not
assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete
sets of Bidding Documents.

2.2  OWNER in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms does so
only for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any
other use.

3. Qualifications of Bidders
Bidders must be prequalified.
4, Examination of Contract Documents and Site

4.1 It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid, to (a) examine the
Contract Documents thoroughly, (b) consider Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, performance or furnishing of the Work, (c) study and carefully correlate Bidder's
observations with the Contract Documents, and (d) notify OWNER of all conflicts, errors or
discrepancies in the Contract Documents.

4.2 Information and data reflected in all assigned work with respect to Underground
Facilities at or contiguous to the site is based upon information and data furnished to OWNER
by owners of such Underground Facilities or others, and OWNER does not assume
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof unless it is expressly provided
otherwise.

1B-1
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4.3  Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective
Bidders on subsurface conditions, Underground Facilities and other physical conditions, and
possible changes in the Contract Documents due to differing conditions appear in Paragraphs
4.2 and 4.3 of the General Conditions.

4.4  Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder will, at Bidder's own expense, make or obtain any
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests and studies and obtain any
additional information and data which pertain to physical conditions (surface, subsurface and
Underground Facilities) or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing
of the Work and which Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for performing and
furnishing the Work in accordance with the time, price and other terms and conditions of the
Contract Documents.

4,5  The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for
access thereto and other lands designated for use by CONTRACTOR in performing the Work
are as assigned. All additional lands and access thereto required for temporary construction
facilities or storage of materials and equipment are to be provided by CONTRACTOR.
Easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing structures are to be
obtained and paid for by OWNER unless otherwise provided.

4.6~ The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article 4, that without exception the Bid is
premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents and
such means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction as may be
indicated in or required by the Contract Documents, and that the Contract Documents are
sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions
for performance and furnishing of the Work.

5. Interpretations and Addenda

5.1 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed
to OWNER. Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by OWNER in response to
such questions will be issued by Addenda mailed or delivered to ail parties recorded by
OWNER as having received the Bidding Documents. Only questions answered by formal
written Addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without
legal effect.

5.2  Addenda may also be issued to modify the Bidding Documents as deemed advisable by
OWNER.

6. Bid Security (See Page I-1 to determine if Paragraph 6 is applicable).
6.1 Each Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to OWNER in an amount
of ten percent of the Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a Bid Bond (on form

attached), issued by a surety meeting the requirements of Paragraph 5.1 of the General
Conditions.

IB-2
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6.2  The Bid security of the Successful Bidder will be retained until such Bidder has executed
the Agreement and furnished the required contract security, whereupon the Bid security will be
returned. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Agreement and furnish the
required contract security within fifteen days after the Notice of Award, OWNER may annul the
Notice of Award and the Bid security of that Bidder will be forfeited. The Bid security of other
Bidders whom OWNER believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be
retained by OWNER until the earlier of the seventh day after the Effective Date of the
Agreement or the forty-sixth day after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by
such Bidders will be returned. Bid security with Bids which are not competitive will be returned
within seven days after the Bid opening.

7. Contract Times

The Contract will exist from January 1, 2006 until December 31, 2006.

8. Liquidated Damages

Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement.
9. Substitute and "Or-Equal” Items

Substitute or "Or-Equal" items are subject to the requirements of Paragraph 6.7 of the General
Conditions. .

10. Subcontractors, Suppliers and Others

10.1  The apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, shall within seven
days after the Bid opening submit to OWNER a list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers and
other persons and organizations proposed for those portions of the Work for which such
identification is required. Such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with
pertinent organization information if requested by OWNER. If OWNER or ENGINEER after due
investigation has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, other person
or organization, OWNER or ENGINEER may before the Notice of Award is given request the
apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in Bid price.

If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, OWNER may award the
contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers
and other persons and organizations. The declining to make requested substitutions will not
constitute grounds for sacrificing the Bid security of any Bidder. Any Subcontractor, Supplier,
other person or organization listed and to whom OWNER or ENGINEER does not make written
objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to OWNER and
ENGINEER subject to revocation of such acceptance after the Effective Date of the Agreement
as provided in Paragraph 6.8.2 of the General Conditions.

IB-3
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10.2 No CONTRACTOR shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, other
person or organization against whom CONTRACTOR has reasonable objection.

11. Bid Form

11.1 The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents.

11.2  All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed in ink or by typewriter.

11.3  Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate nhame by the president or a vice-
president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign) and the
corporate seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary. The
corporate address and state of incorporation must be shown below the signature.

11.4 Bids by partnerships must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner,
whose title must appear under the signature and the official address of the partnership must be
shown below the signature.

11.5  All names must be typed or printed below the signature.

11.6 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of
which must be filled in on the Bid Form).

11.7 The address and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid must be
shown.

12.  Submission of Bids

Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Invitation to Bid and shall be
enclosed in an opaque sealed envelope, marked with the Project title and name and address of
the Bidder and accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents. If the Bid is
sent through the mail or other delivery system the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a
separate envelope with the notation "BID ENCLOSED" on the face of it.

13.  Modification and Withdrawal of Bids

Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed (in the manner
that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted at any
time prior to the opening of Bids.

14.  Opening of Bids

The opening of Bids may be public or private.

IB-4
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15. Bids to Remain Subject to Acceptance.

All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for 45 days after the day of the Bid opening, (unless
otherwise specified in Paragraph 2.3 of the Supplementary Conditions), but OWNER may, in its
sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to that date.

16. Award of Contract

16.1 OWNER reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all informalities
and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder, and the right to disregard all
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced or conditional Bids. Also, OWNER reserves the
right to reject the Bid of any Bidder if OWNER believes that it would not be in the best interest
of the Project to make an award to that Bidder, whether because the Bid is not responsive or
the Bidder is unqualified or of doubtful financial ability or fails to meet any other pertinent
standard or criteria established by OWNER. Discrepancies in the multiplication of units of Work
and Unit Prices will be resolved in favor of the Unit Prices. Discrepancies between the
indicated sum of any column of figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of
the correct sum.

16.2 In evaluating Bids, OWNER will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether or
not the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, Unit Prices or other
data, as may be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award.

16.3 OWNER may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors, Suppliers,
and other persons and organizations proposed for those portions of the Work as to which the
identity of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations must be submitted
as provided in the Supplementary Conditions. OWNER also may consider the operating costs,
maintenance requirements, performance data and guarantees of major items of materials and
equipment proposed for incorporation in the Work when such data is required to be submitted
prior to the Notice of Award.

16.4 OWNER may conduct such investigations as OWNER deems necessary to assist in the
evaluation of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and financial ability of
Bidders, proposed Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations to perform
and furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents to OWNER's satisfaction
within the prescribed time.

16.5 If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded on a non-exclusive basis to the lowest
Bidder whose evaluation by OWNER indicates to OWNER that the award will be in the best
interests of the OWNER.

16.6 If the contract is to be awarded, OWNER will give the Successful Bidder a Notice of
Award within forty-five days after the day of the Bid opening.

IB-5
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17. Contract Security

Paragraph 5.1 of the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions set forth OWNER's
requirements as to performance, maintenance and payment Bonds. When the Successful
Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to OWNER, it must be accompanied by the required
performance, maintenance and payment Bonds. Forms included only if applicable to Work
being bid.

18.  Signing of Agreement

When OWNER gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by the
required number of unsigned counterparts of the Agreement with all other written Contract
Documents attached. Within fifteen days thereafter CONTRACTOR shall sign and deliver the
required number of counterparts of the Agreement and attached documents to OWNER with
the required Bonds. Within ten days thereafter OWNER shall deliver one fully signed
counterpart to CONTRACTOR. Each counterpart is to be accompanied by a complete set of
the Drawings with appropriate identification.

19. Prebid Conference (if Applicable)

A pre-bid conference will be held at 3:00 p.m. on November 21, 2005 at Kentucky American
Water's office, 2300 Richmond Road, Lexington, KY.

Representatives of OWNER will be present. Bidders are required to attend and participate in
the conference. OWNER will transmit to all prospective Bidders of record such Addenda as
OWNER considers necessary in response to questions arising at the conference.

20.  Sales and Use Taxes

OWNER isexemptfrom ___ N/A  State Sales and Use Taxes on certain materials and
equipment to be incorporated in the Work. Said taxes shall not be included in the Contract
Price. Refer to Supplementary Conditions SC-6.15 for additional information.

21. Retainage

Provisions concerning retainage are set forth in the Agreement.

IB-6
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iD
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION: Blanket Services New
THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO: Mr. Nick O. Rowe

President

Kentucky American Water
2300 Richmond Road
Lexington, Kentucky 40502

1. The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into a
non-exclusive Agreement with OWNER in the form included in the Contract Documents to
perform and furnish all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents for the
Contract Price and within the Contract Times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the
other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

2. Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation to Bid and Instructions to
Bidders, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid
will remain subject to acceptance for forty-five days after the day of Bid opening. Bidder will
sign and submit the Agreement with the Bonds and other documents required by the Bidding
Requirements within fifteen days after the date of OWNER's Notice of Award.

3. In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents, as more fully set forth in the Agreement:

(@)  Bidder has examined copies of all the Bidding Documents and of the following Addenda
(receipt of all which is hereby acknowledged):

Date Number

(b) Bidder has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents,
Work, site, locality, and all local conditions and Laws and Regulations that in any manner may
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the work.

(¢) Bidder has studied carefully all reports and drawings of subsurface conditions and
drawings of physical conditions which are identified in the Supplementary Conditions as
provided in Paragraph 4.2 of the General Conditions, and accepts the determination set forth in
Paragraph GC-4.2.2 of the General Conditions, as may be amended by the Supplemental
Conditions, of the extent the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which
Bidder is entitled to rely.
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(d) Bidder has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and
carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests and studies (in
addition to or to supplement those referred to in (c) above) which pertain to the subsurface or
physical conditions or otherwise may affect the cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the
Work as Bidder considers necessary for the performance or furnishing of the Work at the
Contract Price, within the Contract Times and in accordance with the other terms and
conditions of the Contract Documents, including specifically the provisions of Paragraph 4.2 of
the General Conditions; and no additional examinations, investigations, exploration, tests,
reports or similar information or data are or will be required by Bidder for such purposes.

(e) Bidder has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations,
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract
Documents.

) Bidder has given OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that it
has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by OWNER is
acceptable to Bidder.

(@) This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed
person, firm or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or
rules of any group, association, organization or corporation; Bidder has not directly
or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid;
Bidder has not solicited or induced any person, firm or corporation to refrain from
bidding; and Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage
over any other Bidder or over OWNER.

(h) Bidder has made such examination to represent, and does hereby represent to
OWNER, that it has no claims, demands, causes of action or litigation, asserted or unasserted,
against the OWNER, nor does it know of any facts or conditions which, through the passage of
time or otherwise, could arise to a claim, demand, cause of action or litigation against the
OWNER.

4. Bidder will complete the Work for the price(s) shown.

The prices provided herein are for installation only.



KENTUCKY AMERICAN WATER
BLANKET SERVICES/SETTINGS
PRICE SCHEDULE
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The following unit prices shall be used to determine the amount of payment to the contractor for
the actual work completed. Quantities shown for 2006 are estimates only; payment will be made

on actual quantities.

2006
Estimated
Description Unit Bid | Quantities Totals
Installation of %" " & 1" services — short 900 each
Installation of %" " & 1" services — long 700 each
Installation of 2" services — short 40 each
Installation of 2" services — long 20 each
Price per foot in excess of 60', 3/4", 1", 2" services 2,000 L.F.
Installation of 5/8" x %" & 1" meter settings 2,500 each
Installation of additional meter box & top
for dual PRV type 34" & 1" settings 50 each
Install 2" meter settings (incl. vault construction material) 2 each
Instali 2" pre-fabricated meter setting (including
vault construction material) 3 each
Install 2" pre-fabricated meter setting with
pre-fabricated box & top furnished 50 each
Install 5/8" x 3/4" and 1" meters (regular read) 200 each
Open cut 1" and 2" long blind services in rock
areas where required 40 each
Install 5/8" x 3/4™ and 1" meter settings on
existing blind services at a later date 60 each
Install 5/8" x 3/4", 1" and 2" encoder meters — (radio read)
(all 2" encoder) 2,000 each
Tap in street 30 each
TOTAL

B-3
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5. Bidder agrees that the Work will be complete within ____ working days after the date
assigned, when the Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 2.3 of the
General Conditions.

Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages in the event of
failure to complete the Work on time.

6. The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid: (if
Applicable)

a) Required Bid Security in the form of a Bid Bond.
b) A tabulation of subcontractors, suppliers and other persons and organizations

required to be identified in this Bid, if required by Paragraph 6.8.2 of the
Supplementary Conditions.

c) Evidence of Bidder's qualification to do business in the State where the project is
located.
d) Bidder's contractor's license number if required to work in the State where the

project is to be constructed.

7. The terms used in this Bid which are defined in the General Conditions of the Contract
Documents have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions.

B-4
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SUBMITTED on
(Date)
IF BIDDERIS:
An Individual:By: Seal)
(Individual's Name)
Doing business as
Business address:
Phone No.:
A Partnership:By: (Seal)
(Firm Name)
(General Partner)

Business address:

Phone No.:
A Corporation:By:
(Corporation Name)
(State of Incorporation)
By:
{Name of Person Authorized to Sign)
(Title)
(Corporate Seal)
Attest
(Secretary)
Business address:
Phone No:
A Joint Venture:By:
(Name)
(Address)
By:
(Name)
(Address)

(Each joint venture must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership and
corporation that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above).

B-5
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EXPERIENCE

15 Crew:
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2-YR EMPLOYMENT
HISTORY

2" Crew:

3™ Crew:

Page 1 of 2
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EXHIBIT NO. 1

4™ Crew:

5% Crew:

Page 2 of 2
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EXHIBIT NO. 2

CONSTRUCTION OF SERVICES AND SETTINGS
INSTALLATIONS %:-INCH THROUGH 2-INCH
JANUARY 1, 2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2006

Contractor agrees that he will perform all the work and provide all of the labor, tools,
equipment necessary to install the following:

For the installation of new %-inch, 1-inch and 2-inch service lines at such times and
locations designated by the Water Company in its sole discretion, in the Water Company's
service area, the Water Company will furnish service material for the 2006 contract. The
Contractor will furnish his own tools and equipment for making installations, including
tapping machine and combined drills and taps. The Contractor will also furnish materials
required to restore street openings and disturbed areas to their original condition, or as
required by law, whichever standard is higher.

Contractor also agrees to comply with all urban county, city, county and state highway
requirements in restoring street openings or any disturbed areas immediately to their
original condition, using the same type of materials or better, to the satisfaction of the
various requirements.

The Contractor agrees that personnel and equipment necessary to perform work will be
available to commence said work upon approval of contract.

The Contractor agrees to maintain sufficient personnel so that the total backlog of tap
orders approved for installation will never exceed 30 days. (Sufficient personnel means
keeping backlog less than 30 with 5-day workweek, not working Saturday and Sunday.)

The Contractor agrees that all tap orders will be installed within 5 working days after
receipt of tap order from Water Company.

The Contractor agrees that if the backlog of tap orders ready for installation exceeds 30, or
if tap orders are not installed within 5 working days, the Water Company reserves the right
to use whatever means necessary to bring the tap orders up to date and any additional
costs will be paid by the Contractor.

The Contractor agrees to furnish accurate measurements and a diagram showing the
location of the corporation stops, service lines and meter boxes. All dimensions included
on tap orders will be accurately measured by tape. Measurements on tap orders should
be from closest intersecting streets, curb lines, centerlines and from corners of houses.
Tap orders will be prepared on the job site. (See attached sample of completed tap
orders.)

The Contractor will furnish a list of materials used for the installation of each service and
meter box location. All materials used will be measured accurately with a tape. All
materials shall be listed by proper size and code numbers.

The Water Company will furnish a tap service order (P-14) for each service installed by the
Contractor; all measurements, diagram and material shall be shown on the tap service

Page 10of 5



KAW_R_AGDR1#123_122308
Page 22 of 32

EXHIBIT 3

PROCEDURE FOR PAYMENT OF NEW SERVICES INSTALLATION
WHEN STREET CUT REPAIR CANNOT BE MADE IN A TIMELY MANNER
JANUARY 1, 2006 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2006

The Water Company is often required to install a water service during the winter months that
require excavation in the roadway. When such services are installed during the winter, street
repairs cannot be made once the service is installed because concrete and paving plants
generally close during the winter months. In order to allow for accounting of the installation of
these services, the following procedure should be used:

1. When a service is installed requiring roadway excavation and material necessary for
permanent repair is not available, the contractor may invoice the Water Company for
installing this service even though all repair work has not been completed. Invoices for this
work must be kept separate from normal invoices where the service has been installed and
work completed. Invoicing in this fashion will allow tracking of the locations where work is
not complete until permanent repairs can be made. It will also allow for a retainage to be
withheld on this amount of work that will cover the cost of the unfinished work.

2. In calculating the amount of retainage, consideration should be given to the amount of
unfinished work, cost of repairs at Water Company cost and percentage of retainage
amount. Currently, street cut repairs average 50 square feet in size. Based on current
Water Company costs to make repairs to roadways, retainage amounts should be 50% of
the cost of installing a long service. This may change as contract amounts and the area of
repairs change. Under no conditions should the amount of retainage withheld be less than
the cost to repair at Water Company’s estimated cost.

3. This procedure applies only when conditions beyond the Contractor's control prevent
repairs from being made. It is still the Contractor's responsibility to make repairs in a
timely manner. The Contractor will be responsible to place and maintain temporary repairs
until permanent repairs can be made. The Contractor also will be liable for any claims
made as a result of the uncompleted work, if they occur.

4. This procedure does not allow the Contractor invoicing for uncompleted work when
reasons for the uncompleted work are within Contractor's control. Heavy workloads,
reduced available personnel, short periods of inclement weather and other similar reasons
do not qualify as reasons to bill for work not complete. According to the policy as set forth
in the new services contract, Contractor is to bill only for work that is complete. There
must be no deviation from this policy if at all possible.

These same guidelines may be followed in other areas of the new services contract when
conditions beyond the Contractor’s control do not allow completion of all work.

The Water Company reserves the right of sole discretion in the application of this procedure,
including the right to change the above procedure.

Notwithstanding this Exhibit 3, Contractor agrees to abide by any governmental repair or

restoration requirements of any city, county, urban-county or state, as such may change from
time to time.

Page 1 of 1
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November 23, 2005

RE: ADDENDUM TO 2006 NEW SERVICE LINE CONTRACT
Dear Contractor:

Kentucky American Water's policy has been changed to require a higher degree of
contractor insurance coverage than was previously required. In addition to the
$1,000,000 limit for General Liability, Automobile Liability and Worker's
Compensation, an additional $9,000,000 of Excess Liability insurance to follow form
for each of those categories will be required.

Enclosed is an amended Page 4 (ltem 11) to replace the one in the sample Service
Agreement recently mailed to you in the Invitation to Bid for the above referenced
contract.

Also enclosed is a sample insurance certificate indicating the proper levels of
coverage. Please make sure that your certificate includes the same language as in
the Description of Operations section of the certificate.

Should you have questions, | can be reached at (859) 268-6362.
Sincerely,
/
Greg Tomko
Project Manager
New Development/Construction

GT/dm

Enclosures

Page 23 of 32
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ey

, TTHIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ARG
PRODUCER CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS CERTIFICATE DOES
NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
Contractor Insurance Broker . BELOW.
555 Water Street COMPANIES AFFORDING COVERAGE
Charleston West, WV COMPANY
LETTER A XYZ Insurance Company
Phone No. COMPANY
Fax No. LETTER B  One Two Three Insurance Company
INSURED COMPANY
Construction Contractor | $10MM, Vendor | LETTER C
AJAX Electrical Contracting
1 Main Street COMPANY N
Charleston, WV LETTER
COMPANY
LETTER E

I GOVERAGES /20 A e e SEE e e e

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY
PERIOD INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO
WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO
ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY POLIGY
&% TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE LIMITS
(MWDDIYY) {MMDDIYY)
GENERAL LIABILITY GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
A B commerci Generac LissiLiy GLSAZ60T331702 | 01/01/2006 12/31/2006 PRODUCTS-COMP/OP AGG. $ 1,000,000
D PERSONAL & ADV. INJURY $ 1,000,000
CLAMS MADE \NJOCCUR. EACH OCCURRENGE $ 1,000,000
D OWNER'S & CONTRACTOR'S PROT. FIRE DAMAGE (Anv ONe FIRg) $ 1,000,000
D MED. EXPENSE (Any Ong Person) | 5,000
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LimiT $ 1,000,000
A ANY AUTO 987654321 01/01/2006 12/31/2006
l:] ALL OWNED AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per PersoN) $
D SCHEDULED AUTOS
l:] HIRED AuTOS BODILY INJURY (Per Accipent) $
l:l NON-OWNED AUTOS
[ ] earace Lneury PROPERTY DAMAGE $
EXCESS LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $ 9,000,000
B D UMBRELLA EORM LOCX045 01/01/2006 12/31/2006 AGGREGATE $ 9,000,000
Z] OTHER THAN UMBRELLA FORM
WORKER’S COMPENSATION
A | AND AEIOU 01/01/2006 12/31/2006 é%s%g;g\; Lis $ 1,000,000
EMPLOYERS LIABILITY H $ 1,000,000
DISEASE-POLICY LIMT $ 1 ! 000'000
DiseASE-EACH EMPLOYEE I
OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES/SPECIAL ITEMS

Project Location:

Certificate holder is included as additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the named insured’s operations performed on
behalf of holder. Excess policy follows form for Employers Liability, General Liability and Auto Liability Policies without exception. Waiver
of Subrogation endorsement must accompany certificate of insurance.

(Note: General Liability per occurrence limit and Auto policy per occurrence limit, combined with the Excess policies, must not be less than
$10,000,000.00 Combined Total Limit of Liability.)
o, T e, ANGELLA e

ACERTIFICAT JER ELEA :

SHOULD A ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE
CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, THE
ISSUING COMPANY WILL XXXXXXXX TO MAIL 306 DAYS

-

American Water WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO

. THE LEFT, BUT FAILURE TO MAIL SUCH NOTICE SHALL IMPOSE
800 W. Hersheypark Drive NG OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND UPON THE
Hershey, PA 17033 COMPANY, ITS AGENTS OR REPRESENTATIVES.

133

o
©

ZAGOR:25:5.(7190);
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1. INSURANCE:

(a) The CONTRACTOR shall submit with this sighed AGREEMENT two (2) copies of a
"Certificate of Insurance.” The certificates are to be completed by the CONTRACTOR'S insurance
carrier(s) and signed by an authorized agent(s) of the insurance company(s). The CONTRACTOR
shall not commence any work under this AGREEMENT until such "Certificate of Insurance” is in the
hands of and approved by the WATER COMPANY.

(b) Workers' Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance:

The CONTRACTOR shall carry Workers' Compensation Insurance during the life of this
AGREEMENT to insure his statutory liability to his employees in the State in which the WORK under
this AGREEMENT is to be performed plus not less than $1,000,000 Employer's Liability Insurance
coverage.

(c) Comprehensive General Liability and Property Damage:

The CONTRACTOR shall carry the Comprehensive Form of General Liability and Property
Damage Insurance during the life of this AGREEMENT covering the risks itemized in the form for
"Certificate of Insurance" provided for in this AGREEMENT. The limits shall be not less than
$1,000,000 for bodily injury and $1,000,000 for property damage.

(d) Comprehensive Automobile Liability and Property Damage:

The CONTRACTOR shall carry the Comprehensive Form of Automobile Liability and
Property Damage Insurance during the life of this AGREEMENT covering the risks itemized in the
form for "Certificate of Insurance” provided for in this AGREEMENT. The limits shall be not less

than $1,000,000 for bodily injury and $1,000.,000 for property damage.

(e) Umbrella and/or Excess Liability:

The CONTRACTOR shall carry umbrella and/or excess liability insurance during the life of
this AGREEMENT covering the risk involved in subparagraph (c) and (d) above with a combined

single limit which shall be not less than $9,000,000.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY

Application for Contractor Pre-Qualification

No invitation to bid wiil be offered nor will any bid be accepted until this questionnaire has been
completed and accepted by Kentucky-American Water Company (KAWC).

Any information herein may be investigated by KAWC and any misrepresentation of the facts will
automatically disqualify the potential applicant.

All information in this questionnaire will remain strictly confidential.

1

Name of Applicant

Address

Telephone Number(s)

Is this a new business? Yes No_

If not, how many years has your organization been in business as a contractor under:

(a) your present name?

(b) another name? years?

How many years experience in water utility type construction work has your organization had:

(a) as a general contractor {b) as a subcontractor

If this is a new business, please identify all persons involved in the management of the company and
attach a resume’ of their relevant work experience in water utility construction.

Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? If 50, please explain why.
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7. Give a brief description of the equipment that you would have available for KAWC work.

8. Give a brief description of the crew(s) that you would have available for KAWC work, i.e. number of
men to a crew, foreman with each, number of operators, etc.

9. (a) Please list those employees within your organization with a blasting license, their position with the
company, and years of experience.
(Name) (Position} (Yrs Experience)
(b) tnsurance including blasting will be required and must be in effect for the duration of any
contract where blasting is anticipated. (See ltem 13, Insurance.)
10. Are you certified for asbestos removal? Yes No

11. Please list any other relevant certifications held by your company or individual employees.

12. As a KAWC contractor, you will be required to provide a means of maintaining 24-hour contact in the
event of problems stemming from work performed and still under the maintenance warranty. This
contact should preferably live within an area whereby any such problems could be handled in a quick
and efficient manner to minimize the potential disruption to any existing customer.

Contact Name Telephone

Address




13.

14.

15.

16.
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All insurance requirements must conform to the attached sample Certificate of Insurance form
(Affachment A) prior to the initiation of any contract.

Provide information required on the attached Work Experience Schedule (Attachment B). Lista

sufficient number of projects to indicate to KAWC your experience with various sizes and types of
pipe in this field of work.

KAWC renders payment 30 days from receipt of an approved invoice for work completed. Please
provide credit references on the attached form (Atfachment C) that will attest to your solvency under
those terms. Include the name of the bank with which your organization does business.

Please identify at least three references who are familiar with your previous work. {This may include
KAWC employees.)

{(Name) (Address) (Phone Number)
Company:
By:
(print name) (title)

(signature)
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Attachment A

KENTUCKY AMERICAN WATER
CONTRACTOR INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

(@) The CONTRACTOR shall submit with the application one (1) copy of a Certificate of Insurance. The
certificate is to be completed by the CONTRACTOR's insurance carrier(s) and signed by an
authorized agent(s) of the insurance company(s). The CONTRACTOR shall not commence any work
until such Certificate of Insurance is in the hands of and approved by KAW.

(b) Workers' Compensation _and Employer's Liability Insurance: The CONTRACTOR shall carry
Workers' Compensation Insurance to insure his statutory liability to his employees in the State in
which the work is to be performed, plus not less than $1,000,000 Employer's Liability insurance
coverage.

{(c) Comprehensive General Liability and Property Damage: The CONTRACTOR shall carry the
Comprehensive Form of General Liability and Property Damage Insurance covering the risks itemized
in the form for Certificate of Insurance. The limits shall be not less than $1,000,000 for bodily injury
and $1,000,000 for property damage.

{(d) Comprehensive Automobile Liability and Property Damage: The CONTRACTOR shall carry the
Comprehensive Form of Automobile Liability and Property Damage Insurance covering the risks
jtemized in the form for Certificate of Insurance. The limits shall be not less than $1,000,000 for
bodily injury and property damage.

(e) Umbrella and/or Excess Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall carry umbrella and/or excess liability

insurance covering the risks involved in paragraphs (c) and (d) above with a combined single limit
which shall be not less than $9,000,000.
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Attachment B (page 1 0f 2)
WORK EXPERIENCE SCHEDULE

Owner's Name/Address/Telephone

Engineer's Name/Telephone

Contract Amount $ Year Project Completed

Project Title and Brief Description of Work Performed

Owner's Name/Address/Telephone

Engineer's Name/Telephone

Contract Amount $

Year Project Completed

Project Title and Brief Description of Work Performed

Owner's Name/Address/Telephone

Engineer's Name/Telephone

Contract Amount $ Year Project Completed

Project Title and Brief Description of Work Performed
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Altachment B (page 2 of 2)
WORK EXPERIENCE SCHEDULE

Owner's Name/Address/Telephone

Engineer's Name/Telephone

Contract Amount $ Year Project Completed

Project Title and Brief Description of Work Performed

Illllllll.lllllllllllllllllllll.llllllllll...-lllIIIII-Illllllllllllllllllll.ll

Owner's Name/Address/Telephone

Engineer's Name/Telephone

Contract Amount $

Year Project Completed

Project Title and Brief Description of Work Performed

Owner's Name/Address/Telephone

Engineer's Name/Telephone

Contract Amount $ Year Project Compieted

Project Title and Brief Description of Work Performed




Company Name

CREDIT REFERENCES
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Aftachment C

Address

Contact Person

Telephone

Company Name

Address

Contact Person

Company Name

Telephone

Address

Contact Person

Telephone

Company Name

Address

Contact Person

Telephone
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Keith Cartier

124. Provide a narrative explaining how KAW reviews, scores, and awards service line
installation work that it has bid. (The narrative should include a discussion
regarding how KAW communicates information concerning the award of the bid
to all bidders.)

Response:

Kentucky American Water receives bids and tabulates the bids based on the
estimated number of units of the components bid. Please refer to the attachment
to the response to Item 123 of this same request in the Invitation to Bid for a
listing of the individual components.

The tabulation of the bids is reviewed by the Director of Engineering and the bid
is awarded based on the lowest overall bid cost. A letter is then sent to all
contractors who submitted an unsuccessful bid. The apparent successful bidder is
notified by telephone and a letter with an agreement for execution.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#124 122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Keith Cartier

125. ldentify all other aspects of KAW?’s operations (aside from service line
installation work) that are competitively bid. To the extent that the bidding
process for these other aspects differ from the bidding process for service line
installation work, identify the difference and explain why there is a differe

Response:

A contract for renewal service line installation work is competitively bid under a
blanket contract with the same process as the new service line installation work.
All new and replacement pipeline installations, fire hydrant installations not
associated with specific pipeline projects, and fire service installations are
competitively bid to the pre-qualified pipeline contractors. There is not a pre-bid
meeting unless the project is unusual, and contractors are allowed to witness the
bid opening if they wish.

Other construction projects are bid to pre-qualified contractors based on the
nature of the project. Larger projects or projects that are unique in nature may
have a pre-bid meeting and a formal process for submitting qualifications.
Smaller projects may be bid to a pre-qualified group of contractors based on
previous work history with Kentucky American Water. Kentucky American
Water utilizes a goal of a minimum of three qualified bids on each project to
maintain competitive pricing on all construction work. A standard agreement
developed by American Water is executed with the contractor.

Other non-construction work related to operations that is competitively bid
includes janitorial services, property mowing, waste disposal and maintenance
work on equipment as needed. Procurement of services is guided under American
Water policy and procedure. Prior to contract execution, the contract including
bid tabulation is reviewed by Kentucky American Water counsel, American
Water Procurement, and the supervisor of the appropriate project manager at
Kentucky American Water.

The purchase of materials including pipe, vehicles, and chemicals is bid through
American Water Procurement on an annual national contract.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#125 122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

126. Please provide the per books capital structure of Kentucky-American Water
Company at December 31, 2007, March 31, June 30, and September 30, 2008, as
well as December 31, 2008, as soon as available. For the purposes of this data
request, please provide the information as follows:

a) Long-term Debt (including that maturing within one year)

b) Short-term Debt

c) Other Debt (specify)

d) Preferred or Preference Stock

e) Common Stock

f) Additional Paid-in Capital

g) Retained Earnings

h) Total Common Equity (total common equity as well as common equity
attributable to unregulated operations, if any)

Please also provide balance sheet support for each of the above-requested capital
structures.
Response:

Please see the attached balance sheets for December 2007, and March, June and
September 2008.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#126_122308.pdf.
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Page 1 of 13

KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

127. For the same time periods referenced in the preceding interrogatory, please
provide the following information for Kentucky-American Water Company:

a) Embedded cost rates for long-term debt, short-term debt
other debt and preferred or preference stock

b) Computation of embedded cost rates of long-term debt

c¢) Computation of embedded cost rates of short-term debt

d) Computation of embedded cost rates of preferred or
preference stock

Note: Schedules should include date of issue, maturity date, dollar amount,
coupon rate, net proceeds, annual interest paid, and balance of principal, where

applicable.

Response:

Please see the attached schedules. The Company does not posses the average
short-term debt interest rate for each 12-month period, but does have an average
short-term interest rate for each month. The schedules attached contain the short-
term interest rate for the month ending each requested 12-month period.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#127_122308.pdf.
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller
128. Please provide the following:

a. Please list all of American Water Works Company, Inc.’s subsidiaries,
providing a short description of the business of each and indicate whether
or not the subsidiary is active or inactive.

b. Please list all of Kentucky-American Water Company’s
subsidiaries, providing a short description of the business
of each and indicate whether or not the subsidiary is
active or inactive.

c. Please provide a consolidating (not consolidated) balance
sheet for American Water Works Company, Inc. at
December 31, 2007, or the most recent date available

d. Please provide a consolidating (not consolidated) balance
sheet for Kentucky-American Water at December 31, 2007,
or the most recent date available, if one is prepared.

Response:

See attached.

The Company has no subsidiaries.

c. The Company objects to question on the grounds that the requested
information is not relevant to this proceeding, is not in the possession or
control of the Company, and is not part of the publicly available
information of AWW

d. The Company has no subsidiaries; therefore there is no consolidating

balance sheet. Please see the balance sheets for December 2007, and

March, April, and September 2008 attached to the response to

KAW_R_AGDRI1#126. Also refer to Exhibit 28 of the Company’s

original filing.

oo

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#128_122308.pdf.
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EX-21.1 5 dex211.htm SUBSIDIARIES OF AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

Exhibit 21.1

American Water Works Company, Inc. and its Subsidiaries Owner ship Schedule
Asof October 2008

Per centage of Equity

Jurisdiction of Interest held directly
Nature of I ncor poration or or indirectly by
Subsidiaries of American Water Legal Organization Formation American Water Line of Business

American Water Capital Corp. Corporation Delaware 100% Funding vehicle for
American Water and its
subsidiaries

American Water Resources, Inc. Corporation Virginia 100% Water and/or wastewater
treatment, products and
services

Laurel Oak Corporation Delaware 100% Real property owner/

Properties Corporation devel oper

AmericanAnglian Canada Company Corporation Canada 100% held through Inactive

American Water
Resources, Inc.

American Water Enterprises, Inc.  Corporation Delaware 100% Water and/or wastewater
management and operating
services

American Lake Water Company Corporation [llinois 100% Water pipeline company

AAET, Inc. Corporation Delaware 100% held General Partner of AAET,

through American LP
Water
Enterprises, Inc.
AAET, L.P. Limited Partnership Delaware 100% held Water and/or wastewater
through AAET, management and
Inc. operating services
EA2 Systems, L.L.C. Limited Liability =~ Missouri 100% held Water and/or wastewater
Company through AAET L. management and
P. operating services

American Water Works Service Corporation Delaware 100% Professional water and/or

Company, Inc. wastewater services

American Water Services, LLC Limited Liability = Delaware 100% Utility management and

Company operating services

Arizona— American Water Corporation Arizona 100% Water and/

Company or wastewater utility

California— American Water Corporation Cdifornia 100% Water and/or wastewater

Company utility

Hawaii — American Water Corporation Nevada 100% Water and/or wastewater

Company utility

[llinois— American Water Company Corporation [llinois 100% Water and/or wastewater
utility

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1410635/000119312508230427/dex211.htm (1 of 7) [12/4/2008 5:31:56 PM]
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Jurisdiction of

Per centage of Equity
Interest held directly

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1410635/000119312508230427/dex211.htm (2 of 7) [12/4/2008 5:31:56 PM]

Nature of I ncor poration or or indirectly by
Subsidiaries of American Water L egal Organization Formation American Water Line of Business

Indiana— American Water Corporation Indiana 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
lowa— American Water Corporation Delaware 95.84% (4.16% Water and/or wastewater
Company outside preferred stock) utility
Kentucky — American Water  Corporation Kentucky 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
Long Island Water Corporation New York 100% Water and/or wastewater
Corporation utility
Maryland — American Water  Corporation Maryland 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
Michigan — American Water  Corporation Michigan 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
Missouri — American Water ~ Corporation Missouri 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
New Jersey — American Corporation New Jersey 100% Water and/or wastewater
Water Company, Inc. utility
New Mexico — American Corporation New Mexico  100% Water and/or wastewater
Water Company utility
Ohio — American Water Corporation Ohio 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
Pennsylvania— American Corporation Pennsylvania 96.5% held through Water and/or wastewater
Water Company American Water (3.5% utility

outside preferred stock)
Tennessee — American Water Corporation Tennessee 99.89% (0.11% Water and/or wastewater
Company outside preferred stock) utility
Texas— American Water Corporation Texas 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
Virginia— American Water ~ Corporation Virginia 100% Water and/or wastewater
Company utility
United Water Virginia, Inc.  Corporation Virginia 100% held through Water and/or wastewater

VirginiasAmerican utility

Water Company
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Per centage of Equity

Interest
Jurisdiction of  held directly or indirectly
Natur e of I ncor poration or by
Subsidiariesof American Water  Legal Organization ~ Formation American Water Line of Business
West Virginia— American  Corporation West Virginia 99.97% (0.03% outside Water and/or wastewater
Water Company common stock) utility
Bluefield Valley Water Corporation Virginia 100% held through Water and/or wastewater
Works Company West Virginia- utility
American Water
Company
American Water-Acciona Limited Liability Delaware 50% held through Remedy, operate and manage
Agua, LLC Company American Water the Tampa Bay Seawater
Enterprises, Inc. Desalination Plant
American Water Corporation Delaware 100% held through held Holding company
Enterprises Holding, Inc. through American
Water Enterprises, Inc.
American Water Industrials, Corporation Delaware 100% held through held Water and/or wastewater
Inc. through American services
Water Enterprises, Inc.
American Water Industrial  Corporation Delaware 100% held through Operations and engineering
Operations, Inc. American Water support to industrial facilities
Industrials, Inc.
American Water Canada Corporation Ontario 100% held through Operations and maintenance
Corp. American Water of water and/or wastewater
Enterprises Holding, Inc. facilities
American Water Services Corporation Ontario 100% held through Closed circuit television
Underground Infrastructure American Water inspection of water and/or
Corp. Canada Corp. wastewater pipes
Terratec Environmental Ltd. Corporation Ontario 100% held through Biosolids management and
American Water recycling
Canada Corp.
Prism Berlie (Windsor) Corporation Ontario 100% held through Operates pelitizing facility in
Limited Terratec Environmental  Windsor, Ontario
Ltd.
Uniflo Limited Corporation Ontario 100% held through Holding company
Terratec Environmental
Ltd.
Braemar Acres Limited Corporation Ontario 100% held through Owns rea property; no
Uniflo Limited operations
Mobile Residuals Corporation Ontario 100% held through Mobile biosolids and
Management Inc. American Water residuals management and
Canada Corp. recycling
American Water Carbon Corporation Ontario 100% held through Operates carbon regeneration
Services Corp. American Water facilities
Canada Corp.
Horseshoe Carbons Corporation Ontario 80% held through Operates carbon regeneration
Incorporated American Water Carbon facilities

Services Corp. (20%
outside common shares)

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1410635/000119312508230427/dex211.htm (3 of 7) [12/4/2008 5:31:56 PM]
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Jurisdiction of

Per centage of Equity
Interest held directly

Natur e of Incor poration or or indirectly by
Subsidiaries of American Water Legal Organization Formation American Water Line of Business
American Water (USA), Inc.  Corporation Delaware 100% held through Holding company
American Water
Enterprises
Holding, Inc.
Philip Automated Corporation Georgia 100% held No active operations, currently
Management Controls, Inc. through American  collecting accounts receivables
Water (USA), Inc.
Mobile Residuals Corporation Delaware 100% held Mobile biosolids and residuals
Management (USA), Inc. through American  management
Water (USA), Inc.
American Water Operations  Corporation Texas 100% held Design, building and/or
and Maintenance, Inc. through American  operation of water and
Water (USA), Inc. wastewater facilities and
operations, maintenance and
management of water and
wastewater facilities
American Water Services Corporation Washington 80% held through  Joint venture operating the
CDM, Inc. American Water Tolt water treatment facility
(USA), Inc. (20%  located in Sesttle, WA
outside common
stock)
American Water Corporation New Jersey 100% held Designs and builds plant
Engineering, Inc. through American  processes
Water (USA), Inc.
Utility Management and Corporation New Jersey 100% held Inactive
Engineering, Inc. through American
Water
Engineering, Inc.
TWHLLC Limited Liability Delaware 100% Holding company
Company
TWNA, Inc. Water and/or wastewater
Corporation Delaware 100% services
OMI/Thames Water Corporation Delaware 50% held through ~ Water and/or wastewater
Stockton, Inc. TWNA, Inc. and services
50% held through
Operations and
Management, Inc.
ACUS Corporation Corporation Texas 100% held Designing, manufacturing
through TWH wastewater equipment (1A)
LLC
Hydro-Aerobics, Inc. Corporation Texas 100% held Designing, manufacturing
through TWH wastewater equipment (1A)
LLC
PWT Waste Solutions, Inc. Corporation Texas 100% held Weater and/or wastewater
through TWH services (I1A)
LLC

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1410635/000119312508230427/dex211.htm (5 of 7) [12/4/2008 5:31:56 PM]



Subsidiaries of American Water Works Company, Inc.

E’townLLC Limited Liability Delaware
Company
E’town Properties, Inc. Corporation

Edison Water Company Corporation

New Jersey

KAW_R_AGDR1#128 122308

Page 6 of 7
100% held Holding company
through TWH
LLC
100% Real estate company
100% held Manage water contract for

through American  Township of Edison, NJ
Water
Enterprises, Inc.

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1410635/000119312508230427/dex211.htm (6 of 7) [12/4/2008 5:31:56 PM]
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Jurisdiction of

Per centage of Equity
Interest held directly

Nature of I ncor poration or or indirectly by
Subsidiaries of American Water Legal Organization ~ Formation American Water Line of Business
Liberty Water Company Corporation New Jersey 100% held Manage water contract for City
through American of Elizabeth, NJ
Water
Enterprises, Inc.
Applied Water Management, Corporation New Jersey 100% held Engineering, construction
Inc. through Thames  operations and services
Water Holdings  primarily in wastewater
Applied Wastewater Services,  Corporation New Jersey 100% held Operations primarily in
Inc. through Applied  wastewater, wastewater
Water pumping and hauling
Management, Inc.
Applied Water Management of  Corporation New Jersey 100% held through Water and/or wastewater
Delaware, Inc. Applied Water services
Management, Inc.
Applied Wastewater Corporation New Jersey 100% held Regulated wastewater company
Management, Inc. through E’town
LLC
UESG Holdings, Inc. Corporation New Jersey 100% held Holding company
through TWH
LLC
Elizabethtown Water Services, Limited Liability New Jersey 100% held Provides water and sewer line
LLC Company through American protection contracts to former
Water E’town Corp. customersin NJ
Enterprises, Inc.
E’town Services, LLC Limited Liability New Jersey 100% held Holds wastewater services
Company through American contract among E’town Corp,

Water
Enterprises, Inc.

Elizabeth, NJ and the Union
County Improvement Authority

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1410635/000119312508230427/dex211.htm (7 of 7) [12/4/2008 5:31:56 PM]
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KENTUCKY-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY
CASE NO. 2008-00427
ATTORNEY GENERAL'S FIRST REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

Witness: Michael A. Miller

129. Please provide all S.E.C. Form 10-Qs issued by American Water Works
Company, Inc. since January 1, 2007. In addition, please provide the parent
company’s S.E.C. Form 10-K and Annual Report to Shareholders (including
any and all statistical supplements available to investors) as soon as they are

filed.

Response:

Please see attached. The parent Company SEC Form 10-K for 2008 and Annual
Report for Shareholders for 2008 will not be available until late in the first quarter

of 20009.

For the electronic version, refer to KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308.pdf.
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AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY,
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FORM 10-Q

(Quarterly Report)

Filed 05/14/08 for the Period Ending 03/31/08

Address 1025 LAUREL OAK ROAD
VOORHEES, NJ 08043
Telephone  856-346-8200
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Symbol AWK
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Fiscal Year 12/31
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2008

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file: number 001-34028

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 51-006369¢€
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1025 Laurel Oak Road, Voorhees, N 08043
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(856) 346-8200

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsie past 90 days. 0  Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller repori
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

O Large accelerated filer 0  Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer 0~ Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgje Act.). O  Yes
No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of ehtiiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at May 14, 2008
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per st 160,000,000 share
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipme
Utility plant - at original cost, net of accumuldtdepreciation of $2,829,045 at March 31 and
$2,776,950 at December $ 9,296,31! $ 9,199,90
Nonutility property, net of accumulated depreciataf $63,207 at March 31 and $60,587 at December
31 119,74( 118,05:
Total property, plant and equipme 9,416,05! 9,317,96.
Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel 9,20z 13,48:
Restricted fund 2,14¢ 3,25¢
Utility customer accounts receival 136,26: 147,64(
Allowance for uncollectible accoun (17,57¢) (20,927
Unbilled utility revenue: 122,43: 134,32t
Non-regulated trade and other receivables, 62,81: 66,54(
Taxes receivable, including federal inco 23,11: 23,11:
Materials and supplie 28,96! 27,45¢
Other 47,52! 35,46
Total current asse 414,87 430,35
Regulatory and other lo-term asset
Regulatory asse 626,09: 628,03¢
Restricted fund 8,997 10,25:
Goodwill 1,706,95: 2,456,95:
Other 95,03 90,51«
Total regulatory and other lo-term asset 2,437,07! 3,185,75
TOTAL ASSETS $12,268,000 $12,934,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

3
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)
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CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

Capitalization

Common stockhold’s equity

Preferred stock without mandatory redemption resqoents

Long-term debt

Long-term deb
Redeemable preferred stock at redemption v

Total capitalizatior
Current liabilities

Shor-term debr

Current portion of lon-term debt

Accounts payabl

Taxes accrued, including federal inco

Interest accrue

Other
Total current liabilities
Regulatory and other lo-term liabilities

Advances for constructic

Deferred income taxe

Deferred investment tax cred

Regulatory liability-cost of remova

Accrued pension expen

Accrued postretirement benefit expel

Other
Total regulatory and other lo-term liabilities
Contributions in aid of constructic
Commitments and contingenci
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,
2008 2007

$ 3,809,42° $ 4,542,04

4,56¢ 4,56¢
464231  4,674,83
24,29¢ 24,29¢
8,480,60; _ 9,245,74
368,13 220,51
90,18 96,45t
119,20 168,88t
56,53 56,00:
85,24 50,86
152,15 181,76
871,47 774,48
652,53 655,37
644,34 638,91¢
34,95 35,36
202,01 192,65(
275,53 290,72
156,17 158,55.
116,59 123,87
2,082,16 _ 2,095,44'
833,76 818,38

$12,268,00 $12,934,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Operating revenue
Operating expense
Operation and maintenan
Depreciation and amortizatic
General taxe
(Gain) loss on sale of assi
Impairment charg
Total operating expenses, |
Operating (loss) incom
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne
Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Amortization of debt expen:
Preferred dividends of subsidiari
Other, ne
Total other income (deduction

(Loss) income from continuing operations beforeme taxe:
Provision for income taxe

(Loss) income from continuing operatic
Income from discontinued operations, net of

Net (loss) incomi

Basic earnings per common she
(Loss) income from continuing operatic

Income from discontinued operations, net of
Net (loss) incomi

Diluted earnings per common sha
(Loss) income from continuing operatic

Income from discontinued operations, net of
Net (loss) incomi

Average common shares outstanding during the pe
Basic

Diluted

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

$ 506,81! $ 468,54
311,26: 282,61:
63,91¢ 64,62,
52,06¢ 47,88(
(70 10€
750,00( —
1,177,17. 395,22¢
(670,35 73,31¢
(69,96¢) (72,20)
2,541 1,65¢
1,36¢ 1,09¢
(1,319 (1,219
(56) (56)

1,20¢ 1,572
(66,226 (69,159
(736,58) 4,15¢
(4,102 1,73(
(732,48 2,42¢
— 25€

$ (732,489 2,68¢
$ (4.58) 0.0z
$ — 0.0C
$  (4.59 0.0Z
$ (459 0.0Z
$ = 0.0C
$ (4.58) 0.0z
160,00( 160,00(
160,00( 160,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss) incomi
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment charg
Amortization of removal costs net of salve
Provision for deferred income tax
Amortization of deferred investment tax crec
Provision for losses on utility accounts receive
Allowance for other funds used during construc
(Gain) loss on sale of ass:
Gain on early extinguishment of d¢
Other, ne
Changes in assets and liabilit
Receivables and unbilled utility revent
Other current asse
Accounts payabl
Taxes accrued, including federal inco
Interest accrue
Other current liabilitie:
Net cash provided by operating activit
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction expenditure
Proceeds from sale of assets and secu
Removal costs from property, plant and equipmetireraents, ne
Net restricted funds releas
Net cash used in investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Repayment of lor-term debt
Net borrowings (repayments) under s-term debt agreemer
Advances and contributions for construction, netedfinds
Change in cash overdraft positi
Capital contribution:
Debt issuance cos
Redemption of preferred sto
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Non-cash investing activity:
Capital expenditures acquired on account but ungiagphiarte-end

Non-cash financing activity:
Advances and contributior
Capital contributior

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2008

2007

$(732,48) $ 2,68t

63,91¢ 64,62
750,00 —
10,55¢ 9,01¢
5,471 4,73¢
(404) (406€)
83€ 2,657
(2,547) (1,65¢)
(70) 10€

— (7,062
(31,03) (15,579
22,81¢ 18,95(
(13,569 (24,370
(13,599  (17,12)
48F 5,03¢
34,38] 11,37¢
(9,389) 1,217
85,391 54,21
(188,43) (166,119
82 1,14¢
(1,719 (1,880)
2,36¢ 1,63:
(187,709  (165,21)
— 617,25:
(35,915  (266,55)
166,74( (555,579
(13,679 13,09’
(19,11) —
— 550,00(

— (3,059

— (150)
98,03 355,01
(4,279  244,00¢
13,48! 29,75
$  920: $273,76:
$ 58,84¢ $ 40,37¢
$ 11,280 $ 17,43
$ —  $100,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Common Stoabllder’'s Equity and Comprehensive Income (LosS)

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net loss
Pension plan amortized to
periodic benefit cos
Prior service cos
Foreign currency translatic
Total comprehensive lot

Balance at March 31, 200¢

Balance at December 31, 20C

Net income
Equity investment by RW.
Pension plan amortized to
periodic benefit cos
Prior service cos
Actuarial loss
Foreign currency translatic

Total comprehensive incon
Balance at March 31, 200°

Common Stock, $.01 Par Value:

Accumulated

500,000 Shares Authorized and Other Common
160,000 Shares Issued and Outstanding  Paid-in Accumulated  Comprehensive  Stockholder's ~ Comprehensive
Shares Par Value Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Equity Income (Loss)
160,000 $ 1,600 $5,637,94 $(1,079,11) $ (18,387 $4,542,04i
— — — (732,489 — (732,48) $ (732,489
— — — — 6 6 6
— — — — (148) (145) (145)
$ (732,62)
160,00( $ 1,60C $5,637,94 $(1,811,60) $ (18,527 $3,809,42.
Common Stock, $.01 Par Value: Accumulated
500,000 Shares Authorized and Other Common
160,000 Shares Issued and Outstanding  Paid-in Accumulated  Comprehensive  Stockholder's ~ Comprehensive
Shares Par Value Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Equity Income (Loss)
160,000 $ 1,600 $4,570,85 $ (736,29) $ (18,766 $3,817,39
— — — 2,68t — 2,685 $ 2,68¢
— — 650,00( — — 650,00(
_ — - — 9 9 9
— — — — 18 18 18
— — — — (222) (222) (222)
$ 2,49(
160,000 $ 1,600 $5,220,85 $ (733,60) $ (18,967 $4,469,88

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of ikerekVater Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Congsa(the “Company”) at
March 31, 2008, the consolidated statements ofadip@s for the three months ended March 31, 2002807, the consolidated
statements of cash flows for the three months eibagh 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidatedrsitts of changes in common
stockholders equity and comprehensive income (loss) for theetimonths ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, are itedubdut reflect al
adjustments, which are, in the opinion of manageénmatessary to present fairly the consolidateanional position, the consolidated
changes in common stockholder’s equity, the codat#d results of operations, and the consolidaast tlows for the periods
presented. All adjustments are of a normal, reagmiature, except as otherwise disclosed. Bechegecbver interim periods, the
unaudited consolidated financial statements aradaélnotes to the consolidated financial statendntsot include all disclosures and
notes normally provided in annual financial statetaend, therefore, should be read in conjunctith the Company’s consolidated
financial statements and related notes includédérCompany’s annual consolidated financial statésfor the year ended
December 31, 2007. The results of operations terim periods are not necessarily indicative ofrésults that may be expected for the
year, due primarily to the seasonality of the Conysmoperations.

Note 2: New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Stangd@dard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Aacting Standards No. 159,
“The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets anddfinial Liabilities — including an amendment of FASEtement No. 115" (“SFAS
159"). This standard permits entities to choosméasure many financial instruments and certainr dtibims at fair value. The objective
is to improve financial reporting by providing dr@s with the opportunity to mitigate volatility reported earnings caused by meast
related assets and liabilities differently withbatving to apply complex hedge accounting provisi@AS 159 is effective for years
beginning January 1, 2008. The Company has noteeléo exercise the fair value irrevocable optibimerefore, the adoption of SFAS
159 did not have an impact on the Company’s restiltgperations, financial position or cash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement afnigial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Valueaslgements” (“SFAS
157"). SFAS 157 establishes a common definitiorfédrvalue to be applied to U.S. generally acceéatecounting principles guidance
requiring use of fair value, establishes a framéwor measuring fair value, and expands disclosib@ut such fair value measurements.
In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff PosiffAS 157-2 which allows a one-year deferral afaigbn of SFAS 157 for
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitiesofs as intangible assets, property, plant and etgripp and goodwill) that are required to
be measured at fair value on a periodic basis (as@t acquisition or impairment). The Companytelbto use this deferral option and
accordingly, only partially adopted SFAS 157 onulag 1, 2008. SFAS 157 will be adopted for the Canys nonfinancial assets and
liabilities valued on a non-recurring basis on g, 2009.

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomgsif SFAS 157 for financial assets and liab#itignd nonfinancial assets
and liabilities with recurring measurements. Thenpany’s assets and liabilities measured at fainevah a recurring basis during the
period were cash and cash equivalents, restrictedsfand shotierm debt. These assets and liabilities were medsaitrfair value on tt
balance sheet date using quoted prices in activkatsa(level 1 inputs, as defined by SFAS 157). adeption of SFAS 157 for the
Company’s financial assets and liabilities did hate a material effect on the Compansesults of operations, financial position or c
flows. The Company will be required to measureabsets of its defined benefit pension and othernetisement welfare plans pursu
to SFAS 157 at the next measurement date, whidtbeiDecember 31, 2008.

8
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Note 3: Goodwill

In April of 2008, as a result of the pricing of tBempany’s initial public offering (“IPO”) (See N®tL3), management determined that
an interim triggering event occurred and that is\egpropriate to update its valuation analysisfeeioe next scheduled annual test.

Based on this assessment, the Company performiateaim impairment test as of March 31, 2008. Tlenpany concluded that
the carrying value of its goodwill was impairedaasesult of the current market price and tradinmglie of its common stock. The
Company believes the offering price was indicatif’¢he value of the Company at March 31, 2008 aiudingly, based on those
factors, the Company recorded an impairment chargeodwill related to its Regulated Businesse$7#&0,000. The Company has
reflected the tax effect of the impairment as amdite item for purposes of calculating its tax [smn as the charge is considered an
infrequently occurring or unusual item. The impamhcharge was primarily due to the market pricthefCompany’s common stock
(both the IPO price and the market price duringsegoient trading) being less than what was ant@ipdtiring the Company’s 2007
annual test. Also contributing to the impairmenswaadecline in the fair value of the Company’s delbe to increased market interest
rates).

In developing the estimated fair value of the Comyp@reporting units, significant judgment was rieggd. The Company
determined the estimated fair value of the repgrtinits utilizing a methodology consistent with207 annual test. Whenever poss|
market information including the initial public effing price of the Company’s common stock and sybset trading price was used to
update the Company’s assumptions. The methodoltiiged a combination of the trading price of therfpany’s common stock, an
estimated control premium, trading price markettiplgls of peer companies (regulated water utiljtezsd the Company’s discounted
cash flow analysis based on the Company’s jigar business plan, each of which has differinggusi. The majority of the weighting
applied to the traded price as this representmtimket objective evidence of fair value with minimeeight applied to the discounted
cash flow analysis.

The following table summarizes the changes in tm@any’s goodwill by reporting unit:

Regulated Non-regulated
Unit Units Consolidated
Balance at December 31, 2C $2,327,27! $ 129,68: $2,456,95;
Impairment (750,000 — (750,000
Balance at March 31, 20( $1,577,27 $ 129,68: $1,706,95;

The Company may be required to recognize additimnphirments in the future, depending on, amongtotactors, a decline ov
a period of time in the valuation multiples of caangble water utilities, a decline over a periodime of the Company’s stock price or
the lack of appreciation of the Company’s stock@ito a level consistent with peer companies ae#ses in equity value. A decline in
the forecasted results in the Company’s business plich as changes in rate case results or caypiéstment budgets or changes in the
Company’s interest rates may also result in areimental impairment charge.

As a result of the impairment RWE transferred $2@6,to the Company on May 13, 2008. This cashhelused to reduce debt.
9
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt

(@)
(b)

(c)
(d)

The Company primarily incurs long-term debt to furagbital expenditures at the regulated subsidiafiee components of long-term
debt at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were:

December 31

Maturity March 31,
Rate Date 2008 2007
Long-term debt of American Water Capital Cor* AWCC")
Private activity bonds and government funded «
Floating rate (a 2.55%-3.2(% 201¢&2032 $ 86,86( $ 86,86(
Senior note!
Fixed rate 5.39%-6.871% 2011-2037 2,684,001 2,712,001
Long-term debt of other subsidiari
Private activity bonds and government funded
Fixed rate 0%-6.8¢%  200¢-203¢ 941,43¢ 942,94:
Floating rate (b 2.40%-10.0% 201%:-203: 178,14! 178,14!
Mortgage bond
Fixed rate 6.31%-9.71% 200¢-203< 725,30( 731,34(
Senior deb
Fixed rate 5.60%-9.1(% 200¢-202°¢ 45,38¢ 45,47
Mandatory redeemable preferred sti 4.60%-9.75%  201:-203¢ 24,644 24,64
Notes payable and other | 5.76%-11.7%  200¢&-202¢ 3,15¢ 3,44z
Long-term debt 4,688,933l 4,724,84!
Unamortized debt discount, net | 67,86¢ 70,74
Total lon¢-term debt $4,756,79' $4,795,58:

Taxexempt bonds which are remarketed as money maoketstfor periods up to 270 days (1 to 119 daysxdu2D08 and 1 to 127 d&

during 2007). These bonds may be converted to stihan-term variabl-rate structures, a fix-rate structure or subject to redempti
$169,585 of the total represents tax-exemptibavhich are sold at auction rates that are resey& to 35 days. These bonds may be
converted to other short-term variable-rate stmgstua fixedrate structure or subject to redemption. (See N8)eThe remaining $8,5¢
represents teexempt bonds remarketed as money market bondgapabove

Includes capital lease obligations of $1,946 an@&A at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, c&sply.

Includes fair value adjustments from acquisitionghase accountin

The following debt was retired through optionaleagption or payment at maturity during 2008:

Interest

Company Type Rate Maturity Amount
Long-term debr

American Water Capital Cor Senior note- fixed rate 6.87% 2011 $28,00(
Other subsidiarie 0%-9.87%  200¢-203¢ 7,87¢
Total retirements & redemptiol $35,87¢

Gains from early extinguishment of debt includedniterest, net amounted to $0 and $7,064 at Maicl2@08 and 2007, respectively.
Interest, net includes interest income of approxétye$1,658 and $1,821 at March 31, 2008 and 2@&hectively.
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Note 5: Short-Term Debt
The components of short-term debt are as follows:

December 31

March 31,
2008 2007
Commercial paper, net of $381 and $680 disc $338,61¢ $ 169,26
Book overdrafi 23,08: 42,19¢
Other shor-term debt 6,437 9,04¢
Total shor-term debt $368,13" $ 220,51«

Note 6: Income Taxes

The Company'’s estimated annual effective tax rateHe three months ended March 31, 2008 is 39d#tpared to 41.1%, excluding
various discrete items, for the three months emdaith 31, 2007. The change is primarily attribugstiol the favorable impact of tax
permanent income and expense items in 2008 as cethfia2007. The Company recorded an effectivefeatthe first quarter 2008 of
(0.6%) which reflects the tax effect of the goodimipairment as a discrete item as the Companyiderssthis charge an infrequently
occurring or unusual event.

Note 7: Employee Benefits
The following table provides the components of periodic benefit costs:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2008 2007

Components of net periodic pension benefit «
Service cos $ 6,551 $ 6,40:
Interest cos 14,54¢ 13,32
Expected return on plan ass (12,929 (11,767
Amortization of:

Prior service cos 45 32

Actuarial loss 1 66
Periodic pension benefit cc 8,221 8,06(
Special termination pension benefit cha — 93
Net periodic pension benefit cc $ 8,221 $ 8,15¢

Three Months Ended
March 31,
2008 2007

Components of net periodic other postretiremenefiecost
Service cos $ 3,10¢ $ 3,171
Interest cos 7,04¢ 6,34¢
Expected return on plan ass (5,757 (5,26¢€)
Amortization of:

Transition obligatior 43 43

Prior service cred| 203 (295)

Actuarial loss (299 —
Net periodic other postretirement benefit ¢ $ 4,35t $ 3,99¢

The Company contributed $23,000 to its defined fiepension plan in the first three months of 2@0®I expects to contribute $53,000
during the balance of 2008. In addition, the Conypeontributed $6,838 for the funding of its othespretirement plans in the first thr
months of 2008 and expects to contribute $20,5%#hduhe balance of 2008.

11
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Note 8: Contingencies

OMI/Thames Water Stockton, Inc. (“OMI/TW?”) is a BV joint venture between a subsidiary of the Comiard Operations
Management International, Inc. (“OMI”). In Febru&2903, OMI/TW and the City of Stockton Californihé “City”) entered into a 20-
year service contract for capital improvements mathagement services of water, wastewater and staar utilities. By mutual
agreement, OMI/TW and the City of Stockton termékthe contract effective February 29, 2008 (therffiination Date”). Upon
termination, responsibility for management and apen of the system was returned to the City. OMI/fias agreed to provide a
limited twelve month warranty relating to certaongponents of the facilities that OMI/TW construc{éte “WW39 Plant”), committed
to pay for certain employee transition costs amstiiaed financial responsibility for regulatory filegied through the Termination Da
if any, resulting from OMI/TWS failure to comply with applicable National Po#lnt Discharge Elimination System permit requirers
and/or design defects in the WW39 Plant. Also,y2007, the California State Water Resources GbBward issued a notice of
violation and a corresponding Settlement Commuitinaelated to a discharge into an adjacent ri@&il/TW is responsible for any
fines that may result from the Settlement CommuitoaGiven the uncertainties related to resolimg remaining issues described
above, the Company has a loss reserve of approedyrd,000 at March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007.

In 2007, the Company, through a subsidiary andhdimact 50% owned joint venture, completed consimacof two water
filtration plants for total construction costs g@fmoximately $229,000 and $32,000, respectivelyp&s of the general contractual terms
of the construction contracts, the Company provaeseyear construction warranty period. As of March 3008, no claims have be
made related to these warranties.

The Company is also routinely involved in conderomaproceedings and legal actions incident to trenal conduct of its
business. At March 31, 2008, the Company had adapproximately $5,000 as probable losses andégisonably possible that
additional losses could range up to $31,000 fosetmatters. For certain matters, the Company iblana estimate any possible losses.
The Company believes that damages or settlemémisy,i recovered by plaintiffs in such claims oti@ts will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company'’s results of operatifinancial position or cash flows.

Note 9: Guarantees

A subsidiary holds a 50% interest in American Wdadesa LLC (“AW-Pridesa™)a Delaware limited liability company. Acciona Ac
Corporation also holds a 50% interest. AW-Pridessm dontracted with Tampa Bay Water (“Tampa Bayfi)irderlocal governmental
agency of the State of Florida, to remedy and dpdhe Tampa Bay Seawater Desalination Plant. Tdmpany entered into a guarar
with Tampa Bay in November 2004 for the full andmppt performance of certain contractual obligatithiméted to a total aggregate
liability of $35,000. Contractual obligations cif certain construction activities and managensentices to be completed
satisfactorily. AW-Pridesa took over operationlod plant in January 2005. At December 31, 2007plhet was fully operational and
successful performance testing of the construcaiivities had been completed.

The Company provides financial guarantees or deptisensure performance of certain of its obl@ation its non-regulated
military agreements and Operations & Maintenanceagents. These guarantees and deposits totaldg7@F7and $475,278 at
March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Note 10: Environmental Matters

The Company’s water and wastewater operationsidnjed to federal, state, local and foreign requiats relating to environmental
protection and as such the Company periodicallpimes subject to environmental claims in the noroakse of business. Remediat
costs that relate to an existing condition causegdst operations are accrued when it is prob&lalethese costs will be incurred and
can be reasonably estimated. Remediation costaettamounted to approximately $11,000 at Marct28@8 and December 31, 2007.
At March 31, 2008, $10,100 of the reserve relatess ¢conservation agreement entered

12
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into by a subsidiary of the Company with the Nagio®ceanic and Atmospheric Administration requirihg Company to, among other
provisions, implement certain measures to proteesteelhead trout and its habitat in the CarmediRivatershed in the state of
California. The Company pursues recovery of inaligests through all appropriate means, includimylsory recovery through
customer rates.

Note 11: Stockholder’s Equity and Net Income (Losg)er Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share, incooss)from continuing operations per common shageim@ome (loss) from
discontinued operations, net of tax per commoneshez based on the weighted average number of carehares outstanding. Diluted
net income (loss) per common share, income (loeg) tontinuing operations per common share andc@oss) from discontinued
operations, net of tax per common share are bas#tkoveighted average number of common sharetaodisg and potentially
dilutive shares. The Company had no potentiallytilie shares at March 31, 2008 or December 31, .280@¢ommon shares at

March 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were heldvayaly-owned subsidiary of RWE. (See Note 13)

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Compargtard of Directors’ authorized 50,000 shares ofyazdne $0.01 per share
preferred stock. As of March 31, 2008 there arshares outstanding.

Note 12: Segment Information

The Company has two operating segments which aoetiaé Company’s two reportable segments refeaed the Regulated
Businesses and Non-regulated Businesses segments.

13
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The following table includes the Company’s sumnedizegment information:

As of or for the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2008

Regulated Non-regulated Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 449,53 $ 61,17: $ (3,89 $ 506,81!
Depreciation and amortizatic 60,29: 1,40¢ 2,21¢ 63,91¢
Impairment charge — — 750,00( 750,00(
Total operating expenses, | 378,21! 57,52 741,430 1,177,17.
Adjusted EBIT (1) 71,90( 4,582
Total asset 10,238,50 269,26! 1,760,23 12,268,00
Capital expenditure 187,65! 782 — 188,43

As of or for the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007

Regulated Non-regulated Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 419,27t $ 53,30! $ (4,039 $ 468,54
Depreciation and amortizatic 61,57: 2,65: 40z 64,627
Impairment charge — — — —
Total operating expenses, | 351,19: 50,771 (6,736 395,22¢
Adjusted EBIT (1) 69,11« 3,701
Total asset 9,549,53! 284,41¢ 3,290,56: 13,124,52
Capital expenditure 165,14¢ 96¢ — 166,11!

(1) Management evaluates the performance of itmeats and allocates resources based on sever@isiaot which the primary measure is
Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not represenhdémw for periods presented and should not be id@ned as an alternative to net
income as an indicator of the Compangperating performance or as an alternative th flaws as a source of liquidity. Adjusted EE
as defined by the Company may not be comparableAdjusted EBIT as defined by other compan

14
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The following table reconciles Adjusted EBIT, adided by the Company, to (loss) income from coritiguwoperations before
income taxes:

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2008

Total

Regulated Non-regulated Segments

Adjusted EBIT $ 71,90( $ 4,582 $ 76,48:
Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc 2,541 — 2,541
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 1,36¢ — 1,36¢
Less:

Interest, ne (56,73¢) 63€ (56,100
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (56) — (56)
Amortization of debt expen: (1,319 — (1,319
Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes $ 17,69¢ $ 5,21¢ 22,91%
Impairment charge (750,000
Interest, ne (13,86¢)
Other 4,36¢
Loss from continuing operations before income te $(736,58¢)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 2007
Total
Regulated Non-regulated Segments

Adjusted EBIT $ 69,11« $ 3,701 $ 72,81t
Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc 1,65¢ — 1,65¢
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 1,09: — 1,09:
Less:

Interest, ne (54,390 (3,096 (57,48¢)
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (56) — (56)
Amortization of debt expen: (1,219 — (1,219
Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes $ 16,20( $ 605 16,80¢
Interest, ne (14,727
Other 2,07t
Income from continuing operations before income $ 4,15¢

Note 13: Subsequent Events

On April 28, 2008, the Company completed the ihpigblic offering of its common stock (“IPO”). RWEqua Holdings GmbH, the
Companys selling stockholder, sold 58,000 shares of itaroon stock at a price of $21.50 per share. Thangedtockholder granted t
underwriters a 30 day option to purchase up todalitianal 8,700 shares of the Company’s stockm@iee of $21.50. The Company did
not receive any proceeds from the sale of sharew. B the IPO, the Company was a wholly-ownedsatdiary of RWE. After the IPO,
and assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ opfROINE owns approximately 64% of the Company’s camrshares (or
approximately 58% if the underwriters’ option torghiase additional shares is exercised in full).

On April 22, 2008, RWE contributed 90 shares of@wnpany’s common stock to the Company and the @osngranted 90
restricted stock awards, 269 restricted stock wanits2,078 unvested stock options. The awards issued to the Compars/employee
and certain non-employee directors under its 20@iniBus Equity Compensation Plan.

In April and May 2008, the Company redeemed $1lafdong-term auction rate debt of subsidiariehwnterest rates ranging
from 6.48% to 10.00% and maturities ranging fror@2@ 2032. These redemptions were financed thrtluglissuance of additional
commercial paper.

In May 2008, AWCC plans to issue in private placata@dditional senior notes in the principal amewft$110,000 at 6.25% d
in 2018 and $90,000 at 6.55% due in 2023. The Campdends to use the proceeds to repay outstarstiog-term indebtedness of
AWCC.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(In thousands, except per share data)

On May 12, 2008, the Company commenced an offekthange $750,000 principal amount of its 6.085%i@eNotes due in
2017 and $750,000 principal amount of its 6.593%i@eNotes due in 2037 which are both registeredeuhe Securities Act of 1933
(the “Exchange Notes”) for all $750,000 of its @mly outstanding 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017l $750,000 of its currently
outstanding 6.593% Senior Notes due in 2037, whare not been registered under the Securities At9383 (the “Original Notes”).
The Company will not receive any proceeds fromekehange offer, nor will the Company’s debt levehioge as a result of the
exchange offer. The terms of the Exchange Notegl@@riginal Notes are substantially identicalriaterial respects.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters within this Quarterly Report onrRdr0-Q include “forward-looking statements” withhre meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Se2fiéof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraleé. All statements included in this
Form 10-Q, other than statements of historical, fangty constitute forward-looking statements. Fodsaoking statements can be identified
by the use of words such as “may,” “should,” “Willcould,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “ontinue,” “anticipates,” “believes,”
“plans,” “expects,” “future” and “intends” and silar expressions. Forward-looking statements maglirerknown and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may causachel results or performance to differ from thpsgjected in the forward-looking
statements. These statements are not guarantéearef performance and are subject to risks, uaggies and other factors, some of which
are beyond our control and difficult to predict awalild cause actual results to differ materialbnirthose expressed or forecasted in the
forward-looking statements. Factors that could eaarscontribute to differences in results and ontes from those in our forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, those iteiiiscussed in the “Risk Factors” section or ottestisns in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4)
prospectus filed April 24, 2008 with the Securiteesl Exchange Commission, as well as in Item |Rat |l of this Quarterly Report. All
forward-looking statements are expressly qualifiretheir entirety by such risk factors. We undeetalo obligation, other than as required by
law, to update or revise any forward-looking statats, whether as a result of new information, Rigwents or otherwise.

GENERAL

American Water Works Company, Inc. (herein refetmeds “American Water” or the “Company”) is thegest investor-owned United
States water and wastewater utility company, asared both by operating revenue and populatioresei®ur primary business involves the
ownership of water and wastewater utilities thavjte water and wastewater services to residectahmercial and industrial customers.
businesses that provide these services are ggnsuhllect to economic regulation by state regujabmencies in the states in which they
operate. We report these results in our RegulatsinBsses segment. We also provide services thabaisubject to regulation by the state
commissions. We report these results in our Nomieggd Businesses segment. For further descripfiaur businesses see the “Business”
section found in our Form 424(b)(4) prospectusifib@ April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Excha@pmmission.

You should read the following discussion in confimt with our Consolidated Financial Statements i@tated Notes included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qiarmur Prospectus filed with the SEC on April 28008 and with the information under
the heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysimancial Condition and Results of Operatioirsbur Form 424(b)(4) prospectus fil
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onl/Zgri 2008.

OVERVIEW

Financial Results. American Water had net loss of $732.5 million tog first quarter of 2008, compared to net incomg2¥ million fo
the first quarter of 2007. Loss from continuing @twns was $732.5 million for the first quarter2@08, compared to income from contint
operations of $2.4 million for the first quarter2007. Revenues for the first quarter of 2008 iasegl by $38.3 million compared to the same
period in the prior year primarily due to increasedenues in our Regulated Businesses of $30.8milhich is largely attributable to rate
increases and higher revenues in our Non-reguBisthesses of $7.9 million. Offsetting the increbss/enues were $781.9 million higher
operating expenses for the three months ended MrcR008. These expenses primarily resulted flwarimpairment charge of $750.0
million which is discussed below, increased expsms®ur Regulated Businesses of $27.0 milliorirst fjuarter of 2008 compared to 2007,
mainly driven by higher employee related coststduan increase in the number of employees, asagdligher wages and benefits and
increased operating expenses in our Non-regulatsihBsses of $6.8 million which corresponds witkirtincreased revenues.
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Other items affecting income from continuing opienag for the three months ended March 31, 200®awpared to the same period in
the prior year include lower interest expense o2 $Rillion, as a result of the repayment of outdtag debt, and lower income tax expense of
$5.8 million.

Financing Activities. During the three months ended March 31, 2008, weaur capital resource requirements primarily virtiernally
generated cash as well as funds from external esypcimarily commercial paper.

Regulatory Developments. In the first three months of 2008 we received artations for additional annualized revenues figeneral
rate cases of $26.0 million, assuming constanssalkimes. As of March 31, 2008 we were awaitinglforders for one general rate case
was filed in 2006, requesting $7.0 million in togalditional annual revenues and five general cssvere filed in 2007, requesting $58.2
million in total additional annual revenues. Wedilgeneral rate cases in five additional statéisarirst quarter of 2008 that would provide
$231.1 million of additional revenues, if approwaifiled. There is no assurance that the filed amaur any portion thereof, of any requested
increases will be granted.

Initial Public Offering. On April 28, 2008, the Company completed its ihipiablic offering (“IPO”). RWE Aqua Holdings Gmbhhe
Company’s selling stockholder, sold 58.0 millioragts of the Company’s common stock at a price @f32per share. The selling
stockholder granted the underwriters a 30 day agtigourchase up to an additional 8.7 million skarethe Company’s stock at a price of
$21.50. The Company did not receive any proceexns the sale of shares. Prior to the IPO, the Compaas a wholly-owned subsidiary of
RWE. After the IPO, and assuming no exercise olitgerwriters’ option, RWE owns approximately 64#4te Company’s common shares
(or approximately 58% if the underwriters’ optiangurchase additional shares is exercised in full).

On April 22, 2008, RWE contributed approximately8thousand shares of the Company’s common stotttet@ompany and the
Company granted approximately 89.9 thousand réstristock awards, 269.3 thousand restricted stoitk and 2.1 million unvested stock
options. The awards were issued to the Companypames and certain non-employee directors unde2@d7 Omnibus Equity
Compensation Plan.

Impairment Charge. As previously disclosed in our free writing anddiprospectuses, filed April 22, 2008 and April 2808,
respectively, the Company determined that it wasogrably likely based in large part on an initiablic offering price of our common stock
of $21.50, that the current carrying value of ooodwill which the Company recorded as a resulhef2003 acquisition of American Water
by RWE and acquisition of E'Town Corporation in 20@vas impaired. At the time the Company’s inipablic offering price of $21.50 was
established, we were unable to determine if thexge any goodwill impairment or to provide a reliabtimate of the amount of any goodwiill
impairment, if any.

In light of the initial public offering price andatding levels in our stock since the date of IP®,p&rformed an interim impairment test
and on May 9, 2008, we concluded that the curranying value of our goodwill was impaired as auiesf the current market price and
trading levels of our common stock. We believedffering price was indicative of the value of therpany at March 31, 2008 and
accordingly, based on those factors, we recordechpairment charge to goodwill related to our Reged Businesses of $750.0 million in
our financial statements as of and for the fiscarter ended March 31, 2008. The impairment chageprimarily due to the market price of
our common stock (both the initial public offeripgce and the price during subsequent trading)doksiss than what was anticipated during
our 2007 annual test. Also contributing to the impant was a decline in the fair value of our dghte to increased market interest rates).

In developing our estimated fair value of the Comypa reporting units, significant judgment was requlind/e determined the estimal
fair value of the reporting units utilizing a mettmdogy consistent with its 2007 annual test. Whengwssible, market information including
the initial public offering price of the Companyemmon stock and subsequent trading price wastosgodate our modeling assumptions.
Our methodology utilized a combination of the tragprice of the Company’s common stock, an estichatatrol premium, trading price
market multiples of peer companies (regulated watiéties) and the Company’s discounted cash fevalysis based on our five-year
business plan were used, each of which has diffevigights. The majority of the weighting is appltedthe traded price as this represents the
market objective evidence of fair value with minimeeight applied to the discounted cash flow analys
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We may be required to recognize additional impaim®én the future, depending on, among other fac#decline over a period of tir
in valuation multiples of comparable water utiltje decline over a period of time of the Compantogk price or the lack of appreciation of
the Company’s stock price to a level consistenhwier companies or increases in equity value.dlirdein the forecasted results in our
business plan, such as changes in rate case resalipital investment budgets or changes in derdst rates, may also result in an
incremental impairment charge. Further recognitbmpairments of a significant portion of goodwitbuld negatively affect our results of
operations and total capitalization, the effectvbfch could be material and could make it moreiclitt for us to secure financing on attrac
terms and maintain compliance with our debt covenan

As a result of the impairment, RWE transferred $@4#illion on May 13, 2008. This cash will be usededuce debt.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2008 Compared To Three Months Ended March 31, 2007

For the three months ended Favorable
March 31, (Unfavorable)
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 Change
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Operating revenue $ 506,81! $468,54- $ 38,27
Operating expenst
Operation and maintenan 311,26: 282,611 (28,649
Depreciation and amortizatic 63,91¢ 64,627 711
General taxe 52,06¢ 47,88( (4,186
(Gain) loss on sale of assi (70) 10€ 17¢€
Impairment charg 750,00( — (750,000
Total operating expenses, | 1,177,17. 395,22¢ (781,94)
Operating (loss) incom (670,359 73,31¢ (743,676
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne (69,969 (72,207 2,23¢
Allowance for other funds used during construc 2,541 1,65¢ 88:
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 1,36¢ 1,09z 27¢
Amortization of debt expen: (1,31¢) (1,219 (99
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (56) (56) —
Other, ne 1,20¢ 1,572 (367)
Total other income (deduction (66,228 (69,159 2,931
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: (736,58¢) 4,15¢ (740,74Y
Provision for income taxe (4,1072) 1,73(C 5,83z
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (732,48¢) 2,42¢ (734,91)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, natg — 25¢€ (25€)
Net income (loss $ (732,489 $ 2,68t $ (735,169
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The following table summarizes certain financidbimmation for our Regulated and Non-regulated Besses for the periods indicated
(without giving effect to inter-segment eliminat@n

For the three months ended March 31,

2008 2007
Non- Non-
Regulated regulated Regulated regulated
Businesse: Businesse Businesse: Businesse
(In thousands)
Operating revenue $449,53:  $61,17:  $419,27¢  $53,30:
Adjusted EBIT? $ 71,90( $ 4,582 $ 69,11« $ 3,701

@ Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before inteaesl income taxes from continuing operations. M@naent evaluates the
performance of its segments and allocates resobesed on several factors, of which the primarysueais Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted
EBIT does not represent cash flow for the periaés@nted and should not be considered as an ditert@net income as an indicator
of the Company’s operating performance or as @mradtive to cash flows as a source of liquidityjusted EBIT as defined by the
Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBl@eftned by other companies.

Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of watel wastewater utilities that provide water aradtewater
services to residential, commercial and industiistomers. As such, our results of operationsigrafisantly impacted by rates authorized
the state regulatory commissions in the stateshiclwwe operate. The table below details the amme@revenues (assuming constant sales
volumes) resulting from rate authorizations, in@hgdinfrastructure charges, which were grantedlzewhme effective in 2008.

Annualized Rate
Increases Granted (*

(In millions)

State
New York $ 4.6
lowa 4.3
Arizona 2.4
West Virginia 14.5
lllinois 1.1
Other 0.2

Total $ 27.1

(*) Includes infrastructure charg

Operating revenues increased by $38.3 million,.2¥8for the three months ended March 31, 2008 coadp@ the three months ended
March 31, 2007. Regulated Businesses revenuesaseueby $30.3 million, or 7.2% for the three morghded March 31, 2008 compared to
the same period in the prior year. The Non-regdl&esinesses’ revenues for the three months endedh\81, 2008 increased by $7.9
million, or 14.8% compared to the three months dridarch 31, 2007.

The increase in the Regulated Businesses reveaudsefthree months ended March 31, 2008 comparttetthree months ended
March 31, 2007 was primarily due to rate increadsained through general rate cases in New JePannsylvania, Missouri and Indiana
(which were granted and became effective in 208%yell as other states totaling approximately $33illon. This increase was offset by a
$4.7 million decrease in revenues related to custaransumption, mainly in our states in the Westegion of the United States, for the tt
months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the sarmape the prior year.
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The following table sets forth the percentage oflRated Businesses’ revenues and water sales vdiyroestomer class:

For the three months ended March 31,

Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume

Customer Class 2008 2007 2008 2007
Water service

Residentia 57.2% 57.2% 51.7% 52.(%

Commercial 18.4% 18.€% 21.8% 21.7%

Industrial 5.3% 5.3% 10.% 11.4%

Public and othe 12.% 12.%% 15.6% 14.%%

Other water revenue 2.C% 1.2% — —
Total water revenue 95.8% 95.€% 100.(% 100.(%
Wastewater servic 4.2% 4.4%

100.C%  100.(%

Water Services - Water service operating revenues from residentistomers for the three months ended March 318 fff@led $257.2
million, a $16.6 million increase, or 6.9%, ovee ttame period of 2007, mainly due to rate increafest by a decrease in sales volume. The
volume of water sold to residential customers desed by 2.4% for the three months ended March@18 B 45.2 billion gallons, from 46.3
billion gallons for the same period in 2007, lagga$ a result of wetter weather conditions in ©atifa.

Water service operating revenues from commercigmaustomers for the three months ended Marc2@18 increased by $4.2
million, or 5.4%, to $82.9 million mainly due totesincreases offset by decreases in sales volumpa®d to the same period in 2007. The
volume of water sold to commercial customers dexedy 3.1% for the three months ended March 318,20 18.9 billion gallons, from
19.5 billion gallons for the three months ended ¢éhad1, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industriat@mers totaled $23.8 million for the three morghded March 31, 2008, an increase
of $1.5 million, or 6.7%, over those recorded foe same period of 2007 mainly due to rate increasdsncreased sales volume. The volume
of water sold to industrial customers totaled 918oh gallons in the three months ended MarchZ&108, an increase of 1.0% over the 9.8
billion gallons for the three months ended MarchZ&107.

Water service operating revenues from public ahdrotustomers increased $3.8 million, or 7.0%tHerthree months ended March 31,
2008 to $57.8 million from $54.1 million for therde months ended March 31, 2007 mainly due toimateases. Revenues from municipal
governments for fire protection services and cust@mequiring special private fire service faalitotaled $25.7 million for the three months
ended March 31, 2008, an increase of $1.1 milliegr the same period of 2007. Revenues generatedlby to governmental entities and
resale customers for the three months ended MdrcB(®8 totaled $32.2 million, an increase of $8ilfion from the three months ended
March 31, 2007.

Wastewater services - Our subsidiaries provide wastewater servicedlistates. Revenues from these services increasgd. bynillion,
or 1.1%, to $18.8 million for the three months eshtiarch 31, 2008, from $18.6 million for the sanegipd of 2007. The increase was
attributable to increases in rates charged to ousste in states where we have wastewater operdfongipally Arizona, Hawaii, and New
Jersey).

Non-regulated Businesses operating revenues irentdas$7.9 million, or 14.8% for the three monthded March 31, 2008 compared
to the same period in 2007. The net increase wasaply attributable to higher revenues of $8.7limil in our Contract Operations Group i
$1.7 million in our Homeowner Services Group, @iyioffset by decreased revenues of $3.0 millioour Applied Water Group. The
increase in Contract Operations Group revenuegwasrily due to both new contracts and incremergaénues associated with design and
build contracts, as well as increased military @cbjevenues. The increase from our Homeowner &ef¥ioup represented expansion into
new geographic markets. Applied Water Group revenugre lower due to the decline in design and tagtil/ity resulting from the downtu
in new home construction.
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Operation and maintenance. Operation and maintenance expense increased $28d@nor 10.1%, for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in itioe pear.

Operation and maintenance expenses for the threghsrended March 31, 2008 and 2007, by major expeazgory, were as follows:

For the three months ended

March 31,
2008 2007
(In thousands)
Production cost $ 64,228 $ 61,14
Employetrelated cost 126,83 109,76°
Operating supplies and servic 69,49: 63,80¢
Maintenance materials and servi 34,94 30,14¢
Customer billing and accountit 7,41( 8,26¢
Other 8,34¢ 9,47¢
Total $ 311,26: $ 282,61:

Production costs, including fuel and power, pureldasater, chemicals and waste disposal increas&® dymillion, or 5.0%, for the
three months ended March 31, 2008 compared tcatine period in 2007. The increase was primarilyréiselt of increased costs in our
Regulated Businesses of $2.7 million. Fuel and pawests were higher by $1.6 million which can helaited to increases in electricity
prices. Chemical costs also increased by $0.5anifirimarily due to rising chemical costs and wakisposal costs were also higher by $0.6
million.

Employee-related costs including wage and salapyminsurance, and pension expense increased $llfidn or 15.5%, for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the sarmape the prior year. These costs representeé?d@nd 38.8% of operation and
maintenance expenses for the three months endexhN8ar 2008 and 2007, respectively. The increasedua to higher wage and salary
expenses of $10.2 million and $2.2 million in owgrlated and Non-regulated Businesses, respectjwatyarily resulting from an increase
in the number of employees and wage rate increfisasldition, our Regulated Businesses’ pensiorergg increased by 33.9% for the three
months ended March 31, 2008 compared to the sariwe the prior year. Pension expense in excéfiseoamount contributed to the
pension plans is deferred by certain of our regdaubsidiaries pending future recovery in ratesoasributions are made to the plans.
Although our pension expense in accordance witteB8tent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 8imflioyers’ Accounting for
Pensions” (SFAS 87) remained relatively unchangedsion expense increased for the three monthslévidech 31, 2008 due to increased
contributions in certain of our regulated operatiognpanies whose costs are recovered based orothpa@ys funding, rather than the SF
87 expense.

Operating supplies and services include the dajatoexpenses of office operation, legal and othefiegsional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipmentakctarges. For the three months ended March 318,20ese costs increased by $5.7
million or 8.9%, compared to the same period in2Factors contributing to this increase includeaerall increase in general office cost
$1.0 million mainly due to inflation, higher legadsts of $0.7 million in one of our operating comiga in the Midwest region of the United
States due to eminent domain proceedings, increaséetials and supplies of $0.5 million and highued and other transportation costs of
$0.5 million. Partially offsetting these increasess a decrease of $1.8 million in remediation cost®nnection with the Sarbanésdey Act.
Corresponding with the increase in revenues, the-fdgulated Businesses operating supplies andcgeexpenses increased by $2.7 million
for the three months ended March 31, 2008 comptaréite same period in the prior year. The incréaseainly attributable to additional
expense in the Contract Operations group assooigathdeveral operating contracts (including a gesbuild and operate project in Fillmore,
California), partially offset by lower contractedrsices costs in the Applied Water Management Gaugto the downturn in new home
construction.
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Maintenance materials and services, which includergency repairs as well as costs for preventivieter@ance, increased $4.8 million
or by 15.9%, for the three months ended March B08Zompared to the same period in the prior yRagulated Businesses’ maintenance
materials and service costs increased by $4.4amiifi the first quarter of 2008 due to costs oB3$Rillion associated with a project in lllinois
to maintain valves and higher cost of removal egpsrin certain of our operating companies. Theseases were offset by lower main br
costs in 2008 compared to higher than normal maaks in a number of our operating companies dwartter weather conditions in the fii
quarter of 2007.

Customer billing and accounting expenses decrdag&.9 million or 10.4%, for the three months eshiarch 31, 2008 compared to
the same period in the prior year. The decreasdheassult of lower uncollectible accounts expdanseur regulated subsidiaries as a result
of an increased focus on collection of past dueacts.

Other operation and maintenance expenses incluglmlita and liability insurance premiums and regariatosts. These costs decreased
by $1.1 million or 11.9%, in 2008 primarily duedecreased insurance costs of $0.7 million for lineet months ended March 31, 2008 due to
more favorable claims experience compared to tteetimonths ended March 31, 2007, as well as dexteagulatory expenses of $0.4
million.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense decreasé&® Fymillion, or 1.1%, for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 compared to the same period in itioe pear. This decrease was primarily due to dapti®n rate adjustments, particularly
our Pennsylvania subsidiary offset by increaserge due to additional utility plant placed in ssgv

General taxes. General taxes expense, which includes taxes fqrepty, payroll, gross receipts, and other misceltaus items, increas
by $4.2 million, or 8.7%, in the first quarter @ compared to the first quarter of 2007. Thisease is primarily due to increased gross
receipts taxes of $1.9 million in New Jersey arghbr property taxes expense in Ohio of $1.4 million

(Gain) loss on sale of assets. Our gain on sale of assets was $0.1 million fortktliee months ended March 31, 2008 compared tssa lo
of $0.1 million for the three months ended March 3107 due to non-recurring sales of assets natatem our utility operations.

I mpairment charge. Our impairment charge was $750.0 million for theethmonths ended March 31, 2008. The first quaaes
impairment charge was primarily due to the markitepof the Company’s common stock (both the ihjpigblic offering price and the price
during subsequent trading) being less than whatamtisipated during our 2007 annual test. Also dbating to the impairment was a decline
in the fair value of the Comparsydebt (due to increased interest rates). Therexwampairment charge for the three months endetivial,
2007.

Other income (deductions). Interest, the primary component of our other incqdeluctions), decreased by $2.2 million, or 3. b¥ilie
three months ended March 31, 2008 compared tcatine period in the prior year. The decline is prilpatue to the repayment of
outstanding debt with the 2007 equity contributifnesn RWE that were made to establish a capitakctiire that is consistent with other
regulated utilities and also to meet the capitalcstire expectations of various state regulatorgrogssions.

Provision for income taxes. Our consolidated provision for income taxes de@d#&5.8 million or 337.1%, to a tax benefit of $4.1
million for the three months ended March 31, 20@8f a tax expense of $1.7 million for the three therended March 31, 2007. The
Company recorded an effective tax rate for thé jiterter 2008 of (0.6%) which reflects the taxeeffof the goodwill impairment as a
discrete item as we consider this charge an in&etiy occurring or unusual event.

Net income (loss). Net income decreased $735.2 million, to a nettd€732.5) million for the three months ended Mmigd, 2008
from net income of $2.7 million for the three mom#mded March 31, 2007. The decrease is the @dhié aforementioned changes.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive and requiresiderable capital resources. A portion of thesetehpésources are provided by
internally generated cash flows from operationsewhecessary we obtain funds from external sotinctbe capital markets and through
bank borrowings. Our access to external financimgeasonable terms depends on our credit ratindjs@ment business conditions, including
that of the water utility industry in general aslivas conditions in the debt or equity capital nedsk If these business and market conditions
deteriorate to the extent that we no longer hagcesxto the capital markets at reasonable termbawe access to revolving credit facilities
with aggregate bank commitments of $810.0 millieattwe currently utilize to support our commergiaper programs and to issue letters of
credit. See the “Credit Facilities and Short-TerebD section below for further discussion.

In addition, our regulated utility subsidiariese&a@ advances and contributions from customers ghouiiders and real estate develo
to fund construction necessary to extend serviget areas. Advances for construction are refurdiillimited periods, which vary
according to state regulations, as new customeyis @ receive service or other contractual oblat are fulfilled. Amounts which are no
longer refundable are reclassified to contributionaid of construction. Utility plant funded byathces and contributions is excluded from
rate base. Generally, we depreciate contributepgrty and amortize contributions at the composite of the related property. Some of our
subsidiaries do not depreciate contributed propedged on regulatory guidelines.

We use capital resources, including cash, to fuamital requirements, including construction exparés, pay off maturing debt, pay
dividends, fund pension and postretirement welfdni@ations and invest in new and existing busieesg/e spend a significant amount of
cash on construction projects that have a long-tetorn on investment. Additionally, we operateate-regulated environments in which the
amount of new investment recovery may be limited, where such recovery takes place over an extepeléol of time, as our recovery is
subject to regulatory lag. As a result of thesédia; our working capital, defined as current asbets current liabilities, was in a net deficit
position at March 31, 2008.

We expect to fund future maturities of long-ternbdihrough a combination of external debt and ¢lst from operations. We have no
plans to reduce debt significantly.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities primarily réfoom the sale of water and wastewater servicesdue to the seasonality of
operations are weighted toward the third quartexaah fiscal year. Our future cash flows from opieggactivities will be affected by changes
in the rate regulatory environments; infrastructureestment; inflation; compliance with environmanhealth and safety standards;
production costs; customer growth; declining pestomer usage of water; and weather and seasor@éish flows from operating activities
for the three months ended March 31, 2008 weredd®ilion compared to $54.2 million for the thre@mths ended March 31, 2007.

The following table provides a summary of the méjems affecting our cash flows from operating\atigés for the three months ended
March 31, 2008 and 2007:

For the three months
ended March 31,

2008 2007
(In thousands)

Net income (loss $(732,48) $ 2,68t
Add (subtract)

Non-cash operating activities ( 826,56 81,89(
Changes in working capital ( 21,14« (4,91
Pension and postretirement healthcare contribu (29,839 (25,457
Net cash flows provided by operatic $ 85,39: $ 54,21

(1) Includes depreciation and amortization, impa&inincharges, removal costs net of salvage, provisiodeferred income taxes,
amortization of deferred investment tax creditgyvsion for losses on utility accounts receivalaléggwance for other funds used during
construction, (gain) loss on sale of assets, anerator-cash items, net less pension and postretiremetthbage contributions

(2) Changes in working capital include changesctmants receivable and unbilled utility revenuagetareceivable (including federal
income), other current assets, accounts payabiles teccrued (including federal income), interestwaed and other current liabilitie
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Cash Flows from I nvesting Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities for theetimonths ended March 31, 2008 and 2007 were $1@lign and $165.2 million,
respectively. Construction expenditures increasgi3million to $188.4 million for the three montlasded March 31, 2008 from $166.1
million for the three months ended March 31, 2092 aesult of continuing to increase our investnen¢gulated utility plant projects.
Construction expenditures for the periods notedralacluded customer advances and contributionsdostruction (net of refunds) of
($13.7) million and $13.1 million for the three ntbs ended March 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Our construction program consists of both infrasttite renewal programs, where we replace infragtracas needed, and construction
of facilities to meet new customer growth. Also,iategral aspect of our strategy is to seek gramtbugh tuck-ins and other acquisitions
which are complementary to our existing businesssapport the continued geographical diversificatiad growth of our operations.
Generally, acquisitions will be funded initially thishort-term debt and later refinanced with thecpeds from long-term debt or equity
offerings.

Included in the 2008 planned construction expeneitis an amount to construct a new water treatpiant on the Kentucky River of
approximately $26 million. On April 25, 2008, thentucky Public Service Commission approved Kentutkerican Watess application fo
a certificate of convenience and necessity to coasa 20.0 to 25.0 million gallon per day treatinglant on the Kentucky River and a 30.6
mile pipeline to meet Central Kentucky’s water dypfeficit. The Kentucky project is expected todmmpleted by 2010 with an estimated
cost of between $162 million and $168 million.

On December 21, 2007, New Jersey-American Watersuhsidiary, signed an agreement with the Cityrehton, New Jersey to
purchase the assets of the city’s water systentddda Ewing, Hamilton, Hopewell and Lawrence tohips for $100.0 million. The
agreement was approved by the Trenton City Coumtitequires approval by various regulatory agenéreluding the New Jersey Board of
Public Utilities. We can provide no assurances thatagreement will be approved.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities include the issuance afgdgerm and short-term debt, primarily through wholly-owned financing subsidiary,
American Water Capital Corp. (“AWCC?"). In additiowe have received capital contributions from RWH antend to issue equity in the
future to maintain an appropriate capital strugtatibject to any restrictions in our registratigght agreement with RWE. In order to finance
new infrastructure, we received customer advaned<antributions for construction (net of refund§)$13.7) million and $13.1 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2008 and 2007ec#sgely. In connection with the RWE divestitunes have made and will continue to
make significant changes to our capital structbreugh debt refinancing and equity offerings.

The following long-term debt was retired throughiopal redemption or payment at maturity during fing quarter of 2008:

Interest Amount
Company Type Rate Maturity (In Thousands’
American Water Capital Cor Senior note-fixed rate 6.87% 2011 $  28,00(
Other subsidiarie 0%-9.87% 200¢-2034 7,87¢
Total retirements & redemptiol $ 35,87¢
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In April and May 2008, the Company redeemed $14dillfon of long-term auction rate debt of subsidarwith interest rates ranging
from 6.48 % to 10.00% and maturities ranging fradd22to 2032. These redemptions were financed thrthig issuance of additional
commercial paper.

In May 2008, AWCC plans to issue in private placataadditional Senior Notes in the principal amaafr$$110.0 million at 6.25% du
in 2018 and $90.0 million at 6.55% due in 2023. Twenpany intends to use the proceeds to repayamdlisig short-term indebtedness of
AWCC.

On May 12, 2008, the Company commenced an offekéhange $750,000 principal amount of its 6.085%i@eéNotes due in 2017 a
$750,000 principal amount of its 6.593% Senior Natee in 2037 which are both registered under éweigies Act of 1933 (the “Exchange
Note¢") for all $750,000 of its currently outstandind85% Senior Notes due in 2017 and all $750,008safurrently outstanding 6.593%
Senior Notes due in 2037, which have not been texgid under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “OrdjiNotes”). The Company will not
receive any proceeds from the exchange offer, fbthe Company’s debt level change as a resuthefexchange offer. The terms of the
Exchange Notes and the Original Notes are subathnitientical in all material respects.

From time to time and as market conditions warnaetmay engage in long-term debt retirements vidde offers, open market
repurchases or other viable alternatives to sthergbur balance sheet.

Dividends. There were no dividend payments made for the timaeths ended March 31, 2008 or 2007. Our boardre€rs has adopted a
dividend policy, effective upon the consummationtaf IPO, to distribute to our stockholders a porif our net cash provided by operating
activities as regular quarterly dividends, rattamt retaining that cash for other purposes. Oucyalill be to distribute 50% to 70% of our
annual net income.

Contributions from RWE. There were no contributions from RWE for the thm@nths ended March 31, 2008. Contributions from Rwéfe
$650.0 million for the three months ended MarchZQ7.

As a result of the impairment charges recordedHerthree months ended March 31, 2008, RWE trarsf&245.0 million on May 13, 2008.
This cash will be used to reduce debt.

Credit Facilitiesand Short Term Debt
The components of short-term debt were as follows:

March 31,200¢

(In Thousands;
Commercial pape $ 338,61¢
Book overdrafi 23,08:
Other shor-term debt 6,437
Total shor-term debt $ 368,13

Our access to external financing on reasonablestdepends on our credit ratings and current busio@sditions, including that of the
water utility industry in general as well as coratis in the debt or equity capital markets. If thbsisiness and market conditions deteriorate
to the extent that we no longer have access todpital markets at reasonable terms, we have atzesgolving credit facilities with
aggregate bank commitments of $810.0 million thatowrrently utilize to support our commercial papergrams and to issue letters of
credit.

AWCC has entered into a one-year $10.0 million cdftewh revolving line of credit with PNC Bank, N.Ahis line of credit will
terminate on December 31, 2008 unless extendedsarsdd primarily for short-term working capitakads. Interest rates on advances under
this line of credit are based on either the priate of PNC Bank, N.A. or the applicable LIBOR fbetterm selected plus 25 basis points. As
of March 31, 2008, $6.4 million was outstanding emthis revolving line of credit.
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On September 15, 2006, AWCC entered into an $8®dli@n unsecured revolving credit facility syndied among a group of ten
banks. This revolving credit facility, which ternaites on September 15, 2012 unless extended, spaily used to support the $700 million
commercial paper program at AWCC and to providéoupl50.0 million in letters of credit. AWCC had loans outstanding under the net
$800.0 million unsecured revolving credit facilag of March 31, 2008.

At March 31, 2008, AWCC had the following sub-liménd available capacity under the revolving crieditlity and indicated amounts
of outstanding commercial paper.

Outstanding

Letter of Credit Available Commercial
Sublimit Capacity Paper
(In thousands) (In thousands' (In thousands,
$ 150,0¢( $ 71,21¢ $ 338,61¢

Interest rates on advances under the revolvingtdiagility are based on either prime or LIBOR phus applicable margin based upon
our credit ratings, as well as total outstandingants under the agreement at the time of the bangpw he maximum LIBOR margin is 55
basis points.

The revolving credit facility requires us to mainta ratio of consolidated debt to consolidatedtetipation of not more than 0.70 to
1.00. As of March 31, 2008, our ratio was 0.53 tmeatefore we were in compliance with the ratio.

The average interest rate on commercial papeh#otttree months ended March 31, 2008 was approaiynat? %.

Debt Covenants

Our debt agreements contain financial and non-@irsmovenants. To the extent that we are not mal@nce, we or our subsidiaries
may be restricted in our ability to pay dividendsue debt or access our revolving credit linesM#ee in compliance with our reporting
covenants as of March 31, 2008.

Security Ratings

Our access to the capital markets, including theroercial paper market, and their respective finagnciosts in those markets depent
the securities ratings of the entity that is acioesthe capital markets. We primarily access thgtahmarkets, including the commercial pa
market, through AWCC. However, we do issue deluatregulated subsidiaries, primarily in the forfriax exempt securities, to lower our
overall cost of debt. The following table shows @@mpany’s securities ratings as of March 31, 2008:

Moody’s Investors Standard & Poor’s
Securities Service Ratings Service
Senior unsecured de Baaz A-
Commercial pape Pz A2

The Standard & Poor’s ratings on American Water A&WdCC remain on CreditWatch with negative implicais. Moody'’s rating
outlook for both American Water and AWCC is stable.

A security rating is not a recommendation to bwl, ar hold securities and may be subject to revisir withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency, and each rating shoukevbkiated independently of any other rating.

None of our borrowings are subject to default @payment as a result of a downgrading of secuafih®ugh such a downgrading
could increase fees and interest charges undaredit facilities.

As part of the normal course of business, we relitienter into contracts for the purchase and ciaeater, energy, fuels and other
services. These contracts either contain expresgsons or otherwise permit us and our counter@aitb demand adequate assurance of
future performance when there are reasonable geofandioing so. In accordance with the contractsapplicable contract law, if we are
downgraded by a credit rating agency, especiallych downgrade is to a level below investmentegrads possible that a counterparty
would attempt to rely on such a downgrade as alfasimaking a demand for adequate assurancewkfperformance. Depending on our
net position with a counterparty, the demand cdweldor the posting of collateral. In the absence)qfressly agreed provisions that specify
the collateral that must be provided, the obligato supply the collateral requested will be a fiorcof the facts and circumstances of the
Company’s situation at the time of the demand.dfaan reasonably claim that we are willing andrfaially able to perform our obligations,
it may be possible to successfully argue that llatesal should be posted or that only an amoungétp two or three months of future
payments should be sufficiel
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Current Credit Market Position

The liquidity crisis that began in 2007 as a resfithe collapse of the subprime mortgage markstauwersely impacted global credit
markets and, if it continues, could increase owt of capital or impair our ability to access tlapital markets.
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As of March 31, 2008, the Company had issued $188ll®n of auction rate tax-exempt long-term débtluding $24.9 million of
variable rate demand bonds, which are periodiaaltyiced to reflect auction rates) that are insimgdAA-rated insurers Ambac Assurance
Corporation and MBIA Insurance Corporation. Du¢h® exposure that these bond insurers have in ctionewith recent developments in
the subprime credit market, rating agencies havéhgse insurers on review for possible downgr&iteh has lowered the credit rating of
Ambac Assurance Corporation from AAA to AA. Whileese debt instruments are long-term in nature pahdthe variable rate demand
bonds can be put back to the Company prior to ritattine interest rates on these instruments asgded to reset periodically through an
auction process. In late February 2008, the Compaggan to experience failed auctions for a ponibinese instruments, which had interest
rates of 3.65% to 4.90% as of December 31, 200'&nMhfailed auction occurs on a series of this,debtCompany is required to begin
paying a failed-auction rate on the instruments fetiled auction interest rate for the majoritytiod auction rate debt is 10%. Payment of the
failed-auction rate interest rates will continudiluhe Company is able to either successfully rdmaathese instruments through the auction
process or refund and refinance the existing debtigh the issuance of an equivalent amount oéxampt bonds. In April and May 2008,
the Company redeemed $144.7 million of long-termctian rate debt of subsidiaries with interest raegying from 6.48 % to 10.00% and
maturities ranging from 2021 to 2032.

At this time, the Company does not believe recemtket developments significantly impact its abitibyobtain financing and expects to
have access to liquidity in the capital marketsamorable terms. In addition, the Company has actesnsecured revolving credit facilities,
which are not as dependent upon general markeitaoms with aggregate bank commitments of $810iom] of which a portion is currently
committed primarily to backstop the Company’s corroiz paper program and letters of credit.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk associated with admitgcommodity prices, equity prices and interatds. We use a combination of
fixed-rate and variable-rate debt to reduce inta@s exposure. As of March 31, 2008 a hypothkli6&6 increase in interest rates associated
with variable rate debt would result in $1.1 miflidecrease in our pre-tax earnings. Our risks &sggacwith price increase for chemicals,
electricity and other commodities are reduced thhdong-term contracts and the ability to recowdzeincreases through rates.

Our common stock began trading on the New York ISExchange on April 23, 2008. The market price wf common stock may
experience fluctuations, many of which are unrelateour operating performance. In particular, stock price may be affected by general
market movements as well as developments spedtyfiedhted to the water and wastewater industresehcould include, among other thin
interest rate movements, quarterly variations anges in financial estimates by securities anabstsgovernmental or regulatory actions.
This volatility may make it difficult for us to aeses the capital markets in the future through @atuit offerings of our common stock,
regardless of our financial performance, and suficdty may preclude us from being able to taklvantage of certain business
opportunities or meet business obligations.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estmates

Our financial condition, results of operations aagh flows are impacted by the methods, assumptiot®stimates used in the
application of critical accounting policies. Seerlgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialditon and Results of Operations—
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates,” in ¢gtorm 424(b)(4) prospectus filed on April 24, 200igh the Securities and Exchange
Commission for a discussion of the critical accounpolicies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Part |, Item Einancial Satements (Unaudited)- Note 2- New Accounting Pronouncements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for a discussion of new accounting standards récadbpted or pending adoption.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are subject to market risks in the normal coofdmisiness, including changes in interest ratesemuity prices. For further
discussion of market risks see “Market Risk” intRaltem 2 — Management'’s Discussion and Analg$iBinancial Condition and Results of
Operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes that are designed to ensure that informagiguired to be disclosed in the
reports filed or submitted under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Acted®rded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in tren@nission’s rules and forms and that such inforamais accumulated and communicated to
the Companys management including its principal executive timahcial officers, as appropriate to allow timelkycisions regarding requir:
disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this repbe, Company’s management evaluated the effecthgeniethe design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Radel5(b) of the Exchange Act. This evaluation dase under the supervision and with
the participation of management, including our Riexst and Chief Executive Officer and our Chiefaigial Officer.

Based on this evaluation and because of the miteziknesses described below, the Company’s Chiefiive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that the Compaujsslosure controls and procedures were not éfeets of March 31, 2008.
Notwithstanding these material weaknesses, manageroacluded that the financial statements includetiis Form 1-Q for the period
ended March 31, 2008 fairly present in all matenéslpects their financial position, results of gpens and cash flows for the periods
presented in conformity with GAAP.

Material Weaknessesin Internal Control over Financial Reporting
A material weakness is a control deficiency or mbimation of control deficiencies that results inmmthan a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim otidated financial statements will not be preventedetected.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting. Our internal control
over financial reporting is a process designedtwide reasonable assurance regarding the retiabilifinancial reporting and the preparat
of financial statements in accordance with gengidcepted accounting principles. However, from2@0April 28, 2008, we were an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE and, asriagtely owned company, were not required to maingasystem of internal control
consistent with the requirements of the SEC andtrbanes-Oxley Act, or to prepare our own findrste@tements. As a public reporting
company, we will be required, among other thingsnaintain a system of effective internal contredofinancial reporting suitable to prep:
our publicly reported financial statements in adiynand accurate manner, and also to evaluateegroitron such system of internal control.
In particular, we are required to certify our corapte with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acttie year ended December 31, 2009,
which will require us to perform system and prooesluation and testing of our internal control ofilgancial reporting to allow managem
and our independent registered public accountimg id report on the effectiveness of our interraitool over financial reporting.

In connection with the preparation of our consdkdifinancial statements as of December 31, 20@&nd our independent registered
public accountants identified the following matérieeaknesses in our internal control over financéglorting:

* Inadequate internal staffing and skil

* Inadequate controls over financial reporting prees:

» Inadequate controls over mo-end closing processes, including account recotioitig;

» Inadequate controls over maintenance of contrantsagreement:

» Inadequate controls over segregation of dutiesresitiction of access to key accounting applicaj@nd
* Inadequate controls over tax accounting and acgr
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Remediation of Material Weaknesses

Since joining the Company in 2006, Donald L. Cdrmlir Chief Executive Officer, and Ellen C. Wadir Chief Financial Officer, hax
assigned a high priority to the evaluation and miateon of our internal controls, and have takematous steps to remediate these material
weaknesses and to evaluate and strengthen ouriotleral controls over financial reporting. Sonféte actions taken include:

» Increasing our internal financial staff numbers ahill levels, and using external resource

e supplement our internal staff when necess

» Implementing detailed processes and procedure®deia our period end financial closing proces

» key accounting applications and our financial réipgrprocesses

» Implementing or enhancing systems used in the éi@hneporting processes and mc-end close processe

» Conducting extensive training on existing and netddyeloped processes and procedures as well asirgrglto employees
Sarbane-Oxley Act requirements and the value of internaitoals;

e Enhancing our internal audit sta
e Hiring a director of internal control and a directd taxes;
» Implementing a tracking mechanism and new poliay procedure for approval of all contracts and agesgs; anc

* Retaining a nationally recognized accounting arditang firm to assist management in developingges and procedures
surrounding internal controls over financial repagt to evaluate and test these internal contnodsta assist in the remediation of
internal control deficiencie:

With respect to the material weaknesses describedeawe have initiated a process to clearly dat@eur control weaknesses and
formulated a remediation plan. We believe that weehmade significant progress in remediating séweéithe identified material weakness
however, as our testing procedures have not yet bempleted, we can make no assurances as todbessuof our remediation efforts. As of
March 31, 2008, the Company had incurred $54.9anillo remediate these material weaknesses anoctoment and test key financial
reporting controls. We will need to allocate adtitl resources to enhance the quality of our stadfto carry out the remediation of these
material weaknesses. Based upon our current assessae expect to complete the remediation of testerial weaknesses during 2008
with an estimated additional cost of approxima®&3y4 million. The Company cannot indicate with aérty that the material weaknesses will
be remediated or what additional costs may be reduiThe Company needs to initiate additional adatand test the effectiveness of cont
prior to concluding controls are effective. As adition to state Public Utility Commissions’ appedwf the RWE Divestiture, we agreed that
costs incurred in connection with our initial imtaf control and remediation initiatives would netrecoverable in rates charged to our
customers. Elements of our remediation activitess anly be accomplished over time, and our initegiprovide no assurances that they will
result in an effective internal control environmedtir board of directors, in coordination with @udit committee, will continually assess the
progress and sufficiency of these initiatives arakenadjustments, as necessary.

The Company believes the additional control proceslas designed, when implemented, will fully refatedthe above material
weaknesses.

Changesin Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as described above, there were no changainal control over financial reporting durirtgetquarter ended March 31, 2008,
that have materially affected, or are reasonakBlyito materially affect, the Company’s internahtrol over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Previously reported under “Business — Legal Proicgst in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4) prospectiedfiApril 24, 2008.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from risk fagi@viously disclosed in “Risk Factors” in ther@many’s Form 424(b)(4)
prospectus filed April 24, 2008, other than as dbed below.

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill, and we may never realize the full value of our intangible assets causing usto record
impairments that may negatively affect our results of operations.

Our total assets include substantial goodwill. Adrivh 31, 2008, our goodwill totaled $1,707.0 miilidhe goodwill is associated
primarily with the acquisition of American Water by affiliate of RWE in 2003 and the acquisitiorEdTown Corporation in 2001. Goodw
represents the excess of the purchase price tisbgmer paid over the fair value of the net tangilé intangible assets acquired. Goodwill is
recorded at fair value on the date of an acquisiiod, in accordance with Statement of Financialodioting Standards No. 142, “Goodwiill
and Other Intangible Assets,” or SFAS No. 142eisewed annually or more frequently if changesiioumstances indicate the carrying
value may not be recoverable. Annual impairmeniengs are performed in the fourth quarter and imeviews are performed when
management determines that a triggering eventt@ag@d. We have been required to reflect, as rediiy SFAS No. 142 and other
applicable accounting rules, a non-cash charg@éoabing results for goodwill impairment in the amts of $396.3 million, $227.8 million,
and $509.3 million for the years ended DecembefB@5, 2006 and 2007, respectively. These amonalisde impairments relating to
discontinued operations. Also, for the three mometided March 31, 2008 we recorded a goodwill inmpaitt in the amount of $750.0 millic

Our annual goodwill impairment test is conductedrduthe fourth quarter. We have processes to mpfat interim triggering events.
During the third quarter of 2007 management deteechihat it was appropriate to update its valuatioalysis as a result of our debt being
placed on review for a possible downgrade and iitieipated sale of a portion of the Company inlP®. As a result of that update, we
recorded an impairment charge to goodwill of ougitated Businesses in the amount of $243.3 miiliathe third quarter of 2007. That
decline in the value of our goodwill was primariye to a slightly lower long-term earnings foreaasised by updated customer demand and
usage expectations and expectations for timingpital expenditures and rate recovery.

When we completed our annual goodwill impairmest fer 2007 we determined that an impairment haaiiwed based upon new
information regarding our market value. We incogted this indicated market value into our valuativethodology and, based on those
results, recorded an additional goodwill impairmemirge to the Regulated Businesses reportingruttie amount of $266.0 million during
the fourth quarter of 2007.

In April of 2008, we determined that it was prolmbhsed in large part on the initial public offgrprice of our common stock of
$21.50, that the current carrying value of our geiidvhich the Company recorded as a result 0of2B83 acquisition of American Water by
RWE and acquisition of E'Town Corporation in 200dsnimpaired. At the time the Company’s initial paldffering price of $21.50 was
established, we were unable to determine if thexg any goodwill impairment or to provide a reliabi&imate of the amount of goodwiill
impairment, if any. In light of the initial publiaffering price and trading levels in our stock sirthe date of the IPO, we performed an interim
impairment test and on May 9, 2008, we concludatlittie current carrying value of our goodwill wapaired as a result of the current
market price and trading levels of our common stdk believe the offering price was indicative lné tvalue of the Company at March 31,
2008 and accordingly, based on those factors, dedoan impairment charge to goodwill related toRegulated Businesses in the amount of
$750.0 million in our financial statements as ol éor the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2008. iffy@airment charge was primarily due to
the market price of our common stock (both theahjiublic offering price and the price during sefaent trading) being less
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than what was anticipated during our 2007 annwsal Adso contributing to the impairment was a deelin the fair value of our debt (due to
increased market interest rates).

We may be required to recognize additional impain®én the future, depending on, among other fac#decline over a period of tir
in valuation multiples of comparable water utiltje decline over a period of time of the Compansyogk price or the lack of appreciation of
the Company'’s stock price to a level consistenhwier companies or increases in equity value.clirdein the forecasted results in our
business plan, such as changes in rate case resalipital investment budgets or changes in derdst rates, may also result in an
incremental impairment charge. Further recognitbmpairments of a significant portion of goodwitbuld negatively affect our results of
operations and total capitalization, the effectvbfch could be material and could make it moreiclif for us to secure financing on attrac
terms and maintain compliance with our debt covenan

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Americaatéf Works Company, Inc. (incorporated by referdndexhibit 3.1 to
American Water Works Company, I's Registration Statement on Fori-1, File No. 33-145725, filed March 6, 2008
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Water W@dsipany, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Ex{8# to American
Water Works Company, Ir's Registration Statement on Fori-1, File No. 33-145725, filed March 26, 200¢
10.1 Employment Agreement between Donald L. Correll Anterican Water Works Company, Inc., dated Febri&ry2008

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Aroan Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statgnon Form S-1, File
No. 33:-145725, filed March 6, 2008

10.2 Employment Agreement between Ellen C. Wolf and Aoaar Water Works Company, Inc., dated Februar2088
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Aroan Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statemon Form S-1, File
No. 33:-145725, filed March 6, 2008
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10.z

*31.1
*31.2
*32.1
*32.2

2008 American Water Senior Management Annual IneerRlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 5@ American Water
Works Company, In’s Registration Statement on For-1, File No. 33-145725, filed April 15, 2008

Certification of Donald L. Correll, President anti€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302h&f Sarban«-Oxley Act
Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sectd®2 of the Sarban-Oxley Act
Certification of Donald L. Correll, President anti€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 90@he Sarban«-Oxley Act

Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presideand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sec@®@é of the Sarban-Oxley Act

* filed herewith.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

American Water Works Company, Ir
(Registrant’

May 14, 2007 /s/ Donald L. Correll

(Date) Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

May 14, 2007 /sl Ellen C. Wolf

(Date) Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Americaatéf Works Company, Inc. (incorporated by refergndexhibit 3.1 to America
Water Works Company, Ir's Registration Statement on Fori-1, File No. 33-145725, filed March 6, 2008
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Water WGdpany, Inc. (incorporated by reference to ExI8# to American
Water Works Company, Ir's Registration Statement on Fori-1, File No. 33-145725, filed March 26, 200€
10.1 Employment Agreement between Donald L. Correll Anterican Water Works Company, Inc., dated Febrd&rn2008
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Aroan Water Works Company, Inc.’s Registration Statemon Form S-1, File No.
33:-145725, filed March 6, 2008
10.2  Employment Agreement between Ellen C. Wolf and Aozar Water Works Company, Inc., dated February2088 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to American Water Wo@ompany, Inc.’s Registration Statement on Forin Sie No. 333-145725,
filed March 6, 2008)
10.3 2008 American Water Senior Management Annual Ineemlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B0t@ American Water
Works Company, In’s Registration Statement on For-1, File No. 33-145725, filed April 15, 2008
*31.1  Certification of Donald L. Correll, President anti€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302taf Sarban«Oxley Act
*31.2  Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sect3®2 of the Sarban-Oxley Act
*32.1  Certification of Donald L. Correll, President andi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 908ref Sarban«Oxley Act
*32.2  Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sec@®6 of the Sarban-Oxley Act

* filed herewith.
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExxghaAct of 1934, as amended,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@mé=sy Act of 2002)

I, Donald L. Correll, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forrad0f American Water Works Company, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistédements, and other financial information ined in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this rej

4. The registrans other certifying officers and | are responsilaledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHeregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedaotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the teaig's internal control over financial reportiftat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, tregistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weads®s in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrarg’interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 14, 200

By: /s/ Donald L. Correll
Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER AND CH IEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER

(Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as amended,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@mésss Act of 2002)

[, Ellen C. Wolf, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ0f American Water Works Company, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistéements, and other financial information inled in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this rej

4. The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsiliedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the teai$'s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt'interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 14, 200

By: /s/ Ellen C. Wolf
Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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Exhibit 32.1

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Ameridatater Works Company, Inc. (the “Company”) on FArtaQ for the period ended
March 31, 2008, as filed with the Securities andiange Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtDonald L. Correll , President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby ifegursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopteduant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Donald L. Correll
Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

May 14, 200¢
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AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Ameridatater Works Company, Inc. (the “Company”) on FArtaQ for the period ended

March 31, 2008, as filed with the Securities andtiange Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtBllen C. Wolf, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, of the Compaereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectiobQl&s adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Ellen C. Wolf
Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

May 14, 200¢
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file: number 001-34028

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 51-006369¢€
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1025 Laurel Oak Road, Voorhees, N 08043
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(856) 346-8200

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢ filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementsHe past 90 days. Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller repori
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act.

Large accelerated file (I Accelerated filel O
Non-accelerated file Smaller reporting compar [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act.). OO Yes
No
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Indicate the number of shares outstanding of ehtiiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Class Qutstanding at August 12, 2008

Common Stock, $0.01 par value per st 159,960,765 shar¢
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS

Property, plant and equipme

Utility plant—at original cost, net of accumulatdepreciation of $2,891,826 at June 30 and $2,710¢

at December 3 $ 9,497,171  $ 9,199,90

Nonutility property, net of accumulated depreciataf $75,275 at June 30 and $67,538 at Decemb 124,41! 118,05:
Total property, plant and equipme 9,621,59 9,317,96!
Current assel

Cash and cash equivalel 5,91¢ 13,48:

Restricted fund 1,87 3,25¢

Utility customer accounts receivalt 158,88t 147,64(

Allowance for uncollectible accoun (18,149 (20,927

Unbilled utility revenue: 141,04 134,32t

Non-regulated trade and other receivables, 62,52¢ 66,54(

Federal income taxes receiva 23,90¢ 23,11

Materials and supplie 31,67¢ 27,45¢

Other 50,98¢ 35,46
Total current asse 458,67: 430,35
Regulatory and other lo-term asset

Regulatory asse 631,49 628,03¢

Restricted fund 8,98: 10,25:

Goodwill 1,706,67! 2,456,95:

Other 99,26¢ 90,51«
Total regulatory and other lo-term asset 2,446,41! 3,185,75
TOTAL ASSETS $12,526,68  $12,934,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

3
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)
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CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization
Common stockholde’ equity
Preferred stock without mandatory redemption resqoents
Long-term debt
Long-term deb
Redeemable preferred stock at redemption v
Total capitalizatior
Current liabilities

(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31,
2008 2007

$ 4,102,90. $ 4,542,04
4,56( 4,56¢

4,696,26! 4,674,83
24,338 24,29¢
8,828,05! 9,245,74

Shor-term debi 243,41¢ 220,51
Current portion of lon-term debt 80,53« 96,45t
Accounts payabl 137,30: 168,88t
Taxes accrued, including income taxes of $3,54%kiae 30 and $8,086 at Decembel 58,17+ 56,00:
Interest accrue 53,72( 50,86
Other 168,09( 181,76!
Total current liabilities 741,23¢ 774,48
Regulatory and other lo-term liabilities
Advances for constructic 656,91« 655,37!
Deferred income taxe 658,48: 638,91¢
Deferred investment tax cred 34,55 35,36!
Regulatory liability-cost of remova 209,96: 192,65(
Accrued pension expen 260,39: 290,72:
Accrued postretirement benefit expel 153,97! 158,55
Other 116,63: 123,87:
Total regulatory and other lo-term liabilities 2,090,90: 2,095,44!
Contributions in aid of constructic 866,48( 818,38

Commitments and contingenci
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

$12,526,68 $12,934,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

4
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007

Operating revenue $589,36¢ $558,730 $1,096,18 $1,027,27
Operating expense

Operation and maintenan 330,57  299,38! 641,83 581,99¢

Depreciation and amortizatic 67,307 68,137 131,22: 132,76«

General taxe 49,62¢ 45,94( 101,69: 93,81¢

Gain on sale of asse (800 (6,219 (870 (6,113

Impairment charg — — 750,00( —
Total operating expenses, | 446,71, 407,24 1,623,88 802,46¢
Operating income (lost 142,65¢ 151,49 (527,700 224,80¢
Other income (deduction

Interest, ne (70,066 (70,763 (140,034 (142,970

Allowance for other funds used during construc 3,387 1,511 5,92¢ 3,16¢

Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 1,72t 41¢ 3,09: 1,512

Amortization of debt expen: (1,441 (1,178 (2,759 (2,397

Preferred dividends of subsidiari (56) (56) (113 (113

Other, ne (543 1,21( 663 2,78
Total other income (deduction (66,994 (68,857 (133,222 (138,016
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: 75,66¢ 82,63 (660,922 86,79:
Provision for income taxe 30,16¢ 32,64¢ 26,06 34,37¢
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 45,49¢ 49,98¢ (686,986 52,41+«
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, natg — (807 — (551
Net income (loss $ 45,49t $ 49,17¢ $(686,986 $ 51,86:
Basic earnings per common shéte

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 026 $ 031 $ (429 3% 0.3

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag $ — $ (001 $ —  $ =

Net income (loss $ 026 $ 031 $ (429 3 0.32
Diluted earnings per common shé¥e

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 026 $ 031 $ (429 3 0.3:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag $ — $ (001 $ —  $ =

Net income (loss $ 026 $ 031 $ (429 3% 0.32
Average common shares outstanding during the pe

Basic 159,93:  160,00( 159,96t 160,00(

Diluted 159,97¢  160,00( 159,96¢ 160,00(

(1) amounts may not add due to round
The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment charg
Amortization of removal costs net of salve
Provision for deferred income tax
Amortization of deferred investment tax crec
Provision for losses on utility accounts receive
Allowance for other funds used during construc
Gain on sale of asse
Other, ne
Changes in assets and liabilit
Receivables and unbilled utility revent
Other current asse
Accounts payabl
Taxes accrued, including income ta:
Interest accrue
Other current liabilitie:
Net cash provided by operating activit
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction expenditure
Acquisitions
Proceeds from sale of assets and secu
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat

Removal costs from property, plant and equipmetireraents, ne

Net restricted funds releas
Net cash used in investing activit|
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term deb
Repayment of lor-term debi
Net borrowings (repayments) under s-term debt agreemer

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2008

2007

$(686,98) $ 51,86

Advances and contributions for construction, nateéiinds of $38,735 and $17,720 at June 30, 20688 an

2007

Change in cash overdraft positi

Capital contribution:

Debt issuance cos

Redemption of preferred sto

Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Non-cash investing activity:

Capital expenditures acquired on account but ungiaghiarte-end

Non-cash financing activity:
Advances and contributiol
Capital contributior

131,22: 132,76
750,00 —
21,21 15,81
21,96( 15,82

(80¢) (819
6,36¢ 6,55¢
(5,92¢) (3,169)
(870) (6,119
(58,847  (17,23)
(23,099  (45,43Y
(20,539 (31,089
(3,996 (31,580
2,17z 31,31
2,85: 1,487
6,551 15,99¢
141,27¢ 136,18
(425,96() (304,55
(24¢) (217)
79¢ 15,20(
— 9,66(
(4,857) (48¢)
2,65: 961

(427,619  (279,44)
201,54t 617,45
(191,519  (437,88)
36,77 (578,579

2,16¢ 15,74:
(13,869 —
245,000  551,09:
(1,319 (2,696)

(14) (176)
278,77, 164,95

(7,567  21,69:
13,48! 29,75

$ 591 $ 51,44

$ 67,190 $ 52,86¢

$ 12,57¢ $ 35,83¢
$ —  $100,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Common Stockluers’ Equity

(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Balance at December 31, 2007
Net loss
Equity investment by RW.
Contribution of common
stock by RWE
Stock-based compensation
activity
Pension plan amortized to
periodic benefit cos
Prior service cos
Foreign currency translatic
Balance at June 30, 200

Accumulated

Common Stock, $.01 Par Value:
500,000 Shares Authorized Comgrtgﬁénsive Treasury Stock Stc?(?kngg?ccj)grs’
Paid-in (Accumulated
Shares Par Value Capital Deficit) Income (Loss)  Shares At Cost Equity
160,000 $ 1,60 $5,637,94 $(1,079,11) $ (1838) — $ —  $4,542,04
— — — (686,98) — — (686,98
— — 245,00( — — — — 245,00(
— — 1,93¢ — — (90) (1,939 —
— — 2,992 — — — — 2,992
— — — — 13 — — 13
_ _ — — (163 — — (169)
160,000 $  1,60( $5,887,87. $(1,766,10) $ (18,539 (90) $(1,939 $4,102,90:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

7
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of ikerekVater Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Corgsa(the “Company”) at

June 30, 2008, the consolidated statements of tigesaor the three months and six months ended 3002008 and 2007, the consolidated
statements of cash flows for the six months endeé 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated stateshehanges in common stockholders’
equity for the six months ended June 30, 2008unaatidited, but reflect all adjustments, which aréhe opinion of management, necessa
present fairly the consolidated financial positithe consolidated changes in common stockholderstye the consolidated results of
operations, and the consolidated cash flows fop#reods presented. All adjustments are of a ngrrealirring nature, except as otherwise
disclosed. Because they cover interim periodsuttaudited consolidated financial statements aratagélnotes to the consolidated financial
statements do not include all disclosures and naiasally provided in annual financial statememtd,aherefore, should be read in
conjunction with the Company’s consolidated finahstatements and related notes included in thepaagis annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 20@7reRults of operations for interim periods arenetessarily indicative of the results that
may be expected for the year, due primarily tosis@sonality of the Company’s operations.

Note 2: New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Ameting Standards No. 159, “The

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finahkiabilities — including an amendment of FASB @taent No. 115" (“SFAS 159”). This
standard permits entities to choose to measure firgamycial instruments and certain other itemsaatJalue. The objective is to improve
financial reporting by providing entities with tbeportunity to mitigate volatility in reported eargs caused by measuring related assets and
liabilities differently without having to apply cqrfex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is &ffedor years beginning January 1, 2(
The Company has not elected to exercise the fhieverevocable option. Therefore, the adoptioisBAS 159 did not have an impact on the
Company’s results of operations, financial positiortash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement afi€ial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair Valueasirements” (“SFAS 157").
SFAS 157 establishes a common definition for falue to be applied to U.S. generally accepted attowy principles guidance requiring use
of fair value, establishes a framework for meagyfair value, and expands disclosure about suctvédiile measurements. In February 2008,
the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SFAS 157-2 wiitiows a one-year deferral of adoption of SFA% ftf nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities (such as intangible assgtsperty, plant and equipment and goodwill) dye required to be measured at fair value on
a periodic basis (such as at acquisition or impairtn The Company elected to use this deferrabapind accordingly, only partially adopted
SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008. SFAS 157 will be atbfiir the Company’s nonfinancial assets and ligdslvalued on a non-recurring basis
on January 1, 2009.

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomgsif SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabgitiend nonfinancial assets and
liabilities with recurring measurements. The Compsiassets and liabilities measured at fair value eecurring basis during the period were
cash and cash equivalents, restricted funds ant-shio debt. These assets and liabilities weresoneal at fair value on the balance sheet
date using quoted prices in active markets (leveplits, as defined by SFAS 157). The adoptionFfAS 157 for the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities did not have a materialatfée the Company’s results of operations, findrmisition or cash flows. The Company will
be required to measure the assets of its defineefib@ension and other post retirement welfaraplaursuant to SFAS 157 at the next
measurement date, which will be December 31, 2008.

Note 3: Goodwill

In April of 2008, as a result of the pricing of tBempany’s initial public offering (“IPO”) (See N@tl), management determined that an
interim triggering event occurred and that it wpprapriate to update its valuation analysis befbesnext scheduled annual test.

Based on this assessment, the Company performiadegim impairment test as of March 31, 2008. Tlempany concluded that the
carrying value of its goodwill was impaired as auleof the current market price and trading lewlids common stock. The Company
believes the offering price was indicative of tledue of the Company at March 31, 2008 and accolgibgsed on those factors, the Comg
recorded an impairment charge to goodwill relateist Regulated Businesses of $750,000. The Compasyeflected the tax effect of the
impairment as a discrete item for purposes of dafirlg its tax provision as the charge is considene infrequently occurring or unusual ite
The impairment charge was primarily due to the regpkice of the Company’s common
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stock (both the IPO price and the market pricerdusubsequent trading) being less than what was@ated during the Company’s 2007
annual test. Also contributing to the impairmenswadecline in the fair value of the Company’s deloe to increased market interest rates).

In developing the estimated fair value of the Comyps reporting units, significant judgment was regdirehe Company determined
estimated fair value of the reporting units utiligia methodology consistent with its 2007 annustl #&henever possible, market information
including the initial public offering price of thHéompany’s common stock and subsequent trading praceused to update the Company’s
assumptions. The methodology utilized a combinatiotie trading price of the Company’s common starkestimated control premium,
trading price market multiples of peer companiegtated water utilities) and the Company’s dist¢edrcash flow analysis based on the
Company’s five-year business plan, each of whichditiering weights. The majority of the weightirsgapplied to the traded price as this
represents the market objective evidence of fdirevavith minimal weight applied to the discountexbie flow analysis.

The following table summarizes the changes in tom@any’s goodwill by reporting unit:

Regulated Non-regulated
Unit Units Consolidated
Balance at December 31, 2C $2,327,27! $ 129,68: $2,456,95;
Impairment (750,000 — (750,000
Other activity (277) — (277)
Balance at June 30, 20 $1,576,99: $ 129,68: $1,706,67!

The Company may be required to recognize additionphirments in the future, depending on, amongtotactors, a decline over a
period of time in the valuation multiples of comalale water utilities, a decline over a period ofdiof the Company’s stock price or the lack
of appreciation of the Company'’s stock price teel consistent with peer companies or increaseguity value. A decline in the forecasted
results in the Company’s business plan, such asgelsain rate case results or capital investmengdtiscor changes in the Company’s interest
rates may also result in an incremental impairnsbatge.

As a result of the impairment RWE transferred $2@6,to the Company on May 13, 2008. This cash wasd to reduce debt.

Note 4: Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

On April 28, 2008, RWE Aqua Holdings GmbH completid partial divestiture of its investment in then@pany in an initial public
offering (“IPO”) through the sale of 58,000 shares of common stbahk #PO price of $21.50. The selling stockholdemnged the underwrite
a 30 day option to purchase up to an additiondl@shares of the Company’s stock at a price of3210n May 27, 2008 the Company
announced the underwriters’ partial exercise off theer-allotment option to purchase 5,173 shavester over allotments. The Company
did not receive any proceeds from the sale of shé&heor to the IPO, the Company was an indireatliyrowned subsidiary of RWE. After
the IPO, and exercise of the underwriters’ ovestaient option, RWE owns approximately 60% of thenpany’s common shares.

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Compar®tard of Directors’ authorized 50,000 shares ofyadue $0.01 per share preferred
stock. As of June 30, 2008 there are no sharetodisg.

Stock Based Compensation

On April 22, 2008, a subsidiary of RWE contribu@flishares of the Company’s common stock to the @oamnpnd the Company
granted 90 restricted stock awards, 269 restristeck units and 2,078 stock options. The awarde vesued to the Company’s employees
and certain non-employee directors under its 200iniBus Equity Compensation Plan (the “2007 Plafhe total aggregate number of
shares of common stock that may be issued und@0®ie Plan is 6,000. The restricted stock unitstaedstock options were awarded in two
grants with “Grant 1” vesting on January 1, 20168 &arant 2” vesting January 1, 2011. Shares issunglér the Plan may be authorized but
unissued shares of Company stock or reacquire@slodiCompany stock, including shares purchasdétidbompany on the open market for
purposes of the 2007 Plan.
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The following table presents stock-based compemsa&ikpense for the three and six months ended3r2008 and 2007:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007

Stock Option:s $ 47C $ — $ 47C $ —
Restricted stock unit 21¢ 17C 43€ 34C

Restricted stoc 1,40¢ — 1,40¢ —
Stocl-based compensation in operation and maintenananss 2,09¢ 17C 2,31z 34C
Income tax benef (817) (66) (902) (133
After-tax stocl-based compensation expel $ 1277 $ 104 $1,41C $ 207

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounfitandards No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment” (SE2A3(R)") the cost of
services received from employees in exchange forsfuance of stock options and restricted stockd@sis required to be measured base
the grant date fair value of the awards issued.vEfhge of stock options and restricted stock awatdke date of the grant is amortized
through expense over the requisite service persirtthe straight-line method, adjusted for retieatreligible participants. All awards
granted in 2008 are classified as equity.

In addition to the requisite service period, 1,4%ck options and 190 restricted stock units abgestito performance-based vesting
requirements. The performance conditions are basete achievement of 120% of net income targeBd08 and 2009. These stock option
and restricted stock awards will vest proportiolyatiepending upon the level of achievement witl7@,4tock options and 190 restricted si
units being the maximum.

The Company recognizes expense for the portioheftvards where achievement is considered probablef June 30, 2008, 630
stock option and 82 restricted stock awards areonsidered probable to meet performance conditions

The Company stratified its grant populations anedusistoric employee turnover rates and generaketaata to estimate employee
forfeitures.

Stock Options

Non-qualified stock options to purchase shares®fQompany’s common stock were granted under tB& Pan. The exercise price of
the stock options is equal to the fair market valfithe underlying stock on the date of option gr&tock options granted become exercisable
upon a specified vesting date. The requisite sempériod for options granted is three years. Altktoptions expire seven years from the
effective date of the grant. The remaining vespiegod of the stock options outstanding as of Rhe&008 ranged from 1.5 years to 2.5
years. The fair value of each option is estimatethe date of grant using the Bli-Scholes option-pricing model.

The following table presents the assumptions usé¢ld pricing model for grants and resulting gidate fair value of stock options
granted.

Grant 1 Grant 2
Dividend yield 3.72% 3.72%
Expected volatility 29.00(% 29.0(%
Risk-free interest rat 2.65% 2.9(%
Expected life (years 3.6¢ 4.6¢
Grant date fair valu $ 3.84 $ 4.1¢

The dividend yield is based on the Company’s exqabdividend payments and the IPO stock price. Bxepleeolatility is based on
historic volatilities of traded common stock of peempanies (regulated water companies) over theagd term of the stock options. The
risk-free interest rate is the market yield on Ul&asury strips with maturities similar to the egfed term of the stock options. The expected
term represents the period of time the stock optame expected to be outstanding and is basededsithplified method” as permitted by
Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107 and SABAN110.

The following table presents information with resp® stock option activity as of June 30, 2008.

10
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Nonvested at December 31, 2(
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at June 30, 20
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. Exercise Price
Outstanding

Shares (per share)

2,07¢ $ 21.5C

2,07¢ $ 21.5(

There are zero options awards vested and no ogtiands have been exercised as of June 30, 2008.

As of June 30, 2008, $4,990 of total unrecognizadmensation costs related to the nonvested staahnsps expected to be recognized

over the remaining average weighted-average pefi@dl years.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company granted restricted stock units und=@07 Plan. The requisite service period for i@stt stock units is three years.

The following table presents information with resp® restricted stock unit activity as of June 3008.

Nonvested at December 31, 2(
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at June 30, 20

Grant Date

Outstanding
Fair Value
Shares (per share)

26¢ $ 21.5C

26¢ $ 21.5C

As these restricted stock units would have paidiogash if the IPO was not completed, the Companlassified the restricted stock
units from liability-classified awards to equityaskified awards as of the completion of the IPOofA3une 30, 2008, $2,641 of total
unrecognized compensation costs related to theasbed restricted stock units is expected to begrdzed over the remaining weighted-

average period of 2.2 years.

Restricted Stock

The Company granted restricted stock under the Z0@7. The requisite service period for the redcstock is three months.

The following table presents information with resp restricted stock activity at June 30, 2008.

Nonvested at December 31, 2(C
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Nonvested at June 30, 20

Grant Date

Outstanding
Fair Value
Shares (per share)

90 $ 21.5C

90 $ 21.5C
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As of June 30, 2008, $428 of total unrecognizedpemsation costs related to the nonvested restrattedk units is expected to be
recognized in the third quarter of 2008.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s Nonqualified Employee Stock Purclizlae (“ESPP”) was effective as of July 1, 2008. enithe ESPP, employees can
use payroll deductions to acquire Company stoekdiscount. The Company’s ESPP is considered cosapany under SFAS 123(R). No
compensation costs were recognized for the thre&xanonths ended June 30, 2008.

Note 5: Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The components of comprehensive income (loss)safellaws:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30 June 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Net income (loss $45,49¢  $49,17¢  $(686,98() $51,86:
Pension plan amortized to periodic benefit ¢
Prior service cos 7 9 13 18
Actuarial loss — 18 — 36
Foreign currency translation adjustm (18) (35) (163) (257)
Total comprehensive income (lo: $45,487  $49,17(  $(687,13f)  $51,66(

12
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Note 6: Long-Term Debt

The Company primarily incurs long-term debt to furaghital expenditures at the regulated subsidiafiee components of long-term debt are
as follows;

December 31

Maturity June 30,
Rate Date 2008 2007
Long-term debt of American Water Capital Cor* AWCC")
Private activity bonds and government funded «
Floating rate (a 1.85%-2.00% 201¢-203z $ 86,86( $ 86,86(
Senior note!
Fixed rate 5.39%-6.87% 2011-2037 2,884,000 2,712,00!
Long-term debt of other subsidiari
Private activity bonds and government funded
Fixed rate 0.00%-6.88% 200¢-203¢  941,80(  942,94:
Floating rate (b 1.75%-6.85% 201E-203: 33,42( 178,14!
Mortgage bond
Fixed rate 6.31%-9.71% 200¢-203¢  715,80( 731,34(
Senior deb
Fixed rate 5.60%-9.10% 200¢-202¢ 45,29¢ 45,47
Mandatory redeemable preferred sti 4.60%-9.75% 201:-203€ 24,63" 24,64
Notes payable and other | 5.76%-11.91% 2012-202¢ 3,05z 3,44z
Long-term debr 4,734,861 4,724,84'
Unamortized debt discount, net | 66,26 70,74
Total lon¢-term debt $4,801,12° $4,795,58!

(@) Taxexempt bonds which are remarketed as money maoketstfor periods up to 270 days (1 to 119 daysndu2D08 and 1 to 127 de
during 2007). These bonds may be converted to stiha-term variabl-rate structures, a fix-rate structure or subject to redempti

(b) $24,860 of the total represents tax-exempt bavitich are sold at auction rates that are resiyet/to 35 days. These bonds may be
converted to other short-term variable-rate stmestua fixed-rate structure or subject to redempfide remaining $8,560 represents
tax-exempt bonds remarketed as money market bondgapabove

(¢) Includes capital lease obligations of $1,909 an®&4 at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, rigggc

(d) Includes fair value adjustments from acquisitionghase accountini

The following long-term debt was issued in 2008:

Interest

Company Type Rate Maturity Amount

American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.25% 201¢ $110,00(
American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.55% 202z 90,00(
Other subsidiarie State financing authority loans and ot 1.0(% 202¢ 1,54¢
Total Issuance $201,54¢

13
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The following long-term debt and preferred stockhwnandatory redemption requirements were repuechasretired through optional
redemption or payment at maturity during 2008:

Interest

Company Type Rate Maturity Amount
Long-term debi
American Water Capital Cor Senior note-fixed rate 6.87% 2011 $ 28,00(
Other subsidiarie Senior note-floating rate 6.48%-10.00% 2021-203z 144,72!
Other subsidiarie State financing authority loans and ot 0.00%-9.87% 200&-203<  18,72:
Preferred stock with mandatory redemption

requirement:
Other subsidiarie 4.75%-5.75% 2013-201¢ 6
Total retirements & redemptiol $191,45:

Gains from early extinguishment of debt includedniterest, net amounted to $0 for the three andngirths ended June 30, 2008 and $1,101
and $8,164 for the three and six months ended 3002007, respectively.

Interest, net includes interest income of approxétye$2,961 and $4,619 for the three and six moatitded June 30, 2008, respectively and
$3,271 and $5,093 for the three and six monthsdddee 30, 2007, respectively.

Note 7: Short-Term Debt
The components of short-term debt are as follows:

December 31

June 30,
2008 2007
Commercial paper, net of $165 and $680 disc $205,83! $ 169,26
Book overdrafi 28,32¢ 42,19¢
Other shor-term debt 9,254 9,04¢
Total shor-term debt $243,41¢ $ 220,51

Note 8: Income Taxes

The Company'’s estimated annual effective tax rat€®08 is 39.5% compared to 39.6% for 2007, exolyidarious discrete items. The
Company’s actual effective tax rate for the thremths ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 was 39.9% ab%h 3&spectively. The Company’s
actual effective rate for the six months ended Bhe2008 and 2007 of (3.9%) and 39.6%, respegtiveflects the tax effect of the goodwill
impairment as a discrete item as the Company cerssitiis charge an infrequently occurring or unbisuant.

14



Table of Contents

Note 9: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

The following table provides the components of periodic benefit costs:

Components of net periodic pension benefit «
Service cos
Interest cos
Expected return on plan ass
Amortization of:
Prior service cos
Actuarial loss
Periodic pension benefit cc
Special termination pension benefit cha
Net periodic pension benefit cc

KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 59 of 184

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2008 2007

2008 2007

$ 6551 $ 6,40:
14,54¢ 13,32:
(12,929 (11,769

$13,10:  $ 12,80
29,00¢ 26,64+
(25,850 (23,520

45 32 90 64
1 66 2 132
8,221 8,06( 16,44; 16,12
— — — 93

$ 8,221 $ 8,06(

$ 16,44 $ 16,21

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007

Components of net periodic other postretiremenefitcost
Service cos $ 3,106 $ 3,171 $ 6,211 $ 6,347
Interest cos 7,04¢ 6,34¢ 14,09¢ 12,69:
Expected return on plan ass (5,75)) (5,26¢€) (11,507 (10,537
Amortization of:

Transition obligatior 43 43 86 86

Prior service cred| 203 (29%) 40€ (590

Actuarial loss (295) — (590 —
Net periodic other postretirement benefit ¢ $ 4358 $ 399¢ $ 871 $ 7,99¢

The Company contributed $46,000 to its defined fiepension plan in the first six months of 200&8laxpects to contribute $30,000
during the balance of 2008. In addition, the Conypeontributed $13,676 for the funding of its otipestretirement plans in the first six
months of 2008 and expects to contribute $13,6Tédthe balance of 2008.

Note 10: Contingencies

OMI/Thames Water Stockton, Inc. (“OMI/TW") is a 5 joint venture between a subsidiary of the Corgard Operations Management
International, Inc. (“OMI”). In February 2003, OMNWV and the City of Stockton California (the “City&ntered into a 2@ear service contra
for capital improvements and management servicestdr, wastewater and storm water utilities. Bytumliagreement, OMI/TW and the C
of Stockton terminated the contract effective Faby29, 2008 (the “Termination Date”). Upon terntiam, responsibility for management
and operation of the system was returned to the OMI/TW has agreed to provide a limited twelventtowarranty relating to certain
components of the facilities that OMI/TW construt{éhe “WW239 Plant”), committed to pay for cert@mployee transition costs and
assumed financial responsibility for regulatoryefevied through the Termination Date, if anyuh@sg from OMI/TW'’s failure to comply
with applicable National Pollutant Discharge Elimion System permit requirements and/or incideatsed to design defects in the WW39
Plant. During 2007, the California State Water Reses Control Board issued a notice of violatiod arcorresponding Settlement
Communication related to a discharge into an adfadeer. OMI/TW is responsible for any fines timaay result from the Settlement
Communication. Given the uncertainties relatecesmlving the remaining issues described aboveCtmpany has a loss reserve of
approximately $4,000 at June 30, 2008 and DeceBhe2007.

In 2007, the Company, through a subsidiary andhdimact 50% owned joint venture, completed consimacof a water filtration plant
for total construction costs of approximately $8®,0Generally, as part of the contractual termatirgy to construction contracts, the
Company provides a one-year construction warraatiog. As of June 30, 2008, no claims have beeremeldted to this warranty.
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The Company is also routinely involved in conderiamaproceedings and legal actions incident to thenal conduct of its business. At
June 30, 2008, the Company had accrued approxiyreb00 as probable losses and it is reasonalsisige that additional losses could
range up to $30,000 for these matters. For cemtaitters, the Company is unable to estimate possisées. The Company believes that
damages or settlements, if any, recovered by jiff@iim such claims or actions will not have a niateadverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations, financial position or caskvé.

Note 11: Guarantees

The Company, through a subsidiary, holds a 50%dstén American Water-Pridesa LLC (“AW-Pridesad)Delaware limited liability
company. Acciona Agua Corporation (USA) holds thmaining 50% interest. AW-Pridesa has contracted Wwampa Bay Water (“Tampa
Bay"), an interlocal governmental agency of thet&tf Florida, to remedy and operate the Tampa®=water Desalination Plant. The
Company entered into a guarantee with Tampa B&jowrember 2004 for the full and prompt performanteestain contractual obligations
limited to a total aggregate liability of $35,0@ontractual obligations call for certain constrantactivities and management services to be
completed satisfactorily. AW-Pridesa took over gpien of the plant in January 2005. At December28D7, the plant was fully operational
and successful performance testing of the consbruetctivities had been completed.

The Company provides financial guarantees or deptisensure performance of certain of its oblmagion its non-regulated military
agreements and Operations & Maintenance agreenigrgse guarantees and deposits totaled $475,1484a%278 at June 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, respectively.

At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, no acchaals been made related to these guarantees.

Note 12: Environmental Matters

The Company’s water and wastewater operationsudnject to federal, state, local and foreign requiats relating to environmental
protection and as such the Company periodicallpimes subject to environmental claims in the noroakse of business. Remediation costs
that relate to an existing condition caused by ppstations are accrued when it is probable trestgttosts will be incurred and can be
reasonably estimated. Remediation costs accruedraetbto approximately $11,000 at June 30, 2008>®wEmber 31, 2007. At June 30,
2008, $10,100 of the reserve relates to a consenvagreement entered into by a subsidiary of the@any with the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration requiring the Companyadmong other provisions, implement certain measto@rotect the steelhead trout and
its habitat in the Carmel River watershed in tlaesbf California. The Company pursues recoverpairred costs through all appropriate
means, including regulatory recovery through custorates.

Note 13: Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share, incooss)from discontinued operations, net of tax,qoenmon share and income (loss) from
continuing operations per common share are baséideomeighted average number of common sharesaodiisg. Outstanding shares consist
of issued shares less treasury stock. Dilutednoeie (loss) per common share, income (loss) fri@sodtinued operations, net of tax, per
common share and income (loss) from continuing apm@rs per common share are based on the weighéedge number of common shares
outstanding adjusted for the dilutive effect of ecoom stock equivalents related to the restrictedkstestricted stock units and stock options.
The dilutive effect of restricted stock, restricidck units and stock options is calculated utiegtreasury stock method and expected
proceeds on vesting of the restricted stock anictes] stock units and exercise of the stock oy#id he following table sets forth the
components of basic and diluted earnings per sradteshows the effect of the common stock equivalentthe weighted average number of
shares outstanding used in calculating dilutediegsrper share:
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Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Numeratot
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 45,49¢ $ 49,98 $(686,98() $ 52,41«
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nebag — (807) — (5517)
Net Income (loss $ 45,49¢ $ 49,17¢ $(686,98) $ 51,86:
Denominatol
Average common shares outstanc- basic 159,93. 160,00( 159,96t 160,00(
Effect of dilutive securities
Restricted stoc 33 — — —
Restricted stock uni 11 — — —
Average common shares outstanc- diluted 159,97¢  160,00( 159,96t 160,00(

Options to purchase 608 shares of the Company’sraomstock were excluded from the calculation afitgéidl common shares
outstanding because the calculated proceeds frerextrcise of the options were greater than theageemarket price of the Company’s
common stock during the three month period ended 30, 2008. There were also 190 restricted stoitk and 1,470 stock options which
were excluded from the calculation of diluted comnsbares outstanding because certain performamektioms were not satisfied as of
June 30, 2008. All of the potentially dilutive seties have been excluded for the six months edded 30, 2008 because they are anti-
dilutive. The Company had no potentially dilutiveases for the three and six month periods ending 30, 2007.

Note 14: Segment Information

The Company has two operating segments which aoetlaé Company’s two reportable segments refeored the Regulated Businesses and
Non-regulated Businesses segments.
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The following table includes the Company’s sumnedizegment information:

As of or for the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2008

Non-
Regulated regulated Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 526,24t $ 67,03¢ $ (3,919) $ 589,36¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 63,65¢ 1,861 1,79C 67,307
Impairment charg — — — —
Total operating expenses, | 392,03 62,92¢ (8,257 446,71
Adjusted EBIT (1) 134,21: 4,681
Total asset 10,472,29 250,33° 1,804,05! 12,526,68
Capital expenditure 235,27 2,24¢ — 237,52:
As of or for the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007
Non-
Regulated regulated Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 508,63 $ 55,48( $ (5,38)) $ 558,73
Depreciation and amortizatic 65,63: 2,59¢ (92 68,137
Impairment charg — — — —
Total operating expenses, | 368,28¢ 46,96¢ (8,015 407,24
Adjusted EBIT (1) 140,93t 10,33(
Total asset 9,725,77 310,02¢ 3,035,78 13,071,58
Capital expenditure 136,29! 2,147 — 138,44
As of or for the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2008
Non-
Regulated regulated Other Consolidated
Net operating revenus $ 975,78. $128,21( $ (7,809 $ 1,096,18.
Depreciation and amortizatic 123,94t 3,26¢ 4,00¢ 131,22:
Impairment charg — — 750,00( 750,00(
Total operating expenses, | 770,25: 120,44¢ 733,18: 1,623,88.
Adjusted EBIT (1 206,11: 9,26:
Total asset 10,472,29 250,33° 1,804,05! 12,526,68
Capital expenditure 422,93: 3,02¢ — 425,96(

As of or for the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2007

Non-

Regulated regulated Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 927,91 $108,78: $ (9,419 $ 1,027,27
Depreciation and amortizatic 127,20t 5,247 311 132,76«
Impairment charg — — — —
Total operating expenses, | 719,48( 97,74( (14,757 802,46¢
Adjusted EBIT (1) 210,05: 14,03:
Total asset 9,725,771 310,02¢ 3,035,78 13,071,58
Capital expenditure 301,44: 3,11¢ — 304,55

(1) Management evaluates the performance of itmeats and allocates resources based on sever@istaot which the primary measure is
Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not represenhdémw for periods presented and should not be idened as an alternative to net
income as an indicator of the Compasigperating performance or as an alternative th fla&s as a source of liquidity. Adjusted EE
as defined by the Company may not be comparableAdjusted EBIT as defined by other compan
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The following table reconciles Adjusted EBIT, adided by the Company, to income (loss) from coritiguoperations before income

taxes:

Adjusted EBIT

Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Less:

Interest, ne

Preferred dividends of subsidiari

Amortization of debt expen:

Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes
Interest, ne

Other

Income from continuing operations before incomes&

Adjusted EBIT

Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Less:

Interest, ne

Preferred dividends of subsidiari

Amortization of debt expens

Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes
Interest, ne

Other

Income from continuing operations before incomes&

Adjusted EBIT

Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Less:

Interest, ne

Preferred dividends of subsidiari

Amortization of debt expens

Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes
Impairment charge

Interest, ne

Other

Loss from continuing operations before income t¢

Adjusted EBIT

Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Less:

For the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2008
Non- Total
Regulated regulated Segments

$ 134,21 $ 4,681 $ 138,89:

3,38 — 3,38
1,72¢ — 1,72¢
(55,08Y) 75¢ (54,33Y)
(56) — (56)
(1,44 — (1,44

$ 82,74: $ 543 88,17
(15,73))

3,22

$ 75,66

For the Three Months Ended
June 30, 2007
Non- Total
Regulated regulated Segments

$ 140,93t $10,33( $ 151,26¢

1,511 — 1,511
41¢ — 41¢
(54,81)  (2,57)) (57,38%)
(56) — (56)
(1,366 — (1,366

$ 86,63: $ 7,75¢ 94,39:
(13,387)

1,627

$ 82,63

For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2008
Non- Total
Regulated regulated Segments

$ 206,11: $ 9,26 $ 215,37t

5,92¢ — 5,92¢
3,00: — 3,00:
(111,82) 1,38¢ (110,43
(119) — (119)
(2,759 — (2,759
$100,44.  $10,64¢ 111,09(
(750,000

(29,599

7,581

$(660,92)

For the Six Months Ended
June 30, 2007
Non- Total
Regulated regulated Segments

$ 210,05: $14,03: $ 224,08

3,16¢ — 3,16¢
1,517 — 1,517
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Interest, ne (109,20) (5,6 (114,869
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (11”) (119
Amortization of debt expens (2,587 — (2,587
Segment income from continuing operations before incomes $ 102,83: $ 8,364 111,19¢
Interest, ne (28,107
Other 3,69¢
Income from continuing operations before incomee& $ 86,79:
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Note 15: Felton Water System Asset Sale

In May of 2008, the Compang/'California subsidiary reached an agreement wughSan Lorenzo Valley Water District to sell owtngpsof its
Felton operating assets for total proceeds of £IB,#hcluding $10,500 in cash and the assumptid2¢800 in debt, pending regulatory
approval. The Felton water system serves approrimnat330 customers.

Note 16: Subsequent Events

On July 28, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directtgslared a quarterly cash dividend payment of $pe2Ghare payable on September 2,
2008 to all shareholders of record as of AugusP058.

20



KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 66 of 184

Table of Contents

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters within this Quarterly Report onrRdr0-Q include “forward-looking statements” withhre meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Se2fiéof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraleé. All statements included in this
Form 10-Q, other than statements of historical, fangty constitute forward-looking statements. Fodsaoking statements can be identified
by the use of words such as “may,” “should,” “Willcould,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “ontinue,” “anticipates,” “believes,”
“plans,” “expects,” “future” and “intends” and silar expressions. Forward-looking statements maglirerknown and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may causachel results or performance to differ from thpsgjected in the forward-looking
statements. These statements are not guarantéearef performance and are subject to risks, uaggies and other factors, some of which
are beyond our control and difficult to predict awalild cause actual results to differ materialynirthose expressed or forecasted in the
forward-looking statements. Factors that could eaarscontribute to differences in results and ontes from those in our forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, those iteiiiscussed in the “Risk Factors” section or ottestisns in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4)
prospectus filed April 24, 2008 with the Securiteesl Exchange Commission, as well as in Item |Raf |l of this Quarterly Report. All
forward-looking statements are expressly qualifietheir entirety by such risk factors. We undeetalo obligation, other than as required by
law, to update or revise any forward-looking statats, whether as a result of new information, Riewents or otherwise.

GENERAL

American Water Works Company, Inc. (herein refeteds “American Water” or the “Company”) is thegast investor-owned United
States water and wastewater utility company, asared both by operating revenue and populatioresei®ur primary business involves the
ownership of water and wastewater utilities thavjte water and wastewater services to residectahmercial and industrial customers.
businesses that provide these services are ggnsuhllect to economic regulation by state regujabmencies in the states in which they
operate. We report these results in our RegulatsinBsses segment. We also provide services thabaisubject to regulation by the state
commissions. We report these results in our Nomieggd Businesses segment. For further descripfiaur businesses see the “Business”
section found in our Form 424(b)(4) prospectusifib@ April 24, 2008 with the Securities and Excha@pmmission.

You should read the following discussion in confimt with our Consolidated Financial Statements i@tated Notes included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qiarmlr Prospectus filed with the SEC on April 2808, with the information under the
heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis n&Rcial Condition and Results of Operations” in Barm 424(b)(4) prospectus filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onl/Zgri 2008.

OVERVIEW

Financial Results American Water’'s net income was $45.5 million foe three months ended June 30, 2008 as compa$d® &
million for the three months ended June 30, 206@0ine from continuing operations was $45.5 milfionthe three months ended June 30,
2008, compared to $50.0 million for the three merghded June 30, 2007. Diluted earnings per avexagenon share were $0.28 for the
three months ended June 30, 2008 as compared3b f&0.the three months ended June 30, 2007.

American Water’s net loss, which includes an impaint charge, net of tax of $738.5 million, was $68illion, for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 as compared to net incomeld $illion for the six months ended June 30, 2Q@as from continuing operations was
$687.0 million for the six months ended June 3@&@ompared to income from continuing operatidn®52.4 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2007. Diluted earnings (loss) perage common share were ($4.29) for the six mamded June 30, 2008 as compared to
$0.32 for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

Revenues for the three months ended June 30, B8f8ased by $30.6 million compared to the samegénmi the prior year primarily
due to increased revenues in our Regulated Businegsb17.6 million which is largely attributabterate increases and revenues in our Non-
regulated Businesses which increased by $11.6omitlue to increased Contract Operations Group amdddwner Services Group revenues,
partially offset by decreased revenues in our AgapbliVater Group. Offsetting the increased revenwers %39.5 million higher operating
expenses for the three months ended June 30, ZB88ncrease in operating expenses primarily redufiom increased operating expense
our Regulated Businesses of $23.7 million for tire¢ months ended June 30, 2008 compared to e ithonths ended June 30, 2007. This
increase was
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mainly driven by higher employee related costs®b3$nillion due to $3.3 million of wages relatedab reclassification of certain hourly
employees for services performed, stock based cosapien expense of $2.1 million primarily attribbiato the issuance of awards grante
connection with the IPO, an increase in the nunob@employees and wage rate increases and highsigmeexpense in 2008. In addition, the
Regulated Businesses’ maintenance costs incregsg6l.® million primarily due to higher removal cesincreased tank painting expenses as
well as higher costs of $0.9 million associatechvaitproject in our lllinois subsidiary to maintaialves. Operating expenses in our Non-
regulated Businesses also increased by $16.0 mftiothe three months ended June 30, 2008 comparthdee months ended June 30, 2007
as a result of higher operating and maintenanceresgs of $10.6 million which corresponds with thméreased revenues as well as a gain on
sale of assets of $6.3 million recognized in 2007.

Other items affecting income from continuing opienag for the three months ended June 30, 2008rapa@d to the same period in the
prior year include increased allowance for fundsduduring construction (“AFUDC”) of $3.2 milliontaibutable to the increase in the
construction work in progress primarily in New dgrand Missouri and lower income tax expense d $illion.

Revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2008ased by $68.9 million compared to the same pénidide prior year primarily due
to increased revenues in our Regulated Businesse’® million which is largely attributable totesincreases and revenues in our Non-
regulated Businesses increased by $19.4 milliontalirecreased Contract Operations and HomeowneticgsrGroup revenues, partially
offset by decreased revenues in our Applied Wateuf Offsetting the increased revenues were $821libn higher operating expenses
the six months ended June 30, 2008. These expprisgxily resulted from the impairment charge o680 million which is discussed
below, and increased expenses in our Regulatech&sses of $50.8 million in the six months ended B 2008 compared to six months
ended June 30, 2007. This increase was mainlymhyenhigher employee related costs of $25.1 mildae to $3.3 million of wages relatec
job reclassification of certain hourly employeesdervices performed, stock based compensatiomegpaf $2.3 million primaril
attributable to the issuance of awards grantea@imection with the IPO, an increase in the numbentployees and wage rate increases in
2008 and higher pension expense in 2008. In additie Regulated Businesses’ maintenance cosesised by $10.8 million primarily due
to higher removal costs, increased expenses ofilBi6n associated with a project in lllinois toamtain valves as well as increased tank
painting expenses. Operating expenses in ourrdgualated Businesses also increased by $22.7 mfiiothe six months ended June 30, 2
compared to six months ended June 30, 2007 asih oésigher operating and maintenance expens&i®{7 million which corresponds
with their increased revenues as well as a gaisatmof assets of $6.1 million recognized in tikxensonths ended June 30, 2007.

Other items affecting income from continuing opienas for the six months ended June 30, 2008 as amdpo the same period in the
prior year include lower interest expense of $2ilion, as a result of the repayment of outstandiedt, increased AFUDC of $4.3 million
attributable to the increase in the constructiomkw progress primarily in New Jersey and Missaumil lower income tax expense of $8.3
million.

Regulatory Developments During the three months ended June 30, 2008, egved authorizations for additional annualizederaxes
from general rate cases in California and Arizom@anting to $19.2 million. California’s rates weetroactive to January 1, 2008, while
Arizona'’s rates were effective in the second quart008. In the first six months of 2008 we reeei authorizations for additional
annualized revenues from general rate cases 02 $dillion. As of June 30, 2008, we were awaitinggfiorders for three general cases that
were filed in 2007, requesting $39.6 million inglbadditional annual revenues. In July 2008, thedils rate case filed in 2007 for $32. 8
million was approved and received authorizatiomtwease rates which will provide additional animed revenues of $24.9 million. In the
first six months of 2008, we filed general rateesaim ten additional states that would provide $2Hiillion of additional revenues, if
approved as filed. Of the rate cases filed in 200@, state’s rates were effective in 2008 with mmualized increase of $0.2 million and is
included in the $47.2 million of annualized revemuglined above. The remaining amount of $270.8ionilremains under consideration by
state public utility commissions at this time. Téé no assurance that the filed amount, or aniguothereof, of any requested increases will
be granted.

Financing Activities During the six months ended June 30, 2008, weometapital resource requirements with internaéiperated cas
as well as funds from external sources primaritptigh commercial paper and the issuance of $200li@mof private placement debt. In
addition, as a result of the impairment charge, RWégle a capital contribution in the second quaft@008 of $245.0 million. The cash was
used to reduce short-term borrowings.

Initial Public Offering Our common stock began trading on the New YorkISExachange on April 23, 2008. On April 28, 200& th
Company completed its initial public offering (“IPORWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company’s sellingckholder, sold 58.0 million
shares of the Company’s common stock at a prid2df50 per share. The selling stockholder graritedihderwriters a 30 day option to
purchase up to an additional 8.7 million sharethefCompany’s
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stock at a price of $21.50. On May 27, 2008, thenffany announced the underwriters’ partial exerof¢beir option to purchase 5.2 million
shares to cover over allotments. The Company didetweive any proceeds from the sale of sharest ®rithe IPO, the Company was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE. After the IPO, ahé exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotmeniap RWE owns approximately 60%
of the Company’s common shares.

On April 22, 2008, RWE contributed approximately8¢housand shares of the Company’s common stottlet€ompany and the
Company granted approximately 89.9 thousand réstristock awards, 269.3 thousand restricted stoitk and 2.1 million stock options. T
awards were issued to the Company’s employeesentairt non-employee directors under our 2007 Onmibguity Compensation Plan (the
“2007 Plan”). The total aggregate number of shafe&mmmon stock that may be issued under the 2007i® 6.0 million. The restricted
stock units and the stock options were grantedangrants with “Grant 1” vesting on January 1, 2@h@ “Grant 2” vesting on January 1,
2011.

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Compargtard of Directors’ authorized 50.0 million shaodspar value $0.01 per share
preferred stock. As of June 30, 2008 there arenaces outstanding.

Impairment Charge As previously disclosed in our free writing anddiiprospectuses, filed April 22, 2008 and April 2808,
respectively, the Company determined that it wasarably likely based in large part on an initialblic offering price of our common stock
of $21.50, that the current carrying value of coodwill which the Company recorded as a resulhef2003 acquisition of American Water
by RWE and acquisition of E'Town Corporation in 20@vas impaired. At the time the Company’s inipablic offering price of $21.50 was
established, we were unable to determine if thexge any goodwill impairment or to provide a reliabttimate of the amount of any goodwiill
impairment, if any.

In light of the initial public offering price andading levels in our stock since the date of IP@,psrformed an interim impairment test
and on May 9, 2008, concluded that the currenyaagrvalue of our goodwill was impaired as a resifilthe current market price at that time
and trading levels of our common stock. Based ahdhsessment, we recorded an impairment chaggotiwill related to our Regulated
Businesses of $750.0 million in our financial sta¢ats as of and for the fiscal quarter ended M&dct2008. The impairment charge was
primarily due to the market price of our commorcgtboth the initial public offering price and tpece during subsequent trading) being
than what was anticipated during our 2007 annwsil Adso contributing to the impairment was a deelin the fair value of our debt (due to
increased market interest rates).

In developing our estimated fair value of the Comypa reporting units, significant judgment was reqgaird/e determined the estimal
fair value of the reporting units utilizing a mettmdogy consistent with its 2007 annual test. Whengwssible, market information including
the initial public offering price of the Companyemmon stock and subsequent trading price wastosggdate our modeling assumptions.
Our methodology utilized a combination of the tragprice of the Company’s common stock, an estichatatrol premium, trading price
market multiples of peer companies (regulated watiéties) and the Company’s discounted cash feovalysis based on our five-year
business plan were used, each of which has diffevigights. The majority of the weighting is appltedthe traded price as this represents the
market objective evidence of fair value with minimeeight applied to the discounted cash flow arialys

We may be required to recognize additional impaim®én the future, depending on, among other fac@decline over a period of tir
in valuation multiples of comparable water utiltje decline over a period of time of the Compansyogk price or the lack of appreciation of
the Company'’s stock price to a level consistenhwier companies or increases in equity value.clirdein the forecasted results in our
business plan, such as changes in rate case resulipital investment budgets or changes in derd@st rates, may also result in an
incremental impairment charge.

As a result of the impairment and in accordancé egfrtain regulatory commitments, RWE transferr2di350 million to us on May 13,
2008. RWE is not obligated to make any additiomglital contributions.
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Other MattersIn May 2008, our California subsidiary reached greament with the San Lorenzo Valley Water Distiicsell ownership of
our Felton operating assets for consideration 8f4illion. The district's payment will consist $10.5 million in cash and the acquirer’s
assumption of $2.9 million in debt, pending regogtapproval. The Felton water system serves ajpmetely 1,330 customers.

On July 28, 2008, our Board of Directors declaregiarterly cash dividend payment of $0.20 per shay@ble on September 2, 2008 to all

shareholders of record as of August 15, 2008.

Results of Operations

Three Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared To Three Months Ended June 30, 2007

(Dollars in thousands)
Operating revenue
Operating expenst
Operation and maintenan
Depreciation and amortizatic
General taxe
Gain on sale of asse
Impairment charg
Total operating expenses, |
Operating income (los
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne
Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Amortization of debt expen:
Preferred dividends of subsidiari
Other, ne’
Total other income (deduction

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:
Provision for income taxe

Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, natg

Net income (loss

24

For the three months ended

Favorable

June 30, (Unfavorable)

2008 2007 Change
$ 589,36 $ 558,73: $ 30,63¢
330,57 299,38! (31,190
67,30% 68,137 83C
49,62¢ 45,94( (3,689
(800) (6,219 (5,419
446,71. 407,24 (39,46%)
142,65 151,49( (8,832)
(70,066 (70,769 697
3,381 1,511 1,87¢
1,72¢ 41¢ 1,30¢
(1,447 (1,179 (262)

(56) (56) —
(547) 1,21¢ (1,759
(66,99/) (68,85 1,86:
75,66¢ 82,63 (6,969
30,16¢ 32,64¢ 2,48
45,49¢ 49,98t (4,487
= (807) 807
$ 4549¢ $ 49,17¢ $ (3,680
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The following table summarizes certain financidbimmation for our Regulated and Non-regulated Besses for the periods indicated
(without giving effect to inter-segment eliminat@n

For the three months ended June 30,

2008 2007
Non- Non-
Regulated regulated Regulated regulated
Businesse: Businesse Businesse: Businesse
(In thousands)
Operating revenue $526,24¢ $67,03¢ $508,63: $55,48(
Adjusted EBIT? $134,21: $ 4,681 $140,93¢ $10,33(

@ Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before inteaesl income taxes from continuing operations. M@nzent evaluates the
performance of its segments and allocates resobesed on several factors, of which the primarysueais Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted
EBIT does not represent cash flow for the periaés@nted and should not be considered as an ditert@net income as an indicator
of the Company’s operating performance or as @mradtive to cash flows as a source of liquidityjusted EBIT as defined by the
Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBl@eftned by other companies.

Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of watel wastewater utilities that provide water aradtewater
services to residential, commercial and industiistomers. As such, our results of operationsigrafisantly impacted by rates authorized
the state regulatory commissions in the stateshiclwwe operate. The table below details the amregkevenues resulting from rate
authorizations, including infrastructure chargekiolr were granted and became effective in the skqoarter of 2008.

Annualized Rate
Increases Grante(

(In millions)
State
General rate case:
California $ 13.C
Arizona 6.2
Infrastructure Charges:
Pennsylvani: 4.€
Indiana 3.6
Missouri 2.7
Total $ 30.4

Operating revenues increased by $30.6 million,.8%bfor the three months ended June 30, 2008 cadparthe three months ended
June 30, 2007. Regulated Businesses’ revenuessendy $17.6 million, or 3.5% for the three morghded June 30, 2008 compared to the
same period in the prior year. The Non-regulatesifiessestevenues for the three months ended June 30, P@é&aised by $11.6 million,
20.8% compared to the three months ended June)8d, 2

The increase in revenues from the Regulated Busiisder the three months ended June 30, 2008 cedhpathe three months ended
June 30, 2007 was primarily due to rate increab&simed through general rate cases in Pennsylvisligsouri and Indiana (which were
granted and became effective in 2007) as well lasratates totaling approximately $25.0 million @$ll.4 million retroactive rate
adjustment in California. These increases wereebfig a $12.6 million decrease in revenues relatedduced customer consumption, ma
in our Midwestern and Mid-Atlantic state subsidéarfor the three months ended June 30, 2008 cothfmthe same period in the prior year.
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The following table sets forth the percentage oflRated Businesses’ revenues and water sales vdiyroestomer class:

For the three months ended June 30,

Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume

Customer Class 2008 2007 2008 2007
Water service

Residentia 57.5% 58.(% 53.1% 52.8%

Commercial 19.5% 19.1% 22.(% 21.8%

Industrial 5.C% 4.7% 10.7% 10.7%

Public and othe 12.(% 12.2% 14.2% 14.7%

Other water revenue 2.3% 2.3% — —
Total water revenue 96.2% 96.2% 100.(% 100.(%
Wastewater servic 3.7% 3.7%

100.C%  100.(%

The following discussion related to water servicelcates the increase or decrease in the ReguBatethesses’evenues and associa
water sales volumes in gallons by customer class.

Water Services—Water service operating revenues from residentistomers for the three months ended June 30, t28@i8d $302.6
million, a $7.9 million increase, or 2.7%, over g@me period of 2007, mainly due to rate increaffest by a decrease in sales volume. The
volume of water sold to residential customers desed by 2.1% for the three months ended June 88, 061.6 billion gallons, from 52.7
billion gallons for the same period in 2007, lagga$ a result of wetter weather conditions in ©@atifa and our Midwestern states.

Water service operating revenues from commercigémaustomers for the three months ended June0®®, idcreased by $5.3 million,
or 5.4%, to $102.7 million mainly due to rate ireses offset by decreases in sales volume compatkd same period in 2007. The volume
of water sold to commercial customers decreased 4 for the three months ended June 30, 2008l.tbllion gallons, from 21.7 billion
gallons for the three months ended June 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industriat@mers totaled $26.5 million for the three morghded June 30, 2008, an increase
of $2.7 million, or 11.3%, over those recordedtfe same period of 2007 mainly due to rate incieaffset by decreased sales volume. The
volume of water sold to industrial customers talel®.4 billion gallons for the three months endexdel30, 2008, a decrease of 2.8% from the
10.7 billion gallons for the three months endedeJ8®, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from public ahérotustomers increased $0.9 million, or 1.5%tHerthree months ended June 30,
2008 to $62.9 million from $62.0 million for therde months ended June 30, 2007 mainly due tometeases. Revenues from municipal
governments for fire protection services and cust@mequiring special private fire service faalitotaled $26.2 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2008, an increase of $1.6 milli@n the same period of 2007. Revenues generatealdy ® governmental entities and re
customers for the three months ended June 30, 20@18d $36.7 million, a decrease of $0.6 millioonfi the three months ended June 30,

2007.

Wastewater services —Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services istates. Revenues from these services increased. ®yrtlion,
or 4.2%, to $19.7 million for the three months eihdane 30, 2008, from $18.9 million for the samequkof 2007. The increase was
attributable to increases in rates charged to ousste principally in Arizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey

Non-regulated Businesses’ operating revenues iaetehy $11.6 million, or 20.8% for the three morghded June 30, 2008 compared
to the same period in 2007. The net increase wamply attributable to higher revenues of $12.1liom in our Contract Operations Group
and $1.9 million in our Homeowner Services Grougtiplly offset by decreased revenues of $2.5 arilin our Applied Water Group. The
increase in Contract Operations Group revenuegowasrily due to incremental revenues associateéld design and build contracts, as well
as increased military project revenues. The ineréasn our Homeowner Service Group representedresipa into new geographic markets.
Applied Water Group revenues were lower due tadingine in design and build activity resulting fréhe downturn in new home
construction.

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $3lichpor 10.4%, for the three months ended Jube 3
2008 compared to the same period in the prior year.

26



KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 72 of 184

Table of Contents

Operation and maintenance expenses for the threghsrended June 30, 2008 and 2007, by major expatsgory, were as follows:

For the three months ended

June 30,
2008 2007*
(In thousands)
Production cost $ 7258. $ 69,79
Employet-related cost 131,42: 119,23
Operating supplies and servic 66,74 63,91«
Maintenance materials and servii 37,22 26,31¢
Customer billing and accountit 11,94 9,13¢
Other 10,66 10,98¢
Total $ 330,57 $ 299,38!

* Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified witherating expenses to conform to the 2008 present

Production costs, including fuel and power, pureldasater, chemicals and waste disposal increas&@ Bymillion, or 4.0%, for the
three months ended June 30, 2008 compared toithe gariod in 2007. The increase was primarily dwilt of increased costs in our
Regulated Businesses of $2.5 million. Fuel and pawests were higher by $0.7 million which can kelaited to increases in electricity
prices. Chemical costs also increased by $1.7anifirimarily due to rising chemical costs and wakisposal costs were also higher by $0.5
million. These increases were partially offset twér purchased water costs of $0.4 million attable to the decrease in customer usage.

Employee-related costs including wage and salagypinsurance, and pension expense increased 8illich or 10.2%, for the three
months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the saioe pethe prior year. These employee related aegteesented 39.8% of operation and
maintenance expenses for both the three monthsiehotee 30, 2008 and 2007. The employee relatedraostaise of $9.5 million and $1.3
million in our Regulated and Non-regulated Busiesssespectively, was primarily the result of $3iion of wages related to job
reclassification of certain hourly employees favgees performed, stock based compensation expEris® 1 million mainly attributable to
awards granted in connection with the IPO, as agkn increase in the number of employees and mégécreases. In addition, our
Regulated Businessgzension expense increased $3.0 million or 34.4%hethree months ended June 30, 2008 comparée &atme peric
in the prior year. Pension expense in excess dditi@unt contributed to the pension plans is deddosecertain of our regulated subsidiaries
pending future recovery in rates as contributiciesraade to the plans. Although our pension expenaecordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, “Employétstounting for Pensions” (“SFAS 87”) remained rilaly unchanged, pension expense
increased for the three months ended June 30, @0®8o increased contributions in certain of ogutated operating companies whose costs
are recovered based on the Company’s funding pualligh is the minimum amount required by the EmpljRetirement Income Security
Act of 1974 (“"ERISA”), rather than the SFAS 87 erpe. The increase in the contributions is attribletéo lower than expected returns on
plan assets.

Operating supplies and services include the dajatoexpenses of office operation, legal and othefiegsional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipmentakctiarges. For the three months ended June 38, #@#se costs increased by $2.8 mil
or 4.4%, compared to the same period in 2007. Factntributing to this increase include an ovdratease in general office and travel ¢
of $1.8 million mainly due to inflation, and highferel and other transportation costs of $2.4 milliBartially offsetting these increases was a
decrease in remediation costs, mainly consultieg,fan connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act o23$6illion or 68.1%, to $2.9 million for
the three months ended June 30, 2008 comparedlta$ion for the three months ended June 30, 20@duded in the three months ended
June 30, 2008 are divestiture and IPO related emstainting to $3.1 million compared to divestittetated costs of $2.3 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2007. Corresponding witintrease in revenues, the Non-regulated Businespesating supplies and service
expenses increased by $5.5 million for the threattroended June 30, 2008 compared to the samelpeitioe prior year. The increase is
mainly attributable to additional expense in thentCact Operations Group associated with severalabipg contracts (including a design,
build and operate project in Fillmore, Californip@rtially offset by lower contracted services sastthe Applied Water Management Group
due to the downturn in new home construction awditgrof $1.5 million as a result of the finalizati and acceptance by the third party of a
construction project.

Maintenance materials and services, which includergency repairs as well as costs for preventivieterzance, increased $10.9
million or by 41.4%, for the three months endedel8@, 2008 compared to the same period in the peiar. Regulated Businesses’
maintenance materials and service costs increas$@.B million for the three months ended June2B08 compared to the same period ir
prior year due to costs of $0.8 million associatétth a project in lllinois to maintain valves, higihcost of removal expenses amounting to
$3.9 million in certain of our operating
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companies and increased tank painting costs of @illi®n in our New Jersey and Missouri operatimgnpanies. Our Non-regulated
Businesses’ maintenance expense increased by $ilichrfor the three months ended June 30, 2008pamed to the same period in the prior
year primarily due to higher frequency service lmetection contract usage by Homeowner ServicesiiGcustomers as well as increa
costs in the Contract Operations Group mainlylaitéble to costs associated with new military ofi@na and maintenance projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increbgekP.8 million, or 30.7%, for the three months ethdune 30, 2008 compared to
same period in the prior year. The increase wasaht of higher uncollectible accounts expensauinRegulated Businesses of $1.4 million
and in our Non-Regulated Businesses of $1.4 million

Other operation and maintenance expenses incluglmlta and liability insurance premiums and regulatosts. These costs decreased
by $0.3 million, or 3.0%, in 2008 primarily duedecreased insurance costs of $0.9 million for lineet months ended June 30, 2008 due to
more favorable claims experience compared to tteetimonths ended June 30, 2007, partially offséntrneased regulatory expenses of $0.6
million.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expense decreas&f@million, or 1.2%, for the three months ended
June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in theywar. This decrease was primarily due to deptien rate adjustments resulting from
rate orders, particularly in our Pennsylvania siibsy offset by increased expense due to additiotilily plant placed in service.

General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes fqrepty, payroll, gross receipts, and other miscelbars items, increased
by $3.7 million, or 8.0%, in the three months endade 30, 2008 compared to the three months enoted3D, 2007. This increase is
primarily due to increased gross receipts taxeg2d million in New Jersey and increased propexyexpense in Missouri of $0.7 million.

Gain on sale of assets Gain on sale of assets was $0.8 million for thedgtmonths ended June 30, 2008 as compared to afger
million for the three months ended June 30, 200¢ tdunon-recurring sales of assets no longer usedri utility operations.

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other incqdezluctions), decreased by $0.7 million, or 1.@86the
three months ended June 30, 2008 compared tothe gariod in the prior year. The decline is prifyadue to the repayment of outstanding
debt with the 2007 equity contributions from RWRttlwvere made to meet the capital structure expentabf various state regulatory
commissions. Also, AFUDC increased by $3.2 millfonthe three months ended June 30, 2008 comparixt tsame period in 2007 as a
result of increased construction work in progréthier items contributing to the change include loméscellaneous income for the three
months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the thrathmended June 30, 2007 primarily as a resultdefcaease in jobbing work of $1.0
million and an increase in the amortization of detpgense of $0.3 million for the three months endlate 30, 2008 compared to same period
in 2007 as a result of the debt restructuring.

Provision for income taxes Our consolidated provision for income taxes de@d&2.5 million or 7.6%, to $30.2 million for tHerée
months ended June 30, 2008. The effective taxwate39.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2ad@ared to 39.5% for the three
months ended June 30, 2007.

Net income (loss). Net income decreased $3.7 million, to $45.5 millionthe three months ended June 30, 2008 from2$#dlion for
the three months ended June 30, 2007. The dedeetheeresult of the aforementioned changes.
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Sx Months Ended June 30, 2008 Compared To Six Months Ended June 30, 2007

For the six months ended Favorable
June 30, (Unfavorable)
(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2007 Change
Operating revenue $1,096,18.  $1,027,27 $ 68,90:
Operating expenst
Operation and maintenan 641,83 581,99¢ (59,839
Depreciation and amortizatic 131,22: 132,76« 1,541
General taxe 101,69 93,81¢ (7,875
Gain on sale of asse (870 (6,119 (5,249
Impairment charg 750,00( — (750,000
Total operating expenses, | 1,623,88 802,46¢ (821,41}
Operating income (los (527,700 224,80¢ (752,509
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne (140,039 (142,97() 2,93¢
Allowance for other funds used during construc 5,92¢ 3,16¢ 2,75¢
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 3,09z 1,512 1,581
Amortization of debt expens (2,759 (2,397 (362)
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (119 (119 —
Other, ne 663 2,78 (2,120
Total other income (deduction (133,229 (138,016 4,79¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: (660,927 86,79: (747,719
Provision for income taxe 26,06¢ 34,37¢ 8,314
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (686,98¢) 52,41« (739,400
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nebg — (5517) 551
Net income (loss $(686,98) $ 51,86¢ $ (738,849

The following table summarizes certain financidbimation for our Regulated and Non-regulated Besses for the periods indicated
(without giving effect to inter-segment eliminat&n

For the six months ended June 30,

2008 2007
Non- Non-
Regulated regulated Regulated regulated
Businesse: Businesse: Businesse: Businesse:
(In thousands)
Operating revenue $975,78. $128,21( $927,91( $108,78:
Adjusted EBIT* $206,11: $ 9,26 $210,05: $ 14,03:

@ Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before intea@sl income taxes from continuing operations. M@naent evaluates the performance of its segmedtaliotates resources
based on several factors, of which the primary mesais Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not reprgscash flow for the periods presented and shoeide considered as an
alternative to net income as an indicator of thenPany’s operating performance or as an alternativcash flows as a source of liquidity. AdjustedERBs defined by the Company
may not be comparable with Adjusted EBIT as defihgdther companies.
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Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of watel wastewater utilities that services to redidén
commercial and industrial customers. As such, esults of operations are significantly impacteddgs authorized by the state regulatory
commissions in the states in which we operate.t@hle below details the annualized revenues reguftom rate authorizations, including
infrastructure charges, which were granted andrhecetfective in 2008.

Annualized Rate
Increases Grante(

(In millions)
State
General rate case:
California $ 13.C
New York 6.6
lowa 4.3
Arizona 8.€
West Virginia 14.t
Other 0.2
Infrastructure Charges:
Pennsylvani: 4.€
Indiana 3.9
Missouri 2.7
Illinois 1.1
Total $ 59.t

Operating revenues increased by $68.9 million,. 8¥®for the six months ended June 30, 2008 comgartte six months ended
June 30, 2007. Regulated Businesses’ revenuesasettdy $47.9 million, or 5.2% for the six monthded June 30, 2008 compared to the
same period in the prior year. The Non-regulatesifiesses’ revenues for the six months ended Jurz088 increased by $19.4 million, or
17.9% compared to the six months ended June 30, 200

The increase in the Regulated Businesses’ revdnuéise six months ended June 30, 2008 comparéteteix months ended June 30,
2007 was primarily due to rate increases obtaihezligh general rate cases in New Jersey, Penngg/\Missouri and Indiana (which were
granted and became effective in 2007) as well lasratates totaling approximately $58.1 million @n$ll.4 million retroactive rate
adjustment in California made in June 2008. Thiseéase was offset by a $20.4 million decreaseviemees related to customer consumption,
mainly in our states in the Western region of thétéH States, for the six months ended June 3@ 26thpared to the same period in the

prior year.
The following table sets forth the percentage oflRated Businesses’ revenues and water sales vdiyroestomer class:

For the six months ended June 30,

Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume

Customer Class 2008 2007 2008 2007
Water service

Residentia 57.2% 57.1% 52.6% 52.2%

Commercial 19.(% 19.(% 21.% 21.8%

Industrial 5.2% 5.0% 11.(% 10.8%

Public and othe 12.2% 12.59% 14.5% 15.1%

Other water revenue 2.1% 1.8% — —
Total water revenue 96.1% 96.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Wastewater servic 3.€% 4.0%

100.C% 100.(%

The following discussion related to water servicelcates the increase or decrease in the ReguBatsihesses’ revenues and water
associated sales volumes in gallons by customss.cla

Water Services—Water service operating revenues from residentiatomers for the six months ended June 30, 208 tb$559.9
million, a $24.5 million increase, or 4.6%, ovee tame period of 2007, mainly due to rate increafsst by a decrease in sales volume. The
volume of water sold to residential customers desed by 2.2% for the six months ended June 30, 2098.9 billion gallons, from 99.1
billion gallons for the same period in 2007, lagga$ a result of wetter weather conditions in ©@atifa and the Midwestern region in the

United States.
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Water service operating revenues from commerci&maistomers for the six months ended June 3@ R@beased by $9.5 million, or
5.4%, to $185.5 million mainly due to rate increasffset by decreases in sales volume compardateame period in 2007. The volume of
water sold to commercial customers decreased B¢ fod the six months ended June 30, 2008, to 4llli@rbgallons, from 41.3 billion
gallons for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industriat@mers totaled $50.3 million for the six monthdesh June 30, 2008, an increase of
$4.2 million, or 9.1%, over those recorded for shene period of 2007 mainly due to rate increasisetofy decreased sales volume. The
volume of water sold to industrial customers tada26.3 billion gallons in the six months ended J8B8g2008, a decrease of 1.0% from the
20.5 billion gallons for the six months ended J3Ag2007.

Water service operating revenues from public ahérotustomers increased $4.7 million, or 4.1%tHersix months ended June 30,
2008 to $120.7 million from $116.0 million for tls&x months ended June 30, 2007 mainly due to nateases. Revenues from municipal
governments for fire protection services and custsmequiring special private fire service fa@igitotaled $51.9 million for the six months
ended June 30, 2008, an increase of $2.7 milli@r the same period of 2007. Revenues generatealéy t® governmental entities and re
customers for the six months ended June 30, 2G8R:b$68.9 million, an increase of $2.1 millionrfr the six months ended June 30, 2007.

Wastewater services —Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services igtates. Revenues from these services increased.dyrlion,
or 2.4%, to $38.4 million for the six months endecie 30, 2008, from $37.5 million for the samequknf 2007. The increase was
attributable to increases in rates charged to ouste principally in Arizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey

Non-regulated Businesses’ operating revenues isetehy $19.4 million, or 17.9% for the six monthsied June 30, 2008 compared to
the same period in 2007. The net increase was phynadtributable to higher revenues of $20.9 moifliin our Contract Operations Group and
$3.9 million in our Homeowner Services Group, @iioffset by decreased revenues of $5.5 millioour Applied Water Group. The
increase in Contract Operations Group revenuegpwasrily attributable to incremental revenues agged with design and build contracts,
as well as increased military construction and afi@ns & maintenance project revenues. The incrisage our Homeowner Service Group
represented expansion into new geographic markpfdied Water Group revenues were lower due tadéhadine in design and build activity
resulting from the downturn in new home construtctio

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $38dhnor 10.3%, for the six months ended June 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior year.

Operation and maintenance expenses for the sixhmmamtded June 30, 2008 and 2007, by major expatsgory, were as follows:

For the six months ended

June 30,
2008 2007*
(In thousands)
Production cost $136,81( $130,93¢
Employetrelated cost 258,25! 228,35¢
Operating supplies and servic 136,24: 127,66¢
Maintenance materials and servi 72,16¢ 57,17
Customer billing and accountit 19,35: 17,40:
Other 19,01( 20,46:
Total $641,83° $581,99¢

* Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified wiperating expenses to conform to the 2008 present

Production costs, including fuel and power, pureldasater, chemicals and waste disposal increas&®.Bymillion, or 4.5%, for the si
months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the sanoe pe2007. The increase was primarily the restilhcreased costs in our Regulated
Businesses of $5.2 million. Fuel and power costeviégher by $2.3 million which can be attributedricreases in electricity prices.
Chemical costs also increased by $2.3 million prilpaue to rising chemical costs and waste dispossts were also higher by $1.1 million.
Offsetting these increases was lower purchased wasts of $0.5 million.
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Employee-related costs including wage and salapyminsurance, and pension expense increased B28ch or 13.1%, for the six
months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the sanoe pethe prior year. These employee related awgiresented 40.2% and 39.2% of
operation and maintenance expenses for the sixime@mded June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectivelyinthease was due to higher wage and
salary expenses of $13.9 million and $3.4 milliorour Regulated and Non-regulated Businesses, atbgplg, primarily resulting from $3.3
million of wages related to job reclassificationcgfitain hourly employees for services performéstlsbased compensation expense of $2.3
million mainly attributable to the issuance of adsgranted in connection with the IPO and an irewéa the number of employees and wage
rate increases. In addition, our Regulated Busegg®nsion expense increased by $6.3 million at®4or the six months ended June 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior y&amsion expense in excess of the amount contdliatdhne pension plans is deferred by
certain of our regulated subsidiaries pending futecovery in rates as contributions are madeg@kiins. Although our pension expense in
accordance with SFAS 87 remained relatively unchdngension expense increased for the six montiesdefune 30, 2008 due to increased
contributions in certain of our regulated operatiognpanies, which costs are recovered based dddimpany’s funding policy which is the
minimum amount required by ERISA, rather than tRAS 87 expense. The increase in the contributismstiibutable to lower than expec
returns on plan assets.

Operating supplies and services include the dajatoexpenses of office operation, legal and othefiegsional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipmentakctarges. For the six months ended June 30, 2088 costs increased by $8.6 million
or 6.7%, compared to the same period in 2007. Factntributing to this increase include an ovaratease in general office costs and tr
costs of $4.1 million mainly due to inflation, higthcosts of $0.9 million in our lllinois operatiegmpany due to legal proceedings associated
with the lllinois valve and hydrant project, angeér fuel and other transportation costs of $2iani Partially offsetting these increases
was a decrease in remediation costs, mainly congutes in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley @ 8.0 million or 47.3%, to $8.9
million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 carag to $16.9 million for the six months ended J8®e2007. Included in the six months
ended June 30, 2008 are divestiture and IPO retatetd amounting to $5.7 million compared to divest related costs of $4.9 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2007. Correspondihghe increase in revenues, the Non-regulatednBsses operating supplies and service
expenses increased by $7.9 million for the six ms®einded June 30, 2008 compared to the same etioel prior year. The increase is
mainly attributable to additional expense in thentCact Operations group associated with severaiatipg contracts (including a design, bi
and operate project in Fillmore, California), palfti offset by lower contracted services costdim Applied Water Management Group due to
the downturn in new home construction and profit$l5 million as a result of the finalization aacceptance by a third party of a
construction project.

Maintenance materials and services, which includergency repairs as well as costs for preventiviaterance, increased $15.0
million or by 26.2%, for the six months ended JB0e2008 compared to the same period in the pgar.yThe Regulated Businesses’
maintenance materials and service costs increas8@®8 million in the first half of 2008 mainly duo costs of $2.8 million associated with
a project in lllinois to maintain valves, higherstof removal expenses of $5.4 million in certdior operating companies and increased
tank painting costs of $1.5 million in our New Jgr&nd Missouri operating companies. These incseasee offset by lower main break cc
in 2008 due to winter weather conditions in thetfiralf of 2007 primarily in our companies in thédMtest region of the United States. The
Nor-Regulated Businesses’ maintenance expenses irdrbgist1.9 million as a result of higher frequesewvice line protection contract
usage by Homeowner Services Group customers agwaltreased cost associated with the Contraatafdpes Group mainly attributable to
costs associated with new military operations aathtenance projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increbgekll.9 million or 11.2%, for the six months endetie 30, 2008 compared to the
same period in the prior year. The increase wasethdt of higher expense in our Non-Regulated Besses of $2.2 million mainly due to
increased uncollectible expense on a number ofactstin our Applied Group as well as a credit atfient recorded to the uncollectible
expense account in 2007 partially offset by lowscallectible accounts expense of $0.2 million im mgulated subsidiaries as a result of an
increased focus on collection of past due accounts.

Other operation and maintenance expenses incluglmlita and liability insurance premiums and reguatosts. These costs decreased
by $1.5 million or 7.1%, in 2008 primarily due teateased insurance costs of $1.7 million for tkersinths ended June 30, 2008 due to t
favorable claims experience compared to the sixthsoended June 30, 2007, partially offset by ineedaregulatory expenses of $0.2 million.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expense decreaséd ymillion, or 1.2%, for the six months ended
June 30, 2008 compared to the same period in theywar. This decrease was primarily due to deptien rate adjustments resulting from
rate orders, particularly in our Pennsylvania stibsy partially offset by increased expense duadditional utility plant placed in service.
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General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes fqrepty, payroll, gross receipts, and other miscelbars items, increased
by $7.9 million, or 8.4%, in the six months endede 30, 2008 compared to the first six months @72 his increase is primarily due to
increased gross receipts taxes of $3.9 millionéwNersey and higher property taxes expense in @ldit.6 million and Missouri of $0.7
million.

Gain on sale of assets Gain on sale of assets was $0.9 million for thensdnths ended June 30, 2008 compared to a gaif. binillion
for the six months ended June 30, 2007 due to aourring sales of assets no longer used in outyutiberations.

I mpairment charge The impairment charge was $750.0 million for therabnths ended June 30, 2008. The 2008 impairntemge
was primarily due to the market price of the Conmyaeommon stock (both the initial public offeripgice and the price during subsequent
trading) being less than what was anticipated duour 2007 annual test. Also contributing to th@anment was a decline in the fair value
the Company’s debt (due to increased interest)rafbgre was no impairment charge for the six meetided June 30, 2007.

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other incqdezluctions), decreased by $2.9 million, or 2. b¥idlie
six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the garital in the prior year. The decline is primadiye to the repayment of outstanding
debt with the 2007 equity contributions from RWEiethwere made to meet the capital structure exfientof various state regulatory
commissions. Also, AFUDC increased by $4.3 millfonthe six months ended June 30, 2008 compar#teteame period in 2007 as a result
of increased construction work in progress. Ottens contributing to the change include lower nliaceous income for the six months
ended June 30, 2008 compared to the six monthsleha® 30, 2007 primarily as a result of a decregmgabbing work of $1.4 million and ¢
increase in the amortization of debt expense of #tllion for the six months ended June 30, 2008gared to the same period in 2007as a
result of the debt restructuring.

Provision for income taxes Our consolidated provision for income taxes de@@#8.3 million or 24.1%, to $26.1 million for thix
months ended June 30, 2008 from $34.4 million liergix months ended June 30, 2007. The Companydextan effective tax rate for the
first quarter 2008 of (0.6%) which reflects the &dfect of the goodwill impairment as a discretsritas we consider this charge an
infrequently occurring or unusual event.

Net income (loss) Net income decreased $738.9 million, to a netdd687.0 million for the six months ended JuneZM8 from net
income of $51.9 million for the six months ended&l30, 2007. The decrease is the result of thewrfentioned changes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive and requiresiderable capital resources. A portion of thesetehpésources are provided by
internally generated cash flows from operationsewhecessary we obtain funds from external soumcthe capital markets and through
bank borrowings. Our access to external financimgeasonable terms depends on our credit ratindjs@ment business conditions, including
that of the water utility industry in general aslivas conditions in the debt or equity capital nedsk If these business and market conditions
deteriorate to the extent that we no longer hacessto the capital markets at reasonable termbBawe access to revolving credit facilities
with aggregate bank commitments of $810.0 millieattwe currently utilize to support our commergiaper programs and to issue letters of
credit. See the “Credit Facilities and Short-TerebD section below for further discussion.

In addition, our regulated utility subsidiariese&a@ advances and contributions from customers ghouiiders and real estate develo
to fund construction necessary to extend servicetw areas. Advances for construction are refurdillimited periods, which vary
according to state regulations, as new customeyis @ receive service or other contractual oblat are fulfilled. Amounts which are no
longer refundable are reclassified to contributionaid of construction. Utility plant funded by\athces and contributions is excluded from
rate base. Generally, we depreciate contributepggrtg and amortize contributions at the composite of the related property. Some of our
subsidiaries do not depreciate contributed propedged on regulatory guidelines.

We use capital resources, including cash, to famital requirements, including construction expamés, pay off maturing debt, pay
dividends, fund pension and postretirement welfdni@gations and invest in new and existing busieesg/e spend a significant amount of
cash on construction projects that have a long-tetorn on investment. Additionally, we operateate-regulated environments in which the
amount of new investment recovery may be limited, where such recovery takes place over an extepeléol of time, as our recovery is
subject to regulatory lag. As a result of thesédia; our working capital, defined as current asbets current liabilities, was in a net deficit
position at June 30, 2008.
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We expect to fund future maturities of long-ternbtirough a combination of external debt and dksf from operations. We have no
plans to reduce debt significantly.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities primarily réfoom the sale of water and wastewater servicesdue to the seasonality of
operations are weighted toward the third quarteraath fiscal year. Our future cash flows from opeggactivities will be affected by changes
in the rate regulatory environments; infrastructureestment; inflation; compliance with environmanhealth and safety standards;
production costs; customer growth; declining pestomer usage of water; and weather and seasor@éish flows from operating activities
for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $14ili®n compared to $136.2 million for the six mbetended June 30, 2007.

The following table provides a summary of the majems affecting our cash flows from operating\dtiéis for the six months ended
June 30, 2008 and 2007:

For the six months ended

June 30,
2008 2007
( In thousands)

Net income (loss $(686,98() $ 51,86:
Add (subtract)

Non-cash operating activities ( 923,99 175,32¢
Changes in working capital ( (36,057 (59,309
Pension and postretirement healthcare contribu (59,676 (31,707
Net cash flows provided by operatic $ 141,27! $136,18:

(1) Includes depreciation and amortization, impa&inincharges, removal costs net of salvage, provisiodeferred income taxes,
amortization of deferred investment tax creditgyvsion for losses on utility accounts receivalaléggwance for other funds used during
construction, gain on sale of assets, and othe-cash items, net, less pension and postretirematthicare contributions

(2) Changes in working capital include changesctmants receivable and unbilled utility revenuagetareceivable (including federal
income), other current assets, accounts payabiles teccrued (including federal income), interestaed and other current liabilitie

Cash Flows from I nvesting Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities for the signths ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $42Wiémand $279.4 million,
respectively. Construction expenditures increadetd $ million to $426.0 million for the six monteaded June 30, 2008 from $304.6 mill
for the six months ended June 30, 2007 as a rekinitreased investment in regulated utility plprdjects. We anticipate spending
approximately $950 million on capital investmen®d08.

Our construction program consists of both infragtice renewal programs, where we replace infragtracas needed, and construction
of facilities to meet new customer growth. Also,iategral aspect of our strategy is to seek gramtbugh tuck-ins and other acquisitions
which are complementary to our existing businesssapport the continued geographical diversificatiad growth of our operations.
Generally, acquisitions will be funded initially thishort-term debt and later refinanced with thecpeds from long-term debt or equity
offerings.

Included in the 2008 planned construction expeneitis approximately $26 million to construct a neater treatment plant on the
Kentucky River. On April 25, 2008, the Kentucky RalService Commission approved Kentucky Americaat&y's application for a
certificate of convenience and necessity to consa20.0 million gallon per day treatment plantio@ Kentucky River and a 30.6 mile
pipeline to meet Central Kentucky's water supplfiaie The Kentucky project is expected to be coetptl by 2010 with an estimated cost of
between $162 million and $168 million.

On December 21, 2007, New Jersey-American Watersuhsidiary, signed an agreement with the Cityrehton, New Jersey to
purchase the assets of the city’s water systentddda Ewing, Hamilton, Hopewell and Lawrence tohips for $100.0 million. The
agreement was approved by the Trenton City Colmtitequires approval by various regulatory agenéreluding the New Jersey Board of
Public Utilities. We can provide no assurances thatagreement will be approved.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities include the issuance afgderm and short-term debt, primarily through whiolly-owned financing subsidiary,
American Water Capital Corp. (“AWCC?"). In additiowe have received capital contributions from RWH anrtend to issue equity in the
future to maintain an appropriate capital strugtatdbject to any restrictions in our registratights agreement with RWE. In order to finance
new infrastructure, we received customer advanaedsantributions for construction (net of refundé$2.2 million and $15.7 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, resplyctineconnection with the RWE divestiture, we hamade and will continue to make
significant changes to our capital structure thfodgbt refinancing and equity offerings.

The following long-term debt was issued in thetfgix months of 2008:

Interest

Company Type Rate Maturity (In ¢I’r1r(])?11re]1tnds‘
American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.25% 201¢ $ 110,00(
American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.55% 202 $ 90,00(
Other subsidiarie: State financing authority loans and ot 1.0(% 202¢ 1,54¢
Total issuance $ 201,54t

The following long-term debt and preferred stockhwhandatory redemption requirements were repuechasretired through optional
redemption or payment at maturity during the fiigtmonths of 2008:

Amount

Company Type Interest Rate Maturity (In Thousands
Long-term deht:

American Water Capital Cor Senior note-fixed rate 6.87% 2011 $  28,00(
Other subsidiarie: Senior note-floating rate 6.48%-10.00% 2021-203Z 144,72!
Other subsidiarie State financing authority loans and ot 0.00%-9.87% 200¢-203¢ 18,72
Preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirements:

Other subsidiarie 4.75%5.75% 2017-201¢ 6
Total retirements & redemptiol $ 191/45:

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company comgblateoffer to exchange $750,000 principal amouritsad.085% Senior Notes due
2017 and $750,000 principal amount of its 6.593%i@eNotes due in 2037 which are both registeredeuthe Securities Act of 1933 (the
“Exchange Notes”) for all $750,000 of its currentiytstanding 6.085% Senior Notes due in 2017 dri&i7al0,000 of its currently outstanding
6.593% Senior Notes due in 2037, which have nat begistered under the Securities Act of 1933 {(@ginal Notes”). The Company did
not receive any proceeds from the exchange ofterdid the Company’s debt level change as a restite exchange offer. The terms of the
Exchange Notes and the Original Notes are subathnitientical in all material respects.

From time to time and as market conditions warnastmay engage in long-term debt retirements vidde offers, open market
repurchases or other viable alternatives to sthemgour balance sheet.
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Dividends There were no dividend payments made for the simthzoended June 30, 2008 or 2007. Our board oftdirehas adopted a
dividend policy, effective upon the consummatiortaf IPO, to distribute to our stockholders a porif our net cash provided by operating
activities as regular quarterly dividends, rattarnt retaining that cash for other purposes. Oucyalill be to distribute 50% to 70% of our
annual net income, adjusted for certain non-cashst

On July 28, 2008, our Board of Directors declaregiarterly cash dividend payment of $0.20 per shay@ble on September 2, 2008 to
all shareholders of record as of August 15, 2008.

Contributions from RWE As a result of the impairment charges recordedHhersix months ended June 30, 2008, RWE transf&248.0
million on May 13, 2008. This cash was used to cedshort-term debt. Contributions from RWE were %@&5nillion for the six months
ended June 30, 2007.

Credit Facilitiesand Short Term Debt
The components of short-term debt were as follows:

June 30,2008
(In Thousands;

Commercial paper, n $ 205,83!
Book overdrafi 28,32¢
Other shor-term debt 9,254
Total shor-term debt $ 243,41¢

Our access to external financing on reasonablestdepends on our credit ratings and current busio@sditions, including that of the
water utility industry in general as well as coratis in the debt or equity capital markets. If thbsisiness and market conditions deteriorate
to the extent that we no longer have access toapital markets at reasonable terms, we have atewessgolving credit facilities with
aggregate bank commitments of $810.0 million thatowrrently utilize to support our commercial papergrams and to issue letters of
credit.

AWCC has entered into a one-year $10.0 million cattech revolving line of credit with PNC Bank, N.Ahis line of credit will
terminate on December 31, 2008 unless extendedarstd primarily for short-term working capitales. Interest rates on advances under
this line of credit are based on either the priate of PNC Bank, N.A. or the applicable LIBOR fbetterm selected plus 25 basis points. As
of June 30, 2008, $9.3 million was outstanding wrtldis revolving line of credit.

On September 15, 2006, AWCC entered into an $8®@lidn unsecured revolving credit facility syndted among a group of ten
banks. This revolving credit facility, which ternaites on September 15, 2012 unless extended, spaily used to support the $700 million
commercial paper program at AWCC and to providéoup150.0 million in letters of credit. AWCC had loans outstanding under the net
$800.0 million unsecured revolving credit facildg of June 30, 2008.

At June 30, 2008, AWCC had the following sub-linatsd available capacity under the revolving créaditlity and indicated amounts of
outstanding commercial paper.

Letter of Credit Available Outstanding
Sublimit Capacity Commercial Papel

(In thousands) (In thousands, (In thousands)

$ 150,00( $ 106,06( $ 205,83!

Interest rates on advances under the revolvingtdiaadlity are based on either prime or LIBOR phs applicable margin based upon
our credit ratings, as well as total outstandingrants under the agreement at the time of the bangnirhe maximum LIBOR margin is 55
basis points.

The revolving credit facility requires us to mainta ratio of consolidated debt to consolidatedtedipation of not more than 0.70 to
1.00. As of June 30, 2008, our ratio was 0.55 aedefore we were in compliance with the ratio.

The average interest rate on commercial papeh#ositx months ended June 30, 2008 was approximai2dg.
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Debt Covenants

Our debt agreements contain financial and non-firitovenants. To the extent that we are not mpl@nce, we or our subsidiaries
may be restricted in our ability to pay dividengsue debt or access our revolving credit linesv#ee in compliance with our reporting
covenants as of June 30, 2008.

Security Ratings

Our access to the capital markets, including threraercial paper market, and their respective finagnciosts in those markets depent
the securities ratings of the entity that is acioesthe capital markets. We primarily access thgtahmarkets, including the commercial pa
market, through AWCC. However, we do issue deluatregulated subsidiaries, primarily in the forfriax exempt securities, to lower our
overall cost of debt. The following table shows @@mpany’s securities ratings as of June 30, 2008:

Moody’s Investors Standard & Poor’s
Securities Service Ratings Service
Senior unsecured de Baa: BBB+
Commercial pape Pz A2

On June 19, 2008, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Ses\(i8&P) downgraded to “BBB+"(stable outlook) fro-* (negative outlook) the
senior unsecured issuer rating of AWCC. In addjt®&P assigned a “BBB+" corporate credit ratinghtmerican Water and affirmed
AWCC's “A-2" short-term rating.

Moody'’s rating outlook for both American Water affd/CC is stable.

A security rating is not a recommendation to b&yi, & hold securities and may be subject to revisir withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency, and each rating shoukvbkiated independently of any other rating.

None of our borrowings are subject to default @paryment as a result of a downgrading of secualtb®ugh such a downgrading
could increase fees and interest charges undaredit facilities.

As part of the normal course of business, we relitienter into contracts for the purchase and ciaeater, energy, fuels and other
services. These contracts either contain expressspons or otherwise permit us and our countem@aitb demand adequate assurance of
future performance when there are reasonable gsofondioing so. In accordance with the contractbaplicable contract law, if we are
downgraded by a credit rating agency, especialiyiéh downgrade is to a level below investmenterads possible that a counterparty
would attempt to rely on such a downgrade as alfasimaking a demand for adequate assurancewgfperformance. Depending on our
net position with a counterparty, the demand ctaldor the posting of collateral. In the absencexqiressly agreed provisions that specify
the collateral that must be provided, the obligatm supply the collateral requested will be a fiorcof the facts and circumstances of the
Company’s situation at the time of the demand.dfaan reasonably claim that we are willing andrfaially able to perform our obligations,
it may be possible to successfully argue that dlatewal should be posted or that only an amoungaétp two or three months of future
payments should be sufficient.

Current Credit Market Position

The liquidity crisis that began in 2007 as a restithe collapse of the subprime mortgage markstautversely impacted global credit
markets and, if it continues, could increase ot ob capital or impair our ability to access tlapital markets.

At this time, the Company does not believe recestket developments significantly impact its abitibyobtain financing and expects to
have access to liquidity in the capital marketdamorable terms. In addition, the Company has actesnsecured revolving credit facilities,
which are not as dependent upon general markeitaoms] with aggregate bank commitments of $810iom] of which a portion is currently
committed primarily to backstop the Company’s corruiz paper program and letters of credit.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk associated with dmimgcommodity prices, equity prices and interatgs. We use a combination of fixed-
rate and variable-rate debt to reduce interestegtesure. As of June 30, 2008 a hypothetical I¥&ase in interest rates associated with
variable rate debt would result in a $1.2 millieectease in our pre-tax earnings. Our risks assatiaith price increase for chemicals,
electricity and other commodities are reduced tghocontracts and the ability to recover price iases through rates. Non-performance by
these commodity suppliers could have a materiahthpn our results of operations, cash flows ananftial position.
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Our common stock began trading on the New York ISExchange on April 23, 2008. The market price wf common stock may
experience fluctuations, many of which are unrelateour operating performance. In particular, stock price may be affected by general
market movements as well as developments spedtyfiedhted to the water and wastewater industresehcould include, among other thin
interest rate movements, quarterly variations anges in financial estimates by securities anabstsgovernmental or regulatory actions.
This volatility may make it difficult for us to aess the capital markets in the future through atdit offerings of our common stock,
regardless of our financial performance, and sufficaty may preclude us from being able to taklvantage of certain business
opportunities or meet business obligations.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estmates

Our financial condition, results of operations aagh flows are impacted by the methods, assumptiot®stimates used in the
application of critical accounting policies. Seerlgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdion and Results of Operations—
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates,” in dtorm 424(b)(4) prospectus filed on April 24, 200igh the Securities and Exchange
Commission for a discussion of the critical accoppolicies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Part |, Item Einancial Satements (Unaudited)- Note 2- New Accounting Pronouncements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for a discussion of new accounting standards rgcadbpted or pending adoption.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to market risks in the normal coofdmusiness, including changes in interest rateseguity prices. For further
discussion of market risks see “Market Risk” intRaltem 2 — Management'’s Discussion and Analg$iBinancial Condition and Results of
Operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaess that are designed to ensure that informatiquired to be disclosed in the
reports filed or submitted under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Actfecorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in tten@nission’s rules and forms and that such inforamais accumulated and communicated to
the Companys management including its principal executive timahcial officers, as appropriate to allow timekycisions regarding requir:
disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this repbe, Company’s management evaluated the effecthgeniethe design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Radel5(b) of the Exchange Act. This evaluation dase under the supervision and with
the participation of management, including our Rierst and Chief Executive Officer and our Chiefdtinial Officer.

Based on this evaluation and because of the matezi@knesses described below, the Company’s Chiefiive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that the Companlsslosure controls and procedures were not éffeets of June 30, 2008.
Notwithstanding these material weaknesses, manageroacluded that the financial statements includetiis Form 1-Q for the three and
six-months ended June 30, 2008 fairly presentlimaterial respects their financial position, réswif operations and cash flows for the
periods presented in conformity with accountingnpiples generally accepted in the United StateSnoérica.

Material Weaknessesin Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a control deficiency or mkimation of control deficiencies that results iormthan a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim otidated financial statements will not be prevertedetected.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting. Our internal control
over financial reporting is a process designedtwigde reasonable assurance regarding the retiabfiifinancial reporting and the preparat
of financial statements in accordance with gengrdtepted accounting principles. However, from2@0April 28, 2008, we were an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE and, asriagtely owned company, were not required to maingasystem of internal control
consistent with the requirements of the SEC andtirdanes-Oxley Act, or to prepare our own findrstetements. As a public reporting
company, we are required, among other things, fotaia a system of effective internal
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control over financial reporting suitable to prepaur publicly reported financial statements imzety and accurate manner, and also to
evaluate and report on such system of internakobrih particular, we are required to certify amompliance with Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the year ended Decembe2@®19, which will require us to perform system andcess evaluation and testing of our
internal control over financial reporting to allamanagement and our independent registered puldauating firm to report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahcegporting.

In connection with the preparation of our consdkdigfinancial statements as of December 31, 20@G&ivd our independent registered
public accountants identified the following matévieeaknesses in our internal control over finanglorting:

» Inadequate internal staffing and skil

* Inadequate controls over financial reporting prees:

* Inadequate controls over mo-end closing processes, including account recoticitig;

» Inadequate controls over maintenance of contraxtsagreement:

* Inadequate controls over segregation of dutiesresimiction of access to key accounting applicaj@mnd
* Inadequate controls over tax accounting and acgr

Remediation of Material Weaknesses

Since joining the Company in 2006, Donald L. Cdrmlir Chief Executive Officer, and Ellen C. Wadir Chief Financial Officer, ha\
assigned a high priority to the evaluation and miiateon of our internal controls, and have takematous steps to remediate these material
weaknesses and to evaluate and strengthen ouriotéeral controls over financial reporting. Sonfete actions taken include:

» Increasing our internal financial staff numbers ahill levels, and using external resources to &rmppnt our internal staff when
necessary

* Implementing detailed processes and procedureedeia our period end financial closing proceskeg,accounting applications
and our financial reporting process

» Implementing or enhancing systems used in the €iadneporting processes and mc-end close processe

« Conducting extensive training on existing and nesdyeloped processes and procedures as well asrgrglto employees
Sarbane-Oxley Act requirements and the value of internaltoals;

* Enhancing our internal audit sta
» Hiring a director of internal control and a directd taxes;
» Implementing a tracking mechanism and new poliay procedure for approval of all contracts and agesgs; anc

» Retaining a nationally recognized accounting arditang firm to assist management in developing@es and procedures
surrounding internal controls over financial repagt to evaluate and test these internal contnadsta assist in the remediation of
internal control deficiencie:

With respect to the material weaknesses describedeawe have initiated a process to clearly dat@eur control weaknesses and
formulated a remediation plan. We believe that weehsubstantially completed remediating most ofdkatified material weaknesses;
however, as our testing procedures have not yet bempleted, we can make no assurances as todbessuof our remediation efforts. As of
June 30, 2008, the Company had incurred $57.8amitlh remediate these material weaknesses andtorgmt and test key financial
reporting controls. We will need to allocate aduitil resources to enhance the quality of our atadfto carry out the remediation of these
material weaknesses. Based upon our current assessme expect to complete the remediation of testerial weaknesses during 2008
with an estimated additional cost of approxima&y8 million. The Company cannot indicate with aémy that the material weaknesses will
be remediated or what additional costs may be feduiThe Company needs to finalize its remediatiborts of the controls and complete the
testing of the effectiveness of controls prior tmcluding controls are effective. As a conditiorstate Public Utility Commissions’ approval
of the RWE divestiture, we agreed that costs irelim connection with our initial internal contasid remediation initiatives would not be
recoverable in rates charged to our customers. éi&srof our remediation activities can only be agglished over time, and our initiatives
provide no assurances that they will result in f@céve internal control environment. Our boarddafectors, in coordination with our audit
committee, will continually assess the progressaiiticiency of these initiatives and make adjusitegas necessary.
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The Company believes the additional control proceslas designed, when implemented, will fully reiatedthe above material
weaknesses.

Changesin Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as described above, there were no changa®inal control over financial reporting for thieee or six-months ended June 30,
2008, that have materially affected, or are readsigriikely to materially affect, the Company’s imbal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Previously reported under “Business — Legal Proicgst in the Company’s Form 424(b)(4) prospectiedfiApril 24, 2008.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth imstreport, you should carefully consider the festdiscussed in the “Risk Factoiig’the
Company'’s Form 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 2808, and our Form 1Q-for the quarterly period ended March 31, 200&dfibn May1<
2008, which could materially affect our businegsaficial condition or future results.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

In April 2008, in connection with the IPO, RWE Agdi®ldings GmbH, the Company’s sole stockholdehet time, approved the adoption of
the Company'’s Restated Certificate of Incorporabigrwritten consent.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Exhibit Description

10.1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated May 15, 2008, byatwdeen AWCC and the Purchasers named therepufohase o
$110,000,000 6.25% Series G Senior Notes due 204 $@0,000,000 6.55% Series H Senior Notes due @@8rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to American Water Worlst@any, Inc.’s current report on Form 8-K, File 901-34028, filed May 15,
2008)

*31.1  Certification of Donald L. Correll, President andi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302tef Sarban«Oxley Act

*31.2  Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sect3®2 of the Sarban-Oxley Act
*32.1  Certification of Donald L. Correll, President andi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906taf Sarban«Oxley Act

*32.2  Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sec#@®6 of the Sarban-Oxley Act
* filed herewith.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

American Water Works Company, Ir
(Registrant’

August 12, 2008 /s/ Donald L. Correll

(Date) Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

August 12, 2008 /s/ Ellen C. Wolf

(Date) Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description
10.1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated May 15, 2008, byatvdeen AWCC and the Purchasers named therepufehase o
$110,000,000 6.25% Series G Senior Notes due 204 $@0,000,000 6.55% Series H Senior Notes due @0@8rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to American Water Worlstany, Inc.’s current report on Form 8-K, File 061-34028, filed May
15, 2008)

*31.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President anti€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302h&f Sarban«-Oxley Act

*31.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sectd®2 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act

*32.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President anti€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 90@he Sarban«-Oxley Act

*32.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presideand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sec@®@é of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act

* filed herewith.
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as amended,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@mésss Act of 2002)

[, Donald L. Correll, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ0f American Water Works Company, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistéements, and other financial information inled in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this rej

4. The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsiliedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the teai$'s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt'interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 12, 200
By: /s/ Donald L. Correll
Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER AND CH IEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER

(Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as amended,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@mésss Act of 2002)

[, Ellen C. Wolf, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ0f American Water Works Company, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistéements, and other financial information inled in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this rej

4. The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsiliedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the teai$'s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt'interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 12, 200
By: /s/ Ellen C. Wolf
Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Ameridatater Works Company, Inc. (the “Company”) on FArtQ for the period ended June
2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Dahial Correll , President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifyguant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted putrso&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Donald L. Correll
Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

August 12, 200
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AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Ameridatater Works Company, Inc. (the “Company”) on FArtQ for the period ended June
2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, El@nWolf, Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer, of the Company, herebytifgipursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptgduant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Ellen C. Wolf
Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

August 12, 200
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008
OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file: number 001-34028

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

Delaware 51-006369¢€
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
1025 Laurel Oak Road, Voorhees, N 08043
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM1. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
September 30, December 31,
2008 2007
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipme
Utility plant—at original cost, net of accumulatddpreciation of $2,932,051 at September 30 and
$2,776,950 at December $ 9,742,67. $ 9,199,90!
Nonutility property, net of accumulated depreciataf $81,561 at September 30 and $67,538 at
December 3: 128,92( 118,05:
Total property, plant and equipme 9,871,59 9,317,96.
Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel 6,68¢ 13,48:
Restricted fund 90z 3,25¢
Utility customer accounts receival 172,42: 147,64(
Allowance for uncollectible accoun (19,669 (20,927
Unbilled utility revenue: 150,91: 134,32t
Non-Regulated trade and other receivables 75,22 66,54(
Federal income taxes receiva 32,53( 23,11
Materials and supplie 32,94¢ 27,45¢
Other 45,26¢ 35,46
Total current asse 497,22: 430,35
Regulatory and other lo-term asset
Regulatory asse 628,05( 628,03¢
Restricted fund 8,471 10,25:
Goodwill 1,704,31i 2,456,95:
Other 71,08¢ 90,51«
Total regulatory and other lo-term asset 2,411,91 3,185,75
TOTAL ASSETS $12,780,73  $12,934,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
September 30, December 31,
2008 2007
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization
Common stockholde’ equity $ 4,162,35 $ 4,542,041
Preferred stock without mandatory redemption resqoents 4,55 4,56¢
Long-term debt
Long-term deb 4,669,50: 4,674,83
Redeemable preferred stock at redemption v 24,21 24,29t
Total capitalizatior 8,860,63. 9,245,74
Current liabilities
Shor-term debr 327,18! 220,51
Current portion of lon-term debt 95,83¢ 96,45t
Accounts payabl 160,51¢ 168,88t
Taxes accrued, including income taxes of $6,81%eptember 30 and $8,086 at Decembe 65,92¢ 56,00:
Interest accrue 91,27: 50,86
Other 196,75. 181,76!
Total current liabilities 937,49( 774,48
Regulatory and other lo-term liabilities
Advances for constructic 629,05¢ 655,37!
Deferred income taxe 720,56¢ 638,91¢
Deferred investment tax cred 34,14¢ 35,36!
Regulatory liability-cost of remova 197,91( 192,65(
Accrued pension expen 253,24 290,72:
Accrued postretirement benefit expel 151,89¢ 158,55
Other 117,48: 123,87:
Total regulatory and other lo-term liabilities 2,104,31. 2,095,44!
Contributions in aid of constructic 878,29t 818,38
Commitments and contingenci — —
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES $12,780,73 $12,934,07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies

Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)
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Operating revenue
Operating expense
Operation and maintenan
Depreciation and amortizatic
General taxe
(Gain) loss on sale of assi
Impairment charg
Total operating expenses, |
Operating income (lost
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne
Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Amortization of debt expen:
Preferred dividends of subsidiari
Other, ne
Total other income (deduction
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:
Provision for income taxe
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, natg
Net income (loss
Basic earnings per common shéte
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nebg
Net income (loss
Diluted earnings per common shé¥e
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag
Net income (loss

Average common shares outstanding during the pe
Basic

Diluted

(1) Amounts may not sum due to roundil

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007

$672,190 $633,11° $1,768,37 $1,660,39:

342,22t 328,30! 984,06 910,30«
68,37¢ 69,69 199,59 202,46
49,38( 47,09 151,07 140,91(

457 (70€) (419) (6,82))
— 243,341 750,00 243,34!

460,43¢ 687,73
211,75 (54,61

2,084,32:  1,490,20
(315,94f) 170,19

(72,68) (68,739 (212,719 (211,709
4,44; 2,02¢ 10,37( 5,197
2,97( 84¢€ 6,06: 2,35¢

(1,601) (1,227 (4,360) (3,624
(55) (55) (16¢) (16¢)

881 1,367 1,544 4,14¢
(66,04) (65,789 _ (199,27() _ (203,80)
145700 (120,400 (515,216 (33,60%)
57,54¢ 39,71 83,61 74,09
88,15¢  (160,11) (598,82  (107,70)
— — — (551)

$ 88,15¢ $(160,11) $ (598,82 $ (108,25)

$ 058 $ (100 $ (379 $  (0.67)
$ — $ — $ — $ 0.0C
$ 058 $ (100 $ (379 $  (0.69
$ 058 $ (100 $ (379 $  (0.67)
$ — $ — $ — $ 0.0C
$ 058 $ (100 $ (374 $  (0.69
159,94¢ 160,00 159,96( 160,00
160,000 160,00 159,96( 160,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
(In thousands, except per share data)

KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 99 of 184

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss
Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment charg
Amortization of removal costs net of salve
Provision for deferred income tax
Amortization of deferred investment tax crec
Provision for losses on utility accounts receive
Allowance for other funds used during construc
Gain on sale of asse
Other, ne
Changes in assets and liabilit
Receivables and unbilled utility revent
Other current asse
Accounts payabl
Taxes accrued, including income ta:
Interest accrue
Other current liabilitie
Net cash provided by operating activit
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction expenditure
Acquisitions
Proceeds from sale of assets and secu
Proceeds from sale of discontinued operat
Removal costs from property, plant and equipmetireraents, ne
Net restricted funds releas
Net cash used in investing activit|
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term deb
Repayment of lor-term debi
Net borrowings (repayments) under s-term debt agreemer

Nine Months Ended

Advances and contributions for construction, netedfinds of $48,111 and $28,401 at September 3

2008 and 200

Change in cash overdraft positi

Capital contribution:

Debt issuance cos

Redemption of preferred sto

Dividends paic

Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe
Non-cash investing activity:

Capital expenditures acquired on account but ungiagphiarte-end

Non-cash financing activity:
Advances and contributiol
Capital contributior

September 30,

2008 2007
$(598,82) $ (108,259
199,59¢ 202,46
750,00( 243,34}
31,791 22,57¢
76,74 (1,649
(1,213 (1,267
13,35( 11,07:
(10,370 (5,197
(413 (6,82))
(46,199 (35,299
(64,657 (85,97))
(24,739 (18,416)
6,36 (16,520)
12,54¢ 79,51(
40,40¢ 22,93(
8,527 27,40:
392,91 329,91
(714,559 (507,23)
(8,02)) (944)
12,15¢ 15,58¢
— 9,66(
(17,290 (5,026)
4,137 5,00¢
(723,579 (482,95()
201,82¢ 2,367,56:
(199,65%) (492,19))
124,57 (573,74Y
3,20¢ 25,64¢
(17,907 —
245,00( 701,09:
(1,037 (3,519
(152) (1,750,31()
(31,99 —
323,86¢ 274,54.
(6,792) 121,50
13,48! 29,75¢
$ 6,68¢ $ 151,25¢
$ 79,99 $ 72,09¢
$ 40,90¢ $ 60,331
$ — $ 100,00(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Common Stockluers’ Equity
(Unaudited)

(In thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated Common

Common Stock, $.01 Par Value: )
500,000 Shargs Authorized Paid-in (Accumulated Comgrtgﬁénsive Treasury Stock Stockholders
Shares Par Value Capital Deficit) Income (Loss)  Shares At Cost Equity
Balance at December 31, 20C 160,000 $ 1,600 $5,637,94 $(1,079,11) $ (18,38) — $ —  $4,542,04
Net loss — — — (598,829 — — — (598,829
Equity investment by RW — — 245,00( — — — — 245,00(
Contribution of common stock by
RWE — — 1,93: — — (90) (1,939 —
Stocl-based compensation activ — — 2,47¢ — — 74 1,58¢ 4,06z
Pension plan amortized to periodic
benefit cost
Prior service cos — — — — 20 — — 20
Foreign currency translatic — — — — 2,04¢ — — 2,04¢
Dividends on common stoc — — — (31,997 — — — (31,997
Balance at September 30, 2008 160,000 $ 1,60 $5,887,35 $(1,709,93) $ (16,319 (16) $ (347 $4,162,35

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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American Water Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary @mpanies
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated balance sheet of ikarekVater Works Company, Inc. and Subsidiary Corigsa(the “Company”) at
September 30, 2008, the consolidated statemerfsavhtions for the three months and nine montheeSgptember 30, 2008 and 2007, the
consolidated statements of cash flows for the mnaths ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, andtiselzlated statement of changes in
common stockholders’ equity for the nine monthseeh8eptember 30, 2008, are unaudited, but refleatimstments, which are, in the
opinion of management, necessary to present fdieyconsolidated financial position, the consokdathanges in common stockholders’
equity, the consolidated results of operations,thrcconsolidated cash flows for the periods prieserAll adjustments are of a normal,
recurring nature, except as otherwise disclosedadse they cover interim periods, the unauditedalimated financial statements and rele
notes to the consolidated financial statementsadanclude all disclosures and notes normally palediin annual financial statements and,
therefore, should be read in conjunction with tllenpany’s consolidated financial statements andeélaotes included in the Company’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the g@aded December 31, 2007. The results of opesaf@ interim periods are not
necessarily indicative of the results that may Xyeeeted for the year, due primarily to the seastynaf the Company’s operations.

Note 2: New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the Financial Accounting Standd@dard (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Aacting Standards No. 159, “The

Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Finahkiabilities — including an amendment of FASB Staent No. 115" (“SFAS 159”). This
standard permits entities to choose to measure fivgarycial instruments and certain other itemsatJalue. The objective is to improve
financial reporting by providing entities with tbeportunity to mitigate volatility in reported eawmgs caused by measuring related assets and
liabilities differently without having to apply cqsfex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is &ffedor years beginning January 1, 2(
The Company has not elected to exercise the fhieverevocable option. Therefore, the adoptioiSBAS 159 did not have an impact on the
Company’s results of operations, financial positortash flows.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement afnigial Accounting Standards No. 157, “Fair ValueaSl@ements” (“SFAS 157").
SFAS 157 establishes a common definition for falue to be applied to U.S. generally accepted attowy principles guidance requiring use
of fair value, establishes a framework for measyfair value, and expands disclosure about suctvédile measurements. In February 2008,
the FASB issued FASB Staff Position SFAS 157-2 Wwlilows a one-year deferral of adoption of SFA$ s nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities (such as intangible assgtsperty, plant and equipment and goodwill) dye required to be measured at fair value on
a periodic basis (such as at acquisition or impairtn The Company elected to use this deferrabapind accordingly, only partially adopted
SFAS 157 on January 1, 2008. SFAS 157 will be atbfiir the Company’s nonfinancial assets and ligslvalued on a non-recurring basis
on January 1, 2009.

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomgsif SFAS 157 for financial assets and liabgitiend nonfinancial assets and
liabilities with recurring measurements. The Compsuassets and liabilities measured at fair valu@ eecurring basis during the period were
cash and cash equivalents, restricted funds art-&him debt. These assets and liabilities weresoreal at fair value on the balance sheet
date using quoted prices in active markets (levieplits, as defined by SFAS 157). The adoptionFAS 157 for the Company’s financial
assets and liabilities did not have a materialatfée the Company’s results of operations, findrmisition or cash flows. The Company will
be required to measure the assets of its definedfiv@ension and other post retirement welfareplaursuant to SFAS 157 at the next
measurement date, which will be December 31, 2068.Company is evaluating the effect, if any, thatadoption of SFAS 157 for the
Company'’s nonfinancial assets and liabilities Widlve on its results of operations, financial positnd cash flows.

On October 10, 2008, the FASB issued Staff Poskion157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Fineh@dsset When a Market for
That Asset Is Not Active” (FSP 157-3"), which cfas the application of SFAS 157 in an inactive kefiand provides an example to
demonstrate how the fair value of a financial assdetermined when the market for that financssled is inactive. FSP 157-3 was effective
upon issuance, including prior periods for whiakaficial statements had not been issued. The adagitibis standard as of September 30,
2008 did not have an impact on the Company’s resilbperations, financial position or cash flows.

8
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Note 3: Goodwill

At September 30, 2008, the Company’s goodwill &de$1,704,310. The Company’s annual goodwill impaint test is conducted at
November 30 of each calendar year and interim vev&re performed when the Company determines thiaigeering event that would mo
likely than not reduce the fair value of a repagtimit below its carrying value has occurred.

The market price of the Company’s common stockept&@nber 30, 2008 was below its consolidated azgryalue. Subsequent to
September 30, 2008, the Company’s market priceekjpsrienced a high degree of volatility. As a resuanagement considered whether the
Company’s market capitalization being below thesmbidated carrying value of its reporting unitsnegented an interim triggering event.

Having considered both qualitative and quantitatactors, management concluded that no interingénitng event has occurred. As
such, an interim impairment test was not perfornasdnanagement believes there were no significhrgrae changes in its business. Furt
the Company’s methodology is not based purely ooksprice but adjusts for other valuation techngjaed relevant market information, as
described in the testing methodology below, inglgdihe expected impact to the share price once BW#Sts a substantial portion of its
ownership.

The Company may be required to recognize an impgitras a result of this year’'s annual test ortatrotimes in the future. This
depends on other factors identified below in thecdption of the Compang’'test approach. These include market price dextineh as leve
experienced during October 2008, a decline overreng of time of the Company’s stock price, a dezlover a period of time in valuation
multiples of comparable water utilities and theklaf an increase in the Company’s market price isteist with increases in the carrying
value or to a level consistent with its peer coniganA decline in the forecasted results in oulifess plan, such as changes in rate case
results or capital investment budgets or changesiinnterest rates, may also result in an increaaiémpairment charge. Further recognition
of impairments of a significant portion of goodwilbuld negatively affect the Company’s reportediltssof operations and total
capitalization, the effect of which could be madeand could make it more difficult to secure finarg on attractive terms and maintain
compliance with debt covenants.

The following table summarizes the nine-month clesrig the Company’s goodwill by reporting unit:

Non-
Regulated Regulated
Unit Units Consolidated
Balance at December 31, 2C $2,327,27! $129,68: $2,456,95:
Impairment charg (750,000 — (750,000
Felton water system asset s (2,379 — (2,379
Other activity (269) — (269)
Balance at September 30, 2( $1,574,62 $129,68. $1,704,31

The Company recognized goodwill impairment chafe®0 and $243,345 for the three months ended 8dye30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively and $750,000 and $243,345 for the miogths ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, resglgcti

In light of the initial public offering price andading levels in our common stock since the dathefnitial public offering (“IPO"), the
Company performed an interim impairment test amdylay 9, 2008, concluded that the current carryialgie of the Company’s goodwill
was impaired as a result of the current markeepichat time and trading levels of the Compangimmon stock. The Company believes the
initial public offering price was indicative of thalue of the Company at March 31, 2008, and adeglg based on those factors, recorde
impairment charge to goodwill related to its RetedeBusinesses in the amount of $750,000 in thenfiial statements as of and for the fiscal
guarter ended March 31, 2008. The impairment chaegeprimarily due to the market price of the Comps.common stock (both the initial
public offering price and the price during subsedueading) being less than that implied by thelilng value of peer companies during the
2007 annual test. Also contributing to the impaintngas a decline in the fair value of the Comparmlgbt (due to increased market interest
rates). As a result of the impairment charge RWHEaHoldings GmbH (“RWE”") transferred $245,000 te thompany on May 13, 2008.
This cash was used to reduce short-term debt. RIMBtiobligated to make any additional capital gbations.

9
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During the third quarter of 2007, as a result & @ompany’s debt being placed on review for a pissiowngrade and the proposed
sale of a portion of the Company in the IPO, managyg determined at that time it was appropriatepate its valuation analysis before the
next scheduled annual test. Based on this assessme@ompany performed an interim impairment &gt recorded an impairment charge
to goodwill related to its Regulated Businesseh@amount of $243,345. The decline was primaulg tb a slightly lower longerm earning
forecast caused by updated customer demand and espgctations and expectations for timing of edjeikpenditures and rate recovery.

The Company uses a two-step impairment test tdifgiggotential goodwill impairment and measure gmount of a goodwill
impairment loss to be recognized (if any) in acamk with Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsl@o. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142"). The step 1 caltiola used to identify potential impairment compattes fair value for each of the
Company’s reporting units to their respective regtying values (book values), including goodwilh, the measurement date. If the fair value
of any reporting unit is less than such reporting’si carrying value, then step 2 shall be perfadrteemeasure the amount of the impairment
loss (if any) for such reporting units.

The step 2 calculation of the impairment test campaby reporting unit, the implied fair value bétgoodwill to the carrying value of
goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is eglito the excess of net fair value of each repgrtinit's assets and liabilities above the
carrying value of such reporting ursitassets and liabilities. If the carrying valugobdwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodvidt any
reporting unit, an impairment loss shall be recegdiin an amount equal to the excess (not to exteecarrying value of goodwill) for that
reporting unit.

If step 2 is required, the determination of the fa@lue of each reporting unit and the fair valfieach reporting unit’s assets and
liabilities will be performed as of the measuremésite using observable market data before andthteneasurement date (if that subseq
information is relevant to the fair value on theamerement date). The step 2 fair value determinatith use a combination of the following
valuation techniques:

e quoted market prices of the Comp’s securities
» observable market prices of comparable equity bfiply-traded water utilities considered by us to be peerd
» discounted cash flow models developed from the Gmy's internal forecast:

Each of the Company’s reporting unit’s fair valseletermined by weighting, according to relevatioe results of three valuation
techniques. The first, and primary, valuation isdzhupon the observable market price of the Conipaaynmon equity as adjusted for
control premiums and other relevant market conaiitio

The second model-based valuation technique apgtiesrerage peer multiple to the Company’s histamit forecasted cash flows. The
cash flow multiple is calculated using the quoteathket equity prices of comparable publicly-tradeatav utilities, and their published cash
flows. This market multiple is then applied to #ygplicable reporting unit’s internal historic armtdcasted cash flows as adjusted to remove
non-recurring items and forecast acquisitions.

The third model-based valuation technique discoth@dive-year business plan forecast cash flowsdjusted to remove non-recurring
items and forecast acquisitions, at the Compangigted average cost of capital.

If step 2 of the impairment test is required, tm@any will determine the fair value of the apptigareporting unit's assets and
liabilities. The fair values for the majority of duassets and liabilities are equal to their cagyialues; however, the fair values of the
applicable debt are highly dependent upon markeditions at the measurement date. For the stefc@lations of the fair value of debts, the
Company will use observable prices of instrumentsiadices which share similar risk to those instents being valued, adjusted to
compensate for different credit profile, collatetak treatment and call features, to calculatdaireralue of each reporting unit’'s debts.

Note 4: Stockholders’ Equity
Common Stock

On April 28, 2008, RWE completed the partial divtese of its investment in the Company in an IP@tigh the sale of 58,000 shares
of common stock at an IPO price of $21.50. Tharsghtockholder granted the underwriters a 30-dztioa to purchase up to an additional
8,700 shares of the Company'’s stock at a pricdf3p. On May 27, 2008, the Company announcedritlerwriters’partial exercise of the
over-allotment option to purchase 5,173 sharesvercover allotments. The Company did not receive@oceeds from the sale of shares.
Prior to the IPO, the Company was an indirect wholvned subsidiary of RWE. After the IPO, and eisrof the underwriters’ over-
allotment option, RWE owns approximately 60% of @@mpany’s common shares.

10
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Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Compar®tard of Directors’ authorized 50,000 shares ofyadue $0.01 per share preferred
stock. As of September 30, 2008 there are no sloatstanding.

In September of 2008, the Company made a cashetidigayment of $0.20 per share to all common sbéters of record as of
August 15, 2008, amounting to $31,992.

On October 17, 2008, the Company’s Board of Dinectieclared a quarterly cash dividend payment cf@per share payable on
December 1, 2008 to all shareholders of record &bvember 18, 2008.

Stock Based Compensation

On April 22, 2008, a subsidiary of RWE contribuishares of the Company’s common stock to the @ampnd the Company
granted 90 restricted stock awards, 269 restristeck units and 2,078 stock options. The awarde vesued to the Company’s employees
and certain non-employee directors under its 200iniBus Equity Compensation Plan (the “2007 Plafhe total aggregate number of
shares of common stock that may be issued und@0lie Plan is 6,000. The restricted stock unitstaedstock options were awarded in two
grants with “Grant 1” vesting on January 1, 2016 d&rant 2” vesting January 1, 2011. Shares issunelér the Plan may be authorized but
unissued shares of Company stock or reacquire@slodiCompany stock, including shares purchasdétidompany on the open market for
purposes of the 2007 Plan. Additionally during Asig2008, the Company granted 5 stock options amdtticted stock unit to newly
appointed non-employee directors in two grantsingsin January 1, 2011.

The following table presents stock-based compemsatkpense for the three and nine months ende@@bpt 30, 2008 and 2007:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,

2008 2007 2008 2007

Stock Options $ 571 $ — $ 1,041 $—
Restricted stock unit 231 17¢ 667 51C

Restricted stoc 392 — 1,79¢ —
Stocl-based compensation in operation and maintenan@nss 1,19¢ 17C 3,507 51C
Income tax benef (46€) (66) (1,36¢) (199
After-tax stockbased compensation expel $ 72¢  $104 $213¢ $ 311

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accountandards No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment” (‘SEA3(R)") the cost of
services received from employees in exchange forsuance of stock options and restricted stock@sis required to be measured base
the grant date fair value of the awards issued.vEhge of stock options and restricted stock awatdbe date of the grant is amortized
through expense over the requisite service persitguthe straight-line method, adjusted for retieateligible participants. All awards
granted in 2008 are classified as equity.

In addition to the requisite service period, 1,47tk options and 190 restricted stock units abgestito performance-based vesting
requirements. The performance conditions are basdte achievement of 120% of net income targeO08 and 2009. These stock option
and restricted stock awards will vest proportiolyatiepending upon the level of achievement with7@,4tock options and 190 restricted si
units being the maximum.

The Company recognizes expense for the portioheftvards where achievement is considered probablef September 30, 2008,
684 stock option and 88 restricted stock awardsiateonsidered probable to meet performance dondit

The Company stratified its grant populations anedusistoric employee turnover rates and generaketaata to estimate employee
forfeitures.
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Stock Options

Non-qualified stock options to purchase shares®fQompany’s common stock were granted under tB& Pan. The exercise price of
the stock options is equal to the fair market valfithe underlying stock on the date of option gr&tock options granted become exercisable
upon a specified vesting date. The requisite serpériod for options granted is three years. Altktoptions expire seven years from the
effective date of the grant. The remaining vespiagod of the stock options outstanding as of Sapt 30, 2008 ranged from 1.25 years to
2.25 years. The fair value of each option is edithan the date of grant using the Black-Scholé®oygoricing model.

The following table presents the assumptions use¢ld pricing model for grants and resulting gidate fair value of stock options
granted.

Grant 1 Grant 2
Dividend yield 3.72% 3.72%
Expected volatility 29.0(% 29.0(%
Risk-free interest rat 2.6%% 2.9(%
Expected life (years 3.6¢ 4.6¢
Grant date fair valu $ 3.84 $ 4.1¢

The dividend yield is based on the Company’s exgabdividend payments and the IPO stock price. Bxepleeolatility is based on
historic volatilities of traded common stock of peempanies (regulated water companies) over theasd term of the stock options. The
risk-free interest rate is the market yield on Ul&asury strips with maturities similar to the egfed term of the stock options. The expected
term represents the period of time the stock optame expected to be outstanding and is basededsithplified method” as permitted by
Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 107 and SABAN110.

The following table presents information with resp® stock option activity as of September 30,8200

Weighted

Average
Outstanding Exercise Price

Shares (per share)

Nonvested at December 31, 2( — —
Granted 2,08: $ 21.5(C

Vested — —
Forfeited (14) 21.5(
Nonvested at September 30, 2( 2,06¢ $  21.5(

There are zero option awards vested and no optiands have been exercised as of September 30, 2008.

As of September 30, 2008, $4,238 of total unrecaghcompensation costs related to the nonvestel sfgions is expected to be
recognized over the remaining weighted-averagegde 1.9 years.

Restricted Stock Units
The Company granted restricted stock units und=2@07 Plan. The requisite service period for igstt stock units is three years.

The following table presents information with resp® restricted stock unit activity as of Septem®@, 2008.

Weighted Average

Outstanding Grant Date
Fair Value
Shares (per share)
Nonvested at December 31, 2( — —
Granted 27C $ 21.5C
Vested — —
Forfeited (2 21.5(C
Nonvested at September 30, 2( 26¢ $ 21.5(

As these restricted stock units would have paidiogash if the IPO was not completed, the Companiassified the restricted stock
units from liability-classified awards to equityaskified awards as of the completion of the IPOoASeptember 30, 2008, $2,280 of total
unrecognized compensation costs related to theasbed restricted stock units is expected to begrézed over the remaining weighted-
average period of 2.0 years.

12
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Restricted Stock
The Company granted restricted stock under the B0@7. The requisite service period for the redcstock is three months.

The following table presents information with resp® restricted stock activity at September 3@&0

Grant Date
Outstanding

Fair Value
Shares (per share)

Nonvested at December 31, 2( — —
Granted 90 $ 21.5C
Vested (84) 21.5(
Forfeited (6) 21.5(

Nonvested at September 30, 2( — $ —

As of September 30, 2008, the restricted stockfulfisvested and there were no unrecognized congt@rscosts related to the
nonvested restricted stock units. The Company mized an income tax shortfall of $60 at the vesththese awards.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s Nonqualified Employee Stock Purclitlae (“ESPP”) was effective as of July 1, 2008. &nithe ESPP, employees can
use payroll deductions to acquire Company stoekdiscount. The Company’s ESPP is considered cosapenry under SFAS 123(R).
Compensation costs of $77 were recognized forttteetand nine months ended September 30, 200&pte@ber 30, 2008, 23 shares were
issued from treasury stock under the ESPP.

Note 5: Comprehensive Income (Loss)
The components of comprehensive income (loss)safellaws:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30 September 30
2008 2007 2008 2007
Net income (loss) to common st $88,15¢ $(160,117) $(598,82f)  $(108,259)
Pension plan amortized to periodic benefit ¢
Prior service cos 7 9 20 27
Actuarial loss — 18 — 54
Foreign currency translation adjustm 2,212 50¢ 2,04¢ 252
Total comprehensive income (lo: $90,377  $(159,58) $(596,759)  $(107,92)

Significant changes in facts and circumstanceb®@fompany’s Canadian subsidiaries indicated k@it functional currency changed
from the U.S. dollar to the Canadian dollar. In@dance with Statement of Financial Accounting 8#ads No. 52 “Foreign Currency
Translation”, the Company accounted for the chandenctional currency of its Canadian subsidiat@¢he Canadian dollar in August of
2008.

Note 6: Long-Term Debt

The Company primarily issues long-term debt to faagital expenditures at the regulated subsidiafiee components of long-term debt are
as follows:

September 3C December 31

Maturity
Rate Date 2008 2007
Long-term debt of American Water Capital Cor* AWCC")
Private activity bonds and government funded «
Floating rate (a 1.80%-3.60% 201¢203z $ 86,86( $ 86,86(
Senior note!
Fixed rate 5.39%-6.87% 2011-2037 2,884,001 2,712,00
Long-term debt of other subsidiari
Private activity bonds and government funded «
Fixed rate 0.00%-6.88% 200¢-203¢ 935,76t 942,94:
Floating rate (b 1.70%-10.00%  201:-203: 33,42( 178,14!

Mortgage bond
13
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September 3C  December 31

Maturity
Rate Date 2008 2007

Fixed rate 6.31%-9.71% 200¢&-203¢ 715,80( 731,34(

Senior deb
Fixed rate 5.60%-9.10%  200¢-202% 40,70¢ 45,47
Mandatory redeemable preferred sti 4.60%-9.75%  201:-203¢ 24,50: 24,64
Notes payable and other | 5.76%-11.91% 201:-202¢ 2,99z 3,44z
Long-term debt 4,724,048  4,724,84!
Unamortized debt discount, net | 65,50¢ 70,74
Total lon¢-term debt $4,789,55! $4,795,58:

(@) Variable rate tax-exempt bonds which are regtarkfor periods up to 270 days (1 to 119 daysndu2D08 and 1 to 127 days during
2007). These bonds may be converted to other sontvariable-rate structures, a fixed-rate stmgctr subject to redemption. If the
remarketing fails and no investors purchase thelgaime Company is required to purchase the bétalsever, the Company expects
investors to purchase the bonds and thus the ameddassified as loi-term.

(b) $24,860 of the total represents variable rateeskempt bonds which are remarketed every 7 to 35.dehese bonds may be converte
other short-term variable-rate structures, a fire#-structure or subject to redemption. The remgifi8,560 represents variable rate
tax-exempt bonds remarketed for periods up to 270 dégs.(a) above

(¢) Includes capital lease obligations of $1,870 an®@&4 at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 28§Fectively

(d) Includes fair value adjustments previously recogdimn acquisition purchase accounti

The following long-term debt was issued in 2008:

Company Type Interest Rate Maturity Amount

American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.25% 201¢ $110,00(
American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.55% 202:  90,00(
Other subsidiarie State financing authority loans and ot 1.00% 202¢ 1,82¢
Total Issuance $201,82¢

The following long-term debt and preferred stockhwhandatory redemption requirements were repuechasretired through optional
redemption or payment at maturity during 20

Company Type Interest Rate Maturity Amount
Long-term debt
American Water Capital Cor Senior note-fixed rate 6.87% 2011 $ 28,00(
Other subsidiarie Senior note-floating rate 6.48%-10.00% 2021-203z 144,72!
Other subsidiarie Fixed rate bonds and not 5.05%-9.35% 200¢-202¢ 20,37
Other subsidiarie State financing authority loans and ot 0.00%-9.87% 200¢-203¢ 9,27¢
Preferred stock with mandatory redemption

requirement:
Other subsidiarie 4.60%-6.00% 201:-201¢ 14C
Total retirements & redemptiol $202,51!

Other subsidiaries fixed rate bonds and notes rptdens includes $2,832 of debt assumed by the pgerhin the Felton water system
asset sale. (See Note 15).

Gains from early extinguishment of debt includedhiterest, net amounted to $0 for the three and mionths ended September 30, -
and $4,949 and $13,113 for the three and nine rsamted September 30, 2007, respectively.

Interest, net includes interest income of approxétyab786 and $5,404 for the three and nine moettted September 30, 2008,
respectively and $2,364 and $7,457 for the threleréime months ended September 30, 2007, respeactivel

14
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Note 7: Short-Term Debt
The components of short-term debt are as follows:

September 3C December 31

2008 2007
Commercial paper, net of $90 and $680 disct $ 131,91( $ 169,26°
Book overdraf 24,291 42,19¢
Lines of credi 170,98 9,04¢
Total shor-term debt $ 327,18! $ 220,51«

Note 8: Income Taxes

The Company’s estimated annual effective tax @008 is 40.3% compared to 38.6% for 2007, exotydarious discrete items including
goodwill impairment. The Company’s actual effecttaa rates for the three months ended Septemb&0B8, and 2007 were 39.5% and
(33.0%), respectively. The Companrydctual effective rates for the nine months er@tember 30, 2008 and 2007 of (16.2%) and (220
respectively, reflect the tax effects of the godbimpairments as discrete items as the Compangidenrs this charge an infrequently
occurring or unusual event.

During 2006, the Company filed with the InternaivBeue Service (“IRS”) federal refund claims. Thearity of the Company’s refund
claims were attributable to the carry back of NOgéserated in 2003. The refund claims procedurefiyired approval by the Joint
Committee of Taxation (*JCT”"). In August 2008, tBempany received notification from the IRS outlipitheir final findings from the audit
to which the Company and IRS have agreed. Subsdgutre Company received notification that the Jpproved the full agreed refund
claim in the amount of $28,763 excluding inter&ste Company received $26,796 in October 2008 apdas to receive the remaining
portion of the fully agreed refund claim plus irgst before December 31, 2008.

Note 9: Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits
The following table provides the components of periodic benefit costs:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Components of net periodic pension benefit «
Service cos $ 6551 $ 6,40 $19,65: $19,20¢
Interest cos 14,54¢ 13,32 43,64" 39,96¢
Expected return on plan ass (12,92Y (11,769 (38,779 (35,289
Amortization of:
Prior service cos 45 32 13t 96
Actuarial loss 1 66 3 19¢
Periodic pension benefit cc 8,221 8,06( 24,661 24,18(
Special termination pension benefit cha — — — 93
Net periodic pension benefit cc $ 8,221 $ 8,06( $ 24,66 $ 24,27
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Components of net periodic other postretiremenefiecost
Service cos $ 3,10¢ $ 3,171 $ 9,31¢ $ 9,51
Interest cos 7,04¢ 6,34¢ 21,14, 19,03¢
Expected return on plan ass (5,75)) (5,26¢€) (17,257 (15,799
Amortization of:
Transition obligatior 43 43 12¢ 12¢
Prior service cred| 203 (295) 60¢ (88%)
Actuarial loss (295) — (88E) —
Net periodic other postretirement benefit ¢ $ 4,35¢ $ 3,99¢ $ 13,06¢ $ 11,99
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The Company contributed $61,000 to its defined bepension plan in the first nine months of 200®l&xpects to contribute $15,000
during the balance of 2008. In addition, the Conypeontributed $20,514 for the funding of its otipestretirement plans in the first nine
months of 2008 and expects to contribute $6,83duhe balance of 2008.

Note 10: Commitments and Contingencies

OMI/Thames Water Stockton, Inc. (“OMI/TW?”) is a B joint venture between a subsidiary of the Corgard Operations Management
International, Inc. (“OMI”). In February 2003, OMNWV and the City of Stockton California (the “City&ntered into a 2@ear service contra
for capital improvements and management servicesmtér, wastewater and storm water utilities. Bytumuagreement, OMI/TW and the C
of Stockton terminated the contract effective Faby29, 2008 (the “Termination Date”). Upon terntian, responsibility for management
and operation of the system was returned to the OMI/TW has agreed to provide a limited twelventtowarranty relating to certain
components of the facilities that OMI/TW construt{ehe “WW39 Plant”), committed to pay for cert@mployee transition costs and
assumed financial responsibility for regulatoryefevied through the Termination Date, if anyuh@sg from OMI/TW'’s failure to comply
with applicable National Pollutant Discharge Elimtiion System permit requirements and/or incideaised to design defects in the WW39
Plant. During 2007, the California State Water Reses Control Board issued a notice of violatiod arcorresponding Settlement
Communication related to a discharge into an adfageer. OMI/TW is responsible for any fines tmahy result from the Settlement
Communication. Given the uncertainties relatedesolving the remaining issues described aboveiaatidettiement with OMI, the Compa
has a loss reserve of approximately $3,000 and)$40 September 30, 2008 and December 31, 20Q¥atdeely.

The Company, through a subsidiary, holds a 50%dstén American Water-Acciona Agua LLC (formerlyn&rican Water-Pridesa
LLC) (“AW-Acciona”) a Delaware limited liability cmmpany. Acciona Agua Corporation (USA) holds the agring 50% interest. In
December 2007, AW-Acciona completed constructioa wfater filtration plant for total constructionsts of approximately $32,000.
Generally, as part of the contractual terms rejatinconstruction contracts, the Company providesesyear construction warranty period.
of September 30, 2008, no claims have been maaedeo this warranty.

The Company is also routinely involved in conderiamaproceedings and legal actions incident to thenal conduct of its business. At
September 30, 2008, the Company had accrued appaitedy $4,800 as probable costs and it is reaspnsisible that additional losses
could range up to $33,000 for these matters. Faaicematters, the Company is unable to estimassipte losses. The Company believes
damages or settlements, if any, recovered by jiff@iim such claims or actions will not have a niateadverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations, financial position or caskvé.

The Company enters into non-regulated agreementhdgrovision of services to water and wastewfaeitities for the United States
military, municipalities and other customers. Thantpany’s military services agreements expire betvgdb3 and 2059 and have remaining
performance commitments as measured by remaininigaz revenue of $1,337,103 and $480,742 at SéqeteB80, 2008 and December 31,
2007, respectively. The Company’s Operations anthtdaance agreements with municipalities and athetomers expire between 2009 and
2028 and have remaining performance commitmentseasured by remaining contract revenue of $3431b865403,829 at September 30,
2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

Included in the military services performance cobnmeint at September 30, 2008 are contracts the Goynpas awarded during
September 2008 for operation and maintenance offiter and wastewater systems at Army installatarBort Hood, Texas and Fort Polk,
Louisiana. According to the agreements, the awafdise contracts are estimated at approximatel\@EED and $348,000, respectively, over
a 50-year period as measured by gross contraatueva&ubject to price redeterminations and custoffealgral contracting termination
provisions. Federal contract price redeterminaiscs mechanism to periodically adjust the servéeeif subsequent periods to reflect changes
in contract obligations and market conditions.

Note 11: Guarantees

The Company guarantees performance on its nonatglihgreements. The Company, through AW-Acciosacbatracted with Tampa
Bay Water (“Tampa Bay”), an interlocal governmeratgéncy of the State of Florida, to remedy and atpethe Tampa Bay Seawater
Desalination Plant. The Company entered into aaniae with Tampa Bay in November 2004 for thedulll prompt performance of certain
contractual obligations limited to a total aggregibility of $35,000. Contractual obligationsidalr certain construction activities and
management services to be completed satisfact@WhrAcciona took over operation of the plant in dary 2005. At December 31, 2007, the
plant was fully operational and successful perforceatesting of the construction activities had bemmpleted. At September 30, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, no accruals have been madedétathis guarantee.
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Note 12: Environmental Matters

The Company’s water and wastewater operationsudnjed to federal, state, local and foreign requiats relating to environmental
protection and as such the Company periodicallpimes subject to environmental claims in the noroakse of business. Remediation costs
that relate to an existing condition caused by ppstations are accrued when it is probable threstetltosts will be incurred and can be
reasonably estimated. Remediation costs accruedrastbto approximately $11,000 at September 308 20@ December 31, 2007. At
September 30, 2008, $10,100 of the reserve rela@sonservation agreement entered into by adialgiof the Company with the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration requiring @ompany to, among other provisions, implemertagemeasures to protect the
steelhead trout and its habitat in the Carmel Rivatiershed in the state of California. The Compaumgues recovery of incurred costs
through all appropriate means, including regulategovery through customer rates.

Note 13: Net Income (Loss) per Common Share

Basic net income (loss) per common share, incooss)from discontinued operations, net of tax,qgoenmon share and income (loss) from
continuing operations per common share are basédeoneighted average number of common sharesaodlisg. Outstanding shares consist
of issued shares less treasury stock. Dilutednoeie (loss) per common share, income (loss) fri@godtinued operations, net of tax, per
common share and income (loss) from continuing apErs per common share are based on the weigh&zdge number of common shares
outstanding adjusted for the dilutive effect of enan stock equivalents related to the restrictedkstiestricted stock units, stock options and
the employee stock purchase plan. The dilutivecefférestricted stock, restricted stock unitscktoptions, and the employee stock purchase
plan is calculated using the treasury stock metratlexpected proceeds on vesting of the restrattek and restricted stock units, exercis
the stock options and purchases under the empkigek purchase plan. The following table sets ftrthcomponents of basic and diluted
earnings per share and shows the effect of the aomstock equivalents on the weighted average nuwmitghrares outstanding used in
calculating diluted earnings per share:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Numeratot
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 88,15¢ $(160,11°) $(598,82) $(107,703)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neag — — (5517)
Net income (loss $ 88,15¢ $(160,117) $(598,82¢) $(108,25)
Denominatol
Average common shares outstanc- basic 159,94 160,00( 159,96( 160,00(
Effect of dilutive securities
Restricted stock uni 32 — — —
Restricted stoc 19 — — —
Average common shares outstanc- diluted 160,00( 160,00( 159,96( 160,00(

Options to purchase 777 shares of the Company’sraomstock were excluded from the calculation afitgéidl common shares
outstanding because the calculated proceeds frerextrcise of the options were greater than theageemarket price of the Company’s
common stock during the three month period endedeB®ber 30, 2008. There were also 169 restrictmzkstnits and 1,306 stock options
which were excluded from the calculation of dilutmdnmon shares outstanding because certain perficar@nditions were not satisfied as
of September 30, 2008. All of the potentially diketsecurities have been excluded for the nine hwanhded September 30, 2008 because
they are anti-dilutive. The Company had no potdgtiilutive shares for the three and nine monthiqus ending September 30, 2007.
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Note 14: Segment Information

The Company has two operating segments which aoetlaé Company’s two reportable segments refeored the Regulated Businesses and
Non-Regulated Businesses segments.

The following table includes the Company’s sumnedizegment information:

As of or for the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2008

Regulated Non-Regulatec Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 60343 $ 7387( $ (5,109 $ 672,19
Depreciation and amortizatic 64,04¢ 1,08¢ 3,241 68,37¢
Impairment charg — — — —
Total operating expenses, | 399,72: 67,044 (6,326 460,43¢
Adjusted EBIT (1) 204,96: 7,09¢
Total asset 10,675,90 254,12: 1,850,70. 12,780,73
Capital expenditure 286,83 1,76¢ — 288,59
As of or for the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2007
Regulated Non-Regulatec Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 571,85 $ 66,397 $ (5,127 $ 633,11
Depreciation and amortizatic 66,99¢ 2,23¢ 467 69,69¢
Impairment charg — — 243,34! 243,34!
Total operating expenses, | 388,54 63,54 235,64 687,73:
Adjusted EBIT (1) 184,54¢ 3,57¢
Total asset 9,904,68! 307,24t 2,877,90: 13,089,83
Capital expenditure 185,64¢ 17,03 — 202,68(
As of or for the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2008
Regulated Non-Regulatec Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $ 157921, $ 202,08 $ (12,91) $ 1,768,37
Depreciation and amortizatic 187,99 4,35¢ 7,247 199,59¢
Impairment charg — — 750,00( 750,00(
Total operating expenses, | 1,169,97. 187,49: 726,85¢ 2,084,32.
Adjusted EBIT (1 411,07¢ 16,35¢
Total asset 10,675,90 254,12: 1,850,70. 12,780,73
Capital expenditure 709,76" 4,792 — 714,55¢
As of or for the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2007
Regulated Non-Regulatec Other Consolidated
Net operating revenut $1,499,76: $ 17517. $ (14,54) $ 1,660,39
Depreciation and amortizatic 194,20: 7,48: 77¢€ 202,46:
Impairment charg — — 243,34! 243,34!
Total operating expenses, | 1,108,02: 161,28: 220,89° 1,490,20.
Adjusted EBIT (1) 394,60: 17,60¢
Total asset 9,904,68! 307,24t 2,877,90. 13,089,83
Capital expenditure 487,08 20,14¢ — 507,23

(1) Management evaluates the performance of itmeats and allocates resources based on sever@istaot which the primary measure is
Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted EBIT does not represenhdémw for periods presented and should not be idened as an alternative to net
income as an indicator of the Compasngperating performance or as an alternative th flaw/s as a source of liquidity. Adjusted EE
as defined by the Company may not be comparableAdjusted EBIT as defined by other compan
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The following table reconciles Adjusted EBIT, adided by the Company, to income (loss) from coritiguoperations before income
taxes:

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2008

Total

Regulated Non-Regulatec Segments

Adjusted EBIT $204,96: $ 7,09t $ 212,05¢
Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc 4,44; — 4,44;
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 2,97( — 2,97(C
Less:

Interest, ne (57,90¢) 904 (57,007)
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (55) — (55)
Amortization of debt expen: (1,607 — (1,607
Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes $152,81: $ 7,99¢ 160,81:
Interest, ne (15,687)
Other 577
Income from continuing operations before incomes& $ 145,70°

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2007

Regulated Non-Regulatec Se-rgoéagnts

Adjusted EBIT $184,54¢ $ 3,57¢ $ 188,12:
Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc 2,02¢ — 2,02¢
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 84¢€ — 84¢€
Less:

Interest, ne (55,059 (2,369 (57,419
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (55) — (55)
Amortization of debt expens (1,037 — (1,039
Segment income from continuing operations before incomes $131,27° $ 1,211 132,48t
Impairment charge (243,34
Interest, ne (11,32)
Other 1,77¢
Income from continuing operations before incomes& $(120,400

For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2008
Total
Regulated Non-Regulatec Segments

Adjusted EBIT $ 411,07t $ 16,35¢ $427,43:
Add:

Allowance for other funds used during construc 10,37( — 10,37(
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 6,06: — 6,06:
Less:

Interest, ne (169,72) 2,29( (167,43)
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (169 — (169
Amortization of debt expen: (4,360 — (4,360
Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes $ 253,25: $ 18,64t 271,90:
Impairment charge (750,000
Interest, ne (45,28)
Other 8,164
Loss from continuing operations before income te $(515,21¢)
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For the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2007

Total

Regulated Non-Regulatec Segments

Adjusted EBIT $394,60: $ 17,60¢ $412,20°
Add:
Allowance for other funds used during construc 5,197 — 5,191
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 2,35¢ — 2,35¢
Less:
Interest, ne (164,255 (8,037) (172,28¢)
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (169 — (169
Amortization of debt expen: (3,629 — (3,629
Segment’ income from continuing operations before incomes $234,10¢ $ 9,57¢ 243,68:

(243,344
Interest, ne (39,427
Other 5,47
Income from continuing operations before income $ (33,609

Note 15: Felton Water System Asset Sale

In September of 2008, the Company’s California &libsy completed its transfer of ownership of thedtén water system to the San Lorenzo
Valley Water District (“SLVWD”). Under the terms @iie agreement, SLVWD paid $13,400 for the opegadissets of the water system that
serves approximately 1,330 customers. The paymehtdes a $10,568 cash payment and the assumptgih&82 in debt. Including
goodwill, the Company recognized a loss of $381hensale of these assets for the three and ninéhrpeniods ended September 30, 2008
(See Note 3).

Note 16: Subsequent Event

In November of 2008, the Company received $15,3&&tilement proceeds from lawsuits seeking tovecoleanup and treatment costs and
seeking to protect certain groundwater suppliesteedito contamination by methyl tertiary butyl eti®TBE”") and other gasoline additives.
The Company has deferred the receipt of cash aenhbisiating its regulatory accounting treatment.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain matters within this Quarterly Report onrRdr0-Q include “forward-looking statements” withhre meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Se2fiéof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asraleé. All statements included in this
Form 10-Q, other than statements of historical, fangty constitute forward-looking statements. Fodsaoking statements can be identified
by the use of words such as “may,” “should,” “Willcould,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “ontinue,” “anticipates,” “believes,”
“plans,” “expects,” “future” and “intends” and silar expressions. Forward-looking statements maglirerknown and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that may causachel results or performance to differ from thpsgjected in the forward-looking
statements. These statements are not guarantéearef performance and are subject to risks, uaggies and other factors, some of which
are beyond our control and difficult to predict awalild cause actual results to differ materialynirthose expressed or forecasted in the
forward-looking statements. Factors that could eaarscontribute to differences in results and ontes from those in our forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, those itesiiscussed in the “Risk Factors” section or otteatiens in the Company’s Rule 424(b)(4)
prospectus filed April 24, 2008 with the Securiteesl Exchange Commission, as well as in Item |Raf |l of this Quarterly Report. All
forward-looking statements are expressly qualifietheir entirety by such risk factors. We undeetalo obligation, other than as required by
law, to update or revise any forward-looking statats, whether as a result of new information, Riewents or otherwise.

GENERAL

American Water Works Company, Inc. (herein refeteds “American Water” or the “Company”) is thegast investor-owned United
States water and wastewater utility company, asared both by operating revenue and populatioresei®ur primary business involves the
ownership of water and wastewater utilities thavjte water and wastewater services to residectahmercial and industrial customers.
Regulated Businesses that provide these servieggemerally subject to economic regulation by stag@latory agencies in the states in w
they operate. We report the results of these bssé®in our Regulated Businesses segment. Weralgsidg services that are not subject to
economic regulation by state regulatory agenciesr&port the results of these businesses in ourRé&gulated Businesses segment. For
further description of our businesses see the ‘fRass” section found in our Rule 424(b)(4) prospeéitad on April 24, 2008 with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

You should read the following discussion in confimt with our Consolidated Financial Statements i@tated Notes included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qiaralr Prospectus filed with the SEC on April 2808, with the information under the
heading “Management’s Discussion and Analysis nfRcial Condition and Results of Operations” in Bute 424(b)(4) prospectus filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission onl/Zgri 2008.

OVERVIEW

Financial Results American Water net income was $88.2 million for the three momthded September 30, 2008 compared to a ne
of $160.1 million, which included an impairment ofpa net of tax of $239.6 million, for the three tteended September 30, 2007. Diluted
earnings per average common share were $0.55ddhtee months ended September 30, 2008 as compgi®&H00) for the three months
ended September 30, 2007.

American Water's net loss, which includes an impaint charge net of tax of $738.5 million, was $898illion, for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008 as compared to net I&HBf3 million, which also includes an impairmeharge net of tax of $239.6 million 1
the nine months ended September 30, 2007. Dilowsiper average common share was ($3.74) for tieermdnths ended September 30, -
as compared to ($0.68) for the nine months endpte8der 30, 2007.

The increase in net income for the three monthgei®keptember 30, 2008 compared to the same pertbd prior year is primarily the
result of higher revenues and decreased operatpenees. Revenues for the three months ended Semt@&@, 2008 increased by $39.1
million compared to the same period in the pricarydhis was primarily due to increased revenuesimRegulated Businesses of $31.6
million, which was largely attributable to rate ieases, as well as higher revenues of $7.5 miliaur Non-Regulated Businesses due to
increased Contract Operations Group and Homeowericgs Group revenues. These were partially offgetecreased revenues in our
Applied Water Management Group and Canadian Fixesldvals. Operating expenses for the three momithsdeSeptember 30, 2008 were
$460.4 million compared to $687.7 million, for teee months ended September 30, 2007. Includéeif007 expenses was an impairment
charge of $243.3 million which is discussed in maegail below. Partially offsetting the impairmefiarge is an increase in our other
operating expenses of $16.0 million. This increaae primarily driven by increased operating expsnis@ur Regulated Businesses of $11.2
million and in our Non-Regulated Businesses of $8ifion for the three months ended September 808Zompared to the three months
ended September 30, 2007. The Regulated Busingssesase was mainly driven by higher employeeedl@osts of $13.0 million primarily
as a result of
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enhancing customer service, increased customergidhd accounting expense of $3.7 million and éighaintenance costs of $3.0 million
due to increased removal costs partially offseloler Sarbane©xley remediation and divestiture related cost® iflcrease in the Regula
Businesses’ employee related costs was mainlyalaa tncrease in the number of employees and vagencreases, higher stock based
compensation expense and higher pension expe2@9& The increase in the Non-Regulated Businesgesating expenses was primarily
the result of higher operating and maintenance resgeeof $3.9 million which corresponds with thatreased revenues, partially offset by
lower depreciation expense of $1.1 million. In diddi, included in the three months ended SepterBBe2007 Non-Regulated Businesses’
results was a gain on sale of assets of $0.8 millio

Other items affecting income from continuing opienas for the three months ended September 30, 20@®mpared to the same period
in the prior year include increased allowance tords used during construction (“AFUDC”) of $4.5 lioih attributable to the increase in
construction work in progress primarily in New drand Missouri and higher income tax expense 8f&fnillion mainly the result of high
taxable income for the three months ended SepteB&he3008 and the inclusion of a $3.7 million tanbfit associated with the impairment
charge recorded in the quarter ended Septemb&08a,

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, uesdncreased by $108.0 million compared to theesaeniod in the prior year
primarily due to increased revenues in our RegdI8esinesses of $79.5 million, which is largelyibtitable to rate increases, while rever
in our Non-Regulated Businesses increased by $88li&n due to increased Contract Operations anthBlmwner Services Group revenues,
partially offset by decreased revenues in our AgzbliVater Management Group. Operating expensebdatihe months ended September 30,
2008 were $2,084.3 million compared to $1,490.2ionilfor the nine months ended September 30, 2DFairment charges were includec
both periods’ operating expenses. The impairmeatgehfor the nine months ended September 30, 2688%50.0 million compared to
$243.3 million for the nine months ended Septende2007. These impairment charges are discussediia detail below. The remaining
increase in operating expenses for the nine mambed September 30, 2008 compared to the sameal pretioe prior year was primarily the
result of increased operating expenses in our RégfiBusinesses of $62.0 million and in our NRegulated Businesses of $26.2 million.
increase in our Regulated Businesses’ operatingresgs was mainly driven by higher employee relatsts of $38.1 million due to $3.3
million of wages related to job reclassificationcgfitain hourly employees for services performéatisbased compensation expense of $3.5
million including $1.8 million attributable to thesuance of awards granted in connection with B, lan increase in the number of
employees primarily as a result of enhancing custaarvice and wage rate increases in 2008 asawéligher pension expense in 2008. The
Regulated Businesses’ maintenance costs incregsgti3u8 million primarily due to higher removal tesincreased expenses of $2.2 million
associated with a project in lllinois to performweaand hydrant maintenance as well as increasgdpainting expenses. Also contributing to
the Regulated Businesses variance was higher piodwosts of $5.2 million, primarily fuel and poxyas well as chemical costs and higher
general taxes of $9.4 million mainly due to incezhgross receipts and property taxes. Partialsettihg these increases was lower
depreciation expense as a result of depreciatienadjustments resulting from rate orders, pawmidylin our Pennsylvania subsidiary. The
increase in our Non-Regulated Businesses’ operatipgnses was mainly due to higher operation arndtemance expenses of $22.6 million
in 2008 which corresponds with their increased mexes partially offset by lower depreciation expemseaddition, included in the nine
months ended September 30, 2007 was a gain oofsadsets of $6.9 million.

Other items affecting income from continuing opienag for the nine months ended September 30, 20@®mpared to the same period
in the prior year include increased AFUDC of $8.diam attributable to the increase in constructiwark in progress primarily in New Jers
and Missouri.

Regulatory Developments During the three months ended September 30, 20®8eceived authorizations for additional annualize
revenues from general rate cases in lllinois amth&@ssee amounting to $23.3 million. lllinois’s sateere effective in the third quarter of
2008 while the Tennessee rates are effective Octgi2008. In the first nine months of 2008 we reee authorizations for additional
annualized revenues from general rate cases 09 $7ilion. As of September 30, 2008, we were awgifinal orders for Ohio and Hawaii's
general cases that were filed in 2007, requestig fillion and $1.3 million, respectively, in tbtdditional annual revenues. In
October 2008, The Hawaii Public Utility Commissiapproved on an interim basis an increase in additiannualized revenues of
$0.7 million. The interim rates will be effectiverfthe fourth quarter of 2008. In the first ninentits of 2008, we filed general rate cases in
ten additional states that would provide $272.9iomlof additional revenues, if approved as filéd.the rate cases filed in 2008, two states’
rates were effective through the nine months ei@gatember 30, 2008 with an additional annualizetease of $1.9 million and are incluc
in the $73.9 million of annualized revenues refégtieabove. In addition, new rates which would otevfor additional $4.3 million of
annualized revenues were put into effect under fondur Virginia subsidiary. In October 2008, ttigginia commission issued a final order
which would provide $3.4 million in additional araduevenue. The residual amount of $260.8 millionthe other eight states remains under
consideration by state public utility commissionshés time. There is no assurance that the filadwnt, or any portion thereof, of any
requested increases will be granted. On Octob2008, additional annualized revenues of $4.1 mmllesulting from infrastructure charges
for our Pennsylvania subsidiary became effective.
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Financing Activities During the nine months ended September 30, 2088net our capital resource requirements with irztéyn
generated cash as well as funds from external esymémarily through commercial paper, borrowingder our credit facilities and the
issuance of $200.0 million of private placementtdebaddition, as a result of the impairment cleal@WE made a capital contribution in the
second quarter of 2008 of $245.0 million. The cask used to reduce short-term debt.

Felton Sale In September 2008, our California subsidiary corgaléts sale of the Felton water system to SLVWDder the terms of
the agreement, SLVWD paid $13.4 million for the igtimg assets of the water system, which servesappately 1,330 customers in Felts
The payment included a $10.6 million cash payme@dlifornia American Water and the assumption by\&D of $2.8 million in debt. Th
sale of the Felton system resulted in a loss ana&=$0.4 million.

Initial Public Offering Our common stock began trading on the New YorkISExachange on April 23, 2008. On April 28, 200& th
Company completed its initial public offering (“IPORWE Aqua Holdings GmbH, the Company’s sellingckholder, sold 58.0 million
shares of the Company’s common stock at a prid2df50 per share. The selling stockholder graritedihderwriters a 30-day option to
purchase up to an additional 8.7 million sharethefCompany’s stock at a price of $21.50. On May2®D8, the Company announced the
underwriters’ partial exercise of their option tarphase 5.2 million shares to cover over allotmeFfite Company did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of shares. Prior to the tROCompany was an indirect wholly-owned subsydedRWE. After the IPO, and the
exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment optiBWE owns approximately 60% of the Company’s comrsicares.

On April 22, 2008, a subsidiary of RWE contributggbroximately 89,900 shares of the Company’s comstack to the Company and
the Company granted approximately 89,900 restristeck awards, 269,300 restricted stock units ahdrllion stock options. The awards
were issued to the Company’s employees and certairemployee directors under our 2007 Omnibus Edlampensation Plan (the “2007
Plan”). The total aggregate number of shares ofrcomstock that may be issued under the 2007 Pl imillion. The restricted stock units
and the stock options were awarded in two grants ¥@rant 1” vesting on January 1, 2010 and “G2intesting on January 1, 2011. Shares
issued under the 2007 Plan may be authorized bsswed shares of Company stock or reacquired sbaf@smpany stock, including shares
purchased by the Company on the open market faroges of the 2007 Plan. Additionally during Aug2@08, the Company granted 4,759
stock options and 602 restricted stock units tolpeywpointed non-employee directors in two gramsting on January 1, 2011.

Effective the first quarter of 2008, the Compargtard of Directors authorized 50.0 million sharépar value $0.01 per share
preferred stock. As of September 30, 2008 ther@marghares outstanding.

Impairment Charge: At September 30, 2008, the Company’s goodwill exe$1,704.3 million. The Company’s annual goodwill
impairment test is conducted at November 30 of eatdndar year and interim reviews are performednthe Company determines that a
triggering event that would more likely than naduee the fair value of a reporting unit below i#srging value has occurred.

The market price of the Company’s common stockept&@nber 30, 2008 was below its consolidated azgryalue. Subsequent to
September 30, 2008, the Company’s market priceekpsrienced a high degree of volatility. As a resaanagement considered whether the
Company’s market capitalization being below thesmbidated carrying value of its reporting unitsnegented an interim triggering event.

Having considered both qualitative and quantitataetors, management concluded that no interingénitng event has occurred. As
such, an interim impairment test was not perfornasdnanagement believes there were no significhrgrae changes in its business. Furt
the Company’s methodology is not based purely ocksprice but adjusts for other valuation techngjaed relevant market information, as
described in the testing methodology below, inglgdihe expected impact to the share price once BW#Sts a substantial portion of its
ownership.

The Company may be required to recognize an impitras a result of this year’'s annual test ortagrotimes in the future. This
depends on other factors identified below in thecdption of the Compang’'test approach. These include market price dectineh as leve
experienced during October 2008, a decline overreng of time of the Company’s stock price, a dezlover a period of time in valuation
multiples of comparable water utilities and theklaf an increase in the Company’s market price isteist with increases in the carrying
value or to a level consistent with its peer conianA decline in the forecasted results in oulifess plan, such as changes in rate case
results or capital investment budgets or changesiinnterest rates, may also result in an increaaiémpairment charge. Further recognition
of impairments of a significant portion of goodwilbuld negatively affect the Company’s reportediltssof operations and total
capitalization, the effect of which could be madeand could make it more difficult to secure fingng on attractive terms and maintain
compliance with debt covenants.
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In light of the initial public offering price andading levels in our common stock since the dath®iPO, the Company performed an
interim impairment test and, on May 9, 2008, codellithat the current carrying value of the Compsuggodwill was impaired as a result of
the current market price at that time and tradavgls of the Compang’common stock. The Company believes the initialipwffering price
was indicative of the value of the Company at Ma&th2008, and accordingly, based on those faatecsyded an impairment charge to
goodwill related to its Regulated Businesses inattm@unt of $750.0 million in the financial statertseas of and for the fiscal quarter ended
March 31, 2008. The impairment charge was primatilg to the market price of the Company’s commoanks(both the initial public
offering price and the price during subsequentimgdeing less than that implied by the tradintpygaof peer companies during the 2007
annual test. Also contributing to the impairmenswaadecline in the fair value of the Company’s deioe to increased market interest rates).
As a result of the impairment charge RWE Aqua HaidiGmbH transferred $245.0 million to the Companyay 13, 2008. This cash was
used to reduce short-term debt. RWE is not obldytdenake any additional capital contributions.

During the third quarter of 2007, as a result & @ompany’s debt being placed on review for a pissiowngrade and the proposed
sale of a portion of the Company in the IPO, managy@ determined at that time it was appropriatepate its valuation analysis before the
next scheduled annual test. Based on this assessme@ompany performed an interim impairment &gt recorded an impairment charge
to goodwill related to its Regulated Businessehi@éamount of $243.3 million. The decline was pritgadue to a slightly lower long-term
earnings forecast caused by updated customer deamahdsage expectations and expectations for tiofiegpital expenditures and rate
recovery.

The Company uses a two-step impairment test tdifgiggotential goodwill impairment and measure gmount of a goodwill
impairment loss to be recognized (if any) in acamik with Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsl@o. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142"). The step 1 caltiola used to identify potential impairment compattes fair value for each of the
Company’s reporting units to their respective regtying values (book values), including goodwilh, the measurement date. If the fair value
of any reporting unit is less than such reporting’si carrying value, then step 2 shall be perfadrteemeasure the amount of the impairment
loss (if any) for such reporting units.

The step 2 calculation of the impairment test campaby reporting unit, the implied fair value bétgoodwill to the carrying value of
goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is eglito the excess of net fair value of each repgrtinit's assets and liabilities above the
carrying value of such reporting ursitassets and liabilities. If the carrying valugobdwill exceeds the implied fair value of goodvidt any
reporting unit, an impairment loss shall be recegdiin an amount equal to the excess (not to exteecarrying value of goodwill) for that
reporting unit.

If step 2 is required, the determination of the fa@lue of each reporting unit and the fair valfieach reporting unit’s assets and
liabilities will be performed as of the measuremésaite using observable market data before andthteneasurement date (if that subseq
information is relevant to the fair value on theamerement date). The step 2 fair value determimatith use a combination of the following
valuation techniques:

» quoted market prices of the Comp’s securities
e observable market prices of comparable equity bfiply-traded water utilities considered by us to be peerd
» discounted cash flow models developed from the Gmy's internal forecast:
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Each of the Company’s reporting unit’s fair valseletermined by weighting, according to relevatioe results of three valuation
techniques. The first, and primary, valuation isdzhupon the observable market price of the Conipaaynmon equity as adjusted for
control premiums and other relevant market conaiitio

The second model-based valuation technique apgtieserage peer multiple to the Company’s histamit forecasted cash flows. The
cash flow multiple is calculated using the quoteatket equity prices of comparable publicly-tradester utilities, and their published cash
flows. This market multiple is then applied to #ygplicable reporting unit’s internal historic amtdcasted cash flows as adjusted to remove
non-recurring items and forecast acquisitions.

The third model-based valuation technique discoti@dive-year business plan forecast cash flowsdjusted to remove non-recurring
items and forecast acquisitions, at the Compangiged average cost of capital.

If step 2 of the impairment test is required, tm@any will determine the fair value of the apptigareporting unit's assets and
liabilities. The fair values for the majority of duassets and liabilities are equal to their cagyialues; however, the fair values of the
applicable debt are highly dependent upon markeditions at the measurement date. For the stefc@lations of the fair value of debts, the
Company will use observable prices of instrumentsiadices which share similar risk to those instents being valued, adjusted to
compensate for different credit profile, collatetak treatment and call features, to calculatefdiveralue of each reporting unit’s debts.

Other Matters

Acquisitions During the third quarter of 2008 our Regulated Basses completed a number of water and wastewajeisdions
amounting to approximately $7.8 million. The largequisitions included our West Virginia subsidiaoguiring the water and wastewater
systems in Fayetteville, West Virginia which widch1,861 water customers and 1,082 sewer custandrsur Pennsylvania subsidiary
acquiring the water and wastewater assets of thgs@ille-Donegal Joint Municipal Authority whichquide drinking water to approximately
550 customers, as well as wastewater treatmernitesrio nearly 500 customers and Three Lane \@slitinc which will add nearly 200 water
customers.

On October 30, 2008, our Pennsylvania subsidianyiaed the wastewater assets of Clarion Area Aitth¢iCAA”) for approximately
$4.0 million. CAA provided wastewater service t@eagximately 2,200 customer connections, completéthiin our water footprint.

Newly Awarded Contract for our Non-Regulated Business In September 2008, our Contracts Operation Groupamarded two United
States military contracts for operation and maiatere of the water and wastewater systems at FtieialRd Fort Hood Army Installations.
The estimated gross revenues we will receive fitoese 50-year fixed price contracts which are stitjemodification as described below
will be approximately $348 million and $329 millidor Fort Polk and Fort Hood, respectively. Alltbe contracts with the U.S. government
may be terminated, in whole or in part, prior te #nd of the 50-year term for convenience of tH& government or as a result of default or
non-performance by the subsidiary performing thetraaet. In either event, we are entitled to recdfaerremaining amount of our capital
investment pursuant to the terms of a terminateitiesnent with the U.S. government at the timeeofnination as provided in each of the
contracts. The contract price for each of theséraots is subject to redetermination two years aftenmencement of operations and every
three years thereafter. Price redeterminationcisrdéract mechanism to periodically adjust the seréée in the next period to reflect changes
in contract obligations and anticipated market ¢tbors.

Dividend There were no dividend payments made for 2007esthimonths ended June 30, 2008. We paid a digidé$0.20 per share
on September 2, 2008. On October 17, 2008 we detladividend of $0.20 per share payable to holoferscord on November 18, 2008,
which will be paid on December 1, 2008.

Business Transformation As part of our strategy to improve operationaladfncies, we are evaluating our processes to aggimi
workflow throughout our field operations as wellsiieamlining our back-office operations, as wedvel are necessary and appropriate.
When we make adjustments to our operations, weintay incremental expenses prior to realizing teediit of a more efficient workforce
and operating structure, but we believe that irgirgaour operating efficiency and reducing the €@sisociated with the operation of our
business are important to our long-term competitbas. We are currently developing a timeline ferithplementation of this strategy and
currently expect to complete our planning in e2099.
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Results of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2008 Compared To Three Months Ended September 30, 2007

For the three months ended Favorable
September 30, (Unfavorable)
(In thousands) 2008 2007 Change
Operating revenue $672,19: $ 633,117 $ 39,07¢
Operating expenst
Operation and maintenan 342,22t 328,30! (13,92)
Depreciation and amortizatic 68,37¢ 69,69¢ 1,32
General taxe 49,38( 47,09: (2,289
(Gain) loss on sale of assi 457 (70¢) (1,165
Impairment charg — 243,34! 243,34!
Total operating expenses, 1 460,43¢ 687,73: 227,29:
Operating income (lost 211,75: (54,61%) 266,36
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne (72,689 (68,739 (3,945
Allowance for other funds used during construc 4,44; 2,02¢ 2,41¢
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart 2,97( 84¢€ 2,12¢
Amortization of debt expen: (1,607 (1,227%) (379
Preferred dividends of subsidiari (55) (55) —
Other, ne 881 1,362 (4817)
Total other income (deduction (66,047 (65,785 (262)
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe: 145,70° (120,400 266,10°
Provision for income taxe 57,54¢ 39,71% (17,837
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 88,15¢ (160,117 248,27"
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, nebg — — —
Net income (loss $ 88,15¢  $(160,11) $ 248,27

The following table summarizes certain financidbimmation for our Regulated and Non-Regulated Besses for the periods indicated
(without giving effect to inter-segment eliminat&n

For the three months ended September 30,
2008 2007
Non- Non-
Regulated Regulated
Regulated Regulated
Businesse:  Businesse Businesse:  Businesse
(In thousands)

Operating revenue $603,43: $73,87( $571,85! $66,39:
Adjusted EBIT! $204,96. $ 7,09t $184,54¢ $ 3,57¢

@ Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before inteaesl income taxes from continuing operations. M@nzent evaluates the
performance of its segments and allocates resobesed on several factors, of which the primarysueais Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted
EBIT does not represent cash flow for the periaégs@nted and should not be considered as an ditert@net income as an indicator
of the Company’s operating performance or as anmradtive to cash flows as a source of liquidityjusted EBIT as defined by the
Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBl@efsned by other companies.
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Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of watel wastewater utilities that provide water aradtewater
services to residential, commercial and industriestomers. As such, our results of operationsigrefisantly impacted by rates authorized
the state regulatory commissions in the stateshiclwwe operate. The table below details the ammrevenues, including step increases,
resulting from rate authorizations, including irsfiraicture charges, which were granted and becai®etig€ in the third quarter of 2008.

Annualized Rate
Increases Grante(

(In millions)
State
General rate case:
lllinois $ 21.€
Virginia* 3.4
Tennesse 1.7
Total $ 26.7

* New rates were put into effect in July 2008 undmrdand a final order was received in October 200@h will provide for additiona
annualized revenue of $3.4 million for jurisdictidrtustomers and a $0.3 million increase for naisglictional customers which is not
subject to commission filing

Operating revenues increased by $39.1 million,.B¥6for the three months ended September 30, 200@ared to the three months
ended September 30, 2007. Regulated Businessesiues increased by $31.6 million, or 5.5% for tire¢ months ended September 30,
2008 compared to the same period in the prior ydae.Non-Regulated Businesses’ revenues for tlee timonths ended September 30, 2008
increased by $7.5 million, or 11.3% compared tottiliee months ended September 30, 2007.

The increase in revenues from the Regulated Busasder the three months ended September 30, 2008azed to the three months
ended September 30, 2007 was primarily due toimateases obtained through general rate caseqimsipleania, Missouri and Indiana
(which were granted and became effective in 2087%yell as other states totaling approximately $43illon. These increases were offset by
a $11.4 million decrease in revenues related toaed customer consumption, mainly in our Midwesteard Mid-Atlantic state subsidiaries
for the three months ended September 30, 2008 aaahpa the same period in the prior year.

Non-Regulated Businesses’ operating revenues isedelay $7.5 million, or 11.3% for the three morghged September 30, 2008
compared to the same period in 2007. The net isereas primarily attributable to higher revenue$@6 million in our Contract Operations
Group and $1.7 million in our Homeowner Services @, partially offset by decreased revenues of #iilllon and $0.6 million in our
Applied Water Management Group and Canadian Fixesidval, respectively. The increase in Contractr@mms Group revenues was
primarily due to additional revenues associateth @ésign and build contracts, as well as increasthry project revenues. The increase
from our Homeowner Service Group represented ise@roduct penetration within its existing custotreese. Applied Water Management
Group revenues were lower due to the decline ifgdeznd build activity resulting from the downtumnew home construction.

The following table sets forth the percentage ofirated Businesses’ revenues and water sales vdlyroestomer class:

For the three months ended September 30,

Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume

Customer Class 2008 2007 2008 2007
Water service

Residentia 58.5% 58.4% 53.5% 53.8%

Commercial 19.% 20.1% 22.5% 22.2%

Industrial 4.7% 4.6% 9.7% 10.1%

Public and othe 11.7% 11.% 14.2% 13.%

Other water revenue 1.8% 1.7% — —
Total water revenue 96.€% 96.7% 100.(% 100.(%
Wastewater servic 3.4% 3.3%

100.(% 100.(%

The following discussion related to water servicelicates the increase or decrease in the ReguBatsithiesses’'evenues and associa
water sales volumes in gallons by customer class.
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Water Services—Water service operating revenues from resideatiatomers for the three months ended Septemb&088, totaled
$353.3 million, a $19.9 million increase, or 6.08%er the same period of 2007, mainly due to ratesises offset by a decrease in sales
volume. The volume of water sold to residentiattom®ers decreased by 5.3% for the three months edepttmber 30, 2008 to 65.5 billion
gallons, from 69.2 billion gallons for the sameipdiin 2007, largely as a result of wetter weattmrditions in California and our Midweste
states.

Water service operating revenues from commercigémaustomers for the three months ended SepteBth@008 increased by $4.7
million, or 4.1%, to $119.9 million mainly due tate increases offset by decreases in sales volampared to the same period in 2007. The
volume of water sold to commercial customers desedy 3.5% for the three months ended Septembh@088, to 27.5 billion gallons, fro
28.5 hillion gallons for the three months endedt&mper 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industriat@mers totaled $28.1 million for the three morghded September 30, 2008, an
increase of $1.7 million, or 6.4%, over those rdedrfor the same period of 2007 mainly due to irateases offset by decreased sales
volume. The volume of water sold to industrial omsérs totaled 11.9 billion gallons for the threentings ended September 30, 2008, a
decrease of 8.5% from the 13.0 billion gallonstfe three months ended September 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from public ahérotustomers increased $2.4 million, or 3.5%Herthree months ended
September 30, 2008 to $70.6 million from $68.2 imillfor the three months ended September 30, 2G0@lyrdue to rate increases. Rever
from municipal governments for fire protection sees and customers requiring special private fwise facilities totaled $25.9 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2008, arased $1.2 million over the same period of 2008vdhues generated by sales to
governmental entities and resale customers fothitee months ended September 30, 2008 totaled $4i#lign, an increase of $1.2 million
from the three months ended September 30, 2007.

Wastewater services —Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services istaes. Revenues from these services increased. ®yrfilion,
or 8.4%, to $20.7 million for the three months eh@eptember 30, 2008, from $19.1 million for thmeageriod of 2007. The increase was
attributable to increases in rates charged to ouste principally in Arizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $1IBdhnor 4.2%, for the three months ended
September 30, 2008 compared to the same peride iprtor year.

Operation and maintenance expenses for the threathmended September 30, 2008 and 2007, by majense category, were as
follows:

For the three months ended
September 30,

2008 2007*
(In thousands)

Production cost $ 84,090 $ 83,49¢
Employetrelated cost 127,38« 112,81!
Operating supplies and servic 72,15: 83,937
Maintenance materials and servi 32,04¢ 27,64¢
Customer billing and accountit 13,44¢ 8,62:
Other 13,10 11,78¢

Total $ 342,22t $ 328,30!

* Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified wiperating expenses to conform to the 2008 present

Production costs, including fuel and power, pureldasater, chemicals and waste disposal increas&®.eymillion, or 0.7%, for the
three months ended September 30, 2008 comparbé 8atme period in 2007. The increase was primauigyto increased fuel and power
costs of $0.7 million which can be attributed torgmses in electricity prices.

Employee-related costs including wage and salagypinsurance, and pension expense increased Silidh or 12.9%, for the three
months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the samoed in the prior year. These employee relatestis represented 37.2% and 34.4%
of operation and maintenance expenses for the thoe¢hs ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, regggciihe employee related cost
increase of $13.0 million and $0.7 million in ovedlated and Non-Regulated Businesses, respegtivalyprimarily the result of stock
based compensation expense of $1.0 million incu&®.4 million attributable to awards granted imection with the IPO, as well as an
increase in the number of employees primarily essalt of enhancing customer service and wagemateases. In addition, our Regulated
Businesses’ pension expense increased $1.8 millid®.2% for the three months ended September(IB 2ompared to the same period in
the prior year. Pension expense in excess of ttrrantontributed to the
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pension plans is deferred by certain of our regdaubsidiaries pending future recovery in ratesoasributions are made to the plans.
Although our pension expense in accordance witte8tant of Financial Accounting Standards No. 8 npioyers’ Accounting for
Pensions” (“SFAS 87") remained relatively unchangeshsion expense increased for the three montlede®eptember 30, 2008 due to
increased contributions in certain of our regulaipdrating companies whose costs are recovered basithe Company'’s funding policy
which is the minimum amount required by the EmpoRetirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA3ther than the SFAS 87
expense. The increase in the contributions ishatiable to lower than expected returns on plantasse

Operating supplies and services include the dajatoexpenses of office operation, legal and othefiegsional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipmentakctiarges. For the three months ended Septemb&088, these costs decreased by $
million or 14.0%, compared to the same period i@720~actors contributing to this decrease include@ease of $8.5 million in Sarbanes-
Oxley remediation costs, mainly consulting feesrdased legal expenses, and a 2007 loss resengmdt in our West Virginia subsidiary
for the three months ended September 30, 2008 aahpa the three months ended September 30, 206@, éontributing to the decrease
lower divestiture costs of $2.6 million for the ¢éermonths ended September 30, 2008 including aestxiated with regulatory approval,
condemnation and retention/completion bonusesidigrffsetting these decreases was an overatease in general office and travel costs
of $0.9 million mainly due to inflation, and highierel and other transportation costs of $0.9 millio

Maintenance materials and services, which includergency repairs as well as costs for preventivieter@ance, increased $4.4 million
or by 15.9%, for the three months ended Septenie2(®8 compared to the same period in the priar.yRegulated Businesses’
maintenance materials and service costs increas8d.b million for the three months ended Septen30e2008 compared to the same pe
in the prior year due to higher cost of removalenges amounting to $3.8 million in certain of opei@ting companies offset by $0.7 million
of lower paving expenses for our lllinois and Misssubsidiaries. Our Non-Regulated Businesseshteaance expense increased by $1.4
million for the three months ended September 3082fbmpared to the same period in the prior yeangyily due to higher frequency servi
line protection contract usage by Homeowner Sesvi@mup customers as well as increased costs @dh&act Operations Group mainly
attributable to costs associated with new milipgrations and maintenance projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increbgekt.8 million, or 55.9%, for the three months eth&eptember 30, 2008 compe
to the same period in the prior year. The increes the result of higher uncollectible accountsegerge in our Regulated Businesses of $2.5
million including increases in specific provisioitg certain receivables due to the uncertaintyadtectibility and stricter shubff practices fo
delinquent accounts by certain subsidiaries. Iritaid the 2008 expense is higher as the 2007 esgogrtiuded recoveries of amounts
previously written off. Our NorRegulated Businesses uncollectible expense alseased by $1.6 million primarily due to our Applidthter
Group as a result of the downturn in the constonctharket.

Other operation and maintenance expenses inclumlmlta and liability insurance premiums and regukatosts. These costs increased
by $1.3 million, or 11.2%, in 2008 primarily dueitwreased regulatory expenses of $3.3 millionteelao write-offs of deferred rate case
expenses, primarily in Tennessee and Ohio of $llliomand $0.5 million, respectively. Partiallyfeétting these increases, insurance costs
decreased $2.0 million for the three months endgreBnber 30, 2008 due to more favorable claimsrexpee compared to the three months
ended September 30, 2007.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expense decreasé&d I3ymillion, or 1.9%, for the three months ended
September 30, 2008 compared to the same perida iprtor year. This decrease was primarily duesfareciation rate adjustments resulting
from rate orders, particularly in our Pennsylvasusidiary offset by increased expense due toiadditutility plant placed in service.

General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes fqrepty, payroll, gross receipts, and other miscelas items, increased
by $2.3 million, or 4.9%, in the three months en&egitember 30, 2008 compared to the three montlede®eptember 30, 2007. This
increase is primarily due to increased gross résggxes in New Jersey of $1.9 million and in Missof $0.9 million offset by lower
property taxes of $0.6 million in Pennsylvania.

Gain on sale of assets Loss on sale of assets was $0.5 million for theghmonths ended September 30, 2008 primarily dtlet&elton
Sale as compared to a gain of $0.7 million forttiree months ended September 30, 2007 due to candrg sales of assets no longer used
in our operations.

I mpairment charge There was no impairment charge for the three mostded September 30, 2008. For the three montteslend
September 30, 2007, we recorded an impairment eitargoodwill of our Regulated Businesses in thewam of $243.3 million. The 2007
impairment charge was primarily due to slightly &nongterm earnings forecast caused by updated custoenearmti and usage expectati
and expectations for timing of capital expendituaed rate recovery.
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Other income (deductions) Interest expense, net of interest income, is thregrly component of our other income (deductions),
increased by $3.9 million, or 5.7%, for the threenths ended September 30, 2008 compared to thesenod in the prior year. The incree
is primarily due to the increased borrowings asaed with capital expenditures. Offsetting the gfim interest expense is an increase in
AFUDC of $4.5 million for the three months endeg®enber 30, 2008 compared to the same period i 26@ result of increased
construction work in progress. Other items contiitgito the change include lower miscellaneousimedor the three months ended
September 30, 2008 compared to the three montlede®eptember 30, 2007 primarily as a result areass in the amortization of debt
expense of $0.4 million for the three months enBeptember 30, 2008 compared to same period in 20@7result of the debt restructuring.

Provision for income taxes Our consolidated provision for income taxes inceele®17.8 million or 44.8%, to $57.5 million for ttheee

months ended September 30, 2008. The effectiveataxfor the three months ended September 30, 28889.5%. Our effective tax rate for

the third quarter 2007 of (33.0%) reflects theeaéfect of the goodwill impairment as a discreteritas we considered this charge an

infrequently occurring or unusual event.

Net income (loss). Net income increased $248.3 million, to $88.2 miillfor the three months ended September 30, 2008 drnet loss
of $160.1 million for the three months ended Septen30, 2007. The increase is the result of theeaientioned changes.

Nine months Ended September 30, 2008 Compared To Nine months Ended September 30, 2007

(In thousands)
Operating revenue
Operating expenst
Operation and maintenan
Depreciation and amortizatic
General taxe
Gain on sale of asse
Impairment charg
Total operating expenses, |
Operating income (lost
Other income (deduction
Interest, ne
Allowance for other funds used during construc
Allowance for borrowed funds used during constart
Amortization of debt expen:
Preferred dividends of subsidiari
Other, ne
Total other income (deduction
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxe:
Provision for income taxe
Income (loss) from continuing operatic
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, neatg
Net income (loss

30

For the nine months ended

Favorable

September 30, (Unfavorable)
2008 2007 Change

$1,768,37 $1,660,39 $ 107,98:
984,06 910,30: (73,759
199,59¢ 202,46: 2,86¢
151,07 140,91( (10,169
(419 (6,82)) (6,409)
750,00( 243,34! (506,659
2,084,32: 1,490,20: (594,127
(315,949 170,19: (486,139
(212,719 (211,709 (1,009
10,37( 5,191 5,17
6,063 2,35¢ 3,70¢
(4,360) (3,629 (736)

(16S) (16S) -
1,54¢ 4,14¢ (2,60%)
(199,270) (203,80)) 4,531
(515,21¢) (33,609 (481,609
83,61: 74,09t (9,517
(598,82 (107,70)) (491,12Y)
- (551) 551
$ (598,820 $ (108,25) $ (490,579
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The following table summarizes certain financidbimmation for our Regulated and Non-Regulated Besses for the periods indicated
(without giving effect to inter-segment eliminat&n

For the nine months ended September 30,

2008 2007
Non- Non-
Regulated regulated Regulated regulated
Businesses Businesse: Businesses Businesse:
(In thousands)
Operating revenue $1,579,21. $202,08( $1,499,76. $175,17:
Adjusted EBIT? $ 411,07¢ $ 16,35¢ $ 394,60: $ 17,60¢

@ Adjusted EBIT is defined as earnings before inteaesl income taxes from continuing operations. M@nzent evaluates the
performance of its segments and allocates resobesed on several factors, of which the primarysueais Adjusted EBIT. Adjusted
EBIT does not represent cash flow for the periaés@nted and should not be considered as an ditert@net income as an indicator
of the Company’s operating performance or as @mradtive to cash flows as a source of liquidityjusted EBIT as defined by the
Company may not be comparable with Adjusted EBl@eftned by other companies.

Operating revenues Our primary business involves the ownership of watel wastewater utilities that provide serviceseidential,
commercial and industrial customers. As such, esults of operations are significantly impacteddtgs authorized by the state regulatory
commissions in the states in which we operate.t@ble below details the annualized revenues, inctustep increases, resulting from rate
authorizations, including infrastructure chargekiolr were granted and became effective in the maeths ended September 30, 2008.

Annualized Rate
Increases Grante(

(In millions)
State
General rate case:
lllinois $ 21.¢
California 13.C
New York 6.6
lowa 4.3
Arizona 8.6
West Virginia 14.t
Virginia* 3.4
Tennesse 1.7
Other 0.2
Infrastructure Charges:
Pennsylvania** 4.€
Indiana 3.6
Missouri 2.7
Illinois 1.1
Total $ 86.2

* New rates were put into effect in July 2008, urtatand and a final order was received in October 200@h will provide for additiona
annualized revenues of $3.4 million for jurisdictéd customers and a $0.3 million increase for noisglictional customers which is not
subject to commission filing

**  Does not include annualized increases for inftasture charge which were granted in the thirdrigranf 2008 of $5.7 million in our
Pennsylvania subsidiary, effective October 1, 2

Operating revenues increased by $108.0 millior.5% for the nine months ended September 30, 260®ared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2007. Regulated Businessesgiues increased by $79.5 million, or 5.3% ferrime months ended September 30, .
compared to the same period in the prior year.Ntwe-Regulated Businesses’ revenues for the ningmanded September 30, 2008
increased by $26.9 million, or 15.4% compared #rtime months ended September 30, 2007.

The increase in the Regulated Businesses’ revdpuéise nine months ended September 30, 2008 cadparthe nine months ended
September 30, 2007 was primarily due to rate irsge@btained through general rate cases in NewyJd?ennsylvania, Missouri and Indiana
(which were granted and became effective in 208%yell as other states totaling approximately $98illion and a $1.4 million retroactive
rate adjustment in California made in June 2008s Trtrease was offset by a $25.0 million decréase
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revenues related to lower customer consumptiomlmai our states in the Midwestern region of thaitedd States, for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 compared to the same peride iprtor year.

Non-Regulated Businesses’ operating revenues isedeldy $26.9 million, or 15.4% for the nine morghsled September 30, 2008
compared to the same period in 2007. The net isere@s primarily attributable to higher revenue$28.6 million in our Contract
Operations Group and $5.6 million in our Homeow8ervices Group, partially offset by decreased regsrof $6.8 million and $0.7 million
in our Applied Water Management Group and CanaHiged Residuals, respectively. The increase in @shOperations Group revenues
was primarily attributable to incremental revenassociated with design and build contracts, asageihcreased military construction and
operations & maintenance project revenues. Theass from our Homeowner Service Group representedased product penetration
within its existing customer base. Applied Waterndgement Group revenues were lower due to thengeiclidesign and build activity
resulting from the downturn in new home construttio

The following table sets forth the percentage ofirated Businesses’ revenues and water sales vdlyroestomer class:

For the nine months ended September 30,

Operating Revenues Water Sales Volume

Customer Class 2008 2007 2008 2007
Water service

Residentia 57.%% 57.%% 53.(% 53.(%

Commercial 19.2% 19.2% 22.1% 21.%

Industrial 5.C% 4.8% 10.5% 10.5%

Public and othe 12.1% 12.2% 14.4% 14.¢%

Other water revenue 2.C% 1.8% — —
Total water revenue 96.2% 96.2% 100.(% 100.(%
Wastewater servic 3.7% 3.£%

100.(% 100.(%

The following discussion related to water servicecates the increase or decrease in the ReguBatsithesses’ revenues and water
associated sales volumes in gallons by customss.cla

Water Services—Water service operating revenues from residentiatomers for the nine months ended September088, btaled
$913.1 million, a $44.3 million increase, or 5.18%er the same period of 2007, mainly due to rateeimses offset by a decrease in sales
volume. The volume of water sold to residentiaftooeers decreased by 3.5% for the nine months e&dptember 30, 2008 to 162.3 billion
gallons, from 168.2 billion gallons for the sameipeé in 2007, largely as a result of wetter weattanditions in California and the
Midwestern region in the United States.

Water service operating revenues from commercig&maistomers for the nine months ended Septenth&(®8 increased by $14.3
million, or 4.9%, to $305.4 million mainly due tate increases offset by decreases in sales volompared to the same period in 2007. The
volume of water sold to commercial customers deseédy 2.9% for the nine months ended Septemb&t(®®, to 67.8 billion gallons, from
69.8 billion gallons for the nine months ended 8eytier 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from industriat@mers totaled $78.4 million for the nine monthdedd September 30, 2008, an
increase of $5.9 million, or 8.1%, over those reedrfor the same period of 2007 mainly due to irateases offset by decreased sales
volume. The volume of water sold to industrial omsérs totaled 32.2 billion gallons in the nine nfenénded September 30, 2008, a decreas:
of 3.6% from the 33.4 billion gallons for the nim®nths ended September 30, 2007.

Water service operating revenues from public ahérotustomers increased $7.1 million, or 3.9%tHernine months ended
September 30, 2008 to $191.4 million from $184.Biom for the nine months ended September 30, 2088inly due to rate increases.
Revenues from municipal governments for fire pritecservices and customers requiring special [eifiee service facilities totaled $77.8
million for the nine months ended September 3082@0 increase of $3.8 million over the same pewio2007. Revenues generated by sales
to governmental entities and resale customerdonine months ended September 30, 2008 totale®l&rillion, an increase of $3.3 milli
from the nine months ended September 30, 2007.

Wastewater services —Our subsidiaries provide wastewater services igtafes. Revenues from these services increased. byrlion,
or 4.4%, to $59.1 million for the nine months en@&saptember 30, 2008, from $56.6 million for the sgyariod of 2007. The increase was
attributable to increases in rates charged to ouste principally in Arizona, Hawaii, and New Jersey

Operation and maintenance Operation and maintenance expense increased $7i8@nor 8.1%, for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 compared to the same peride iprtor year.
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Operation and maintenance expenses for the ninéghsended September 30, 2008 and 2007, by majensgpcategory, were as
follows:

For the nine months ended
September 30,

2008 2007+
(In thousands)
Production cost $ 220,90: $ 212,61
Employet-related cost 385,63¢ 341,15«
Operating supplies and servic 208,39: 211,01
Maintenance materials and servii 104,21¢ 87,25(
Customer billing and accountir 32,79¢ 26,02¢
Other 32,11« 32,25
Total $ 984,060 $ 910,30

* Certain 2007 amounts have been reclassified witherating expenses to conform to the 2008 present

Production costs, including fuel and power, purekasater, chemicals and waste disposal increas&8 3ymillion, or 3.9%, for the
nine months ended September 30, 2008 comparee sathe period in 2007. The increase was primdrédyésult of increased costs in our
Regulated Businesses of $5.2 million. Fuel and pawests were higher by $2.8 million due to increageelectricity prices. Chemical costs
also increased by $2.1 million primarily due tamgschemical costs and waste disposal costs weoehédher by $0.7 million. Partially
offsetting these increases was lower purchased wasts of $0.4 million.

Employee-related costs including wage and salagypinsurance, and pension expense increased $dlidn or 13.0%, for the nine
months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the gared in the prior year. These employee relatests represented 39.2% and 37.5%
of operation and maintenance expenses for themorghs ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, resglgctiihe increase was due to higher
wage and salary expenses of $23.2 million and 8@llibn in our Regulated and Non-Regulated Busirsssespectively, primarily resulting
from stock based compensation expense of $3.5omiltiainly attributable to the issuance of awardsgd in connection with the IPO and
an increase in the number of employees primarily essult of enhancing customer service and wagenmareases. In addition, our Regulated
Businesses’ pension expense increased by $8.@mdli 29.1% for the nine months ended Septembe2@I8 compared to the same period
in the prior year. Pension expense in excess daditi@unt contributed to the pension plans is deddosecertain of our regulated subsidiaries
pending future recovery in rates as contributiamesraade to the plans. Although our pension expenaecordance with SFAS 87 remained
relatively unchanged, pension expense increaseithidanine months ended September 30, 2008 duergeaised contributions in certain of ¢
regulated operating companies, which costs aresezed based on the Company’s funding policy whictiheé minimum amount required by
ERISA, rather than the SFAS 87 expense. The inerigathe contributions is attributable to lowerrtexpected returns on plan assets.

Operating supplies and services include the dajatoexpenses of office operation, legal and othefiegsional services, as well as
information systems and other office equipmentakctarges. For the nine months ended Septemb@088, these costs decreased by $2.6
million or 1.2%, compared to the same period inZ2Factors contributing to this decrease includeeloremediation costs, mainly consulting
fees in connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Ac$16.6 million, or 65.1%, to $8.9 million for theng months ended September 30, 2008
compared to $25.5 million for the nine months enfedtember 30, 2007. Also contributing to the deseeare lower divestiture and IPO
related costs of $1.7 million for the nine monthsled September 30, 2008 including costs assooidthdegulatory approval, condemnation
and retention/competition bonuses. Partially offsgtthese decreases was an overall increase ergesffice costs and travel costs of $3.3
million, mainly due to inflation, and higher fuai@other transportation costs of $4.2 million. @sponding with the increase in revenues
Nor-Regulated Businesses operating supplies and segxpenses increased by $8.2 million for the nipeths ended September 30, 2008
compared to the same period in the prior year.Ntwe-Regulated Businesses’ increase is mainly atlile to additional expense in the
Contract Operations group of $13.7 million ass@dawith several operating contracts (including sigie, build and operate project in
Fillmore, California), partially offset by lower ntracted services costs in the Applied Water Marmagd Group due to the downturn in new
home construction of $4.9 million and profits of $illion as a result of the acceptance by a thady of a construction contract.

Maintenance materials and services, which includergency repairs as well as costs for preventiviater@ance, increased $17.0
million or by 19.4%, for the nine months ended $8efier 30, 2008 compared to the same period inrtoeyear. The Regulated Businesses’
maintenance materials and service costs increas8@38 million in the first nine months of 2008 imis due to increased costs of $2.2
million associated with a program in lllinois to imi@in valves, higher cost of removal expensesta? $nillion in certain of our operating
companies and increased tank painting costs of §illi®n in our New Jersey and Missouri operatimynpanies. Partially offsetting these
increases were lower main break costs in 2008 easxperienced higher than average
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main break costs in the first half of 2007 due toter weather conditions in the Midwest regionité United States. The Non-Regulated
Businesses’ maintenance and services expenseaseddy $3.3 million as a result of higher freqyeservice line protection contract usage
by Homeowner Services Group customers as wellasased cost associated with the Contract OpesaGooup mainly attributable to costs
associated with new military operations and maiatee projects.

Customer billing and accounting expenses increbgekb.8 million, or 26.0%, for the nine months eth@&eptember 30, 2008 compared
to the same period in the prior year. The increesg primarily the result of higher uncollectibleeaants expense in our Regulated Busine
of $2.3 million, including increases in specifiopisions for certain receivables due to the unaastaf collectibility and stricter shut-off
practices for delinquent accounts by certain sudseas. In addition, the 2008 expense is higheha2007 expense included recoveries of
amounts previously written off. Our Non-RegulatagsBiesses uncollectible expense increased by $iBidmprimarily due to increases in
the Applied Group of $1.9 million as the resultloé downturn in the construction market and ourt€2m Operation Group. In addition,
postage expense increased in our Regulated sulissd®).7 million compared to the same period éghor year.

Other operation and maintenance expenses incluglrlita and liability insurance premiums and regariatosts. These costs decreased
by $0.1 million, or 0.4%, in 2008 primarily duedecreased insurance costs of $3.6 million for the months ended September 30, 2008
to more favorable claims experience compared tamitne months ended September 30, 2007, partiagebby increased regulatory expenses
of $3.4 million related to write-offs of deferredte case expenses, primarily in Tennessee, llliaoid Ohio of $1.7 million, $0.9 million, and
$0.5 million, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization Depreciation and amortization expense decreas&2 I9ymillion, or 1.4%, for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 compared to the same peride iprtor year. This decrease was primarily duesiorekciation rate adjustments resulting
from rate orders, particularly in our Pennsylvasuasidiary partially offset by increased expense tuadditional utility plant placed in
service.

General taxes General taxes expense, which includes taxes fqrepty, payroll, gross receipts, and other miscelbars items, increased
by $10.2 million, or 7.2%, in the nine months en@egptember 30, 2008 compared to the first nine hwoot 2007. This increase is primarily
due to increased gross receipts taxes of $5.7omiili New Jersey and $0.7 million in Missouri atfghler property tax expense of $1.7
million and $1.0 million in Ohio and Missouri, resgively.

Gain on sale of assets The gain on sale of assets was $0.4 million fomtine months ended September 30, 2008 compareddin af
$6.8 million for the nine months ended Septembe2B07. The gain in 2008 and 2007 is primarilyilatiiable to norrecurring sales of asst
no longer used in our operations. Partially offagtthe 2008 gain was the loss attributable tcstile of the Felton water system to SLVWD.

I mpairment charge The impairment charge was $750.0 million for theeninonths ended September 30, 2008 compared t03$243
million for the nine months ended September 30,720bie 2008 impairment charge was primarily duthéomarket price of the Company’s
common stock (both the initial public offering miand the price during subsequent trading) beisgtlgan what was anticipated during our
2007 annual test. Also contributing to the impaintngas a decline in the fair value of the Comparmlgbt (due to increased interest rates).
The 2007 impairment charge to goodwill to our Ratgd Businesses was primarily due to slightly lolsag-term earnings forecast caused
by updated customer demand and usage expectatidrexpectations for timing of capital expendituaes rate recovery.

Other income (deductions) Interest, the primary component of our other incqdedluctions), increased by $1.0 million, or 0.5%0the
nine months ended September 30, 2008 compareeé sathe period in the prior year. The increaseimsagyily due to increased borrowings
associated with capital expenditures. Offsettirgdhange in interest expense is an increase in AFbfi$8.9 million for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008 compared to the samel prei2007 as a result of increased constructiorkwoprogress. Other items
contributing to the change include higher misceltams income for the nine months ended Septemb@0B8, compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2007 primarily as a resutissiels recorded for a contract in our Non-Regulasthess in 2007 of $2.1 million, and an
increase in the amortization of debt expense of #tllion for the nine months ended September 8082compared to the same period in
2007 as a result of the debt restructuring.

Provision for income taxes Our consolidated provision for income taxes inceela®9.5 million, or 12.8%, to $83.6 million for thene
months ended September 30, 2008 from $74.1 milbothe nine months ended September 30, 2007.

Net income (loss) The net loss for the nine months ended Septembhe&088 was $598.8 million compared to a net lost1d8.3
million for the nine months ended September 30,/20Bie variation between the periods is the redfutie aforementioned changes.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our business is capital intensive and requiresiderable capital resources. A portion of thesetehpésources are provided by
internally generated cash flows from operationsewhecessary we obtain funds from external sotinctbe capital markets and through
bank borrowings. Our access to external financimgeasonable terms depends on our credit ratindjs@ment business conditions, including
that of the water utility industry in general aslivas conditions in the debt or equity capital nedsk If these business and market conditions
deteriorate to the extent that we no longer hagcesxto the capital markets at reasonable termbawe access to revolving credit facilities
with aggregate bank commitments of $810.0 millieattwe currently utilize to fulfill our short-terfiguidity needs and to issue letters of
credit. See the “Credit Facilities and Short-TerebD section below for further discussion.

In addition, our regulated utility subsidiariese&a@ advances and contributions from customers ghouiiders and real estate develo
to fund construction necessary to extend serviget areas. Advances for construction are refurdiillimited periods, which vary
according to state regulations, as new customeyis @ receive service or other contractual oblat are fulfilled. Amounts which are no
longer refundable are reclassified to contributionaid of construction. Utility plant funded byathces and contributions is excluded from
the rate base. Generally, we depreciate contribpteperty and amortize contributions in aid of damgtion at the composite rate of the
related property. Some of our subsidiaries do eptekciate contributed property, based on regulaoigelines.

We use our capital resources, including cash) tiufid capital requirements, including constructexpenditures, (ii) pay off maturing
debt, (iii) pay dividends, (iv) fund pension andspretirement welfare obligations and (v) invesh@w and existing ventures. We spend a
significant amount of cash on construction proj¢ictd have a long-term return on investment. Addgily, we operate in rate-regulated
environments in which the amount of new investmmenbvery may be limited, and where such recovekgsglace over an extended period
of time, as our recovery is subject to regulataxy. IAs a result of these factors, our working @pitefined as current assets less current
liabilities, was in a net deficit position as offsember 30, 2008.

We expect to fund future maturities of long-ternbidhrough a combination of external debt and ¢lst from operations. We have no
plans to reduce debt significantly.

We rely on our revolving credit facility and thepital markets to satisfy our liquidity needs. Digtions in the credit markets may
discourage lenders from meeting their existing isgpdommitments, extending the terms of such comesitts or agreeing to new
commitments. Market disruptions may also limit ability to issue debt securities in the capital ketés. On September 15, 2008, we sought
to issue commercial paper but were unable to comatmthe issuance due to adverse market conditioasder to meet our short-term
liquidity needs we are borrowing under our exist#890.0 million revolving credit facility, which veascheduled to expire on September 15,
2012. On September 15, 2008, a majority of ourdemdgreed to extend $685.0 million of commitmemntder this revolving credit facility to
September 15, 2013. AWCC had $147.2 million of tautding borrowings and $42.9 million of outstandieters of credit under this credit
facility as of November 4, 2008. AWCC had $148.1lion of outstanding overnight commercial papeo&slovember 4, 2008. We can
provide no assurances that our lenders will mest #xisting commitments or that we will be ableatwess the commercial paper or loan
markets in the future on terms acceptable to & all.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from operating activities primarily réfoom the sale of water and wastewater servicgs due to the seasonality of
operations, are weighted toward the third quarteach fiscal year. Our future cash flows from @pieg activities will be affected by
economic utility regulation; infrastructure invesnt; inflation; compliance with environmental, tadnd safety standards; production costs;
customer growth; declining per customer usage d¢érvand weather and seasonality. Cash flows frparaiing activities have been a
reliable, steady source of cash flow, sufficientteet operating requirements and a portion of apital expenditures requirements. We will
seek access to debt and equity capital markete#t the balance of our capital expenditure requérém There can be no assurance that we
will be able to successfully access such markefaworable terms or at all. Operating cash flows loa negatively affected by changes in our
rate regulatory environments or changes in ourocnst economic outlook and ability to pay for seeviic a timely manner. We can provide
no assurance that our customdristorical payment pattern will continue in theuig. Cash flows from operating activities for thieenmonth:
ended September 30, 2008 were $392.9 million coetpiar $329.9 million for the nine months ended Seyiter 30, 2007.
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The following table provides a summary of the méjems affecting our cash flows from operating\dtiéis for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 and 2007:

For the nine months ended
September 30,

2008 2007
( In thousands)

Net (loss) $ (598,829 $(108,259)
Add (subtract)

Non-cash operating activities ( 1,094,80 482,39.
Changes in working capital ( (21,557 8,93¢
Pension and postretirement healthcare contribu (81,519 (53,167
Net cash flows provided by operatic $ 392,91 $ 329,91¢

(1) Includes depreciation and amortization, impainincharges, removal costs net of salvage, provisiodeferred income taxes,
amortization of deferred investment tax creditgyvsion for losses on utility accounts receivalaléggwance for other funds used during
construction, gain on sale of assets, and othe-cash items, net, less pension and postretiremaithicare contribution:

(2) Changes in working capital include change®t®ivables and unbilled utility revenue, other entrassets, accounts payable, taxes
accrued (including income taxes), interest accaratlother current liabilitie:

Cash Flows from I nvesting Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities for theenmonths ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 weB657@lion and $483.0 million,
respectively. Construction expenditures increaay ® million to $714.6 million for the nine montéeded September 30, 2008 from $507.2
million for the nine months ended September 30,7289a result of increased investment in regulatidity plant projects. We anticipate
spending approximately $950 million on capital istreent in 2008.

Our construction program consists of both infracttite renewal programs, where we replace infrastra@s needed, and construction
of new water and wastewater treatment and delifamijities to meet new customer growth. An integrgpect of our strategy is to seek
growth through tuck-ins and other acquisitions Wwhace complementary to our existing business apgatithe continued geographical
diversification and growth of our operations. Getllgr acquisitions are funded initially with shdgrm debt and later refinanced with the
proceeds from long-term debt or equity offerings.

Included in 2008 are planned construction expengtof approximately $32 million to construct a negater treatment plant on the
Kentucky River. On April 25, 2008, the Kentucky RalService Commission approved Kentucky Americaat®y's application for a
certificate of convenience and necessity to const?0.0 million gallon per day treatment plantioa Kentucky River and a 30.6 mile
pipeline to meet Central Kentucky's water supplfiaie The Kentucky project is expected to be coetptl by 2010 with an estimated cost of
$162 million.

Other significant investing activities for the nimmnths ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 include:

» We paid approximately $8.0 million for the acquitof water and waste water systems including fayile, West Virginia,
Claysville-Donegal Joint Municipal Authority in Pennsylvaniadahe Three Lane Utilities, Inc. also in Pennskla:

» Proceeds from the sale of the Felton Water Systhiohwincluded a $10.6 million cash payment to @alifa American Water and
the assumption by the SLVWD of $2.8 million in de

* In 2007, we paid approximately $0.9 million for thequisition of a number of water and wastewatestesys.

*  We received approximately $15.6 million in cashga@ds from the sale of other assets including $1dl®n in proceeds on a
property in Mansfield, New Jersey owned by a -Regulated Subsidiar

* In 2007, we received approximately $9.7 milliorcash proceeds from the sale of our discontinuedatipas, primarily in our
United State-based Residual Grou

Our investing activities require considerable capisources which we have generated in operaéindsttained through financing activates.
We can provide no assurance that the resourcebevdlfficient to meet our expected investment sesdl may be required to delay or
reevaluate our investment plans.
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On December 21, 2007, New Jersey-American Watersahsidiary, signed an agreement with the Cityreihton, New Jersey to purchase
the assets of the city’s water system located imgwHamilton, Hopewell and Lawrence townshipsdgrurchase price of $100.0 million.
The agreement was approved by the Trenton City €ibbat requires approval by various regulatoryrages, including the New Jersey
Board of Public Utilities. We can provide no assues that the agreement will be approved.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Our financing activities include the issuance afgderm and short-term debt, primarily through whiolly-owned financing subsidiary,
American Water Capital Corp. (“AWCC"We intend to access the capital markets on a regakis, subject to market conditions. In addit
we have received capital contributions from RWE atend to issue equity in the future to maintaine@propriate capital structure, subjec
any restrictions in our registration rights agreathweith RWE. In order to finance new infrastructune received customer advances and
contributions for construction (net of refunds)$8f2 million and $25.6 million for the nine montlisded September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

The following long-term debt was issued in thetfirme months of 2008:

Interest
Amount

Company Type Rate Maturity  (In Thousands
American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.25% 201¢ $ 110,00(
American Water Capital Cor Senior note! 6.55% 202z 90,00(
Other subsidiarie: State financing authority loans and ot 1.00% 202¢ 1,82¢
Total issuance $ 201,82¢

The following long-term debt and preferred stockhwnandatory redemption requirements were repuethasretired through optional
redemption or payment at maturity during the firiste months of 2008:

Amount

Company Type Interest Rate Maturity (In Thousands
Long-term debt:

American Water Capital Cor Senior note-fixed rate 6.87% 2011 $  28,00(
Other subsidiarie Senior note-floating rate 6.48%-10.00% 2021-203Z 144,72!
Other subsidiarie Subsidiary fixed rate bonds & not 5.05%-9.35% 200¢-202¢ 20,37«
Other subsidiarie State financing authority loans and ot 0.00%-9.87% 200¢-203¢ 9,27¢
Preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirements:

Other subsidiarie 4.60%-6.00% 201:-201¢ 14C
Total retirements & redemptiol $ 202,51!

In the second quarter of 2008, the Company congbleteoffer to exchange $750.0 million principal ambof its 6.085% Senior Notes
due in 2017 and $750.0 million principal amounttef6.593% Senior Notes due in 2037 which are begistered under the Securities Act of
1933 (the “Exchange Notes”) for all $750.0 milliohits currently outstanding 6.085% Senior Notes oiu2017 and all $750.0 million of its
currently outstanding 6.593% Senior Notes due Bi720hich have not been registered under the SexsuAct of 1933 (the “Original
Notes”). The Company did not receive any proceeds froenexchange offer, nor did the Company’s debt lelahge as a result of the
exchange offer. The other terms of the ExchangedNand the Original Notes are substantially idahticall material respects.

During the first nine months of 2007, the Compassuid senior notes through private placement offsriotaling $617.0 million. We
used the proceeds from this senior notes offenmtthe $801.1 million of equity contributions frdRWE, described below, to offset loans
payable to RWE, to repay outstanding commerciaépapd for other corporate purposes. Additionallying September 2007, AWCC
borrowed $1,750.0 million of RWE redemption notest RWE. The Company used the proceeds from the RMIEmption notes to redeem
$1,750.0 million of its 5.9% mandatory redeemabfgrred stock held by RWE. The $1,750.0 milliorRWE redemptions notes was retired
in the fourth quarter of 2007 in connection with ®@'’s issuance of additional senior notes.

From time to time and as market conditions warraetmay engage in long-term debt retirements videe offers, open market
repurchases or other viable alternatives to sthemgour balance sheet.

Dividends Our board of directors has adopted a dividend pabadistribute a portion of our net cash providgdoperating activities to our
stockholders as regular quarterly dividends, ratihan retaining that cash for other purposes. Weetdto distribute 50% to 70% of our
annual net income, adjusted for certain non-cashst
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On September 2, 2008, we paid a cash dividend 210&8illion or $0.20 per share to all sharehold#necord as of August 15, 2008.
There were no dividend payments made for the nioeths ended September 30, 2007.

On October 17, 2008, our Board of Directors dedareuarterly cash dividend payment of $0.20 pareshayable on December 1,
2008 to all shareholders of record as of NovemBe2008.

Contributions from RWE As a result of the impairment charges recordedhfemine months ended September 30, 2008, RWHE ¢raad
$245.0 million on May 13, 2008. This cash was usekpay $243.4 million of short-term debt. Conttibns from RWE were $801.1 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. R3MBtiobligated to make any additional capital dbations.

Credit Facilities and Short-Term Debt
The components of short-term debt were as follows:

September 30,200
(In thousands)

Commercial paper, n $ 131,91(
Book overdrafi 24,29
Lines of credit 170,98
Total shor-term debt $ 327,18!

AWCC has entered into a one-year $10.0 million cdfteh revolving line of credit with PNC Bank, N.Ahis line of credit will
terminate on December 31, 2008 unless extendedsarsdd primarily for short-term working capitakeads. Interest rates on advances under
this line of credit are based on either the priate of PNC Bank, N.A. or the applicable LIBOR fbetterm selected plus 25 basis points. As
of September 30, 2008, $4.5 million was outstandinder this revolving line of credit. If this lired credit were not extended beyond its
current maturity date of December 31, 2008, AWCQaontinue to have access to its $800.0 millioeacured revolving credit facility
described below.

On September 15, 2006, AWCC, our finance subsidemered into an $800 million senior unsecureditfeacility syndicated among
the following group of 10 banks with JPMorgan ChBs@k, N.A. acting as administrative agent.

Commitment Amount Commitment Amount
Through Through
Bank September 15, 2012 September 15, 2013
(In thousands)

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N. $ 115,00( $ 0
Citibank, N.A. 115,00( 115,00(
Citizens Bank of Pennsylvan 80,00( 80,00(
Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Brai 80,00( 80,00(
William Street Commitment Corporatic 80,00( 80,00(
Merrill Lynch Bank USA 80,00( 80,00(
Morgan Stanly Ban 80,00( 80,00(
UBS Loan Finance LL( 80,00( 80,00(
National City Corporatiol 50,00( 50,00(
PNC Bank, National Associatic 40,00( 40,00(

$ 800,00( $ 685,00(

This revolving credit facility, which was originglscheduled to terminate on September 15, 20Xikirisipally used to support the
commercial paper program at AWCC and to providéoup150.0 million in letters of credit. On Septemitd, 2007, this revolving credit
facility was extended for an additional year by theility bank group, making the new terminationed8eptember 15, 2012. On Septembe
2008, a majority of the banks agreed to furtheerdt$685.0 million of commitments under this reuudvcredit facility to September 15,
2013. If any lender defaults in its obligation tmél advances, the Company may request the othagreto assume the defaulting lender’s
commitment or replace such defaulting lender bygeging an assignee willing to assume the commititeowever the remaining lenders
have no obligation to assume a defaulting lendmtamitment and we can provide no assurances thatilveplace a defaulting lender.
AWCC had $166.5 million of outstanding borrowingl&43.5 million of outstanding letters of creditder this credit facility as of
September 30, 2008.
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At September 30, 2008, AWCC had the following siahits and available capacity under the revolvingditrfacility and indicated
amounts of outstanding commercial paper.

Available Outstanding
Credit Facility Available Credit Letter of Credit Commercial Paper (ne
Commitment Facility Capacity Letter of Credit Sublimit Capacity of Discount)
(In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands) (In thousands)
$ 810,00( $  595,50( $ 150,00( $ 106,48 $ 131,91(

Interest rates on advances under the revolvingtdiagility are based on either prime or LIBOR phus applicable margin based upon
our credit ratings, as well as total outstandingants under the agreement at the time of the bangpw he maximum LIBOR margin is 55
basis points.

The revolving credit facility requires us to mainta ratio of consolidated debt to consolidatedtedipation of not more than 0.70 to
1.00. As of September 30, 2008, our ratio was @risbtherefore we were in compliance with the ratio.

The average interest rate on short-term borrowiagthe nine months ended September 30, 2008 war®ximately 3.3%.

Debt Covenants

Our debt agreements contain financial and non-@irsmovenants. To the extent that we are not mpal@nce, we or our subsidiaries
may be restricted in our ability to pay dividengsue debt or access our revolving credit linesee in compliance with our covenants as
of September 30, 2008.

Security Ratings

Our access to the capital markets, including theroercial paper market, and their respective finagnciosts in those markets depent
the securities ratings of the entity that is acioesthe capital markets. We primarily access thgtahmarkets, including the commercial pa
market, through AWCC. However, we do issue deluatregulated subsidiaries, primarily in the forfriax exempt securities, to lower our
overall cost of debt. The following table shows @@mpany’s securities ratings as of September G082

Moody’s Investors Standard & Poor’s
Securities Service Ratings Service
Senior unsecured de Baa: BBB+
Commercial pape Pz A2

On June 19, 2008, Standard & Poor’s Ratings Ses\({8&P) downgraded the senior unsecured issuegrafiAWCC to
“BBB+"(stable outlook) from “A-" (negative outlook)n addition, S&P assigned a “BBB+" corporate Gtreating to American Water and
affrmed AWCC's “A-2" short-term rating.

Moody'’s rating outlook for both American Water afld/CC is stable.

A security rating is not a recommendation to b&yi, & hold securities and may be subject to revisir withdrawal at any time by the
assigning rating agency, and each rating shoukbkiated independently of any other rating. Sécuatings are highly dependent upon our
ability to generate cash flows from financing apei@ting activities in an amount sufficient to seevour debt and meet our investment pl:
We can provide no assurance that our ability teegge cash flow is sufficient to maintain our exigtratings.

None of our borrowings are subject to default @payment as a result of a downgrading of secuafih®ugh such a downgrading
could increase fees and interest charges undaredit facilities.

As part of the normal course of business, we relitienter into contracts for the purchase and ciaeater, energy, fuels and other
services. These contracts either contain expresgsons or otherwise permit us and our counter@aitb demand adequate assurance of
future performance when there are reasonable geofandioing so. In accordance with the contractsapplicable contract law, if we are
downgraded by a credit rating agency, especiallych downgrade is to a level below investmentegrads possible that a counterparty
would attempt to rely on such a downgrade as alfasimaking a demand for adequate assurancewkfperformance. Depending on our
net position with a counterparty, the demand cdweldor the posting of collateral. In the absence)qfressly agreed provisions that specify
the collateral that must be provided, the obligato supply the collateral requested will be a fiorcof the facts and circumstances of the
Company’s situation at the time of the demand.dfaan reasonably claim that we are willing andrfaially able to perform our obligations,
it may be possible to successfully argue that llatesal should be posted or that only an amoungétp two or three months of future
payments should be sufficient. We do not expepbtst any collateral which will have a material ageeimpact on the Company’s results of
operation, financial position or cash flows.
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Current Credit Market Position

Due to recent market developments, including aesedf rating agency downgrades of subprime U.Stgage-related assets, a decline
in the fair value of subprime-related investmeirtsreased volatility in the capital markets andeseviquidity crises at major financial
institutions, the Company performed an assessmatgtermine the impact, if any, of current marlatditions on the Company’s financial
position. As of September 30, 2008 there were rectiinvestments in subprime mortgage-related asg¢hin the Company’s short-term
investment balances.

The Company also performed an assessment of igstiments held in trusts, which will be used by@oenpany to satisfy future
obligations under the Company’s pension and pasgneént benefit plans. Based upon this assessiiheetermined that e minimis portion
of the holdings within the trusts are directly isted in subprime mortgage-related assets, auatendebt securities or securities of weakened
financial institutions. The Company does not baditivat any decline in the fair value of these ahemassets will have a material impact on
its results of operations or its future cash fugdiequirements.

The Companys retirement trust assets are exposed to the nyaikes of debt and equity securities. Changebkdadtirement trust ass
value can impact the Company’s pension and otheeflie expense, funded status and future minimumdifig requirements. Our risk is
reduced through our ability to recover pension atfeétr benefit costs through rates. In addition spmand other benefits liabilities decrease
as fixed income asset values decrease (fixed ingostas rise) since the rate at which we discowmtgion and other retirement trust asset
future obligations is highly correlated to fixedaome yields.

The Company also assessed the impact of the skpeidity crises at major financial institutions ¢ime Company’s ability to access
capital markets on reasonable terms. On Septenth@008, the Company was unable to access sharthiguidity through its A-2/P-2 rated
commercial paper program. The Company therefolieedi its credit facilities to repay maturing conmeial paper and fund its short-term
liquidity needs. Although the Company’s credit figisyndicate banks are currently meeting allhait lending obligations, there can be no
assurance that these banks will be able to meietabkgations in the future if the liquidity criseéntensify or are protracted. The current
adverse market conditions have also temporarilsyael the Company’s plans to issue long-term delok tlae Company expects future long-
term debt issuances to be at higher interest théesincurred on its most recently issued long-tdeft.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had isshealjgh its subsidiaries, $120.3 million of variald¢ée demand bonds, which are
periodically remarketed. We can provide no asswatticat the bonds will be remarketed successfulit ceasonable interest rates. Bonds
totaling $24.9 million are issued by Illinois Ameain Water, bonds totaling $8.6 million are issugd\izona American Water and the
remaining $86.9 million of bonds are issued by AWQ®D March 28, 2008, the Company, through its sliasi, entered into a standby bond
purchase agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, Buacéssor to Bank One, N.A.), which agreed to @mgethe bonds issued by lllinois
American Water if remarketing funds are unavailable of November 4, 2008, $24.2 million of bondsevkeld by JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. These bonds bear interest at a rate of upegtime rate plus 1.0%. The standby bond purcagssement with JPMorgan Chase Be
NA. expires on March 28, 2009, and we can provigl@assurances that this agreement will be exteridezlvariable rate demand deb
classified as long-term since the Company expéetsiebt to remarket successfully and the Compapgas to extend the maturity of the
standby purchase agreement. The Company can prowidesurances that it will continue to remarkettibnds successfully or extend the
standby bond purchase agreement. If the Compamota@market the bonds or extend the maturity efstiandby bond purchase agreement,
the bonds will be classified as short-term debt.

At this time the Company does not believe recenkatalisruptions will impact its long-term abilitg obtain financing. The Company
expects to have access to liquidity in the capitatkets on favorable terms before the maturitysiafets current credit facilities and the
Company does not expect a significant number déintders to default on their commitments thereunideaddition, the Company can delay
major capital investments or pursue financing fiatimer sources to preserve liquidity, if necess@he Company believes it can rely upon
cash flows from operations to meet its obligatiand fund its minimum required capital investmewtsan extended period of time.

Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk associated with dmimgcommodity prices, equity prices and interatgs. We use a combination of
fixed-rate and variable-rate debt to reduce intas exposure. As of September 30, 2008 a hypo#hd 0% increase in interest rates
associated with variable rate debt would resuét $0.2 million decrease in our pre-tax earningg. i3ks associated with price increase for
chemicals, electricity and other commodities atioed through contracts and the ability to recqvime increases through rates. Non-
performance by these commodity suppliers could lzeweterial impact on our results of operationshdéows and financial position.
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Our common stock began trading on the New York ISExchange on April 23, 2008. The market price wf common stock may
experience fluctuations, many of which are unrelateour operating performance. In particular, stock price may be affected by general
market movements as well as developments spedtyfiedhted to the water and wastewater industresehcould include, among other thin
interest rate movements, quarterly variations anges in financial estimates by securities anabstsgovernmental or regulatory actions.
This volatility may make it difficult for us to aess the capital markets in the future through atdit offerings of our common stock,
regardless of our financial performance, and sufficaty may preclude us from being able to taklvantage of certain business
opportunities or meet business obligations.

We are exposed to credit risk through our watestewsater and other water-related activities fohlmir Regulated and Non-Regulated
Businesses. Our Regulated Businesses serve rdaldeammmercial, industrial and municipal custometsle our Non-Regulated Businesses
engage in business activities with developers, goaent entities and as well as other customersp@urary credit risk is exposure to
customer default on contractual obligations andabsociated loss that may be incurred due to thpayment of customer account receivable
balances. Our credit risk is managed through asted credit and collection policies which are @ampliance with applicable regulatory
requirements and involve, monitoring of customgrasure, and the use of credit risk mitigation meassuch as letters of credit or
prepayment arrangements. Our credit portfolio vedified with no significant customer or industigncentrations. In addition, our Regule
Businesses are generally able to recover all pthderturred costs including uncollectible custoraecounts receivable expenses and
collection costs through rates.

We are also exposed to a potential national ecomomsiession or further deterioration in local egoimoconditions in the markets in
which we operate. The credit quality of our custoaeounts receivable is dependent on the econohyhe ability of our customers to
manage through unfavorable economic cycles and atheket changes. In addition, as a result of therdurn in the economy and
heightened sensitivity of the impact of additioratke increases on certain customers, there can bBesurances that regulators will grant
sufficient rate authorizations. Therefore our &pito fully recover operating expense, recoveriauestment and provide an appropriate re
on invested capital made in our Regulated Busisassgy be adversely impacted.

Application of Critical Accounting Palicies and Estimates

Our financial condition, results of operations aagh flows are impacted by the methods, assumptiot®stimates used in the
application of critical accounting policies. Seedivagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialditan and Results of Operations—
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates,” in dRulle 424(b)(4) prospectus filed on April 24, 200igh the Securities and Exchange
Commission for a discussion of the critical accounpolicies.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Part I, Item 1 — Financial Statements (UnadgitédNote 2—New Accounting Pronouncements in this i@uly Report on Form 10-
Q for a discussion of new accounting standardsntgcadopted or pending adoption.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are subject to market risks in the normal coofdmisiness, including changes in interest ratesemuity prices. For further
discussion of market risks see “Market Risk” intRaltem 2—Management’s Discussion and Analysi§iofancial Condition and Results of
Operations.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaess that are designed to ensure that informagiquired to be disclosed in the
reports filed or submitted under the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Actfecorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in tren@nission’s rules and forms and that such inforamais accumulated and communicated to
the Companys management including its principal executive timahcial officers, as appropriate to allow timelkycisions regarding requir:
disclosure.

As of the end of the period covered by this repbe, Company’s management evaluated the effecthgeniethe design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Radel5(b) of the Exchange Act. This evaluation d@ase under the supervision and with
the participation of management, including our Rierst and Chief Executive Officer and our Chiefdtinial Officer.
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Based on this evaluation and because of the miteziknesses described below, the Company’s Chiefiive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that the Companijsslosure controls and procedures were not éffeets of September 30, 2008.
Notwithstanding these material weaknesses, manageauecluded that the financial statements includetiis Form 1-Q for the three and
nine-months ended September 30, 2008 fairly preeait material respects their financial positioesults of operations and cash flows for
the periods presented in conformity with accounprigciples generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

Material Weaknessesin Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a control deficiency or mbimation of control deficiencies that results inmmthan a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim otidated financial statements will not be preventedetected.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting. Our internal control
over financial reporting is a process designedtwide reasonable assurance regarding the retiabilifinancial reporting and the preparat
of financial statements in accordance with gengidcepted accounting principles. However, from32@0April 28, 2008, we were an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of RWE and, asri@gtely owned company, were not required to maingasystem of effective internal
control consistent with those reported upon by rgangent in compliance with the requirements of tR€ &nd the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or to
prepare our own consolidated financial stateméekgsa public reporting company, we are required, mgnather things, to maintain a system
of effective internal control over financial repad suitable to prepare our publicly reported ficiahstatements in a timely and accurate
manner, and also to evaluate and report on su¢treya internal control. In particular, we are reqd to certify our compliance with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the yraled December 31, 2009, which will require useidggm system and process evaluation
and testing of our internal control over financigborting to allow management and our independsgistered public accounting firm to rey
on the effectiveness of our internal control oveaficial reporting.

In connection with the preparation of our consdkdifinancial statements as of December 31, 20@&nvd our independent registered
public accountants identified the following matérieeaknesses in our internal control over financéglorting:

. Inadequate internal staffing and skil

. Inadequate controls over financial reporting preess

. Inadequate controls over mo-end closing processes, including account recotioitig;

. Inadequate controls over maintenance of contrantsagreement:

. Inadequate controls over segregation of dutiesresttiction of access to key accounting applicaj@mnd
. Inadequate controls over tax accounting and acgr

Remediation of Material Weaknesses

Since joining the Company in 2006, Donald L. Cdrmalir Chief Executive Officer, and Ellen C. Wabir Chief Financial Officer, hax
assigned a high priority to the evaluation and miateon of our internal controls, and have takematous steps to remediate these material
weaknesses and to evaluate and strengthen ouriotlieral controls over financial reporting. Sonféte actions taken include:

. Increasing our internal financial staff numbers akitl levels, and using external resources to fmpnt our internal staff when
necessary
. Implementing detailed processes and proceduretedeia our period end financial closing proceskeg,accounting applications

and our financial reporting process
. Implementing or enhancing systems used in the éi@hneporting processes and mc-end close processe

. Conducting extensive training on existing and negddyeloped processes and procedures as well asirgrglto employees
Sarbane-Oxley Act requirements and the value of internaitoals;

. Enhancing our internal audit sta
. Hiring a director of internal control and a directd taxes during 200"
. Implementing a tracking mechanism and new poliay procedure for approval of all contracts and agesgs; anc

. Retaining a nationally recognized accounting arditang firm to assist management in developingget and procedures
surrounding internal controls over financial repagt to evaluate and test these internal contnodsta assist in the remediation of
internal control deficiencie:
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With respect to the material weaknesses describedea we have formulated remediation plans whiclbeleeve address the areas of
material weakness and tested the effectivenessmifals. Based on these actions and the lengtimefwe believe that certain controls have
been operating effectively, as of September 3082@@ no longer consider the following control defihcies to be material weaknesses:

. Inadequate internal staffing and skills; ¢
. Inadequate controls over mo-end closing processes, including account recotioitia.

While we believe that remediation procedures relabethe identified material weaknesses are subialigncomplete, our testing
procedures have not yet been fully completed. TTherewe can make no assurances as to the sudoagsremediation efforts.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had inc@#8&d8 million to remediate these material weakressel to document and test |
financial reporting controls. We will need to alite additional resources to enhance the qualibuostaff and to carry out the remediation of
these deficiencies. Based upon our current assesswee expect to complete our remediation procesdtekated to the identified material
weaknesses during 2008 with an estimated additcoet|of approximately $0.4 million. The Companymat indicate with certainty that all
deficiencies, including material weaknesses, valfbmediated or what additional costs may be iecluffhe Company needs to finalize its
remediation efforts of the controls and completetdsting of the effectiveness of controls priocdocluding controls are effective. As a
condition to state Public Utility Commissions’ appal of the RWE divestiture, we agreed that castsiired in connection with our initial
internal control and remediation initiatives woulot be recoverable in rates charged to our cussmer

Elements of our remediation activities can onlyabeomplished over time, and our initiatives provideassurances that they will result
in an effective internal control environment. Owabd of directors, in coordination with our audinemittee, will continually assess the
progress and sufficiency of these initiatives arakenadjustments, as necessary.

The Company believes the additional control procesias designed, when implemented, will fully reragdthe material weaknesses
described above.

Changesin Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Except as described above, there were no changainal control over financial reporting for ttieee or nine-months ended
September 30, 2008, that have materially affeciedre reasonably likely to materially affect, tbempany’s internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Legal Proceedings

There have been no material developments or rdgeréavents from legal proceedings previously disetbin “Legal Proceedings” in
the Company'’s Rule 424(b)(4) prospectus filed Ap4] 2008, other than as described below.

In 2001, our California American Water Company sdibsy, which we refer to as CAWC, entered intooagervation agreement with
the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administratiohich we refer to as NOAA, requiring CAWC to ireptent certain measures to pro
the steelhead trout and its habitat in the CarnedRvatershed, study the removal of the San CleéenBam and explore long-term water
sources other than a new reservoir in the CarmadrR&ince that time, CAWC has implemented a nurobetreasures to reduce the impac
its operations on the steelhead trout and othaispand has begun the environmental review amditigrg process for our Coastal Water
Project, which is intended to remedy some of tliedoing deficiencies. In early 2004, NOAA inform@AWC of its concern that CAWC'’s
ongoing operations would cause the “take” of sigaiit numbers of steelhead trout during the severahining years required to implement
the Coastal Water Project. In June 2006, CAWC a®d\N entered a settlement agreement whereby CAWEeabto fund certain additional
projects to improve habitat conditions for andiaithe recovery of steelhead trout in the CarmgeRivatershed. Under the settlement
agreement, CAWC is required, among other thingmadke an initial payment of $3.5 million plus sixmal installments of $1.1 million. Tl
settlement agreement requires that all payment&mgadC AWC to NOAA to be used for mitigation projeat the Carmel River watershed.
NOAA is currently unable to ensure that settlenpmaytments will be used for mitigation projects ie tharmel River watershed, and
payments have been made to date. CAWC is prepamaadke the settlement payments once NOAA is abtendirm that settlement
payments will be applied as required by the settl@nagreement. We have established a reservedmettiement agreement payments.
NOAA has agreed not to assess any penalties onvaeeprosecute CAWC for ar‘take” of steelhead trout, so long as CAWC complies '
the settlement agreement. On March 14, 2008, teeSClub and the Carmel River Steelhead Assodiatatified CAWC of their intent to
file a citizen suit, 60 days therefrom, for viotats of the federal Endangered Species Act allethiadgtake” of steelhead trout by CAWC
along the Carmel River and seeking injunctive febeaeduce river water diversions and increaserrflow and fish passage facilities. No
such suit was filed, however, the Sierra Club dr@dGarmel River Steelhead Association recentlyl fde administrative complaint with the
California State Water Resources Control Boardhwilag that certain fish passage facilities do noetexisting permit requirements. In
addition, the State Water Resource Control Boardntly has held administrative hearings to addeksms that CAWC has exceeded its
water diversion rights in the Carmel River and hasdiligently pursued establishing an alternatixsger supply as required by an
administrative order issued to CAWC by the StatdéaVResource Control Board in 1995. A decisiontos matter is expected in December
of 2008, at the earliest. Although CAWC believelsas continued to comply with its obligations unther State Water Resource Board’'s 1995
order, as well as the settlement agreement and CA\WEmIt requirements, we can not assure youahgffuture requirements by the State
Water Resources Control Board arising from the enatturrently before it or other permit modificatsowould not result in material
additional costs or obligations to us.

CAWC, NJAW and Long Island Water Corporation areteglaintiffs in lawsuits relating to contaminatiby methyl tertiary butyl ether
(MTBE) and other gasoline additives, in which tils@gk to recover cleanup and treatment costs gmabtect certain of their groundwater
supplies. The defendants in both cases are oithanhical companies that manufacture MTBE, refireoliae containing MTBE, and/or
supply gasoline containing MTBE to retail gasolatations. The cases were consolidated with casetving other plaintiffs in multidistrict
litigation pending in the United States Districtu€ofor the Southern District of New YorKif Re: Methyl Tertiary Butyl Ether Products
Liability Litigation , Case No. MDL 1358 SAS). As a result of court-oedemediation, CAWC, NJAW, Long Island Water Cogtan and
the other plaintiffs agreed to settle the lawswith some of the named defendants, who repressiginiicant portion of the total national
refining capacity for MTBE. Under the settlemenhigh was approved by the court in August 2008, CAWMTAW and Long Island Water
Corporation expect to receive payments, after dityattorneys’ fees and litigation expenses, otghpproximately $15.4 million in the
aggregate to treat wells that were contaminateMBBE at the time of the settlement. The settlinfeddants are obligated to pay a
significant share of treatment costs for any wilis become contaminated by MTBE above certain@atnation levels over the next 30
years. CAWC, NJAW and Long Island Water Corporaapect to continue to litigate their claims agathe remaining nc-settling
defendants. Although we do not currently expecdpemand future treatment costs for MTBE contaniorato be material, there can be no
guarantee that CAWC, NJAW or Long Island Water @oagion will be able to recover all of their respiee costs relating to any past or
future discovery of MTBE in their wells from any thfe settling defendants by means of any pendirigtare litigation, or through their rate
cases.

Our Terratec Environmental Ltd. subsidiary, which rgfer to as Terratec, is subject to and has beeplying with an Order by the
Ontario Ministry of the Environment (MOE) issued Ogtober 31, 2006 requiring it to take steps tokén certain
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biosolids that had been more susceptible to sgilthging transport. MOE has conducted an investigatf four such transport spillage
incidents involving Terratec that occurred priothe issuance of the Order and has laid chargessaderratec under applicable
environmental legislation carrying minimum fines@dn $100,000 per incident. Terratec and the MQ@Ecarrently negotiating a resolution
of these matters, which the Company does not expeaesult in settlement or other costs that wdnddnaterially adverse to its operations or
financial condition.

Periodically, we are involved in other proceedingétigation arising in the ordinary course of mess. We do not believe that the
ultimate resolution of these matters will mateyiaffect our financial position or results of opt#oas.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information set forth imstreport, you should carefully consider the festdiscussed in the “Risk Factoiig"the
Company’s Rule 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 2808, and our other public filings, which couldterélly affect our business, financial
condition or future results. There have been nenwtchanges from risk factors previously disctbse“Risk Factors” in the Company’s
Rule 424(b)(4) prospectus filed April 24, 2008 anat Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended M&th2008 filed on May 14, 2008, other
than as described below.

Market disruptions could affect our ability to meet our liquidity needs.

We rely on our revolving credit facility and thepital markets to satisfy our liquidity needs. Digtions in the credit markets may
discourage lenders from meeting their existing isgpdommitments, extending the terms of such comesitts or agreeing to new
commitments. Market disruptions may also limit ability to issue debt securities in the capital kets. On September 15, 2008, we sought
to issue commercial paper but were unable to comatmthe issuance due to adverse market conditioasder to meet our short-term
liquidity needs we are borrowing under our exist#890.0 million revolving credit facility, which veascheduled to expire on September 15,
2012. On September 15, 2008, a majority of ourdesadgreed to extend $685.0 million of commitmemder this revolving credit facility to
September 15, 2013. AWCC had $147.2 million of utding borrowings and $42.9 million of outstandietjers of credit under this credit
facility as of November 4, 2008. AWCC had $148.1lion of outstanding overnight commercial papeo&slovember 4, 2008. We can
provide no assurances that our lenders will mest #xisting commitments or that we will be ableatwess the commercial paper or loan
markets in the future on terms acceptable to w all.

Our Non-Regulated Businesses, through American Water (excluding our regulated subsidiaries), provide performance guarantees and
other forms of financial security to our public-sector clientsthat could be claimed by our clients or potential clients if we do not meet
certain obligations.

Under the terms of some of our indebtedness an@ sfrour agreements for the provision of servicewater and wastewater facilities
with the municipalities, other governmental entitend other customers, American Water (excludmegeigulated subsidiaries) provides
guarantees of the performance of our Non-ReguBteihesses, including financial guarantees or deppds ensure performance of certain
obligations. At September 30, 2008, we had remgipgrformance commitments as measured by rematoingyjact revenue totaling
approximately $1,680.2 million, and this amourlikely to increase if our Non-Regulated Businespesv. The presence of these
commitments may adversely affect our financial d¢toil and make it more difficult for us to secuneancing on attractive terms. In addition,
if the obligor on the instrument fails to perforerin obligations to the satisfaction of the painigt holds the performance commitments,
party may seek to enforce the performance commitsregainst us or proceed against the depositatretient, our financial condition, rest
of operations, cash flow and liquidity could be exbely affected.

We have recorded a significant amount of goodwill, and we may never realize the full value of our intangible assets, causing us to record
impairments that may negatively affect our results of operations or require us to effect additional dilutive equity issuances.

Our total assets include substantial goodwill. Ap@mber 30, 2008, our goodwill totaled $1,704.8iani The goodwill is primarily
associated with the acquisition of American Wateab affiliate of RWE in 2003 and the acquisitidrEsTown Corporation in 2001.
Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase phie purchaser paid over the fair value of thearaible and intangible assets acquired.
Goodwill is recorded at fair value on the date mbaquisition and, in accordance with Statemeirindncial Accounting Standards No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” or SFAS Nd2, is reviewed annually or more frequently iofes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Annual impant reviews are performed at November 30 of gaeln and interim reviews are
performed when management determines that a tiiggevent has occurred. We have been requiredlexteas required by SFAS No. 142
and other applicable accounting rules, a non-chalhge to operating
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results for goodwill impairment in the amounts 88%.3 million, $227.8 million, and $509.3 millioorfthe years ended December 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. These amounts inégtagdairments relating to discontinued operationsadifor the three months ended
March 31, 2008 we recorded a goodwill impairmerthim amount of $750.0 million.

While our annual goodwill impairment test is conhatat November 30, we have processes to monitantierim triggering events.
During the third quarter of 2007, management detezththat it was appropriate to update its valumginalysis as a result of our debt being
placed on review for a possible downgrade and ttieipated sale of a portion of the Company inioitral public offering. As a result of th:
update, we recorded an impairment charge to gobdfvilur Regulated Businesses in the amount of &48llion in the third quarter of
2007. That decline in the value of our goodwill vpasnarily due to a slightly lower long-term eargsforecast caused by updated customer
demand and usage expectations and expectatiotimfog of capital expenditures and rate recovery.

When we completed our annual goodwill impairmest fer 2007 we determined that an impairment todgol had occurred based
upon new information regarding our market value.itW®rporated this indicated market value into waluation methodology and, based on
those results, recorded an additional goodwill iimpant charge to the Regulated Businesses reparntiitgn the amount of $266.0 million
during the fourth quarter of 2007.

In April of 2008, we determined that it was prol®tidased in large part on the initial public offgrprice of our common stock of
$21.50 and subsequent trading levels, that thgicgrvalue of our goodwill was impaired. At the grthe Company'’s initial public offering
price of $21.50 was established, we were unabtietermine if there was any goodwill impairment@ptovide a reliable estimate of the
amount of goodwill impairment, if any. In light dfe initial public offering price and trading lesedf our common stock since the date of the
initial public offering, we performed an interim pairment test, and on May 9, 2008, we concludetitttgacarrying value of our goodwill w
impaired as a result of the market price and tigutkrels of our common stock. We believe the ihjtigblic offering price was indicative of
the value of the Company at March 31, 2008, andraatgly, based on those factors, recorded an imymait charge to goodwill related to «
Regulated Businesses in the amount of $750.0 milficur financial statements as of and for thedligjuarter ended March 31, 2008. The
impairment charge was primarily due to the markestepof our common stock (both the initial publigesing price and the price during
subsequent trading) being less than that impliethbytrading value of our peer companies during2®@7 annual test. Also contributing to
the impairment was a decline in the fair value wf @debt (due to increased market interest rates).

As a result of the impairment and in accordancé wagulatory commitments, RWE transferred $245 Mionito us on May 13, 2008.
The Equity Contribution was used to reduce shart+tdebt. RWE is not obligated to make any additi@agital contributions. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations—ApplicatiorCoitical Accounting Policies and
Estimates.”

The Company may be required to recognize an impaitras a result of this year’'s annual test ortagrotimes in the future. This
depends on, among other factors, sustained le¥etsuket price declines such as levels experiedcethg October 2008, a decline over a
period of time of the Company’s stock price, a thexbver a period of time in valuation multiplesomimparable water utilities and the lack of
an increase in the Company’s market price congistéh increases in the carrying value or to a leansistent with its peer companies. A
decline in the forecasted results in our businéms, guch as changes in rate case results or kepigstment budgets or changes in our
interest rates, may also result in an incrementgbirment charge. Further recognition of impairnsesfta significant portion of goodwill
would negatively affect the Company’s reported Itssof operations and total capitalization, theseffof which could be material and could
make it more difficult to secure financing on attrae terms and maintain compliance with debt cavis. As a result, we may be required to
issue and sell additional shares of common stookaaket prices, which could be dilutive to existimgders of our common stock.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
None
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

*3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Americaatéf Works Company, In
*3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Water W@isipany, Inc

*10.1 Amendment to the Nonqualified Savings and Defe@ethpensation Plan for Employees of American Waterk&/ Company, Inc.
and its Designated Subsidiaries, effective as ajusti 1, 200¢

*31.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President antdi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302haf Sarban«-Oxley Act
*31.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presitteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sectd@?2 of the Sarban-Oxley Act
*32.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President antdi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906haf Sarban«-Oxley Act
*32.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sec®@6 of the Sarban-Oxley Act

* filed herewith.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

American Water Works Company, Ir
(Registrant’

November 6, 200 /s/ Donald L. Correll

(Date) Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

November 6, 200 /sl Ellen C. Wolf

(Date) Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

*3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Americaatéf Works Company, In
*3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of American Water W@isipany, Inc

*10.1 Amendment to the Nonqualified Savings and Defe@ethpensation Plan for Employees of American Waterk&/ Company, Inc.
and its Designated Subsidiaries, effective as ajusti 1, 200¢

*31.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President antdi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302haf Sarban«-Oxley Act
*31.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presitteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sectd@?2 of the Sarban-Oxley Act
*32.1 Certification of Donald L. Correll, President antdi€f Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 906haf Sarban«-Oxley Act
*32.2 Certification of Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice Presiteand Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Sec®@6 of the Sarban-Oxley Act

* filed herewith.
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RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

American Water Works Company, Inc., a corporatioyaaized under the laws of the State of Delawdme (€orporation”), hereby
certifies as follows:

A. The name of the Corporation is “American Watesé Company, Inc.The Corporation was originally incorporated under ham
“American Communities Companyghd the original Certificate of Incorporation oét@orporation was filed with the Secretary of Stiftthe
State of Delaware on August 28, 1936.

B. This Restated Certificate of Incorporation, whamends the provisions of the Corporatso@ertificate of Incorporation as heretof;
amended, restated and supplemented, was duly adiopthe Board of Directors of the Corporation &éydhe sole stockholder of the
Corporation in accordance with the provisions aftie@s 228, 242 and 245 of the General Corpordtam of the State of Delaware.

C. The text of the Certificate of Incorporationtbé& Corporation, as heretofore amended, restadgplemented, is hereby amended
and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

ARTICLE |

The name of the corporation (hereinafter called'@arporation”) is American Water Works Companyg.In

ARTICLE Il

The address of the Corporation’s registered offidhe State of Delaware is 1209 Orange StregharCity of Wilmington,
County of New Castle, Delaware 19801. The naméeflorporatio’s registered agent at such address is The Corporatust Company
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ARTICLE Il
The purpose of the Corporation is to engage inlawjul act or activity for which corporations mag brganized under the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.
ARTICLE IV

A. Authorized Capital StockThe total number of shares of all classes ofikstioat the Corporation shall have authority to ésisu
550,000,000 shares, divided into two classes comgisf (i) 500,000,000 shares of common stock,vadme $0.01 per share (the “Common
Stock”), and (ii) 50,000,000 shares of preferretist par value $0.01 per share (the “PreferrediSothe following is a statement of the
powers, preferences and rights, and the qualifinatilimitations and restrictions thereof, in rexpe each such class.

B. Preferred StockThe Board of Directors is authorized to providethe issuance from time to time of shares ofdretl Stock in on
or more series and, by filing a certificate purduarthe applicable provisions of the General Coafion Law of the State of Delaware (a
“Preferred Stock Certificate of Designation”), stablish from time to time the number of sharelsadncluded in each such series, with such
powers, designations, preferences and relativéicjpaating, optional or other rights, if any, andaijfications, limitations or restrictions
thereof, if any, as are stated and expressed irewution or resolutions providing for the isscahereof adopted by the Board of Directors
(as such resolutions may be amended by a resolatiogsolutions subsequently adopted by the BoBRlirectors), and as are not stated and
expressed in this Restated Certificate of Incorpamaincluding, but not limited to, determinatiohany of the following:

(1) the distinctive designation of the series, kety number, letter or title, and the numberhares which will constitute the
series, which number may be increased or decréasédot below the number of shares then outstanaliid except to the extent otherwise
provided in the applicable Preferred Stock Ceuificof Designation) from time to time by actiortloé Board of Directors;

(2) the dividend rate, if any, and the times ofrpayt of dividends, if any, on the shares of théeseiwhether such dividends will
be cumulative and, if so, from what date or dades|, the relation which such dividends, if any, khahr to the dividends payable on any ¢
class or classes of stock;

(3) the price or prices at which, and the termsa@mtitions on which, the shares of the series beagedeemed at the option of
Corporation;

(4) whether or not the shares of the series wikhiitled to the benefit of a retirement or sinkfngd to be applied to the purchase
or redemption of such shares and, if so entitleel @mount of such fund and the terms and provigielasive to the operation thereof;
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(5) the amounts payable on, and the preferencanyifof the shares of the series in the evenhpfvaluntary or involuntary
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affaiof the Corporation;

(6) whether or not the shares of the series wiltdrevertible into, or exchangeable for, any othearss of stock of the Corporation
or other securities and, if so convertible or exageable, the conversion price or prices, or thesraf exchange, and any adjustments thereof,
at which such conversion or exchange may be madkeay other terms and conditions of such conversiexchange;

(7) whether or not the shares of the series wilehariority over or be on a parity with or be junto the shares of any other series
or class of stock in any respect, or will be eetitto the benefit of limitations restricting theuance of shares of any other series or class of
stock, restricting the payment of dividends onhar tnaking of other distributions in respect of skasf any other series or class of stock
ranking junior to the shares of the series asuménds or assets, or restricting the purchasedemption of the shares of any such junior
series or class, and the terms of any such rastrjct

(8) whether or not the shares of the series wilehaoting rights in addition to any voting rightopided by law and, if so, the
terms of such voting rights; and

(9) any other terms of the shares of the series.

C. Common Stock

Except as otherwise required by applicable lawsladires of Common Stock shall be identical inedpects and shall entitle the holders
thereof to the same rights, subject to the saméfigations, limitations and restrictions. The tegmof the Common Stock set forth below shall
be subject to the express terms of any serieseféffed Stock.

(1) Dividends. As, if and when dividends are declared or pa@tebn, whether in cash, property or securitieh@fGorporation,
the holders of Common Stock shall be entitled tdigipate in such dividends ratably on a per slass.

(2) Voting Rights. Except as otherwise required by applicable & Holders of Common Stock shall be entitled toate per
share on all matters to be voted on by the Corfmratstockholders. No stockholder of the Corpanatshall be entitled to exercise any right
of cumulative voting.

(3) Liguidation Rights The holders of Common Stock shall be entitlegadicipate ratably on a per share basis in aftidigtions
to holders of Common Stock as a result of the digtion, dissolution or winding up of the Corporatio
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ARTICLE V

The number of directors of the Corporation shalfibed from time to time in the manner providedlie Bylaws.

ARTICLE VI

In furtherance and not in limitation of the poweamferred upon it by law, the Board of Directordted Corporation is expressly
authorized to adopt, amend or repeal the Bylawh®fCorporation without the assent or vote of thelolders of the Corporation. The
stockholders may, at any annual or special meetirtge stockholders of the Corporation, duly cabed upon proper notice thereof, make,
alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws by the affirmatiote of the holders of not less than a majorfitthe then outstanding stock of the
Corporation entitled to vote generally in the atatiof directors.

ARTICLE VII

Unless and except to the extent that the BylawkefCorporation so require, the election of direstaf the Corporation need not
be by written ballot.

ARTICLE VI

No director of the Corporation shall be personbdlle to the Corporation or its stockholders favmatary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty as a director; providedhowever, that the foregoing shall not eliminate or lintietliability of a director (A) for any breach of
the director’s duty of loyalty to the Corporationits stockholders, (B) for acts or omissions mogood faith or which involve intentional
misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (C) und@arction 174 of the General Corporation Law of$tete of Delaware, or (D) for any
transaction from which the director derived an iogar personal benefit.

Any repeal or modification of this Article by theoskholders of the Corporation shall be prospeatinky, and shall not affect, to
the detriment of any director, any limitation o fhersonal liability of a director of the Corpoacatiexisting at the time of such repeal or
modification.

ARTICLE IX

Each person who is or was or had agreed to becatirecor or officer of the Corporation, and eaabtsperson who is or was
serving or who had agreed to serve



KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 147 of 184

at the request of the Corporation as a directdiceaf partner, member, trustee, employee or ageahother corporation, partnership, limited
liability company, joint venture, trust or otherterprise (including the heirs, executor, admintstraor estate of such person), shall be
indemnified by the Corporation to the fullest extparmitted from time to time by applicable law.

ARTICLE X

Any action required or permitted to be taken bygtoezkholders of the Corporation must be effecteal@duly called annual or
special meeting of the stockholders of the Corponatnd the ability of the stockholders to consemntriting to the taking of any action is
specifically denied.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Restated Certificate afdrporation of the Corporation has been executeitstuly authorized officer this .
thday of April, 2008.

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

by /sl George W. Patrick
Name: George W. Patric

Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

a Delaware corporation

As adopted on March 31, 2008
with effect from April 22, 200¢

Exhibit 3.2
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS OF

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.
a Delaware corporation

As adopted on March 31, 2008
with effect from April 22, 2008
ARTICLE |
Offices

SECTION 1. Registered OfficeThe registered office of American Water Works @amy, Inc. (the “Corporation”) in the State of
Delaware shall be located in the City of Wilmington

SECTION 2. Other OfficesThe Corporation may also have offices in suclkgdawithin or without the State of Delaware, as th
Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Boardiay from time to time determine or the businesthefCorporation may require.

ARTICLE Il

Meetings of Stockholders

SECTION 1. Annual MeetingsThe annual meeting of the stockholders for tleetedn of directors and for such other business as
may properly come before the meeting shall be aeklich place (within or without the State of Deda®), date and hour as shall be
designated by the Board or as shall be designatdginotice or waiver of notice there




KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 154 of 184

SECTION 2. Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the stockholders may be delg upon call by the Board or the Chairman of
the Board or President or a stockholder or stoaldrs| holding at least 15% of the shares of stock@forporation issued and outstanding
and entitled to be voted at the meeting, at suabephnd at such time and date as may be fixedeblyatly or person or persons giving such
call, and as may be stated in the notice settirt) &uch call. Only business within the purpospunposes described in the notice or waive
notice required by these Bylaws may be conductedspecial meeting of the stockholders.

SECTION 3. Notice of Meetings(a) Each stockholder of record of each classamksof the Corporation then outstanding and
entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholderdldfemgiven written notice of such meeting, whidaftioe shall state the place, date and hoi
the meeting, and, in the case of a special medtiegourpose or purposes for which the meetinglie@. Each stockholder receiving such a
notice shall be entitled to attend such meetingelpkas otherwise expressly required by law, natfa@ach meeting of stockholders shall be
given not less than ten nor more than sixty daysrbahe date of such meeting to each stockholdtlerl to vote at such meeting.

(b) Attendance of a stockholder at a meeting staaiktitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, gxeghen the stockhold
attends for the express purpose of objecting ab#yénning of the meeting to the transaction of langiness because the meeting is not
lawfully called or convened



KAW_R_AGDR1#129 122308 Page 155 of 184

SECTION 4. Quorum At each meeting of the stockholders, except sratise expressly required by law or the Corporesio
Restated Certificate of Incorporation, stockholdeskling a majority of the shares of stock of trar@dration issued and outstanding and
entitled to be voted at the meeting shall be preisgperson or by proxy to constitute a quorumtfar transaction of business. In the absence
of a quorum at any such meeting or any adjournmeatjournments thereof, a majority in voting iet&rof those present in person or by
proxy and entitled to vote thereat, or any offiestitled to preside at, or to act as secretargudh meeting may adjourn such meeting until
stockholders holding the amount of stock requisitea quorum are present in person or by proxyamyt such adjourned meeting at which a
guorum may be present, any business may be tradsattich might have been transacted at the mea$iragiginally called.

SECTION 5. OrganizationMeetings of stockholders shall be presided oyahb Chairman of the Board, or in his or her absen
by the President, or such other person as the Boayddetermine. The Secretary shall act as segretdhe meeting, and in his or her abse
such other person as the person presiding ovenésting may appoint.

SECTION 6. Voting When a quorum is present, the affirmative votthefmajority of shares present in person or reprtesl by
proxy at the meeting and entitled to vote on tHgestt matter shall be the act of the stockholdentess the question is one upon which by
express provisions of an applicable law, the rales regulations of any stock exchange or quotaysitem applicable to the Corporation,

3
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these Bylaws or the Corporation’s Restated Ceatifi®f Incorporation, a different vote is requirgdwhich case such express provision shall
govern and control the decision of such question.

SECTION 7._Notice of Stockholder Business and Natims. (a) Annual Meetings of Stockholders

(i) Nominations of persons for election to the Bband the proposal of business to be considergdebgtockholders may be
made at an annual meeting of stockholders (A) st ¢ine direction of the Chairman of the Boardher Board generally,
(B) pursuant to the Corporatianhotice of meeting (or any supplement theretqiCytby any stockholder of the Corporation wh
entitled to vote at the meeting and who complie wie notice procedures set forth in clausesf (iii) of this paragraph and
who was a stockholder of record at the time sudlteds delivered to the Secretary.

(i) For nominations or other business to be priyperought before an annual meeting by a stockholulérsuant to clause
(C) of paragraph (a)(i) of this Section 7 (or befarspecial meeting of stockholders pursuant tagsaph (b) of this Section 7), t
stockholder must have given timely notice theraofriting to the Secretary and any such proposesihiess other than the
nominations of persons for election to the Boardnwonstitute a proper matter for stockholder actim be timely, a
stockholders notice shall be delivered to the Secretary aptheeipal executive offices of the Corporation tegs than ninety da
prior to the first anniversary of the date of tmegeding year's annual

4
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meeting; provided however, that if the Corporation did not hold an annuaktirey the preceding year or if the date of the ahnu
meeting is changed by more than thirty days froend&te of the preceding year’s annual meetinge tontely, notice by the
stockholder must be delivered not later than tinetreth day prior to the date of the annual medfimgif later, the tenth day
following the day on which public announcementiistfmade of the date of the annual meeting arti@hominees proposed by
the Board to be elected at such meeting). In natesteall the adjournment of an annual meeting conome new time period for
the giving of a stockholder’s notice as describeova. Such stockholder’s notice shall set forth 8o each person whom the
stockholder proposes to nominate for election efe@ion as a director, all information relatingstech person that is required tc
disclosed in solicitations of proxies for electimindirectors, or is otherwise required, in eachegasrsuant to Regulation 14A un
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended'Bkchange Act”), in each case including any sasoerule or regulation
thereto, including such person’s written conserdgimg named in the proxy statement as a noming¢caserving as a director if
elected; (B) as to any other business that thekktdder proposes to bring before the meeting, ef loiéscription of the business
desired to be brought before the meeting, the reaf&o conducting such business at the meetingaagdnaterial interest in such
business of such stockholder and of any benefivisder on whose behalf the proposal is made; an&$@) the stockholder
giving the notice and any beneficial owner on whioskalf the nomination or proposal is made (1)thme and address of such
stockholder, as
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they appear on the Corporation’s books, and theepanidress and phone number of such beneficialp\&jehe number and
class of shares of capital stock of the Corporatibith are owned beneficially and of record by ssititkholder and such
beneficial owner, (3) a description of any andaathngements or understandings between such stdekremd such beneficial
owner, (4) a representation that the stockholderhislder of record of stock of the Corporationitat to vote at such meeting a
intends to appear in person or by proxy at the imgéb propose such business or nomination and (Bpresentation as to whet
the stockholder or the beneficial owner, if anyeirds or is part of a group which intends (x) tbvae a proxy statement and/or
form of proxy to holders of at least the percentafjhe Corporation’s outstanding capital stockuieed to approve or adopt the
proposal or elect the nominee and/or (y) otherwassolicit proxies from stockholders in supporsath proposal or nomination.
The foregoing notice requirements shall be deeragsfied by a stockholder if the stockholder hasfieal the Corporation of his
or her intention to present a proposal at an anme&lting in compliance with Rule 14a-8 (or any ®esor thereto) promulgated
under the Exchange Act and such stockholder’s maldmas been included in a proxy statement thabkes prepared by the
Corporation to solicit proxies for such annual nregetThe Corporation may require any proposed nemio furnish such other
information as it may reasonably require to detamnhe eligibility of such proposed nominee to seas a director of the
Corporation.
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(iii) Notwithstanding anything in the second semief paragraph (a)(ii) of this Section 7 to thetcary, in the event that tl
number of directors to be elected to the Boarddseiased and there is no public announcement mathe lCorporation naming .
of the nominees for director or specifying the $it¢he increased Board at least ninety days poidne first anniversary of the
date of the preceding year's annual meeting, &ktider’s notice under this paragraph shall alsedresidered timely, but only
with respect to nominees for any new positionstextly such increase, if it shall be deliverech® $ecretary at the principal
executive offices of the Corporation not later thitaa close of business on the tenth day followiregday on which such public
announcement is first made by the Corporation.

(b) Special Meetings of Stockholder®nly such business as shall have been brougbté#fe special meeting of the
stockholders pursuant to the notice or waiver dicecof the meeting shall be conducted at such imgpetlominations of persons for election
to the Board may be made at a special meetingpoklsblders at which directors are to be electedymumt to the notice or waiver of notice of
the meeting (i) by or at the direction of the Badii) by the stockholder or stockholders who ddléeich meeting or (iii) by any other
stockholder of the Corporation who is entitled ttevat such meeting, who complies with the notime@dures set forth in this Section 7 and
who is a stockholder of record at the time sucliceas delivered to the Secretary. Nominations dighsother stockholders of persons for
election to the Board may be made at such spe@ating of stockholders if the stockholder’s notiserequired by paragraph (a)(ii) of this
Section 7 shall be delivered to the Secretaryeaptincipal
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executive offices of the Corporation not later thia@ ninetieth day prior to the date of the speatiaéting (or, if later, the tenth day following
the day on which public announcement is first mafdihe date of the special meeting and of the nessrproposed by the Board to be ele
at such meeting). In no event shall the adjournméatspecial meeting commence a new time periothfogiving of a stockholder’s notice
as described above.

(c) General Other than as set forth in Article 1ll, Sectioméreof, only persons who are nominated in accaaanth the
procedures set forth in this Section 7 shall bgifdk to serve as directors and only such busigsieall be conducted at a meeting of
stockholders as shall have been brought beformtfeting in accordance with the procedures set forthis Section 7. Except as otherwise
provided by law, the chairman of the meeting shalle the power and duty to determine whether a matioin or any business proposed to be
brought before the meeting was made in accordaitbetive procedures set forth in this Section 7 énalhy proposed nomination or business
is not in compliance with this Section 7, to deelirat such defective proposal or nomination dielflisregarded.

SECTION 8. Postponement and Cancellation of Meet#ugy previously scheduled annual or special mgetiithe stockholders
may be postponed, and any previously scheduledadiongpecial meeting of the stockholders calledngyBoard may be canceled, by
resolution of the Board upon public notice giveiopto the time previously scheduled for such meptf stockholders.

8
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ARTICLE 1l

Board of Directors

SECTION 1. General Powerg he property, business and affairs of the Cotjamiashall be managed by or under the direction of
the Board, which may exercise all such powers efGbrporation and do all such lawful acts and thiag are not by law or by the Restated
Certificate of Incorporation directed or requiredoe exercised or done by the stockholders.

SECTION 2. Number and Term of Offic&he number of directors which shall constitute whole Board shall be fixed from tir
to time by the Board. Directors need not be stolddrs or citizens or residents of the United StafeSmerica. Except as provided in
Section 5 of this Article Ill, directors shall bkeeted at the annual meeting of the stockholdera plrality of the votes of the shares present
in person or represented by proxy at the meetingeatitled to vote in the election of directorsckaf the directors of the Corporation shall

hold office until his or her successor shall betd and shall qualify or until his or her earlierath or resignation or removal in the manner
hereinafter provided.

SECTION 3. ResignationsAny director may resign at any time by giving tan notice of his or her resignation to the Chainm
of the Board, the President or the Secretary. Arch sesignation shall take effect at the time djggttherein or, if the time when it shall
become effective shall not be specified thereianti shall take effect when accepted by actiothefBoard. Except as aforesaid, the
acceptance of such resignation shall not be negessaake it effective.

9
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SECTION 4. Removal of DirectorsAny director or the entire Board may be remoweith or without cause, at any time upon the
affirmative vote of holders of a majority of theasbs then entitled to vote at an election of dinext

SECTION 5. VacanciesVacancies in the Board and newly created dirsbips resulting from any increase in the authorized
number of directors may be filled by a majoritytieé directors then in office, although less thajuarum, or by a sole remaining director or
by the stockholders of the Corporation at the mextual meeting or any special meeting called ferhrpose. Each director so chosen shall
hold office until his or her successor shall betdd and shall qualify or until his or her earlileath or resignation or removal in the manni
herein provided.

SECTION 6. Place of MeetingsThe Board may hold its meetings at such plaqdamres within or without the State of Delaware
as the Board may from time to time determine cstal be designated in the respective notices aressmof notice thereof.

SECTION 7._Annual and Regular Meetingehe annual meeting of the Board for the purpdsdeazting officers and for the
transaction of such other business as may comeeitfe meeting shall be held as soon as possilibeving adjournment of the annual
meeting of the stockholders at the place of suctualhmeeting of the stockholders. Notice of suchuah meeting of the Board need not be
given. The Board from time to time may by resolatprovide for the holding of regular meetings aixdtie place (which may be within or
without the State of Delaware), date and time chsmeetings. Notice of regular meetings need nafileen; provided however, that if the

10
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Board shall fix or change the time or place of eagular meeting, notice of such action shall beledgboromptly, or sent by telephone,
telegraph, facsimile, electronic mail or other &l@gic means to each director who shall not hawnharesent at the meeting at which such
action was taken, addressed to him or her at Hi®ousual place of business, or shall be deliverddm or her personally.

SECTION 8. Special MeetingsSpecial meetings of the Board shall be held whenealled by the Chairman of the Board, the
President or at least two of the directors, at qlabe, date and time as may be specified in thgeive notices or waivers of notice of such
meetings. Special meetings of the Board may bedalh at least twenty-four hours’ notice to eackalor if notice is given to each director
personally or by telephone, telegraph, facsimilegteonic mail or other electronic means, or ore¢hdays’ notice from the official date of
deposit in the mail if notice is sent by internatdly recognized courier to each director, addméssénim or her at his or her usual place of
business. Such notice need not state the purppserothe business to be transacted at, that ngeeticept as may otherwise be required by
law. Notice need not be given to a director preséat meeting. A meeting may be held at any tintbout notice if all the directors are
present or if those not present waive notice oftieeting in writing either before or after that rireg.

SECTION 9. Quorum and Manner of Actingxcept as provided by law, the Restated Certdicd Incorporation or these Bylav
a majority of the total number of directors shalgresent in person at any meeting of the Boaadder to constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at such meeting, and tteeofa majority of

11
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those directors present at any such meeting atwahiguorum is present shall be necessary for theaga of any resolution or act of the
Board. In the absence of a quorum for any suchingget majority of the directors present thereay mdjourn such meeting from time to ti
until a quorum shall be present thereat. Noticanyf adjourned meeting need not be given.

SECTION 10. OrganizationThe Board shall elect a Chairman of the Boarthfesnong the directors. Meetings of the Board shall
be presided over by the Chairman of the Boarduoh ®ther person as the Board may determine. Tbietey shall act as secretary of the
meeting, and in his or her absence such other pasthe person presiding over the meeting mayiappo

SECTION 11. Action by Written Consenfny action required or permitted to be takenrat mmeeting of the Board or of any
committee thereof may be taken without a meetiradl ifnembers of the Board or of such committeghasase may be, consent thereto in
writing, and such writing or writings are filed Withe minutes of the proceedings of the Board oh smmmittee.

SECTION 12. Meetings by Telephone, gty one or more members of the Board, or any cotemitlesignated by the Board,
may participate in a meeting of the Board, or stmmmittee, by means of conference telephone otaimwmmunications equipment by
means of which all persons patrticipating in the timgecan hear each other, and participation in ating pursuant to this Section shall
constitute presence in person at such meeting.

12
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SECTION 13. CompensatiarEach director, in consideration of his or hevs®y as such, shall be entitled to receive from the
Corporation such amount per annum or such feeatfendance at meetings of the Board or of any cateeior both, as the Board shall from
time to time determine. The Board may likewise jlewvthat the Corporation shall reimburse each thremr member of a committee for any
expenses incurred by him or her on account of hieo attendance at any such meeting. Nothing omdan this Section shall be construed
to preclude any director from serving the Corparain any other capacity and receiving compensatierefor.

ARTICLE IV
Committees

SECTION 1. CommitteesThe Board shall, by resolution passed by a ngjofithe directors, designate a compensation
committee, a nominating and governance committe@uait committee and, if so desired from timeitoet other committees to serve at the
pleasure of the Board. Each committee shall con$isto or more of the directors of the Corporatiaich to the extent permitted by law
and provided in such resolution or these Bylawdl $ta@e and may exercise the powers of the Boatdérmanagement and affairs of the
Corporation. Such committee(s) shall have such fgnas may be determined from time to time by regmh adopted by the Board. Each
committee shall keep regular minutes of its mestiaugd report the same to the Board when requireel Bbard may designate one or more
directors as alternate members of any committee, wéy replace any absent or disqualified membanyimeeting of the committee. In the
absence or disqualification of a member of the

13
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committee, the member or members thereof presemyameeting and not disqualified from voting, wietor not he, she or they constitute a
guorum, may unanimously appoint another membene@Board to act at the meeting in place of any silosent or disqualified member.

SECTION 2. Committee Ruleeach committee of the Board may fix its own ruwdégrocedure and shall hold its meetings as
provided by such rules, except as may otherwigertw&ided by the resolution of the Board designatingh committee or the charter adopted
by the Board for such committee. In the absenaioh rules, each committee shall conduct its bssirethe same manner as the Board
conducts its business pursuant to Article Il afsl Bylaws.

ARTICLE V
Officers

SECTION 1. Number The principal officers of the Corporation shadl designated by the Board and shall consist oéaidRent,
such number of Vice Presidents as the Board mayrméate from time to time, a Treasurer, a Secredacrysuch number of Assistant
Treasurers and Assistant Secretaries as the Baaydlatermine from time to time. The Board maytsndiscretion, create such offices and
confer such titles as Chief Executive Officer, Glimancial Officer or Chief Operating Officer addsignate any Vice President by a number
or numbers or a word or words (including, withaatitation, the words “Executive” and “Senior”) adtlbefore or after such title. The Board
may appoint, and authorize the appointment of, sitlear officers of the Corporation as the Boardnaeeecessary who shall have such
authority and shall

14
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perform such duties as these Bylaws or as the Boagdprescribe. Any number of offices may be hgldhe same person, except that no
person may simultaneously hold the offices of Riersi and Secretary.

SECTION 2._Term of Office Each officer shall hold office until his or hercgessor is duly elected and qualified or untildriiet
earlier death or resignation or removal in the neaiereinafter provided.

SECTION 3. Removal and ResignatioAll officers and agents of the Corporation stwlsubject to removal, with or without
cause, at any time by the affirmative vote of aaribj of the Board, or, except in the case of afficer elected by the Board, by any
committee or superior officer upon whom such pomeay be conferred by the Board. Designation of dieafshall not itself create contract
rights. Any officer may resign at any time by gigiwritten notice of his or her resignation to thregtdent or the Secretary, and such
resignation shall take effect at the time speciffeztein or, if the time when it shall become efifex shall not be specified therein, shall take
effect when accepted by action of the Board. Exespforesaid, the acceptance of such resigndiadhreot be necessary to make it effect

SECTION 4. PresidentThe President, subject to the direction of thar8pshall have such powers and perform such dasies
pertain to the office of President and as the Boaagt from time to time prescribe, shall have thedion of all subordinate officers, agents
and employees and may assign such duties to shehdaificers as he or she deems appropriate, atipgrform such other duties and
exercise such other powers as may from time to bienprescribed by these Bylaws or the Board.

15
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SECTION 5. Vice President€Each Vice President shall have such powers arfdrpesuch duties as the Board or the President
may from time to time prescribe and shall perforrohsother duties as may be prescribed by thesemBylat the request of the President, or
in case of his or her absence or inability to ant; of the Vice Presidents shall perform the dutfethe President and, when so acting, shall
have all the powers of, and be subject to all &strictions upon, the President.

SECTION 6. TreasurerThe Treasurer shall have charge and custodydfba responsible for, all funds and securitiethef
Corporation, and shall deposit all such funds extame of the Corporation in such banks, trust @mes or other depositories as shall be
selected in accordance with the provisions of tliladaws. He or she shall disburse the funds ofGbgporation as may be ordered by the
Board, making proper vouchers for such disbursespamtd shall render to the Board whenever requireld so, and shall present at the
annual meeting of the stockholders, if called umdo so, a statement of all his or her transastasTreasurer. He or she shall have such
powers and perform such duties as pertain to theeadf Treasurer and shall perform such otheredusis may from time to time be assigned
to him or her by the Board.

SECTION 7._SecretaryThe Secretary shall keep the records of the pings of all meetings of the stockholders andBbard
or any committees thereof. He or she shall affexgbal of the Corporation to all deeds, contrdieds or other instruments requiring the
corporate seal when the same shall have been signkehalf of the Corporation by a duly authoripéficer and shall be the custodian of all
contracts,

16
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deeds, documents and all other indicia of titlprmperties owned by the Corporation and of its otimeporate records (except accounting
records). He or she shall have such powers andmpeduch duties as pertain to the office of Secyedad shall perform such other duties as
may from time to time be assigned to him or hethgyBoard.

SECTION 8. Other Officers, Assistant Officers angefits. Officers, assistant officers and agents, if alger than those whose
duties are provided for in these Bylaws, shall haweh authority and perform such duties as may tiora to time be prescribed by resolut
of the Board or by the person responsible for appag such officers, assistant officers and ageastgshe case may be.

SECTION 9. Execution of Contracts and InstrumemMstwithstanding the foregoing description of theies and powers of
corporate officers, the Board may from time to tiling@t or qualify such duties and powers by aniinstent designated by the Board or
pursuant to the Board’s delegated authority agpotate delegation of authority, and the duties powers of the Corporation’s officers shall
be so limited. The Board may also from time to tepecifically authorize one or more officers orratgeof the Corporation to enter into such
contracts, execute such instruments and take gtieh actions in the name of and on behalf of thep@ation for such specific purposes and
in connection with such specific matters and tratisas as the Board in its discretion may determifrey instrument may be executed on
behalf of and in the name of the Corporation: §ajite Chairman of the Board, the President, thefkecutive Officer (if any), the Chief
Financial Officer (if any), the Chief Operating @#r (if any) or any Vice President, together whk Secretary, the Treasurer or any Assi
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Secretary, or any Assistant Treasurer, in each sabgect to any instrument that the Board or treaghorized by it may designate as a
“corporate delegation of authority”, (b) by suclicg#rs specifically authorized to act by Board tason for a specific purpose or (c) by any
other person authorized to do so by, and subjettetdimits stated in, the instrument that the Bloar those authorized by it may designate as
a “corporate delegation of authority”, and suchspes shall be deemed agents of the Corporatiosuftr purposes. Except as otherwise
designated or expressly authorized by these Bylanasn instrument properly designated as a “cotpatelegation of authority” no officer,
employee or agent shall have any power or authtwityind the Corporation by any contract or engagygor to pledge its credit or to render
it liable pecuniarily for any purpose or to any amb

SECTION 10. Security The Board may require any officer, agent or erygdoof the Corporation to provide security for the
faithful performance of his or her duties, in sarhount and of such character as may be determioedtime to time by the Board.

ARTICLE VI

Proxies, Checks, Drafts, Bank Accounts, Etc.

The President, or any other officer designatechieyBoard as having such authority, shall have aityhfoom time to time to
exercise in the name and on behalf of the Corpmrdtie powers and rights which the Corporation heaye as the holder of stock or other
securities or interests in any other corporatiobusiness entity and to vote or consent in respfemtich stock, securities or interest; the
President or such
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designated officers may designate an agent or agemerform such function and may instruct thesperor persons so appointed as to the
manner of exercising such powers and rights; aadPtiesident or such designated officers may exerutause to be executed in the name
and on behalf of the Corporation and under its aaie seal, or otherwise, such written proxies, gravof attorney or other instruments as
they may deem necessary or proper in order thattinporation may exercise its said powers and sighil checks and drafts on the
Corporation bank accounts and all bills of exchaamge promissory notes, and all acceptances, oldigaand other instruments for the
payment of money, shall be signed by such officasfficers or agent or agents or other employeenoployees as shall be thereunto
authorized from time to time by the Board. Thirdtjgs shall be entitled to rely on the authorityed@ated by the Board or pursuant to its
delegated authority in an instrument designateal ‘@srporate delegation of authority” as to all taeg governed by this Article VI.

ARTICLE VII

Books and Records

The books and records of the Corporation may bé&eguch places within or without the State ofd)dre as the Board may
from time to time determine.
ARTICLE VI
Seal

The corporate seal shall have inscribed thereondhnge of the Corporation and the words “Corporat Selaware 1936.” In lieu
of the corporate seal, when so authorized by trerdor a duly empowered committee thereof and prdnby law, a facsimile thereof may
be impressed or affixed or reproduced.
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ARTICLE IX
Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on3h&day of December in each year, unless changed biutes of the Board.

ARTICLE X
Indemnification

SECTION 1. Right to IndemnificatioThe Corporation shall indemnify to the fullest extauthorized by the Delaware General
Corporation Law, as the same exists or may herdaft@mended, each person who was or is a paisytloreatened to be made a party to
involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whettieil, criminal, administrative or investigativa (Proceeding”)by reason of the fact that
or she is or was or had agreed to become a directfficer of the Corporation or an employee af tborporation specifically designated by
the Board as an indemnified employee, or is or seaiging or had agreed to serve at the requesedttrporation as a director, officer,
partner, member, trustee or agent, or such an g@plof another corporation, partnership, limitedility company, joint venture, trust or
other enterprise (including the heirs, executomiadstrators or estate of such person), whethebésés of such Proceeding is alleged acti
an official capacity as a director, officer, partn@ember, trustee, agent or employee, or in ahgratapacity while serving as a director,
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officer, partner, member, trustee, agent or empopggainst all expense, liability and loss (inahgdattorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ERISA
excise taxes, penalties and amounts paid or taiokip settlement) reasonably incurred or suffédngduch person in connection with such
service; provided however, that except as provided in Section 2 of thisdetiX the Corporation shall indemnify any such pearseeking
indemnification in connection with a Proceeding fart thereof) initiated by such person only iflsRroceeding was authorized by the Bc
either generally or in the specific instance.

SECTION 2. ExpensesThe right to indemnification shall include thevadcement of expenses incurred by any person teskcri
in Section 1 of this Article X in defending any dueroceeding in advance of its final dispositiom@tordance with procedures established
from time to time by the Board; providedhowever, that the director, officer, partner, member, tees agent or employee shall deliver to the
Corporation an undertaking to repay all amountad@anced if it shall ultimately be determined mafijudicial decision from which there is
no further right to appeal that he or she is nditled to be indemnified for such expenses undisrAticle X or otherwise, such undertaking
to be in form and substance reasonably acceptaltfetCorporation and which may further specify¢baditions upon which indemnificati
for expenses is available given the facts and mistances of such Proceeding.

SECTION 3._Continuation of RightsThe rights of indemnification provided in thististe X shall be in addition to any rights to
which any person may otherwise be entitled by lawrmer any Bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholdemdisinterested directors, or
otherwise. Such rights shall continue as to angg@ewho has
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ceased to be a director, officer, partner, menthgstee, agent or employee and shall inure to ¢imefit of his or her heirs, executors and
administrators, and shall be applicable to procegsdcommenced after the adoption hereof, whetl&ngrfrom acts or omissions occurring
before or after the adoption hereof.

SECTION 4._Contract RightsThe obligations of the Corporation to indemnifglieector, officer, partner, member, trustee, agent
or employee under this Article X, including the @itn advance expenses, shall be considered a cobh#ween the Corporation and such
individual, and no modification or repeal of anpyision of this Article X shall affect, to the dimrent of the individual, such obligations of
the Corporation in connection with a claim baseduoy act or failure to act occurring before suchdification or repeal.

SECTION 5. Insurance and Fundinghe Corporation may purchase and maintain ingerém protect any person against any
liability or expense asserted against or incurngduxh person in connection with any Proceedingstivr or not the Corporation would have
the power to indemnify such person against suddilitia or expense by law or under this Article X @therwise, provided that such insurance
is available on acceptable terms, which determonathall be made by the Board. The Corporation cnegte a trust fund, grant a security
interest or use other means (including, withouitition, a letter of credit) to insure the paymefhsuch sums as may become necessary to
effect indemnification as provided herein.

SECTION 6. Severability If this Article X or any portion hereof shall bevalidated on any ground by any court of competent
jurisdiction, then the Corporatic
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shall nevertheless indemnify and hold harmless daeltor and officer and any other person inderadipursuant to this Article X as to all
expense, liability and loss (including attorneyse$, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes, pesaitie amounts paid or to be paid in
settlement) with respect to any Proceeding to tlieektent permitted by any applicable portion fwktArticle X that shall not have been
invalidated and to the fullest extent permittedapplicable law.

ARTICLE XI

Shares and Their Transfer

SECTION 1. Certificates for Share¥he shares of the Corporation shall be repreddnteertificates, or shall be uncertificated
shares evidenced by a boektry system, or a combination of both. Certifisagball be signed by, or in the name of the Cotpmray, (i) the
President or a Vice President and (ii) the Seqyataan Assistant Secretary, certifying the nundred class of shares of the Corporation
owned by the holder of such certificate. If sudedificate is countersigned (a) by a transfer agen assistant transfer agent other than the
Corporation or its employee or (b) by a registridweo than the Corporation or its employee, theatigme of any such President, Vice
President, Secretary or Assistant Secretary mayfaesimile. In case any
officer(s) who have signed, or whose facsimile atgre(s) have been used on, any such certificatbéd) cease to be such officer(s) of the
Corporation, whether because of death, resignatiatherwise, before such certificate(s) have lmkgivered by the Corporation, such
certificate(s) may nevertheless be issued andetelivas though the person or persons who signéd suc
certificate(s) or whose facsimile signature(s) haeen used thereon had not ceased to be suchr(dffiog the Corporation.
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SECTION 2. Record A record shall be kept of the name of the perfiom,or corporation owning each share of stockhaf
Corporation, including, in the case of stock repnted by each certificate for stock of the Corporaissued, the number of shares repres:
by each such certificate, and the date thereof, iarttie case of cancellation, the date of canttellaExcept as otherwise expressly required
by law, the person in whose name shares of stacidgin the books of the Corporation shall be deetmreedwner thereof for all purposes as
regards the Corporation.

SECTION 3._Transfers of StocKkransfers of stock shall be made only upon thesfier books of the Corporation kept at an office
of the Corporation or by transfer agents designtadchnsfer shares of the stock of the Corporatiorcept when a certificate is issued in
accordance with Section 4 of this Article X, iretbase of stock represented by a certificate, sstanding certificate for the number of sh:
involved shall be surrendered for cancellation kefonew certificate is issued therefor.

SECTION 4. Lost, Destroyed or Mutilated Certificatén the case of an alleged loss or destructigih@mutilation of a certifica:
representing stock of the Corporation, a new deatié may be issued in place thereof, in the maandmupon such terms as the Board may
prescribe.
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ARTICLE XII

General Provisions

SECTION 1. Section Headings$ection headings in these Bylaws are for convei@f reference only and shall not be given any
substantive effect in limiting or otherwise congtguany provision herein.

SECTION 2. Inconsistent Provisiontn the event that any provision of these Bylasveribecomes inconsistent with any provit
of the Corporation’s Certificate of Incorporatiadghe General Corporation Law of the State of Delawarany other applicable law, such
provision of these Bylaws shall not be given arfgcfto the extent of such inconsistency but shhiérwise be given full force and effect.

ARTICLE Xl
Amendments

These Bylaws, or any of them, may be altered, aextiod repealed by the Board, or by the stockholdkitise Corporation as
provided in the Corporation’s Restated Certificafténcorporation.
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Exhibit 10.1

AMENDMENT 2008-1
TO THE
NONQUALIFIED SAVINGS AND
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR
EMPLOYEES OF
AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.
AND ITS DESIGNATED SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the authority reserved to the Ameridater Works Company, Inc. Board of Directors (tB®ard”) under Section 8.01 of the
Nonqualified Savings and Deferred Compensation fiaEmployees of American Water Works Company, brd Its Designate
Subsidiaries (the “Plan”), the Board hereby améhdsPlan, effective as of August 1, 2008, as fodpw

1. The third sentence of the full paragraptiarrirticle | of the Plan is hereby amended ireitéirety to read as follows:
“Certain Group | Employees shall also be eligibleckertain Special Contribution(s) under the F”

2. The sixth sentence of the full paragraptlenrirticle | of the Plan is hereby amended ireitsirety to read as follows:
“Certain Group Ill Employees shall also be eligifglecertain Special Contribution(s) under the F’

3. Section 2.53 of the Plan is hereunder ameidits entirety to read as follows:

“ Section 2.5 Special Contribution " means the amount credited to the Plan for a Grdtmpployee and Group Ill Employee by
AWW pursuant to Sections 4.01(d) and 4.03(c), respely. The Group | Employees and Group Ill Empdeg who shall be eligible to
receive the Special Contribution shall only be theto are designated as eligible to receive sucsupnt to Sections 4.01(d) and 4.03
(c), respectively, and the corresponding Exhi”

4.  Section 4.01(d) of the Plan is hereby aredrnid its entirety to read as follows:

“(d) Special Contribution.

(i) As soon as administratively practicable follogithe Effective Date, AWW shall make a Special @buation to the Special
Contribution Account of each Group | Employee whalésignated to receive the Special Contributiotherattached Exhibit E;
provided, however, that each such specificallyglesied Group | Employee must be employed by thel&mpon the Effective Date
and qualify as a Group | Employee on such date.Spexial Contribution pursuant to this clausedi)dach Group | Employee shall be
equivalent in value to the amount set forth forhsGeoup | Employee on the attached Exhibit E. Amgup | Employee who is not list
on the attached Exhibit E shall not be eligiblegioeive the Special Contribution pursuant to thasige (i). The Special Contribution
provided for in this clause (i) shall be a -time contribution
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(i) As soon as administratively practicable orafter August 1, 2008, AWW shall make a Special @bation to the Special
Contribution Account of each Group | Employee whalésignated to receive the Special Contributiotherattached Exhibit F;
provided, however, that each such specificallygtestied Group | Employee must be employed by thel&wmpon August 1, 2008 and
qualify as a Group | Employee on such date. Thei@p€ontribution pursuant to this clause (ii) &ach such Group | Employee shall
be equivalent in value to the amount set forthsfozh Group | Employee on the attached Exhibit iy @noup | Employee who is not
listed on the attached Exhibit F shall not be bligio receive the Special Contribution pursuarthi® clause (ii). The Special
Contribution provided for in this clause (ii) sha# a one-time contribution.”

Section 4.03(c) of the Plan is hereby aredrid its entirety to read as follows:

“(c) Special Contribution.

(i) As soon as administratively practicable follogithe Effective Date, AWW shall make a Special f@ibation to the Special
Contribution Account of each Group Il Employee wibalesignated to receive the Special Contributiorthe attached Exhibit E;
provided, however, that each such specificallyglestied Group Il Employee must be employed by tmplByer on the Effective Date
and qualify as a Group 11l Employee on such date $pecial Contribution pursuant to this clauséofieach such Group Ill Employee
shall be equivalent in value to the amount sehféat such Group Il Employee on the attached Eitliib Any Group Ill Employee who
is not listed on the attached Exhibit E shall n@€ligible to receive the Special Contribution prarst to this clause (i). The Special
Contribution provided for in this clause (i) shial a one-time contribution.

(if) As soon as administratively practicable orafter August 1, 2008, AWW shall make a Special @buation to the Special
Contribution Account of each Group Il Employee wikalesignated to receive the Special Contributiorthe attached Exhibit F;
provided, however, that each such specificallygtestied Group Il Employee must be employed by tmplgyer on August 1, 2008 a
qualify as a Group Il Employee on such date. Theckl Contribution pursuant to this clause (i) éach such Group Il Employee
shall be equivalent in value to the amount sehféat such Group IIl Employee on the attached EitlibAny Group Il Employee who
is not listed on the attached Exhibit F shall neeligible to receive the Special Contribution piarst to this clause (ii). The Special
Contribution provided for in this clause (ii) sha# a one-time contribution.”
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6.  The introductory paragraph of Exhibit Blie Plan is hereby amended in its entirety to esafbllows:

“The following sets forth the Group | Employees @bup IIl Employees who shall be eligible to reeeihe one-time Special
Contribution as set forth in Sections 4.01(d)(iyl @03(c)(i), respectively, and the amount of thbeal Contribution that each such
Group | Employee and Group Ill Employee shall hgilkele to receive pursuant to such Sections, raspeyg:”

7. A new Exhibit F shall be added to the Rtaread as follows:
“EXHIBIT F
SPECIAL CONTRIBUTION

The following sets forth the Group | Employees &@rdup |l Employees who shall be eligible to reeeitie one-time Special
Contribution as set forth in Sections 4.01(d)(iigad.03(c)(ii), respectively, and the amount of 8peecial Contribution that each such
Group | Employee and Group Ill Employee shall higilele to receive pursuant to such Sections, raspdy:

Employee Name Type of Employee Amount of Special Contribution
Correll, Donald L. Group | $16,48C
Wolf, Ellen C. Group | $13,35€
Monica, Laure Group | $4,085
Settelen, Joh Group | $69
Twadelle, Andrew Group | $1,000
Young, John S Group I $4,594
Gloriod, Terry L. Group Il $2,100
Lynch, Walter Group Ill $2,200
Bigelow, John R Group I $990
Townsley, Paul G Group I $1,271
Patrick, George W Group IlI $1,126

8. Inall respects not modified by this Amerahin2008-1, the Plan is hereby ratified and cordim

* k kK k k%

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , and as evidence of the adoption of this Amendr28a8-1 to the Plan set forth herein, the Board has
caused this instrument to be executed this 25thoflduly, 2008.

American Water Works Company, Inc. Board of
Directors

/sl George W. Patric

By: George W. Patric
Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretar
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

(Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as amended,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@mésss Act of 2002)

[, Donald L. Correll, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ0f American Water Works Company, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistédements, and other financial information ined in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this rej

4. The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsiliedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)jHeregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

¢) disclosed in this report any change in the teaig's internal control over financial reportiftat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt'interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 6, 20C

By: /s/ Donald L. Correll
Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER AND CH IEF ACCOUNTING OFFICER

(Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities ExghaAct of 1934, as amended,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@mésss Act of 2002)

[, Ellen C. Wolf, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on FormQ0f American Water Works Company, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dmnéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated findistéements, and other financial information inled in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented in this rej

4. The registrang other certifying officers and | are responsiliedstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)}Heregistrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresiused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this quarterly report is beingpared,;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

c) disclosed in this report any change in the teai$'s internal control over financial reportingat occurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecteds reasonably likely to materially affect, ttegistrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigteaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrargt'interna
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 6, 20C

By: /s/ Ellen C. Wolf
Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office
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Exhibit 32.1

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Ameridatater Works Company, Inc. (the “Company”) on FArtaQ for the period ended
September 30, 2008, as filed with the SecuritiesExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R§pbh Donald L. Correll , President

and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, herebstify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as setbpursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Donald L. Correll
Donald L. Correll
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

November 6, 200
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Exhibit 32.2

AMERICAN WATER WORKS COMPANY, INC.

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the quarterly report of Ameridatater Works Company, Inc. (the “Company”) on FArtaQ for the period ended
September 30, 2008, as filed with the SecuritiesEExchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Rph Ellen C. Wolf, Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, of the Compaereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectiobQl&s adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExaeAct of 1934 as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

By: /s/ Ellen C. Wolf
Ellen C. Wolf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

November 6, 200
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